

HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.

2023

Annual Report

The Annual Report is available at: https://mops.twse.com.tw Company website: http://www.howteh.com.tw

Published on May 9, 2024

I. The Company's spokesperson and acting spokesperson: Name of spokesperson: Wang, Chang-Hui (temporary) Title: Audit Office Manager Contact No.: (02) 2570-8818 Email: angle@howteh.com.tw

Name of acting spokesperson: Wang, Chang-Hui Title: Audit Office Manager Contact No.: (02) 2570-8818 Email: angle@howteh.com.tw

- II. Address and contact number of headquarters: Address of headquarters: 6F, No. 25, Sec. 1, Dunhua South Road, Taipei Contact No.: (02) 2570-8818 FAX: (02) 2570-9888
- III. Agency handling shares transfer: Name: Stock Agency Department of MasterLink Securities Corp. Address: B1, No. 35, Lane 11, Guangfu North Road, Taipei Contact No.: (02) 2768-6668 Website: https://www.masterlink.com.tw
- IV. CPAs who duly audited the annual financial report for the most recent fiscal year: CPAs: Wang, Hsuan-Hsuan; Chang, Chih-Ming CPA frim: Ernst & Young Address: 9F, No. 333, Sec. 1, Keelung Road, Taipei Contact No.: (02)2757-8888 Website:https://www.ey.com
- V. Name of any exchanges where the company's securities are traded offshore, and the method by which to access information on said offshore securities: None.
- VI. Company website: http://www.howteh.com.tw

Table of Contents

One. Letter to Shareholders	1
Two. Company Profile	6
Three.Corporate Governance Report	
I. Organizational system	.10
II. Information on directors, the general manager, vice general manager, associate	
general manager, and heads of various departments and branches	.12
III. Remuneration for directors, the general manager, and vice general manager in	
the most recent year	.23
IV. State of operation of corporate governance	.28
V. Information on the professional fees of the attesting CPAs	.66
VI. Information on replacement of CPAs	.66
VII. The company's chairman, general manager or any officers in charge of finance	
or accounting matters has in the most recent year held a position at the accounting	
firm of its CPAs or at an affiliated enterprise of such accounting firm	.67
VIII. Any equity transfer or change in equity pledge by a director, managerial officer,	
or shareholder with 10% stake or more during the most recent year or during the	
current year up to the date of publication of the annual report	.67
IX. Information on the top ten shareholders who are a related party, a spouse, or a	
relative within the second degree of kinship of one another	.68
X. The total number of shares and the consolidated equity stake percentage held in	
any single investee enterprise by the Company, its directors, managerial officers,	
or any companies controlled either directly or indirectly by the Company	69
Four. Fund Raising Status	
I. Capital and shares	.70
II. Issuance of corporate bonds, preferred shares, and global deposit certificates	.76
III. Issuance of employee stock options certificates and restricted shares	.76
IV. Issuance of new shares in connection with mergers or acquisitions	.76
V. Implementation of fund utilization plan	.76
Five. Operational Highlights	
I. Business activities	.77

IV.	Disbursements for environmental protection	.94
V.	Labor-management relationship	.94
VI.	Cyber security management	.97
VII.	Important contracts	.98

Six. Finance Overview

I.	Condensed balance sheet and comprehensive income statement for the most	
	recent 5 years) 9
II.	Financial analysis for the most recent 5 years10)3
III.	Audit Committee review report on the financial report for the most recent fiscal	
	year)6
IV.	Consolidated financial report for the most recent fiscal year audited by the CPAs10	
V.	Parent company only financial report for the most recent fiscal year audited by	
	the CPAs10)7
VI.	If the Company or its affiliates have experienced financial difficulties in the most	
	recent year or during the current year up to the date of publication of the annual	
	report, their effects on the Company's financial status shall be disclosed10)7
Seven. Re	eview and Analysis of the Financial Position and Financial Performance, and Risks	

I.	Financial position	.108
II.	Financial Performance	.109
III.	Cash flow	.109
IV.	Effect of major capital expenditures on finance and business matters in the most	
	recent year	.110
V.	Investment policy for the most recent year, the main reasons for profit or loss,	
	improvement plan and investment plan for the coming year	.110
VI.	Analysis and assessment of risks	.111
VII.	Other important matters	.113

Eight. Special Items

	I.	Information on affiliates	114
	II.	Private placement of marketable securities in the most recent year and the current	
		year up till the publication date of this annual report	.117
	III.	Holding or disposal of the Company's shares by its subsidiaries in the most recent	
		year and the current year up to the publication date of this annual report	117
	IV.	Other matters that require additional explanation	117
Nine.	Wh	ether any of the situations listed in Subparagraph 2, Paragraph 3, Article 36 of the	
	Sec	urities and Exchange Act, which might materially affect shareholders' equity or the	
	pric	e of the company's securities, have occurred during the most recent fiscal year or	

during the current fiscal year up to the date of publication of the annual report......117

One. Letter to Shareholders

- I. 2023 Business Performance
 - (I) Business Plan implementation achievements:

The world has experienced high inflation and interest rates in the past year, while China's post-pandemic economic performance has been worse than expected, all contributing to a weak international economic performance. This has been further exacerbated by factors such as the U.S.-China trade confrontation, the Russia-Ukraine war, and the ongoing Israeli-Palestinian conflict, together leading to a suppression of worldwide end-product demand. International orders have declined, supply chains continue to face inventory adjustments, and industrial activities have slowed, trends that have together impacted the global economy.

In 2023, the Company recorded a consolidated revenue of NT\$2.74 billion, down 15.4% from NT\$3.24 billion in 2022; a gross profit of NT\$290 million; a post-tax profit of NT\$100 million; and an EPS of NT\$1.55.

(II) Status of budget execution Since the Company did not disclose a financial forecast for 2023, there was no such thing as budget implementation and achievement.

			Unit: NT\$1,000
Item	2023	2022	Change
Operating revenue	2,743,028	3,244,029	-15.44%
Operating gross profit	287,387	354,003	-18.82%
Operating profit	99,728	131,016	-23.88%
Net profit after tax	100,772	208,799	-51.74%

(III) An analysis of income and expenses and profitability

Item	2023	2022
Return on assets (%)	4.12	7.52
Return on equity (%)	6.70	15.63
Operating profit to paid-in capital (%)	15.31	20.92
Profit before tax to paid-in capital (%)	19.57	41.31
Net profit margin (%)	3.67	6.44
Earnings per share (NT\$)	1.55	3.21

(IV) Research and Development

The Company is mainly engaged in the trading of electronic components and related products, and has no R&D investment expenses for its own production. With professional marketing and sales personnel, in addition to the existing connectors, acoustic products, wires, driving IC, PCB equipment, and other products, we continue to develop more new application products as the agent, such as Potens Semiconductor Corp., Ingenic Semiconductor Co., Ltd., Motorcomm Electronic Technology Co., Ltd., etc., and have successfully assisted in the introduction of the application and sales of end customers'

products. With our newly established sales offices in Vietnam and Beijing, China, we have successively developed contacts with customers of development potential, expanded the scale of the Company's operational services, and created more growth opportunities.

II. Summary of the 2023 Business Plan

- (I) Business strategies
 - Developing new suppliers, new products, new applications, and new services Setting up a development department, which shall keep abreast of current events in the technology industry, and shall be exclusively responsible for developing the ODM business and agency business, and for creating product applications, so as to broaden the business reach. Actively deepening the cooperative and dependent relationship with existing customers and developing new customer bases.

2. Improving the ability of the professional technical team, integrating demand with applications, and providing comprehensive services The Company attaches importance to human resources use and improvement. By holding various internal education and training courses and on-the-job training, and by actively participating the seminars on industrial trends and technologies, the Company hones employees' professional skills. By developing solutions tailored to the needs of clients and original manufacturers, the Company betters its service quality and operating procedures, in order to align with market trends and demand.

3. Implementing the operating and administrative mechanism to better market competitiveness.

The Company will respond to global economic growth and grasp industry changes and clients' operating status in order to develop the strategy for developing products tailored to the local's needs; manage accounts in relation to clients and implement the purchase-sales-inventory mechanism; reduce cost and expenditures; and properly manage cash flows, so as to increase competitiveness in the market.

(II) Expected sales and expectation basis

The Company is a professional agent for electronic components, and process equipment and consumables, the products include electronic components (connectors, audio component and wires in principle), and PCB manufacturing equipment, testing instruments and materials.

Entering 2024, although there are still many uncertainties in the world economy, fortunately, the annual growth rate of the US consumer price index is gradually declining, inflation will continue to cool down, the pace of interest rates will also slow down, and there is a possibility of gradual reduction of interest rates. At the same time, the demand for emerging technology applications, the AI boom in electronics and semiconductors and other technology industries, and the fulfillment of net zero emission commitments by international companies will help boost production momentum and equipment demand, as well as promote a recovery in investment. As the global economy recovers, it drives Taiwan's external trade performance, which has gradually stabilized, and consumer

demand for end products has recovered, which will help the Company's revenue growth from electronic components.

(III) Important production and sales policies

Since the Company's operations are mainly marketing and trading of products on an agency basis, the Company's production and sales policy will excessively focus on the following:

1. Improvement in professional competency

To improve employees' understanding of professional knowledge on product properties, features, and functions; to grasp industry trends; to actively use the core products of original manufacturers; and to introduce a wide range of innovative service models and solutions, to seek more opportunities to launch applications tailored to demand.

- To develop markets outside the China block
 We will actively tap into the markets other than the China block. For instance, we will launch suitable products and services in Southeast Asia.
- Effective prevention of credit risks
 We will strictly control and monitor clients' financial structure and credit rating, and
 will insure accounts receivables to lower the risk of default on debt.
- 4. Scheduling and management of a suitable level of inventories

We will always keep an eye on clients' demand, according to which we will adjust inventory levels to avoid overstock. In addition, through our systematic and well-organized internal inventory management system, we will make the inbound and outbound inventories more smooth and more readily available for clients in need; doing so can avoid unnecessary loss as a result of mismanagement.

III. The Company's development strategy for the future

The products which the Company sells as an agent include electronic components/printed circuit board process equipment, testing instruments and related consumables for mainstream products that are required to produce mainstream products. Since the demand for end products, e.g., smartphones, tablet PCs, notebooks, wearing devices, and system peripheral industry, electronic communications remain strong every year and keeps the output value high, and they don't feature alternate peak seasons and low seasons, the Company is less prone to the impact of change in general business climate or ups and downs of a single industry.

In response to future market demand and competitive environment, the Company will adopt the following development strategy:

- 1. Short-term Development Plans
- (1) Developing new suppliers, new products, new applications, and new services

Stay informed of the latest trends in the tech industry whenever necessary and solicit the ODM business and agency business from brands.

- (2) Product application development
- A. Smart speakers/5G/electric vehicles are the largest growing applications

-Provide as many (much) smart speakers/5G/electric vehicles products and services to customers.

-Embrace Thunderbolt & USB Type-C possibilities and actively pursue new customer sources.

-Utilize MEMS related products more extensively and reach out to new customer groups.

B. PCB related equipment development

Seize the opportunity to invest in expanding the flexible PCB factory and IC carrier board factory and bring in corresponding equipment products where appropriate; solicit consumables business, OEM business, and agency business; and foster a close cooperation and interdependence relationship with the equipment clients.

2. Long-term Development Plans

(1) Strengthen the strategic alliance partnership with upstream and downstream manufacturers and clients, and jointly carry out business expansion in the Greater China region to achieve the goal of a win-win situation for all parties involved.

(2) To cope with the migration of clients and suppliers in this industry, the Company will construct a thorough marketing and service team in the Greater China region based on the current bases in East China and South China to present comprehensive and prompt services.

(3) Persevere in winning agentship for new products, and collaborate with clients on the R&D of new products, so as to increase the Company's added value.

(4) Continue to develop independent products, and increase operating profit through value-added technical services.

- IV. Effects of environmental changes in terms of external competition, laws and regulations, and the macro business environment
 - (I) Effect of external competition

Nowadays innovation and application of technological products have become more intensive, and fierce competition remains among industry peers. Under such circumstance, overall competitiveness can be improved only by cultivating one's sensitivity to market changes, by grasping market demand shift and product technology evolution, by introducing business of new product applications and innovation in the capacity of an agent in a timely manner, by adopting excellent marketing techniques, and by enhancing the indispensable partnership of companies throughout the supply chain.

(II) Effects of laws and regulations

The Company will keep abreast of the international relationship, politics, and monetary policy of Taiwan, China, Hong Kong, and Vietnam, and changes in important policy and laws therein, that might impact the Company's business or financial performance, so as to formulate countermeasures and methods. Doing so will enable the Company to comply with laws and regulations while achieving optimal corporate governance and operational performance.

(III) Effect of macroeconomic environment

In 2023, the global economy will continue to recover from the impacts of COVID-19 and

the Russian-Ukrainian/Israeli-Palestinian wars. With the impact of tightening monetary policy, weak trade growth, declining business, and lower consumer confidence becoming increasingly apparent, according to the "Global Economic Prospects" published by the World Bank, global GDP growth in 2024 will be 2.4%, slowing down for the third consecutive year, but it will not cause fear of economic recession. Taiwan's economic growth in 2024 is expected to be mainly supported by consumption and investment, and external demand will recover. In terms of external demand, as the global electronics industry is improving, global trade has bottomed out, and the destocking of production lines has come to an end, with global end demand expected to recover. In terms of domestic demand, given the stable development of the job market, various private consumption indicators are still strong, and it is expected that private consumption will remain stable, while private investment has benefited from the recovery of exports and the return of inventory to normal levels, which will help manufacturers implement investment plans. Meanwhile, public investment has maintained steady growth and relatively low impact from the base period. It is expected that the annual growth rate of fixed capital formation will turn from negative to positive in 2024. Looking forward to 2024, the global economy will still face many uncertainties, such as the Red Sea crisis, the race for green subsidies, extreme weather events, and geopolitical risks. Facing such severe industrial transitions, our marketing strategy and orientation will focus on the market trend. Aside from consolidating the existing client bases for traditional electronic products, we will develop and invest in product applications that are potentially the mainstream products in the future, so as to gain momentum for our steady and persistent growth.

The global economy will still face many challenges going forward. Nonetheless, the Company will continue actively exploring various market opportunities, closely maintaining good relationships and trust with customers and OEMs. We shall also implement risk management and talent training, strengthen corporate governance, foster a solid operating performance, practice sustainable business development, and repay shareholders for their support.

We wish everyone the best. Sincerely,

Chairman: Chen, Kuo-Hung

- I. Incorporation date: September 23, 1978
- II. Company history:
 - September 1978 Established HOWTEH Enterprise Co., Ltd. with a registered capital of NT\$3 million at 6th Floor, No. 262, Section 3, Nanjing East Road, Taipei City, to engage only in import business.
 - April 1979 Increased registered capital to NT\$5 million after a follow-on offering. July Relocated to 6th Floor, No. 65, Songjiang Road, Taipei City.
 - August Increased registered capital to NT\$10 million after a follow-on offering.
 - March 1984 Established the Electronic Components Division (renamed EPC- Electronic Passive Components Division in June 2002), with connectors and bushings as its main products, and expanded the scope of customer service.
 - October 1986 Increased registered capital to NT\$15 million after a follow-on offering.
 - January 1987 The office address was relocated to the 5F, No. 6, Dunhua N. Rd., Taipei City.
 - July 1988 The capital was increased to NT\$32 million after a follow-on offering, and the business scope was expanded. Offices were established in Taichung and Kaohsiung to serve our customers.
 - January 1991 The business scope was further expanded, and the E&M Department was established, mainly served as the distributor of BICC's wires and cables.
 - June 1992 The registered capital was increased to NT\$50 million after a follow-on offering and recapitalization of earnings.
 - August 1996 The Company was relocated to 9F, No. 12, Linsen S. Rd., Taipei City.
 - June 1997 The registered capital was increased to NT\$65 million after a follow-on offering and earnings recapitalization.
 - May 1998 The affiliate Tailyn Technologies, Inc.'s shares began to trade on the OTC market on TPEx.
 - June The registered capital was increased to NT\$83.2 million after a follow-on offering and recapitalization of earnings.
 - June 1999 The registered capital was increased to NT\$108.16 million after a follow-on offering and earnings recapitalization.
 - September The Hong Kong subsidiary Giteh Electronic Industries Co., Ltd. set up a processing factory for imported materials in Dongguan.
 - October The Company purchased its own office building located at 6F, No. 25, Sec. 1, Dunhua S. Rd., Taipei City.
 - January 2000 Passed ISO9002 quality certification.
 - April The registered capital was increased to NT\$173.056 million after a follow-on offering and earnings recapitalization.
 - June SIT-Semiconductor & IT Business Division was established to expand the scope of customer service with active components as the main products.
 - November The Company was renamed Howteh Technology Co., Ltd., and become a dedicated high-tech service provider.
 - December The registered capital was increased to NT\$199 million after a follow-on offering.
 - May 2001 The registered capital was increased to NT\$243.8 million after recapitalization of earnings.

June SFI approved the supplementary application for public listing.

June 2002 The registered capital was increased to NT\$283.37 million after the recapitalization of earnings.

- August The General Manager's Office added a functional organization for new product development, thereby increasing the Company's product line and market breadth, and assisting business departments in improving operational performance.
- December The subsidiary Shanghai Howteh International Trading Inc. was established, and an office was set up in Kunshan, which is responsible for operations in East China.
- February 2003 AT-Advanced Technology Business Division was established to provide semiconductors, optoelectronic equipment and vacuum systems and expand the scope of customer service.
 - June The Company's application for trading its stocks at emerging stock market was approved, and it was officially listed for trading in the emerging market on June 23.
 - August The registered capital was increased to NT\$345.05 million after recapitalization of earnings.
 - January 2004 The application for listing at TEPx was approved by SFI.
 - March On March 25, the Company was officially listed at TPEx.
 - July The registered capital was increased to NT\$404.81 million after recapitalization of earnings.
 - March 2005 The Strategy & Marketing Center was established
 - July The registered capital was increased to NT\$430 million after a follow-on offering and earnings recapitalization.
 - October Hong Kong Giteh Electronic Industries Co., Ltd. established a subsidiary, Shenzhen Howteh Technology Co., Ltd., to serve customers in southern China, and closed the processing factory in Dongguan.
 - March 2006 Shanghai Howteh International Trading Inc. set up an office in Shanghai, which is responsible for operations in East China.
 - May The SIP-System in Package Business Division was established to develop SIP/MCP products and apply them to mobile phones, digital cameras, PDAs, GPS and other products.
 - July The registered capital was increased to NT\$443 million after recapitalization of earnings.
 - October Due to organizational needs, the Strategy & Marketing Center was reorganized to NBD-New Business Development Center, which is responsible for new product/new industry development.
 - July 2007 The registered capital was increased to NT\$452.6 million after a follow-on offering and earnings recapitalization.
 - November The Company Purchased an office in Kunshan through Shanghai Howteh.
 - May 2008 The CSM-Corporate Strategy & Marketing Center was established.
 - June Shanghai Howteh International Trading Inc. purchased its own office in Kunshan and was relocated therein for operation.
 - August The registered capital was increased to NT\$463.2 million after a follow-on offering and earnings recapitalization.
 - April 2009 The Corporate Strategy & Marketing Center and the New Business Development were merged into the Business Development & Strategy Center, which is responsible for development of product distribution, the Company's future development direction and PR.
 - May Mr. Tsai, Tsai-Tien, the former general manager, retired and was succeeded by Mr. Sha, Ching-Chih.
 - June The Company's Articles of Association were amended at the shareholders' meeting, and a position of vice chairman was added, which was seated by Mr. Chen, Kuo-Hung.

- July The registered capital was increased to NT\$486.057 million after a follow-on offering and earnings recapitalization.
- June 2010 The Company began to serve as the distributor of KNOWLES products.
 - July The paperless share was fully adopted.
 - July Mr. Sha, Ching-Chih, the former general manager, resigned due to personal career planning, and Mr. Chen, Kuo-Hung, the vice chairman of the board, began to concurrently serve as the general manager.
 - August The registered capital was increased to NT\$500.45691 million after a follow-on offering and earnings recapitalization.
- December The Company repurchased a total of 574,000 treasury stocks for the second time, all of which were distributed to employees.
- March 2011 In consideration of the sustainable operation of the Company and the cultivation of long-term senior executives, Mr. Chen, Che-Yao, the general manager of Giteh Electronic Industries Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, was appointed to serve as the general manager of the Company.
 - April The 3-year period for treasury stocks repurchased by the Company expired. The board of directors resolved to regard the 32,000 un-transferred shares as unissued shares of the Company, which shall be subject to go the registration of changes. The capital after the decrease was NT\$500,136,910.
 - June The Company served as the distributor of the product "Nano coating system" under the Japanese YE DATA Group, which was expected to continue to achieve remarkable results in the touch panel industry.
 - December The board of directors of the Company determined to establish the Remuneration Committee.
- January 2012 The Company appointed Mr. Kuo, Tsang-He, who has more than 25 years of experience in the IT industry, as the general manager.
 - June The Company's directors and supervisors were re-elected, Mr. Chen, Kuo-Hung took over as the chairman, and Mr. Chen, Che-Hung was transferred to serve as the honorary chairman.
- November 2013 The board of directors of the Company determined to establish Kunshan Howteh International Trade Co., Ltd.
 - April 2014 The Innovative Product Business Division (IPBD) was established, responsible for promoting and selling the new MEMS distributed by the Company and related product lines.
 - February 2015 The Global Semiconductor Business Division (GSBD) was established, which is responsible for the promotion and sales of new semiconductor parts distributed by the Company.
 - March 2016 The former general manager Mr. Kuo, Tsang-He resigned due to personal career planning, and Mr. Chen, Kuo-Hung, the vice chairman of the board, began to concurrently serve as the general manager.
 - October The Components Business III Division (CB3) was established, which specializes in the marketing of electronic passive, active and mechanical components, and provides professional and comprehensive services for related industries at domestic and overseas.
 - August 2017 In order to maintain the stable development and sustainable operation of the Company, Mr. Wu Li-Shan, the vice general manager, was appointed as the acting general manager of the Company.
 - June 2018 In order to strengthen the development and sustainable operation of the Company, the board of directors determined that Mr. Chen Chun-Ting, the director, take over the position of vice chairman.
 - August The registered capital was increased to NT\$520.14239 million after a follow-on offering and earnings recapitalization.

- August The board of directors of the Company approved to transfer the acting general manager, Mr. Wu Li-Shan, to be the officially appointed general manager.
- July 2019 The registered capital was increased to NT\$560 million after a follow-on offering and earnings recapitalization.
- November The board of directors of the Company determined to establish Howteh Vietnam Co., Ltd.
- August 2020 The registered capital was increased to NT\$590.8 million after recapitalization of earnings.
- September 2022 The registered capital was increased to NT\$626.248 million after recapitalization of earnings.
 - January 2023 The Company set up New Business Development Office, which would take charge of expanding the project-based product business; specifically, the Component Department will preferentially develop the agency business of new semiconductor products, and the Equipment Department will develop the agency business of new equipment and materials in Japan.
 - January The former Innovative Product Business Division (IPBD) was renamed Components Business V Division (CB5).
 - August The registered capital was increased to NT\$651.298 million after recapitalization of earnings.

Three. Corporate Governance Report

I. Organizational system

(I) Organizational structure

HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.



(II) Business of each major department

Department	Main duties
General Manager	To formulate the Company's annual business goals; to be in charge of the Company's overall business and strategy implementation; to supervise the operational effectiveness
Internal Audit Office	of each department; and to provide professional support. To review and audit the internal control system; to submit a report regularly to the Board of Directors and managers; to measure operational efficiency and provide timely recommendations for improvement; so as to ensure the effective implementation of the internal control system and improve the performance of each organization.
New Business Development Office	Components Department: To expand project-based product business and preferentially develop the agency business of new semiconductor products. Equipment Department: To Expand project-based product business and preferentially develop the agency business of new equipment and materials in Japan.
Business Units	 Components Business I Division: Dedicated distributor for marketing electronic passive, active and mechanism components, provide professional and comprehensive services for related industries at domestic and overseas. Components Business III Division: Dedicated distributor for marketing electronic passive, active and mechanism components, provide professional and comprehensive services for related industries at domestic and overseas. Components Business V Division: Dedicated distributor for marketing electronic passive, active and mechanism components Business V Division: Dedicated distributor for marketing electronic passive, active and mechanism components, provide professional and comprehensive services for related industries at domestic and overseas. East China Business Division: Professional agent for marketing electronic passive, active and mechanism components and providing professional and comprehensive services for state-owned and private companies in East China/North China. South China Business Division: Professional agent for marketing electronic passive, active and mechanism components and providing professional and comprehensive services for state-owned and private companies in East China/North China. South China Business Division: Professional agent for marketing electronic passive, active and mechanism components and providing professional and comprehensive services for state-owned and private companies in Hong Kong / South China.
Vietnam Component Sales Department	Dedicated distributor for marketing electronic passive, active and mechanism components, provide professional and comprehensive services for related industries a domestic and overseas.
Business Assistant Department	 To review and manage various procurement and sales contracts. To take charge of business process control, e.g., control of purchase and sale process, and inventory tracking and management. To analyze, track, and control inventories.
Finance Division	Responsible for fund management and financial planning; accounting and taxation management; operation and cost analysis; stock affairs; financial statements preparation; and budget development.
Human Resource Administration Department	Responsible for formulating and implementing human resources recruitment; salary and benefits; training and personnel cultivation and management; asset management; general affairs; access control and safety management; environmental management; engineering and maintenance works.
Information Department	Responsible for the establishment, integration, and control of information systems, to improve the efficiency and benefits of business and administration information.
Warehouse Department	Responsible for import and export business and warehouse inbound and outbound management.

II. Information on directors, the general manager, vice general manager, associate general manager, and heads of various departments and branches

(I) Directors

1. About the Directors

Title	Nationality or Place of	Name	Gender		Tenure	Date first elected or		lding when or appointed	Current s	hareholding		ing of spouse rage children	nar	holding in the ne of others	Main career (academic)	Concurrent duties in the Company and other	Spouse or relatives of the second degree closer acting as manager, director or			3, 2024 Remarks
	Registration		Age	election		appointed	Shares	Shareholding Percentage	Shares	Shareholding Percentage	Shares	Shareholding Percentage	Shares	Shareholding Percentage	achievements	companies	Title	Name	Relationship	Remarks
Chairman	ROC	Chen, Kuo-Hung	Male 61~70	July 22, 2021	3 years	September 5, 1992	3,580,116	6.06%	5,548,984	8.52%	2,595,564	3.99%	0	0%	Electrical Engineering, National Taiwan University General manager, Tailyn Technologies, Inc. Chief Strategy	Representative of a corporate director, Tailyn Technologies, Inc. Director, Stark Technology Inc. Chairman, Chaintel Technology Co., Ltd Chairman, Litetech System Co., Ltd.	Director	Chen, Che-Hung	Second-degree relative by marriage	None
Director	ROC	Liu Yi Investment Co., Ltd.	-	July 22, 2021	3 years	June 21, 2018	800,785	1.36%	912,628	1.40%	0	0%	0	0%	None	None	None	None	None	None
Representative of corporate	ROC	Chen,	Male	July 22,	3	June 21,	0	0%	1,161,206	1.78%	0	0%	0	0%	Department of Political Science, National Taiwan University	Chairman, Hui Hong Investment Co., Ltd. Chairman/Representative of a corporate director, Zhu Lin Investment Co., Ltd. Representative of a corporate director, Tailyn Technologies.		Chen, Kuo-Hung	Second-degree relative by marriage	None
director		Che-Hung	81~90	2021	years	2018		0%	-,,	1./070			0	0%	Technology Co., Ltd. Chairman, Tailyn Technologies, Inc.	Tailyn Technologies, Inc. Representative of a corporate supervisor, Treasure Island Trading Co., Ltd. Chairman, Taipei Rosyclouds Foundation for Education	Director	Chen Chun-Ting	Immediate family member	None

Title	Nationality or Place of	Name	Gender Age	Date of election	Tenure	Date first elected or		olding when	Current s	hareholding	Sharehold and under	ing of spouse rage children	nar	cholding in the me of others	Main career (academic)	Concurrent duties in the Company and other				Remarks
	Registration		Age	cicction		appointed	Shares	Shareholding Percentage	Shares	Shareholding Percentage	Shares	Shareholding Percentage	Shares	Shareholding Percentage	achievements	companies	Title	Name	Relationship	
Director	ROC	Tsai, Tsai-Tien	Male 71~80	July 22, 2021	3 years	March 15, 1991	1,229,486	2.08%	1,315,698		0		0	0%	Division of Chemical Engineering, Hua Xia Institute of Technology General Manager, Howteh Technology Co., Ltd.	None	None	None	None	None
Director	ROC	Zhu Lin Investment Co., Ltd.	-	July 22, 2021	3 years	June 23, 2015	2,109,277	3.57%	2,325,266	3.57%	0	0%	0	0%	None	None	None	None	None	None
Representative of corporate director	ROC	Chen Chun-Ting	Male 41~50	July 22, 2021	3 years	June 23, 2015	0	0%	2,051,325	3.15%	182,000	0.28%	0	0%	Institute of Electrical Engineering, University of California Chairman and General Manager, Tailyn Technologies, Inc.	Vice Chairman/Representative of a corporate director, Howteh Technology Co., Ltd. Chairman and General Manager, Tailyn Technologies, Inc. Representative of a corporate director, Zhu Lin Investment Co., Ltd. Director, Hui Hong Investment Co., Ltd.	Director	Chen, Che-Hung	Immediate family member	None
Director	ROC	Hung, Ming-Chi	Male 51~60	July 22, 2021	3 years	June 16, 2009	387,426	0.66%	430,405	0.66%	0	0%	0	0%	University of Houston-Downton, Computer Science Major. IBM Engineer Technological manager, Metaage Corporation	Division Chief, Ardentec Corporation	None	None	None	None

Title	Nationality or Place of	Name	Gender	Date of	Tonura	Date first elected or		olding when or appointed	Current	shareholding		ing of spouse rage children		ng in the name others	Main career	Concurrent duties in the	Spouse or relatives of the second degree or closer acting as manager, director or supervisor		r acting as	
Title	Registration	Ivame	Age	election	Tenure	appointed	Shares	Shareholding Percentage	Shares	Shareholding Percentage	Shares	Shareholding Percentage	Shares	Shareholding Percentage	(academic) achievements	Company and other companies	Title	Name	Relationship	Remarks
Independent director	ROC	Tseng, Ming-Jen	Male 61~70	July 22, 2021	3 years	June 21, 2018	0	0%	0	0%	0	0%	0	0%	MBA, Tamkang University Bachelor of Electrical Engineering, National Taiwan University General Manager, Ability Enterprise Co., Ltd. General Manager, ViewQuest Technology Co., Ltd.	Chairman/Representative of a corporate director, Ability Enterprise Co., Ltd. Chairman/Representative of a corporate director, Ability Investment Co., Ltd. Chairman, Ability Enterprise (Bvi) Co., Ltd. Chairman, Dongguan ABICO Technology Co., Ltd. Chairman/Representative of a corporate director, E-Pin Optical Industry Co., Ltd. Representative of a corporate director, Ability Technologies Co., Ltd.	None	None	None	None
Independent director	ROC	Li, Ta-Ching	Male 61~70	July 22, 2021	3 years	June 23, 2015	0	0%	0	0%	1,251	0%	0	0%	PhD in Administration Science, Tamkang University COO, Stark Technology Inc. General Manager, Sun Microsystems, Inc.	Representative of a corporate director, Yuanta Commercial Bank Representative of a corporate director, Yuanta Securities Investment Trust Co., Ltd.	None	None	None	None
Independent director	ROC	Cheng, Tien-Tsung	Male 71~80	July 22, 2021	3 years	July 22, 2021	0	0%	0	0%	0	0%	0	0%	MBA, Santa Clara University, California, USA CEO, FIH Mobile Limited Vice President, FOXCONN Group Asia Region President, Texas Instruments of USA President of China Region, HP	Independent director, WT Microelectronics Co., Ltd. Chairman, Aurotek Corporation. Representative of a corporate director, 3e Yamaichi Electronics Co., Ltd. Chairman/Representative of a corporate director, Taiwan Oiles Industry Co., Ltd.	None	None	None	None

Note: If the general manager or person of an equivalent post (the highest level manager) and the chairman of the board of directors of a company are the same person, spouses, or relatives within the first degree of kinship, an explanation shall be given of the reason for, reasonableness, necessity thereof, and the measures adopted in response thereto (e.g. increasing the number of independent directors and ensuring that a majority of directors do not concurrently serve as an employee or managerial officer): None.

2. Major shareholders of corporate shareholders

		April 23, 2024
Names of corporate shareholders	Major shareholders of corporate shareholders	Shareholding percentage
Zhu Lin Investment Co., Ltd.	Tailyn Technologies, Inc.	100.00%
	Chen Chun-Ting	33.33%
	Chen, Shang-Yi	14.29%
Liu Yi Investment Co., Ltd.	Chen, Liang-Wei	14.29%
	Chen, Che-Yao	14.29%
	Lai, Yu-Chi	23.81%

3. If any major shareholder listed in table 1 is a corporate/juristic person, list its major shareholders in this Table

		April 23, 2024
Name of corporate/juristic person	Major shareholders of the corporate/juristic person	Shareholding percentage
	Howteh Technology Co., Ltd.	11.05%
	Hui Hong Investment Co., Ltd.	5.01%
	Yang Jing Investment Co., Ltd.	3.45%
	Chen Chun-Ting	3.15%
Tailyn Technologies, Inc.	Hong Tai Investment Co., Ltd.	3.15%
(Shareholding record date was March 26, 2024)	Chen, Wen-Hsiung	2.12%
	Chen, Cheng	1.96%
	Liu, Lin-Sheng	1.95%
	Chen, Wen-Shang	1.85%
	Yu, Chang-Tsan	1.84%

Criteria Name	Professional qualifications and experience (Note 1)	State of independence (Note 2)	Number of concurrent duties as an independent director at a public company
Chen, Kuo-Hung	Currently serving as the Chairman of Chaintel Technology Co., Ltd.; used to be the General Manager of Tailyn Technologies, Inc., and Chief Strategy Officer of Stark Technology Inc. Mr. Chen, Kuo-Hung possesses practical experience and is an expert in strategy management, leadership, marketing, and industrial technology; he communicates business administration strategy to all directors a Board of Directors meetings and interacts with them, in addition to providing his opinion on business administration. Not a person with any of the circumstances under Article 30 of the Company Act.		None
Liu Yi Investment Co., Ltd. Representative: Chen, Che-Hung	Currently serving as the Chairman of Hui Hong Investment Co., Ltd., and Chairman of Zhu Lin Investment Co., Ltd.; used to be the Chairman of Tailyn Technologies, Inc. and the Chairman of Zhowteh Technology Co., Ltd. Mr. Chen, Che-Hung possesses practical experience and is able to submit opinions and strategies with respect to corporate governance and business administration at Board of Directors meetings in a timely manner, so as to provide a basis for the management team to formulate and execute business strategy. Not a person with any of the circumstances under Article 30 of the Company Act.		None
Tsai, Tsai-Tien	Used to be the General Manager of Howteh Technology Co., Ltd. Mr. Tsai, Tsai-Tien possesses practical experience and is able to submit opinions and strategies with respect to corporate governance and business administration at Board of Directors meetings in a timely manner, so as to provide a basis for the management team to formulate and execute business strategies. Not a person with any of the circumstances under Article 30 of the Company Act.		None

4. Disclosure of information on directors' professional qualifications and independent directors' independence

Criteria Name	Professional qualifications and experience (Note 1)	State of independence (Note 2)	Number of concurrent duties as an independent director at a public company
Zhu Lin Investment Co., Ltd. Representative: Chen Chun-Ting	Currently serving as the Chairman and General Manager of Tailyn Technologies, Inc.; used to be the Business Vice General Manager of Tailyn Technologies, Inc. Mr. Chen Chun-Ting is an expert in marketing and industrial technologies and is able to submit opinions and strategies with respect to corporate governance and business administration at Board of Directors meetings in a timely manner, so as to provide a basis for the management team to formulate and execute business strategy. Not a person with any of the circumstances under Article 30 of the Company Act.		None
Hung, Ming-Chi	Currently serving as the Division Chief of Ardentec Technology Inc. Mr. Hung, Ming-Chi possesses practical experience and is able to submit opinions and strategies with respect to corporate governance and business administration at Board of Directors meetings in a timely manner, so as to provide a basis for the management team to formulate and execute business strategy. Not a person with any of the circumstances under Article 30 of the Company Act.		None
Tseng, Ming-Jen	Taiwan University. Currently serving as the Chairman and General Manager of Ability Enterprise Co., Ltd. Being an expert in tech industry management, financial analysis, and	 During the two years before being elected or during the term of office, the independent director has met the following independence criteria: (1) Not an employee of the Company or any of its affiliates. (2) Not a director or supervisor of the Company or any of its affiliates. (3) Not a natural-person shareholder who holds shares, together with those held by the person's spouse, minor children, or held by the person under others' names, in an aggregate that reaches one percent or more of the total number of issued shares of the company or ranks among the top 10 in terms of shareholding. (4) Not a spouse, relative within the second degree of kinship, or lineal relative within the third degree of kinship, of a managerial officer under Subparagraph 1 or any of the persons in the preceding two subparagraphs. 	None

Criteria Name	Professional qualifications and experience (Note 1)	State of independence (Note 2)	Number of concurrent duties as an independent director at a
Li, Ta-Ching	University; used to be the COO of Stark Technology Inc. Being an expert in industry analysis and management and corporate governance, Mr. Li, Ta-Ching is able to submit recommendations with respect to business decision-making, to an extent that improves the Board	 (6) Not a director, supervisor, or employee of a company whose majority board seats and voting rights are controlled by a person same as the person controlling a majority seats and voting powers of the Company. (7) Not a director, supervisor, or employee of a company or institution 	public company
Cheng, Tien-Tsung	MBA, Santa Clara Univeristy in California, USA; used to the CEO of FIH Mobile Limited, a subsidiary of FOXCONN Group, the Vice President of FOXCONN Group, the Asia Region President of Texas Instruments, and the President of China Region, HP. Being an expert in industry management and administration, international marketing, and corporate governance, Mr. Cheng, Tien-Tsung is able to submit recommendations with respect to business decision-making, to an extent that improves the Board of Directors' corporate governance quality and the supervisory function of the Audit Committee. Not a person with any of the circumstances under Article 30 of the Company Act.	 whose chairman, general manager, or a person holding an equivalent position is a person same as the chairman, general manager, or a person holding an equivalent position of the Company, or a spouse thereof. (8) Not a director, supervisor, manager, or shareholder holding 5% or more of the shares of a specific company or institution with a financial or business relationship with the Company. (9) Not a professional individual who, or an owner, partner, director, supervisor, or manager of a sole proprietorship, partnership, company, or institution that, provides auditing services to the Company or any affiliate of the company, or that provides commercial, legal, financial, accounting or related services to the Company or any affiliate of the company over the past 2 years and has received cumulative compensation not exceeding NT\$500,000, or a spouse thereof; (10) Not a person who is a spouse or relatives of second degree of kinship of other directors. (11) Not a person elected in the capacity of the government, a corporation, or a representative as provided in Article 27 of the Company Act. 	1

Note 1: Professional qualifications and experience: Specify the professional qualifications and experience of each director and supervisor. If a member of the Audit Committee, specify their accounting or finance background and work experience. Additionally, specify whether any circumstance under any subparagraph of Article 30 of the Company Act exists with respect to a director or supervisor. Note 2: Describe the status of independence of each independent director, including but not limited to the following: did they or their spouse or any relative within the second degree serve as a director, supervisor, or employee of the Company or any of its affiliates? ; specify the number and ratio of shares of the Company held by the independent director and their spouse and relatives within the second degree (or through nominees); do they serve as a director, supervisor, or employee of any company having a specified relationship with the Company (see Article 3, paragraph 1, subparagraphs 5 to 8 of the Regulations Governing Appointment of Independent Directors and Compliance Matters for Public Companies)?; specify the amount(s) of any pay received by the independent director for any services such as business, legal, financial, or accounting services provided to the Company or any affiliate thereof within the past 2 years.

- 5. Diversity and Independence of the Board of Directors
- (1) Diversity of the Board of Directors:

According to Article 20 of the Company's "Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles," the composition of the board of directors shall be determined by taking diversity into consideration. It is advisable that an appropriate policy on diversity based on the company's business operations, operating dynamics, and development needs be formulated. All members of the board shall have the knowledge, skills, and experience necessary to perform their duties. To achieve the ideal goal of corporate governance, the board of directors shall possess the following abilities:

- A Ability to make operational judgments
- B Ability to perform accounting and financial analysis.
- C Ability to conduct management administration.
- D Ability to conduct crisis management.
- $E \cdot Knowledge of the industry.$
- $F \cdot An$ international market perspective.
- $G \cdot Ability$ to lead.
- H Ability to make policy decisions.

Below are the Company's board diversity policy and its implementation:

		<u>r</u>					F	-)										
			0	b inc	niority eing a lepend lirecto	n ent	Manage		Knowle	Financ	An int	Ris	Inform	Perce e of direc	entag fall ctors	Proport directa	disti	ge ibuti n
Title	name	Nationality	Gender / Age	Under 3 years	3~9 years	More than 9 years	Management administration	Leadership	Knowledge of the industry	Financial and accounting	An international market perspective	Risk management	Information Technology	Male	Female	Proportion of independent directors to all directors	Over 65 years old	Under 65 years old
Chairman	Chen, Kuo-Hung		Male 61~70				V	V	V	v	v	V						
Vice Chairman	Chen Chun-Ting		Male 41~50				V	V	V	v	v	V						
Director	Chen, Che-Hung	ROC	Male 81~90				V	V	V	v	v	V		100%	0%	37.5%	75%	25%
Director	Tsai, Tsai-Tien	00	Male 71~80				V	V	V		v	V		0%	%	5%	3%	5%
Director	Hung, Ming-Chi		Male 51~60				V	V	V		v	V	v					
Independe nt director	Cheng, Tien-Tsung		Male 71~80	v			V	V	v	v	v	V						

Independe nt director	Li, Ta-Ching	Male 61~70	V	V	V	V	V	V	V	V			
Independe nt director	Tseng, Ming-Jen	Male 61~70	V	V	V	V	V	V	V				

The Company's concrete management goals of Board of Directors diversity, and the achievements thereof, are stated as follows: :

Expected goals:

- 1. Independent directors account for more than one-third of all directors.
- 2. The term of office of an independent director is not more than 3 terms, and each independent director concurrently serves as an independent director of no more than 3 other companies.
- 3. Gradually increase the number of female directors by 1 to 3 seats.
- 4. The number of directors who also serve as the Company's managers should not exceed one-third of the directors.

Current status of implementation:

- 1. Currently, the three independent directors seats account for three-eighth of the total, which is in line with the Company's target.
- 2. At present, all independent directors have served less than 3 terms, and each independent director has not concurrently served as an independent director of other companies for more than 3 companies, which is in line with the Company's goals.
- 3. The former directors (including independent directors) are all male. It is expected that when the Board of Directors is re-elected in 2024, the Company will actively seek suitable female director candidates and add one or more female director seats.

(2) Independence of the Board of Directors:

The Company's incumbent Board of Directors is composed of 3 independent directors (37.5%) and 5 non-independent directors (62.5%). The 3 seats of independent directors meet the minimum requirement set forth by the Financial Supervisory Commission Securities and Futures Bureau, and all directors and independent directors comply with the particulars set forth in Article 26-3, Paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Securities and Exchange Act, which demand that the number of directors who are a spouse or a relative within second degree of kinship of another director not exceed half of the board seats. Currently, only three directors are a relative within second degree of kinship of one another. To sum up, the independence criteria are fully met.

(II) Information on the general manager, vice general manager, associate general manager, and heads of various departments and branches

April 23, 2024

Title	Nationality	Name	Gender	Date of appointment	Sha	reholding	spouse	reholding of e and underage children		nolding in the ne of others	Main career (academic)	Concurrent duties in the Company and	rela	atives v	th spouses or vith second	Remarks
				to position	Shares	Shareholding Percentage	Shares	Shareholding Percentage	Shares	Shareholding Percentage	achievements	other companies	Title	Name	Relationship	
General Manager	Taiwan	Wu, Li-Shan	Male	August 10, 2017	445,132	0.68%	663	0%	0		Electronics Department, Lee-Ming Institute of Technology General Manager, Kuen Piin Enterprise Co., Ltd.	Director, Giteh Electronic Industries Co., Ltd. Director, Howteh International Inc.(Samoa) Director, Shanghai Howteh International Trading Inc. Director, Kunshan Howteh International Trade Co., Ltd. Director, Howteh Vietnam Co., Ltd.		None	None	None
Vice General Manager	Taiwan	Chuang, Kun-Lin	Male	July 1, 2016	54,042	0.08%	0	0%	0		Institute of Enterprise Management, National Yunlin University of Science and Technology	None	None	None	None	None
Vice General Manager, CFO, and CGO (Note 2)	Taiwan	Chang, Da-Chien	Male	August 11, 2021	0	0%	0	0%	0	0%	Department of Business Administration, Chung Yuan University Vice General Manager and CFO, Chaintel Technology Co., Ltd. CFO, Splender Hospitality International Co., Ltd	None	None	None	None	None

Title	Nationality	Name	Gender	Date of appointment	Sha	reholding	spouse	reholding of and underage children		olding in the e of others	Main career (academic)	Concurrent duties in the Company and	rela	atives v	ith spouses or vith second of kinship	Remarks
				to position	Shares	Shareholding Percentage	Shares	Shareholding Percentage	Shares	Shareholding Percentage	achievements	other companies	Title	Name	Relationship	
Head of the Audit Department Manager	Taiwan	Wang, Chang-Hui	Female	October 20, 2005	6,080	0.01%	0	0%	0	0%	Graduate of the Commerce Department, National Open University Section Chief of the Accounting Department, Howteh Technology Co., Ltd.	None	None	None	None	None
Chief of the Components Business I Division	Taiwan	Li, Kun-Cheng	Male	November 1, 2012	50,895	0.08%	0	0%	0	0%	Institute of Business Administration, National Chung Cheng University	None	None	None	None	None
Senior Manager of the Components Business III Division	Taiwan	Chiu, Chi-Wei	Male	October 1, 2016	20,824	0.03%	0	0%	0	0%	Institute of Business Administration, National Central University	None	None	None	None	None
Chief of the South China Business Division	Taiwan	Chuang, Jui-Te	Male	October 22, 2012	0	0%	0	0%	0	0%	Department of Mechanical Engineering, China Institute of Technology	None	None	None	None	None

Note 1: If the general manager or person of an equivalent post (the highest level manager) and the chairman of the board of directors of a company are the same person, spouses, or relatives within the first degree of kinship, an explanation shall be given of the reason for, reasonableness, necessity thereof, and the measures adopted in response thereto (e.g. increasing the number of independent directors and ensuring that a majority of directors do not concurrently serve as an employee or managerial officer): None. Note 2: The Company's Board of Directors meeting dated March 22, 2023 resolved to appoint Mr. Chang, Ta-Chien, Vice General Manager and CFO, to be the Chief Governance Officer (CGO), starting from June

1, 2023.

III. Remuneration for directors, the general manager, and vice general manager in the most recent year

(I) Remuneration to ordinary directors and independent directors

				Di	rectors' re	emunera	tion				atio of	R	emunerati	on fo	or concurr	ent dut	y as an	employe	ee			
		(.	ensation A) ote 2)	reti be	sability rement enefits (B)	compe	ctors' ensation Note 3)	profe pract	es for essional ice (D) ote 4)	A, B, D to profi	um of C, and the net t after Note10)	and s reimbu	bonus, pecial rsement Note5)	reti be	sability rement enefits (F)	Emj		compens Note 6)	ation	F, and G a net profit	B, C, D, E, s a % of the (loss) after fote 10)	Remuneration received from
Title	Name	The Company	All companies within the financial statements (Note 7)	The Company	All companies within the financial statements (Note 7)	The Company	All companies within the financial statements (Note 7)	The Company	All companies within the financial statements (Note 7)	The Company	All companies within the financial statements (Note 7)	The Company	All companies within the financial statements (Note 7)	The Company	All companies within the financial statements (Note 7)		he Ipany	comp withi finar	ments	The Company	All companies within the financial	an investee other than a subsidiary, or the parent company (Note 11)
		pany	s within the atements 7)	pany	within the tements 7)	pany	within the tements 7)	pany	within the itements 7)	pany	within the tements 7)	pany	within the tements 7)	pany	within the tements 7)	Amount in cash	Amount in shares	Amount in cash	Amount in shares		statements (Note 7)	
Chairman	Chen, Kuo-Hung																					
Director	Liu Yi Investment Co., Ltd. Representative: Chen, Che-Hung																					
Director	Tsai, Tsai-Tien	5,875	5,875	0	0	2,000	2,000	480	480	8.29%	8.29%	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	8.29%	8.29%	None
Director	Hung, Ming-Chi																					
Director	Zhu Lin Investment Co., Ltd. Representative: Chen Chun-Ting																					
Independent director	Tseng, Ming-Jen																					
Independent director	Li, Ta-Ching	0	0	0	0	1,000	1,000	840	840	1.83%	1.83%	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	1.83%	1.83%	None
Independent director	Cheng, Tien-Tsung																					

 Please describe the remuneration policy, system, criteria, and structure for independent directors, and the relevance of remuneration to factors such as the duty and risk they assume and the time they invest: Remuneration to independent directors is based on the results of director performance evaluation, and on the results of evaluation by the Remuneration Committee by looking at each director's extent of participation in the Company's operations and their contribution value. The remuneration proposes reasonable and fair remuneration that is linked to performance and risk, and submits the proposal to the Board of Directors for resolution.

2. Aside from the remuneration disclosed in the above table, is there any other remuneration received by directors in the most recent year from any company included in the financial statements for their services rendered (such as serving as an advisor other than an employee): None.

Unit: NT\$1,000

		of Remaineration Ranges		
		Name of	Director	
Directors' remuneration range	Remuneration equal to the	e sum of A, B, C, and D	Remuneration equal to the	sum of A, B, C, D, E, F, and G
	The Company (Note 8)	All consolidated entities (Note 9) H	The Company (Note 8)	All consolidated entities (Note 9) I
Under NT\$1,000,000	Co., Ltd.: Chen Chun-Ting:Hung, Ming-Chi; Tsai, Tsai-Tien; Tseng,	Representative of Zhu Lin Investment Co., Ltd.: Chen Chun-Ting;Hung, Ming-Chi; Tsai, Tsai-Tien; Tseng, Ming-Jen; Li, Ta-Ching; Cheng, Tien-Tsung	Representative of Zhu Lin Investment Co., Ltd.: Chen Chun-Ting;Hung, Ming-Chi; Tsai, Tsai-Tien; Tseng, Ming-Jen; Li, Ta-Ching; Cheng, Tien-Tsung	Representative of Zhu Lin Investment Co., Ltd.: Chen Chun-Ting;Hung, Ming-Chi; Tsai, Tsai-Tien; Tseng, Ming-Jen; Li, Ta-Ching; Cheng, Tien-Tsung
NT\$1,000,000 (incl.)~NT\$2,000,000 (excl.)				
NT\$2,000,000 (incl.)~NT\$3,500,000 (excl.)			Representative of Liu Yi Investment Co., Ltd.: Chen, Che-Hung	Representative of Liu Yi Investment Co., Ltd.: Chen, Che-Hung
NT\$3,500,000 (incl.)~NT\$5,000,000 (excl.)	Chen, Kuo-Hung	Chen, Kuo-Hung	Chen, Kuo-Hung	Chen, Kuo-Hung
NT\$5,000,000 (incl.)~NT\$10,000,000 (excl.)				
NT\$10,000,000 (incl.)~NT\$15,000,000 (excl.)				
NT\$15,000,000 (incl.)~NT\$30,000,000 (excl.)				
NT\$30,000,000 (incl.)~NT\$50,000,000 (excl.)				
NT\$50,000,000 (incl.)~NT\$100,000,000 (excl.)				
Above NT\$100,000,000				
Total	8 persons	8 persons	8 persons	8 persons

Table of Remuneration Ranges

Note 1: The name of each director shall be stated separately (for a corporate shareholder, the names of the corporate shareholder and its representative shall be stated separately) and the names of the ordinary directors and independent directors shall be stated separately, based on the amount of the aggregated remuneration items paid to each. If a director concurrently serves as a general manager or a vice general manager, please complete this Table and Table 3-1, or Tables 3-2-1 and 3-2-2.

Note 2: This refers to director base compensation in the most recent fiscal year (including director salary, duty allowances, severance pay, and various rewards and incentives, etc.).

Note 3: Please fill in the amount of director profit-sharing compensation approved by the board of directors for distribution for the most recent fiscal year.

Note 4: This refers to director expenses and perquisites in the most recent fiscal year (including travel expenses, special disbursements, stipends of any kind, and provision of facilities such as accommodations or vehicles, etc.). If housing, car or other forms of transportation, or personalized expenses are provided, disclose the nature and cost of the property provided, the actual or fair market rent, fuel expenses, and any other amounts paid. Additionally, if a driver is provided, please add a note explaining the relevant base compensation paid by the Company to the driver, but do not include it in the calculation of the director remuneration.

- Note 5: This includes any remuneration received by a director for concurrent service as an employee in the most recent year (including concurrent service as general manager, vice general manager, other managerial officers, or non-managerial employee) including salary, duty allowances, severance pay, rewards, incentives, travel expenses, special disbursements, stipends of any kind, and provision of facilities such as accommodations or vehicles, etc. If housing, car or other forms of transportation, or personalized expenses are provided, disclose the nature and cost of the property provided, the actual or fair market rent, fuel expenses, and any other amounts paid. Additionally, if a driver is provided, please add a note explaining the relevant base compensation paid by the Company to the driver, but do not include it in the calculation of the director remuneration. Additionally, salary expenses recognized as share-based payment under IFRS 2—including employee share subscription warrants, new restricted employee shares, and participation in share subscription under a rights offering, etc.—should be included in the calculation of remuneration.
- Note 6: This refers to employee profit-sharing compensation (including stocks and cash) received by a director for concurrent service as an employee in the most recent fiscal year (including concurrent service as general manager, vice general manager, other managerial officers, or non-managerial employee). Disclose the amount of profit-sharing compensation approved or expected to be approved by the board of directors for distribution for the most recent fiscal year. If the amount cannot be forecasted, disclose the amount expected to be distributed by calculating pro-rata to the amount that was actually distributed in the preceding fiscal year. Table 1-3 should also be completed.
- Note 7: Disclose the total amount of remuneration in each category paid to the directors of the Company by all companies in the consolidated financial report (including the Company).
- Note 8: Disclose the names of the directors in the respective ranges into which they fall based on the sum total of the remuneration in the indicated categories paid to each director by the Company.
- Note 9: Disclose the names of the directors in the respective ranges into which they fall based on the sum total of the remuneration in the indicated categories paid to each director of the Company by all companies in the consolidated financial report (including the Company).
- Note 10: Net income means the net income after tax on the parent company only or individual financial report for the most recent fiscal year.
- Note 11: a. In this column, specifically disclose the amount of remuneration received by the directors of the Company from investee enterprises other than subsidiaries or from the parent company (if none, state "None").
 - b. If directors of the Company have received remuneration from investee enterprises other than subsidiaries or from the parent company, that remuneration shall be added into the amount in Column I of the Remuneration Range Table, and the name of that column shall be changed to "Parent company and all investee enterprises."
 - c. Remuneration means remuneration received by directors of the Company for serving in capacities such as director, supervisor, or managerial officer at investee companies other than subsidiaries or at the parent company, including base compensation, profit-sharing compensation (including employee, director, and supervisor profit-sharing compensation) and expenses and perquisites.

* The concept of the remuneration contents disclosed in this table is different from the concept of the Income Tax Act. As such, this table serves the purpose only of information disclosure, not of taxation.

(II) Remuneration to the general manager and vice general managers

Unit: NT\$1,000

			ry (A) ote 2)	-	retirement fits (B)	reimburs	nd special ement (C) ote 3)	En		npensation te 4)	(D)	C, and D	f the sum of A, B, to the net profit x (%) (Note 8)	Remuneration received from an investee
Title	Name	The	All companies	TI	All companies	TI	All companies	The Co	ompany	All compa within the statements	financial	The	All companies within the	other than a subsidiary, or
		Company	within the financial statements (Note 5)	The Company	within the financial statements (Note 5)	The Company	within the financial statements (Note 5)	Amount in cash	Amount in shares	Amount in cash	Amount in shares	Company	financial statements (Note 5)	the parent company (Note 9)
General Manager	Wu, Li-Shan													
Vice General Manager	Chuang, Kun-Lin	6,672	6,672	206	206	4,095	4,095	810	0	810	0	11.69%	11.69%	None
Vice General Manager, CFO, and CGO (Note 10)	Chang, Da-Chien													

*Disclosures must be made for all persons in positions equivalent to the general manager or vice general manager, regardless of job title (e.g., president, chief executive officer, chief administrative officer...etc.)

Table of Remuneration Ranges

The President's and vice presidents' remuneration ranges		Name of President and vice president
The resident's and vice presidents remuneration ranges	The Company (Note 6)	All companies within the financial statements (Note 7) E
Under NT\$1,000,000		
NT\$1,000,000 (incl.)~NT\$2,000,000 (excl.)		
NT\$2,000,000 (incl.)~NT\$3,500,000 (excl.)	Chang, Da-Chien	Chang, Da-Chien
NT\$3,500,000 (incl.)~NT\$5,000,000 (excl.)	Wu, Li-Shan; Chuang, Kun-Lin	Wu, Li-Shan; Chuang, Kun-Lin
NT\$5,000,000 (incl.)~NT\$10,000,000 (excl.)		
NT\$10,000,000 (incl.)~NT\$15,000,000 (excl.)		
NT\$15,000,000 (incl.)~NT\$30,000,000 (excl.)		
NT\$30,000,000 (incl.)~NT\$50,000,000 (excl.)		
NT\$50,000,000 (incl.)~NT\$100,000,000 (excl.)		
Above NT\$100,000,000		
Total	3 persons	3 persons

- Note 1: The name of each general manager and vice general manager shall be stated separately, based on the amount of the aggregated remuneration items paid to each. If a director concurrently serves as a general manager or an vice general manager, please complete this table and Table (1-1), or Tables (1-2-1) and (1-2-2).
- Note 2: This includes salary, duty allowances, and severance pay to the general manager(s) and vice general manager(s) in the most recent fiscal year.
- Note 3: This includes the amounts of all types of rewards, incentives, travel expenses, special disbursements, stipends of any kind, provision of facilities such as accommodations or vehicle, and other compensation to the general manager(s) and vice general managers(s) in the most recent fiscal year. If housing, car or other forms of transportation, or personalized expenses are provided, disclose the nature and cost of the property provided, the actual or fair market rent, fuel expenses, and any other amounts paid. Additionally, if a driver is provided, please add a note explaining the relevant base compensation paid by the Company to the driver, but do not include it in the calculation of the director remuneration. Additionally, salary expenses recognized as share-based payment under IFRS 2—including employee share subscription warrants, new restricted employee shares, and participation in share subscription under a rights offering, etc.—should be included in the calculation of remuneration.
- Note 4: This refers to employee profit-sharing compensation (including stocks and cash) received by the general manager(s) and vice general manager(s) as approved or expected to be approved by the board of directors for the most recent fiscal year (including concurrent service as general manager, vice general manager, other managerial officer, or non-managerial employee). If the amount cannot be forecasted, disclose the amount expected to be distributed by calculating pro-rata to the amount that was actually distributed in the preceding fiscal year. Table 1-3 should also be completed.
- Note 5: Disclose the total amount of remuneration in each category paid to the general manager(s) and vice general manager(s) by all companies in the consolidated financial report (including the Company).
- Note 6: Disclose the names of the general manager(s) and vice general manager(s) in the respective ranges into which they fall based on the sum total of the remuneration in the indicated categories paid to each general manager and vice general manager by the Company.
- Note 7: Disclose the names of the general manager(s) and vice general manager(s) in the respective ranges into which they fall based on the sum total of the remuneration in the indicated categories paid to each general manager and vice general manager of the Company by all companies in the consolidated financial report (including the Company).
- Note 8: Net income means the net income after tax on the parent company only or individual financial report for the most recent fiscal year.
- Note 9: a. In this column, specifically disclose the amount of remuneration received by the general manager(s) and vice general manager(s) of the Company from investee enterprises other than subsidiaries or from the parent company (if none, state "None").
 - b. If general manager(s) or vice general manager(s) of the Company have received remuneration from investee enterprises other than subsidiaries or from the parent company, that remuneration shall be added into the amount in Column E of the Remuneration Range Table, and the name of that column shall be changed to "Parent company and all investee enterprises."
 - c. Remuneration means remuneration received by the general manager(s) and vice general manager(s) of the Company for serving in capacities such as director, supervisor, or managerial officer at investee companies other than subsidiaries or at the parent company, including base compensation, profit-sharing compensation (including employee, director, and supervisor profit-sharing compensation) and expenses and perquisites.
- Note 10: The Company's Board of Directors meeting dated March 22, 2023 resolved to appoint Mr. Chang, Ta-Chien, Vice General Manager and CFO, to be the Chief Governance Officer (CGO), starting from June 1, 2023.
- * The concept of the remuneration contents disclosed in this table is different from the concept of the Income Tax Act. As such, this table serves the purpose only of information disclosure, not of taxation.

(III) Name of managers who received employee remuneration; status of remuneration distribution:

							Unit: NT\$1,000
		Title (Note 1)	Name (Note 1)	Amount in shares	Amount in cash	Total	Ratio of total amount to the net profit after tax (%)
	Manager	General Manager	Wu, Li-Shan		810	810	
Mana		Vice General Manager	Chuang, Kun-Lin	_			0.80%
	Vice General Manager, CFO, and CGO (Note 4)	Chang, Da-Chien					

Note 1: Names and job titles should be disclosed individually, but profit distributions received may be disclosed in aggregate.

- Note 2: Fill in the amount of employee profit-sharing compensation (including stocks and cash) received by the managerial officers as approved or expected to be approved by the board of directors for the most recent fiscal year. If the amount cannot be forecasted, disclose the amount expected to be distributed by calculating pro-rata to the amount that was actually distributed in the preceding fiscal year. Net income means the net income of the most recent year. If the Company has already adopted the IFRS, net income means the net income after tax on the parent company only or individual financial report for the most recent fiscal year.
- Note 3: The applicable scope of "managerial officers" is defined under the 27 March 2003 FSC Order No. Tai-Cai-Zheng-III-0920001301 as persons in the following positions:
 - (1) General manager(s) and equivalent level positions
 - (2) Vice general manager(s) and equivalent level positions
 - (3) Deputy assistant general manager(s) and equivalent level positions
 - (4) Chief officer of the finance division
 - (5) Chief officer of the accounting division
 - (6) Other persons who have the power to manage affairs and sign for the Company
- Note 4: The Company's Board of Directors meeting dated March 22, 2023 resolved to appoint Mr. Chang, Ta-Chien, Vice General Manager and CFO, to be the Chief Governance Officer (CGO), starting from June 1, 2023.
- (IV) Analysis, comparison, and description of the ratio of total directors'/the general manager's/ vice general managers' remuneration paid by the Company and all companies in the consolidated financial statements in the most recent two years to the net profit after tax indicated on the parent company only or individual financial statements; description of the relevance of operational performance to the remuneration policy, criteria and portfolio, determination procedures, and future risks.
 - 1. Total remuneration paid to the Company's directors, general manager, and vice general managers, as a percentage of net profit after tax, for the last two years by the Company and all companies in the consolidated financial statements:

			Unit	: NT\$1,000	
Catagony	The Co	ompany	Consolidated entities		
Category	2023	2022	2023	2022	
Directors' remuneration	10,195	9,536	10,195	9,536	
Ratio of total director remuneration to the net profit after tax	10.12%	4.57%	10.12%	4.57%	
Remuneration of general manager and vice general managers	11,783	13,022	11,783	13,022	
Remuneration to general manager and vice general managers as a percentage of net income after tax	11.69%	6.24%	11.69%	6.24%	
Net income after tax	100,772	208,799	100,772	208,799	

2. The Company pays remuneration to directors, general manager, and vice general managers based on their extent of participation in the Company's operations, their contribution, and their performance evaluation results, and by reference to the industry's payment standards and future risks, upon approval from the Board of Directors, as required by the Company Act and the Company's Articles of Association.

IV. State of operation of corporate governance

(I) The state of operation of the Board of Directors

In 2023, the Board of Directors held a total of 5 meetings (A); the attendance by directors is stated as follows:

Title	Name	Number of attendance (presence) in person (B)	Number of attendance by proxy	Attendance (presence) rate (B/A)	Remarks
Chairman	Chen, Kuo-Hung	5	0	100%	
Director	Liu Yi Investment Co., Ltd. Representative: Chen, Che-Hung	5	0	100%	
Director	Tsai, Tsai-Tien	5	0	100%	
Director	Zhu Lin Investment Co., Ltd. Representative: Chen Chun-Ting	4	0	80%	
Director	Hung, Ming-Chi	5	0	100%	
Independent director	Tseng, Ming-Jen	4	0	80%	
Independent director	Li, Ta-Ching	5	0	100%	
Independent director	Cheng, Tien-Tsung	5	0	100%	

Other matters to be recorded:

1. In the event of any of the following in a Board of Directors meeting, the dates of the meeting, session, contents of motions, the opinions of independent directors, and the Company's response to the opinions should be specified:

(1) Items listed in Article 14-3 of the Securities and Exchange Act:

Board of Directors	Motion contents and measures taken afterwards	Items listed in Article 14-3 of the Securities and Exchange Act	Reservation or objection by independent directors			
	1. Passed the proposal on appointment of attesting CPAs for 2023 and review of audit fees.	V	None			
	2. Passed the proposal to recapitalize earnings into new shares	V	None			
9th term 9th meeting	3. Passed the proposal to provide endorsements and guarantees to the subsidiary "Giteh Electronic Industries Co., Ltd."	V	None			
March 22, 2023	Independent director's opinion: None. Measures taken by the Company in response to independent director's opinion: No Resolution: The proposal was passed in its entirety by all directors present.	ne.				
	1. Passed the proposal to provide endorsement and guarantee for the Company's sub-subsidiary "Howteh Vietnam Co., Ltd."		None			
9th term	2. Passed the proposal to extend the expiration date of the redevelopment contract of old and dangerous building Xubo Building Office in Taipei held by the Company	V	None			
10th meeting May 9, 2023	Independent director's opinion: None.					
	Measures taken by the Company in response to independent director's opinion: No	ne.				
	Resolution: The proposal was passed in its entirety by all directors present.					

Board of Directors	Motion contents and measures taken afterwards	Items listed in Article 14-3 of the Securities and Exchange Act	Reservation or objection by independent directors				
	1. The Company passed the proposal to amend the subsidiary's "Internal Control System."	V	None				
	2. The Company passed the "Rules Governing Financial and Business Matters Between this Corporation and its Affiliated Enterprises."	V	None				
9th term 12th meeting August 11,	3. Passed the proposal to allow the Company's sub-subsidiary "Shenzhen Howteh Technology Co., Ltd." to loan funds to the Company's sub-subsidiary "Shanghai Howteh International Trading Inc."	V	None				
2023	Independent director's opinion: None.						
	Measures taken by the Company in response to independent director's opinion: No	ne.					
	Resolution: The proposal was passed in its entirety by all directors present.						
9th term	1. Passed the proposal to allow the Company's sub-subsidiary "Shanghai Howteh International Trading Inc." to loan funds to the Company's sub-subsidiary "Shenzhen Howteh Technology Co., Ltd."	V	None				
13th meeting November 10.	Independent director's opinion: None.						
November 10, 2023	Measures taken by the Company in response to independent director's opinion: No	ne.					
	Resolution: The proposal was passed in its entirety by all directors present.						

(2) Any other documented objections or qualified opinions raised by an independent director against a board resolution: No such occurrence.

- 2. Disclosure regarding avoidance of interest-conflicting motions, including the names of directors concerned, the motions, the nature of conflicting interests, and the voting process: No such occurrence.
- 3. Evaluation of the Board of Directors:

Evaluation periodicity	Evaluation period	Evaluation scope	Evaluation method	Evaluation content
Once per year	January 1, 2023 through December 31, 2023	 Board of Directors Members of Board of Directors Remuneration Committee Audit Committee 	Internal self-evaluation	For details, see the "2023 Board of Directors Performance Evaluation Results"

[2023 Board of Directors Performance Evaluation Results]

- (1) Referencing regulations: To implement corporate governance and improve the Board of Directors' functions, the Company carried out its 2023 Board of Directors performance evaluation by the "Rules for Performance Evaluation of Board of Directors" passed through a resolution at the Board of Directors meeting dated August 11, 2020.
- (2) Evaluation scope: Evaluation of Board of Directors as a whole, individual Board of Directors members, and functional committees (including Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee), by means of internal self-evaluation.
- (3) Evaluation results: Each evaluation indicator is ranked on a scale from 5 points to 1 point, with 5 being prime, 4 being excellent, 3 being good, 2 being mere satisfactory, and 1 being deficient; below is a summary of the evaluation results:

Evaluation aspect	Item	Average score	Total score
A. Participation in the operations of the Company	12	4.83	
B. Improvement in the quality of the Board of Directors' decision making	12	5.00	
C. Composition and structure of the Board of Directors	7	4.86	4.94
D. Election and continuing education of the directors	7	5.00	
E. Internal control	7	5.00	

(B) Board of Directors Members Performance Self-evaluation Results

Evaluation aspect	Item	Average score	Total score			
A. Alignment with the goals and tasks of the Company	3	4.96				
B. Awareness of the duties of a director.	3	4.96				
C. Participation in the operations of the Company	8	4.89				
D. Management of internal relationship and communication	3	4.88	4.95			
E. Professionalism and continuing education of the directors	3	5.00				
F. Internal control	3	5.00				

(C) Functional Committees (Remuneration Committee) Performance Self-evaluation Results

Evaluation aspect	Item	Average score	Total score
A. Participation in the operations of the Company	4	4.75	
B. Awareness of the duties of the functional committee	5	5.00	
C. Improvement in the quality of decision-making of the functional committee	7	5.00	4.94
D. Composition and election of members of the functional committee	3	5.00	

(D) Functional Committees (Audit Committee) Performance Self-evaluation Results

Evaluation aspect	Item	Average score	Total score
A. Participation in the operations of the Company	4	5.00	
B. Awareness of the duties of the functional committee	5	5.00	
C. Improvement in the quality of decision-making of the functional committee	7	5.00	5.00
D. Composition and election of members of the functional committee	3	5.00	
E. Internal control	3	5.00	

Summary conclusion:

The performance of the Board of Directors as a whole, Board of Directors members, the Remuneration Committee, and the Audit Committee was ranked either "Prime" or "Excellent," indicating that the Board of Directors and functional committees function well and comply with corporate governance standards. The evaluation results will be taken to improve the Board of Directors' functions and operating efficiency and used as a reference for selection or nomination of directors in the future.

- 4. An evaluation of targets (e.g., establishment of an audit committee and improvement in information transparency) for strengthening of the functions of the board during the current and immediately preceding fiscal years, and measures taken toward achievement thereof:
 - (1) The Company's Board of Directors operates and exercise its powers by laws and regulations, its Articles of Association, and resolutions of the Shareholders' Meeting. All directors possess the professional knowledge, skills, and literacy necessary for performing their duties and uphold the principle of fiduciary duty and duty of care, aiming to maximize the profits for all shareholders.
 - (2) The Company pays close attention to any change in the regulatory framework made by the competent authorities, reviews, where appropriate, the "Rules of Procedure for Board of Directors Meetings," assesses the "Audit Committee Charter" and "Remuneration Committee Charter," and implements any amended laws or regulations, aiming to improve information transparency. So far the implementation goes well.
 - (3) The Company set up functional committees, e.g., Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, in 2011 and 2021, respectively, and continues to improve their functions.
 - (4) The Company has disclosed its internal regulations and material Board of Directors resolutions on its website and the Market Observation Post System, so as to facilitate shareholders' understanding of the Company's dynamics and improve the transparency of its information.
 - (5) To implement corporate governance, protect shareholders' rights and interests, and strengthen the functions of the Board of Directors, the Company passed a resolution at the Board of Directors meeting dated March 22, 2023 to appoint a Chief Governance Officer starting from June 1, 2023, who would assist in the operation of the Board of Directors.
 - (6) The Company arranges for directors to take external corporate governance courses every year. The continuing education courses taken by the Company's directors in 2022 are as follows:

Title	Name	Course date	Organizer	Course name	Course hours
		August 9, 2023	Taiwan Investor Relations Institute	Strategy for business management and news crisis management	3
Chairman	Chen, Kuo-Hung	November 9, 2023		Practical analysis of the new version of corporate governance and board performance evaluation in 2023	3
	or Chen, Che-Hung	August 9, 2023	Taiwan Investor Relations Institute	Strategy for business management and news crisis management	3
Director		November 9, 2023	Taiwan Investor Relations Institute	Practical analysis of the new version of corporate governance and board performance evaluation in 2023	3
Director	Tsai, Tsai-Tien	September 4, 2023	Financial Supervisory Commission	The 14th Taipei Corporate Governance Forum	6
		August 9, 2023	Taiwan Investor Relations Institute	Strategy for business management and news crisis management	3
Director	Chen Chun-Ting	November 9,2023	Taiwan Investor Relations Institute	Practical analysis of the new version of corporate governance and board performance evaluation in 2023	3
		November 13, 2023	Taiwan Institute for Sustainable Energy	Strategy for excellent CEO and leadership and sustainable innovation	5

Title	Name	Course date	Organizer	Course name	Course hours
Director	Hung, Ming-Chi	September 4, 2023	Financial Supervisory Commission	The 14th Taipei Corporate Governance Forum	6
Independent director	Li, Ta-Ching	March 9, 2023	Securities and Futures Institute (SFI)	The future of the metaverse and cryptocurrency blockchain	3
		March 16, 2023	Institute of Financial Law and Crime Prevention	Money laundering prevention and counter-terrorism financing practices and directors' legal obligations and responsibilities promotion	3
		April 11, 2023	Securities and Futures Institute (SFI)	Server system integration technology and application opportunities	3
		September 4, 2023	Financial Supervisory Commission	The 14th Taipei Corporate Governance Forum	6
Independent director	Tseng, Ming-Jen	July 21, 2023	Taiwan Investor Relations Institute	How do the company respond to ESG challenges and create opportunities for transformation	3
		November 9, 2023	Taiwan Investor Relations Institute	Practical analysis of the new version of corporate governance and board performance evaluation in 2023	3
Independent director	Cheng, Tien-Tsung	March 27, 2023	Chinese National Association of Industry and Commerce	Corporate resilience and Taiwan's competitiveness	3
		Octorber 27, 2023	Securities and Futures Institute (SFI)	Challenges and opportunities for businesses in the net-zero era	3
		November 27, 2023	Securities and Futures Institute (SFI)	Technical development and application opportunities of chatbot ChatGPT	3

(II) Operation of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee held 4 meetings [A] in the most recent year (2023); the attendance of independent directors is as follows:

		Number of	Number of	% of attendance	
Title	Name	attendance in	attendance by	in person	Remarks
		person (B)	proxy	(B/A)	
Independent	Li, Ta-Ching	4	0	100%	
director	, E				
Independent	Tseng, Ming-Jen	4	0	100%	
director	iseng, wing sen				
Independent	Cheng, Tien-Tsung	4	0	100%	
director					

Other matters to be recorded:

1. In the event of any of the following in the audit committee, the dates of audit committee meetings, sessions, contents of motions, the dissenting opinion, qualified opinion, or significant suggestions of the independent director, resolutions of the audit committee meetings, and the Company's response to audit members' opinion should be specified:

(1) Items listed in Article 14-5 of the Securities and Exchange Act:
Audit Committee meeting date	Motion contents and measures taken afterwards	Items listed in Article 14-5 of the Securities and Exchange Act	Matters not approved by the Audit Committee but approved by more than two-thirds of all directors								
	1. passed the proposal on appointment of attesting CPAs for 2023 and review of audit fees.	V	None								
	2. passed the proposal on the Company's statement of effectiveness of its internal control system for 2022.	V	None								
1st term	3. passed the proposal on the Company's Business Report and Financial Statements for 2022.	V	None								
7th meeting March 22, 2023	4. passed the proposal to recapitalize earnings into new shares.	V	None								
2023	5. passed the proposal to provide endorsements and guarantees to the subsidiary "Giteh Electronic Industries Co., Ltd."	V	None								
	Audit Committee resolution: The proposal was passed in its entirety by all members present.										
	The Company's response to Audit Committee members' opinion: N submitted to and approved by the Company's Board of Directors.	None. The pro	posals were								
	 Passed the proposal to allow the Company to provide endorsement and guarantee for the Company's sub-subsidiary "Howteh Vietnam Co., Ltd." 	V	None								
1st term 8th meeting May 8, 2023	 Passed the proposal to extend the expiration date of the redevelopment contract of old and dangerous building Xubo Building Office in Taipei held by the Company. 	V	None								
11111 0, 2020	Audit Committee resolution: The proposal was passed in its entirety by all members present.										
	The Company's response to Audit Committee members' opinion: None. The proposals were submitted to and approved by the Company's Board of Directors.										
	1. Passed the proposal to amend the subsidiary's "Internal Control System."	V	None								
	2. Passed the "Rules Governing Financial and Business Matters Between this Corporation and its Affiliated Enterprises."	V	None								
1st term 9th meeting August 11, 2023	3. Passed the proposal to allow the Company's sub-subsidiary "Shenzhen Howteh Technology Co., Ltd." to loan funds to the Company's sub-subsidiary "Shanghai Howteh International Trading Inc."	V	None								
	Audit Committee resolution: The proposal was passed in its entiret	y by all memb	ers present.								
	The Company's response to Audit Committee members' opinion: None. The proposals were submitted to and approved by the Company's Board of Directors.										
	1. Passed the proposal on the Company's 2024 annual audit plan.	V	None								
1st term 10th meeting November	 Passed the proposal to allow the Company's sub-subsidiary "Shanghai Howteh International Trading Inc." to loan funds to the Company's sub-subsidiary "Shenzhen Howteh Technology Co., Ltd." 	V	None								
10, 2023	Audit Committee resolution: The proposal was passed in its entiret		-								
	The Company's response to Audit Committee members' opinion: N submitted to and approved by the Company's Board of Directors.	None. The pro	posals were								

- (2) Any other resolutions that were approved by two thirds of Board members but not approved by the Audit Committee other than those described above: No such occurrence.
- 2. Implementation of recusal by independent directors due to conflict of interests: No such occurrence.
- 3. Status of communication between independent directors, the chief internal auditor, and CPAs:
 - (1) The Company's Chief Internal Auditor regularly reports to and discusses with the Audit Committee members on audit matters and, after the monthly audit report was issued, immediately discusses and communicates with the same on any doubts they have. Communication between the Company's independent directors and Chief Internal Officers is good.
 - (2) The Company's CPAs communicate mandatory matters and their review or audit results of the Company's quarterly financial statements at the quarterly Audit Committee meeting. Communication between the Company's independent directors and CPAs is good.
- (III). Operations of the Remuneration Committee

1. Remuneration Committee members

Position Nat	Criteria	Professional qualifications and experience	State of independence	Number of concurrent duty as a Remuneration Committee member at a public company
Independent director (convener)	Tseng, Ming-Jen		osure of information on al qualifications and	0
Independent director	Li, Ta-Ching	independent direct	ors' independence" to p.18.	0
Independent director	Cheng, Tien-Tsung			0

- 2. Remuneration Committee duties
 - The Committee shall exercise the care of a good administrator to faithfully perform the following duties and present its recommendations to the board of directors for discussion.
 - (1) Establishing and periodically reviewing the policies, systems, standards, and structure for the compensation of the directors, and managerial officers.
 - (2) Periodically reviewing and formulating remuneration for directors and managers.
- 3. Information on the operations of the Remuneration Committee
- The Company's remuneration committee has a total of 3 members. The term of the current members is from July 22, 2021 to July 21, 2024. The number of remuneration committee meetings held in the most recent fiscal year (2023) was 2 (A). The qualifications and attendance of the members were as follows:

Title	Name	Number of attendance in person (B)	Number of attendance by proxy	% of attendance in person [B/A]	Remarks
Independent director (convener)	Tseng, Ming-Jen	2	0	100%	
Independent director (member)	Li, Ta-Ching	2	0	100%	
Independent director (member)	Cheng, Tien-Tsung	2	0	100%	

Other matters to be recorded:

- (1) If the Board of Directors does not adopt or amend the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee, it should state the date, session, proposal content, resolution of the board, and its handling of the committee's opinions (if the remuneration approved by the board is better than the recommendation proposed by the committee, the difference and reasons should be stated): No such occurrence.
- (2) For the proposals by the Remuneration Committee, if any members have objections or reservations that are put down in records or written statements, the date, session, proposal content, the opinions of all members, its handling of the members' opinions should be stated:

Remuneration Committee	Motion contents and measures taken afterwards	Reservation or objection by Remuneration Committee members					
	1.Review of the proposal to distribute remuneration to employees and directors of 2022	None					
5th term	2. Establishment and appointment of of the Chief Governance Officer °	None					
6th meeting March 22, 2023	Remuneration Committee resolution: The proposal was passed in its entirety by all members present.						
2025	The Company's response to Remuneration Committee members' opinion: None. The proposals were submitted to and approved by the Company's Board of Directors.						
541 torres	1.Discussion on the proposal for distribution of the 2023 year-end bonus to managers.	None					
5th term 7th meeting November	Remuneration Committee resolution: The proposal was passed in its entirety by all members present.						
10, 2023	The Company's response to Remuneration Committee members' opinion: None. The proposals were submitted to and approved by the Company's Board of Directors.						

(IV) The Company's implementation of corporate governance and the differences from the Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies and the reasons therefor

T WELL IT EX Elsted Companies and the reason			The State of Operation	The differences
				from the
				Corporate
				Governance Best
Evaluation Items	Yes	No	Summary description	Practice Principles
	105	110	Summary description	for TWSE/TPEx
				Listed Companies
				and the reasons
				therefor
I. Has the Company formulated and disclosed its	V		To implement corporate governance, the Company has	No significant
corporate governance best practice principles in			formulated its "Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles"	difference
accordance with the "Corporate Governance			by referencing the "Corporate Governance Best Practice	
Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed			Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies" and disclosed	
Companies?"			the same on its website.	
II. The Company's equity structure and shareholder equity				
(I) Has the Company established internal	V		(I) The Company designated a spokesperson and a deputy	No significant
operating procedures to handle shareholder			spokesperson and set up a grievance filing channel for	difference
recommendations, doubts, disputes and			stakeholders; in doing so, the Company is able to properly	
litigations and implemented them in			handle shareholder suggestions, doubts, disputes, and	
accordance with the procedures?			litigations.	
(II) Does the Company have a list of the major	V		(II) The Company is able to grasp the list of its major	
shareholders who actually control the			shareholders; it also files any information on changes	
Company and those who ultimately have			according to the "Taipei Exchange Rules Governing	
control over the major shareholders?			Information Reporting by Companies with TPEx Listed	
			Securities," and keeps close contact with major	
			shareholders.	
(III) Has the Company established and	V		(III) The powers for the management of financial and business	
implemented risk control and firewall			affairs are properly segregated among the Company and	
mechanisms between affiliated companies?			affiliates. The Company has also formulated its	
			"Regulations for Management of Material Investees" and	
			"Rules Governing Financial and Business Matters Between	
			this Corporation and its Related Parties" to provide a basis	

		_	The State of Operation	The differences
Evaluation Items	Yes	No	Summary description	from the Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies and the reasons therefor
(IV) Has the Company formulated internal regulations to prevent insiders from trading securities using undisclosed information on the market?	V		for compliance. (IV) The Company has formulated its "Procedures for Processing Material Inside Information to Prevent Insider Trading" and "Procedures for Ethical Management and Guidelines for Conduct," which prohibit insiders from using non-public information to trade marketable securities.	
III. Composition and responsibilities of the Board of Directors(I) Has the Board of Directors formulated policy and specific management goals regarding the diversity and implemented the same accordingly?	V		(I) The Company has formulated its Board of Directors membership diversity policy in its "Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles." The Company elects to have 8 directors, including 3 independent directors, in consideration of its business development and scale and practical operating needs. All incumbent Board of Directors members possess the knowledge, skills, and literacy required for performing their duties; they have also set concrete management goals to implement the Board of Directors diversity policy. For details, see Diversity and Independence of the Board of Directors on p.19 to p.20 of this annual report.	No significant difference
(II) In to the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee established in accordance with law, has the company voluntarily set up other functional committees?		V	 (II) The Company has set up its Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, which exercise powers by the "Remuneration Committee Charter" and the "Audit Committee Charter," respectively. Both committees function well. In the future, the Company might set up other functional committees depending on actual 	

			The State of Operation	The differences
Evaluation Items	Yes	No	Summary description	from the Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies and the reasons therefor
(III) Has the Company established rules and methodology for evaluating the performance of its Board of Directors, implemented the performance evaluations on an annual basis, and submitted the results of performance evaluations to the board of directors and used them as a reference in determining salary/compensation for individual directors and their nomination and additional office terms?	V		operational needs. (III) In order to implement corporate governance, enhance the functions of the Company's Board of Directors, and establish performance targets to enhance the operational efficiency of the Board of Directors, the Company has formulated its "Rules for Performance Evaluation of Board of Directors," by which the Company internally evaluates the performance of the Board of Directors annually and submits the evaluation results to the Board of Directors. For the status of implementation of Board of Directors performance evaluation, see p.29 to p.30 on this annual report. The 2023 self-evaluation results have been submitted to the Board of Directors meeting dated March 14, 2024	
(IV) Does the company regularly evaluate the independence of attesting CPAs?	V		 14, 2024. (IV) By referencing the "Certified Public Accountant Act" and Statement No.10 of "The Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of the Republic of China," the Company formulates independence evaluation criteria to assess the independence of CPAs every year. In addition, the Company requires attesting CPAs to provide a statement of independence and audit quality indicators, and submits the same to the Audit Committee and Board of Directors for approval. The results of assessment of the 2024 attesting CPAs' independence were submitted to and approved by the Audit Committee on March 14, 2024, and then by the Board of Directors on March 14, 2024. According to the 	

Evaluation Items			The differences	
				from the
				Corporate
				Governance Best
	Yes	No	Summary description	Practice Principles
	ies	INO	Summary description	for TWSE/TPEx
		Listed Companies		
		and the reasons		
				therefor
			Company's assessment, CPA Chang, Chiao-Ying and CPA	
			Chang, Chih-Ming from Ernst & Young meet the	
			Company's independence criteria, and are therefore	
			qualified to be the Company's attesting CPAs. For the	
			criteria for assessing CPA independence, see the notes.	

			The State of Operation	The differences
Evaluation Items	Yes	No	Summary description	from the Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies and the reasons therefor
IV. Does the Company as a listed company have a	V		To implement corporate governance and make the Board of	No significant
suitable and appropriate number of corporate governance personnel and appoint a corporate governance officer to be responsible for corporate governance-related matters (including but not limited to providing information necessary for directors and supervisors to perform their business, assisting directors and supervisors in complying with laws and regulations, conducting board meeting and shareholders' meeting related matters in accordance with the law, handling company registration and alteration registration and preparing minutes of board meetings and shareholders' meetings, etc.)?	•			difference

			The State of Operation	The differences
Evaluation Items	Yes	No	Summary description	from the Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies and the reasons therefor
V. Has the Company established channels for	V		The Company maintains a clear communication channel with	No significant
communicating with its stakeholders			stakeholders, including customers, shareholders, banks,	difference
(including but not limited to shareholders,			creditors, and employees, and respects and safeguards their	
employees, customers, suppliers, etc.) and			legitimate rights and interests. In addition, the Company has a	
created a stakeholder's section on its			spokesperson and acting spokesperson, who will serve as the	
company website? Does the Company			company's communication channel with stakeholders.	
appropriately respond to stakeholders'			Stakeholders may contact the Company at any time by	
questions and concerns on important corporate social responsibility issues?			telephone, letter, fax, e-mail, etc. if necessary.	
VI. Has the company appointed a professional	V		The Company appointed the Stock Affairs Department of	No significant
stock affairs agency to handle matters for			MasterLink Securities Corp., a professional stock affairs agent,	difference
shareholders' meetings?			to handle the Company's stock affairs.	
VII. Public disclosure of information				
(I) Has the Company set up a website to disclose	V		(I) The Company already set up a website	No significant
finance and business matters and corporate			(http://www.howteh.com.tw), where it discloses company	difference
governance information?	X 7		information from time to time for reference by investors.	
(II) Has the Company adopted other means of	V		(II) The company has set up a Chinese and English website and	
information disclosure (such as setting up an			has a dedicated person responsible for the collection and	
English website, appointing dedicated personnel responsible for the collection and			disclosure of company information. The Company also has a spokesperson and an acting spokesperson, who are	
disclosure of Company information,			responsible for communicating company information to	
implementing a spokesperson system, posting			outsiders and holding investors' conferences.	
the Company's earnings calls on its website,			outsiders and nording investors conferences.	
etc.)?				
(III) Does the Company publish and make an		V	(III)The Company files its annual and quarterly financial	

			The State of Operation	The differences
Evaluation Items		No	Summary description	from the Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies and the reasons therefor
official filing of an annual financial report within two months after the end of an accounting period, and publish/file Q1, Q2 and Q3 financial reports along with the monthly business performance statements before the required due dates?			statements within specified due dates and declares its monthly operating performance every month as required by law.	
VIII. Does the company have other important information that is helpful to understand its implementation of corporate governance (including but not limited to employee rights, employee care, investor relations, supplier relations, stakeholder rights, continuing education of directors and supervisors, implementation of risk management policies and risk measurement standards, implementation of customer policies, the company's purchase of liability insurance for directors and supervisors, and so on)?	V		 Employee rights: To safeguard employees' rights, the Company has formulated its "Work Rules" and "Measures of Prevention, Complaint, and Punishment of Sexual Harassment," by which it respects employees' human rights and uphold their legitimate rights. In addition, the Company has also set up an internal website, where employees may submit their opinions and discuss about benefits, and which is a real-time communication channel with employees. Employee care: The Company puts people first in that it has formulated comprehensive management system with respect to working environment, benefits, on-the-job training, retirement, and dependent care, so as to enable employees to devote themselves to promoting the various types of business, thereby jointly maximizing profits. Benefits in this regard include group insurance for all employees; childbirth allowance; funeral subsidies; insurance for employees on business travel; parental leave without pay; and various measures for family care. 	No significant difference

			The State of Operation	The differences
Evaluation Items	Yes	No	Summary description	from the Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies and the reasons therefor
			 Since the Company is an agent of other companies, employees work mainly in office buildings; the Company's office is a commercial building guarded by dedicated security guards day and night and regularly maintained, which should be considered a safe workplace for employees. The Company values employees' health, so it offers a complimentary physical checkup for employees every year. More physical checkup items are added year on year at the request of employees. To insure employees against physical injury, the Company purchased an Employer's Liability Insurance, which will entitle employees to insurance benefits if they sustain injury at work during their employment. The Company further purchased a public liability insurance for persons going in and out of the Company's warehouse, and for tally clerks. Investor relations: By disclosing its financial, business, and corporate governance information on its website, the Company enhances information transparency and maintains a good interaction with investors. Please visit the Company's website: http://www. howteh.com.tw. Supplier relations: The Company has set up its Supplier Management Rules, and designated different departments to be responsible for communication with different suppliers and stakeholders, and to coordinate any related affairs. In doing so, the Company 	

			The State of Operation	The differences
Evaluation Items	Evaluation Items Yes	No	Summary description	from the Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies and the reasons therefor
			 provides a clear communication channel. 5. Stakeholders' rights: The Company has clearly indicated a stakeholder complaint filing channel on its website and annual report, so as to maintain stakeholders' rights. 6. Directors' continuing education: The Company provides directors with information on applicable laws and regulations and continuing education courses as required by law. The Company's directors also take continuing education courses that offer professional information with respect to corporate governance, finance, and business. Please see p.31 to p.32 in the annual report. 7. Implementation of risk management policies and risk measurement standards: By following its comprehensive internal control system and relevant regulations, the Company prevents the occurrence of fraud and reduces risks. Please see p.111 to p.113 of this annual report. 8. Implementation of customer policies: The Company has set up customer complains processing procedures, by which it opens to, and deals with, customer complaints; it also establishes preventive measures accordingly to prevent recurrence. 9. The Company's purchase of liability insurance for directors: The Company has purchase directors and officers liability insurance of USD3 million from MSIG Mingtai Insurance 	

			The State of Operation		The differences
			<u>^</u>		from the
					Corporate
					Governance Best
Evaluation Items	Yes	No	Summary description		Practice Principles
	105	1.0	Summary accomption		for TWSE/TPEx
				J	Listed Companies
					and the reasons
					therefor
			Company, Limited. for directors to cover the period		
			August 25, 2023 and August 25, 2024. Such purchas		
			been reported to the Board of Directors on August 1		
			e based on the Corporate Governance Evaluation results		
			stock Exchange, and specify the priority enhancement of	bjectives a	nd measures
planned for any matters still awaiting improve					
1 7 1	paren	cy and	disclosure timeliness and will enhance disclosure on it	ts website to	o improve
information transparency.					
(Note) Evaluation of the attesting CPAs					
					Whether the
	Tvalua	tion It	tems	Evaluation	1
				results	qualifies for
					independence
(1) Does the CPA have direct or indirect material f	No	Yes			
(2) Does the CPA provide/accept endorsement an directors?	d guar	antees	s or lend or borrow funds from/to the Company or its	No	Yes
(3) Does the CPA have a business relationship wit the Company?	No	Yes			
(4) Is/Was the CPA or any member of the engage wielding significant influence over the Compar	No	Yes			
(5) Does the CPA simultaneously provide the Co audit work?	No	Yes			
(6) Does the CPA serve as an agent of the stock or	secur	ities is	sued by the Company?	No	Yes
(7) Does the CPA serve as a defendant for the Con Company?	npany	or me	ediate the disputes with another party on behalf of the	No	Yes

(8) Is the CPA a relative or family member of the Company's directors, managers, or persons wielding significant influence over the audit case?	INO	Yes
(9) Is there a partner CPA who has resigned within the past year and used to be the Company's director, manager, or a person wielding significant influence over the audit work?	No	Yes
(10) Did the CPA accept gifts or giveaways of significant value from the Company's director or manager?	No	Yes
(11) Does the CPA provide the Company with audit service for seven years or more in a row?	No	Yes

(V) Promotion of Sustainable Development – Implementation Status and Deviations from the Sustainable Development Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies and the Reasons

			The State of Operation	Deviation from the
Evaluation Items	Yes	No	Summary description	"Sustainable Development Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies" and the reasons:
I. Has the Company established a governance	V		The Company's Board of Directors designated the General	No significant
structure to promote sustainable development,			Manager Office to be a full-time (part-time) unit, which	difference
and designated a full-time (part-time) unit to			shall take charge of developing sustainable development	
promote sustainable development, which is to			policy and system or relevant management approaches,	
be handled by the senior management with the			setting feasible goals and implementing the same, and	
authorization of the Board of Directors, and the			tracking implementation achievements and reporting the	
actual supervision of the Board of Directors?			same to the Board of Directors.	
II. Does the company conduct risk assessments on	V		(I) Environmental protection	No significant
environmental, social, and corporate			Being an electronic components distributor, the	difference
governance issues related to the Company's			Company is mainly engaged in trading and R&D of	
operations in accordance with the principle of			electronic components, and is not involved in any	
materiality, and formulate relevant risk			manufacturing activities. Due to the nature of the	
management policies or strategies?			industry it is in, the Company did not pollute the	
			environment in any way. Nonetheless, being aware of a corporate citizen, the Company profoundly	
			understands the importance of environmental	
			sustainability. Therefore, the Company introduces an	
			environmental management system to minimize the	

			The State of Operation	Deviation from the "Sustainable
Evaluation Items	Yes	No	Summary description	Development Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies" and the reasons:
			 risk of environmental violations; what's more, it has been promoting its carbon reduction and energy conservation program, through which it enhances employees' environmental awareness and improves the efficiency in resource consumption. (II) Product liability The Company demands that suppliers obtain necessary environmental certificates (e.g., emissions monitoring), permits, and registration documents and regularly maintain and update the same. The Company also demands that suppliers identify and manage the chemical substances and other substances that, if released to the environment, will cause hazards, and thereby ensure substances (RoHS) and the Registration, Evaluation, Authorization, Restriction of Chemicals (REACH) promulgated by the European Union. Aside from that, the Company also demand that suppliers disclose a statement on their website asserting compliance with the said regulations, or provide a certificate issued by Taiwan Testing and Certification Center or SGS, in order to ensure the regulatory compliance of the electronic components sold by the Company to downstream manufacturers. 	

			The State of Operation	Deviation from the "Sustainable Development Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies" and the reasons:
Evaluation Items	Yes	No	Summary description	
			 Human resources are allocated based on each department's annual plans. Through diverse recruitment channels, HOWTEH pursues talents who satisfy its core values. The Company values talent retention. By having an interview with terminated employees, the Company gathers the causes of their termination and related information, analyzes the data to formulate remedial plans, and then gives feedback to department chiefs so that they can carry out remedial measures, e.g., personnel management, adjustment of job design, and improvement in recruitment offers. (IV) Anti-corruption By putting in place anti-fraud measures, e.g., the "Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles," "Codes of Ethical Conduct," "Procedures for Ethical Management and Guidelines for Conduct," "Internal Control System," Authorization System," and division of function, coupled with the implementation of internal audit, internal control self-evaluation, and provision of a channel for reporting unethical conduct, the Company implements its anti-corruption measures. (V) Customer privacy The Company keeps trade secrets strictly confidential. No person of the Company may disclose to any other party any trade secrets, trademarks, copyrights, and other intellectual 	

			The State of Operation	Deviation from the "Sustainable
Evaluation Items	Yes	No	Summary description	Development Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies" and the reasons:
			 properties of the clients or suppliers of which they have learned, nor may they inquire about or collect any trade secrets, trademarks, copyrights, and other intellectual properties of clients and suppliers unrelated to their individual duties. The Company further entered into a non-disclosure agreement (NDA) with clients and original brands. The Company has also launched 5 concrete measures to protect trade secrets. (VI) Compliance with socioeconomic laws and regulations The Company abides by the Fair Trade Act, Foreign Trade Act, Regulations Governing Export and Import of Strategic High-tech Commodities, the USA's Export Administration Regulations, Regulations Governing Trade between the Taiwan Area and the Mainland Area, and other international standards. All products comply with international safety standards and import and export laws. The Company verifies the compliance of its operations and abides by its ethical code; it also publicizes laws and regulations internally. 	
III. Environmental Issues(I) Has the Company set up an appropriate environmental management system based on the characteristics of its industry?	V		 (I) Since the Company is an agent, ISO14001 and related environmental management systems do not apply to the industry to which the Company belongs. Despite so, the Company still strives to create proper systems for the management of operating activities 	No significant difference

			The State of Operation	Deviation from the "Sustainable Development Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies" and the reasons:
Evaluation Items	Yes	No	Summary description	
 (II) Is the Company committed to improving the efficiency of resource utilization and using recycled materials with a low impact on the environment? (III) Does the Company evaluate the potential risks 	V		 and office environment. In terms of operating activities, the Company urges its suppliers to value compliance of their production environment and products with RoHS directives, and monitors their compliance. In terms of the internal environment, the Company purchases energy-efficient electric appliances and lighting fixtures, reduces the use of disposable products, and sets the switch of lights on automatically during noon break and the start and end of business hours to reduce unnecessary waste. (II) The Company launches a green campaign and continues to promote the reuse of paper; practices in this regard include waste paper recycling, the use of both sides of paper, and the use of office accessories and equipment made of eco-friendly materials and bearing an energy efficiency mark. (III) The Company continues to promote energy 	
and opportunities of climate change to the Company now and in the future, and take corresponding measures to respond to climate related issues?	v		conservation measures, greening work, and tree planting work.	
(IV) Does the Company make statistics on greenhouse gas emissions, water consumption and the total weight of waste for the past two years, and formulate policies for energy conservation and carbon reduction, greenhouse gas reduction, water consumption reduction or other waste management?	V		(IV) Although the Company did not make statistics or formulate a carbon reduction and energy conservation policy, the Company puts in place its principles for energy efficient conduct in offices during daily operations. The Company actively promotes environmental awareness and encourages employees to practice green conduct in day-to-day	

			The State of Operation	Deviation from the "Sustainable
Evaluation Items	Yes	No	Summary description	Development Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies" and the reasons:
			life, e.g., use of e-statements to reduce consumption of paper and transportation resources and turning off lights when leaving. The Company increasingly digitalizes its approval process and cancels the original paperwork approval process, thereby slashing paper consumption. The Company aims to create a sustainable environment, actively implement eco-friendly operational approaches, and reduce energy consumption.	
IV. Social Issues (I) Has the company formulated relevant management policies and procedures in accordance with relevant laws and regulations as well as the International Bill of Human Rights?	V		(I) The Company recognizes and supports principles set forth in the various international human rights conventions, e.g., "Universal Declaration of Human Rights," "United Nations Guiding Principles on Business and Human Rights," "The United Nations Global Compact," and "ILO Convention." In addition, the Company has drafted its policy that values human rights at the workplace, provides a safe and healthy workplace, and respects employees' rights to free association; the policy is applicable to the Company, subsidiaries over which the Company has substantive control, and suppliers. By putting in place proper management approaches and procedures, the Company eliminates any conduct that infringes or violates human rights; it also regularly reviews safety and health risks facing employees, and carries out remedial plans based on the identification results. The Company will also pay close attention to	No significant difference 1

			The State of Operation	Deviation from the "Sustainable
Evaluation Items	Yes	No	Summary description	Development Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies" and the reasons:
(II) Has the Company formulated and implemented reasonable employee welfare measures (including remuneration, vacation, and other benefits, etc.), and appropriately reflected operating performance or results in employee remuneration?	V		 the development of the human rights policy of domestic and foreign enterprises and the changes in the business environment, so as to gain a reference for reviewing and refining this policy. (II) The Company provides employees with multiple benefits measures that are beyond the legal requirements. For instance, the Company's leave system is better than what is required by the "Labor Standards Act;" employees start enjoying annual leave in proportion to their service days, starting from their first day at the Company, and are offered fully-paid sick leave and injury leave according to their service years. In addition, employees are offered bonuses for the three major Chinese festivals, group comprehensive insurance, subsidies for continuing education, congratulation money for marriage, childbirth subsidies, and funeral subsidies. Furthermore, to take care of employees' health, the Company offers them free health checkup that surpasses the mandatorily required one in terms of both frequency and number of checkup items. The Company's remuneration system is formulated by taking into consideration industry characteristics, overall remuneration planning, market competitiveness, the Company's operating performance, risk management, and industry peers' payment standards. This precludes the possibility in which managers and salespersons engage in business 	

			The State of Operation	Deviation from the "Sustainable
Evaluation Items	Yes	No	Summary description	Development Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies" and the reasons:
(III) Operating performance or results are also appropriately reflected in the compensation of employees (annual salary adjustment and promotion based on performance appraisal).	V		 conduct that exceeds the Company's risk appetite in order to pursue remuneration. The Company also regularly reviews the remuneration system and performance in order to implement a reasonable remuneration policy. (III) The Company's workplace complies with regulatory requirements and has been inspected and approved by the competent authority. A fire safety evacuation drill and labor safety awareness sessions are regularly held. The Company also compiles an emergency response manual, by which it carries out drills and simulations from time to time, to reduce the possibility of the occurrence of work-related accidents. The Company regularly organizes health checkups for employees, and identifies key checkup items, hoping to help employees spot an illness early and thereby implement the concept of illness prevention. The Company also arranges for physicians to provide health consultations after health checkups, continues to launch health promotion events, and irregularly provides employees with health-promoting information, so as to take care of their physical and mental health. In 2023, no fire incidents occurred at our company, internal regular fire prevention promotion, disaster response, fire safety training are conducted to enhance colleagues' awareness of safety and security and set up fire prevention teams to respond to fire incidents. 	

			The State of Operation	Deviation from the "Sustainable
Evaluation Items	Yes	No	Summary description	Development Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies" and the reasons:
(IV) Has the Company established an effective career development training program for employees?	V		(IV) The Company formulates annual training plans against the Company's annual business strategy every year. To align the growth of employees' careers with the development of the Company, the Company provides a variety of training to hone their professional competency during different career stages, e.g., employee orientation training, professional training, and management capability training. To facilitate employees' career development toward the managerial position, the Company also launches a program to cultivate reserve managerial officers at different stages, so as to enrich the core competencies of the management. In addition, to encourage employees to pursue further education, the Company provides subsidies for language courses, computer courses, professional license courses, and continuing education courses, so as to enable employees to improve professional skills and thereby bring benefits for both themselves and the organization's competitiveness.	
(V) Does the Company comply with relevant laws and regulations and international standards regarding customer health and safety, customer privacy, marketing and labeling of products and services, and establish relevant customer rights protection policies and complaint procedures?	V		 (V) All components and equipment the Company sells as an agent comply with legal requirements. In addition, the Company demands that suppliers present a Statement of Non-use of Hazardous Substance, Statement of RoHS Directives, etc., so as to provide customers the products suitable for use in future manufacturing processes. The Company also sets up a Stakeholders Zone on its internal website, where 	

		The State of Operation Deviation from "Sustainable						
Evaluation Items Yes No	No	Summary description	Development Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies" and the reasons:					
(VI) Has the company formulated supplier management policies requiring suppliers to comply with relevant regulations on issues such as environmental protection, occupational safety and health, or labor rights, and what is the status of their implementation?	V		dedicated employees will respond and a complaint filing mailbox is available, aiming to provide consumers with more comprehensive services. (VI) The Company and subsidiaries add relevant regulations to the contracts entered into with major suppliers. When performing a supplier assessment, the Company will comprehensively assess each indicator (e.g., corporate governance, financial indicators, and records of social responsibility rating). The Company and its subsidiaries further demand that partner suppliers fulfill corporate social responsibilities, and persuade them to adopt consistent principles for respect of human rights, prohibition of discrimination, prohibition of child labor, occupational safety and health, environmental protection, purchase of products bearing an environmental mark, business ethics, and ethical corporate management, aiming to strike a balance between economic development, society, and ecology and achieve environmental sustainability. Suppliers are also regularly inspected for financial conduct and manufacturing environment at their premises; only those well performing will become our long-term partners.					

			The State of Operation	Deviation from the "Sustainable
Evaluation Items	Yes No		Summary description	Development Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies" and the reasons:
V. Does the Company make reference to		V	The Company's Board of Directors meeting dated March	No significant
international reporting standards or guidelines			27, 2015 approved the Company's "Corporate Social	difference
to prepare sustainable development or other			Responsibility Best Practice Principles" and the	
reports that disclose non-financial information			Company's Board of Directors meeting dated March 22,	
about the Company? Does the company obtain			2023 approved the Company's "Sustainable Development	
third party assurance or certification for the			Best Practice Principles", which have been implemented	
reports above?			accordingly. The Company did not prepare a corporate	
			social responsibility report that disclosed non-financial	
			information, so there was no such thing as third party	
	1 1		certification.	
			t best practice principles based on the "Sustainable Developm	
			ribe any deviation from the principles in the Company's oper	
			7, 2015 approved the Company's "Corporate Social Responsil	
			dated March 22, 2023 approved the Company's "Sustainable nerefore, the operation did not significantly deviate from the p	
· · ·				micipies.
			g of the company's promotion of sustainable development: protection, occupational safety, and health promotion. All en	anlavaaa algo striva ta
			bobsolete equipment, and reduce resource consumption. The	1 0
	-	-	so as to gain a reference for striding towards corporate sustai	1 0
to pay attention to the development of each issue	c and	n chu,	so as to gain a reference for struting towards corporate sustai	naure guais.

(VI) Ethical Corporate Management – Implementation Status and Deviations from the Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies and the Reasons

		1	The State of Operation	Deviation From the "Ethical Corporate
Evaluation Items	Yes	No	Summary description	Management Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Company" and the Reasons.
 I. Formulate ethical corporate management policy and plan (I) Does the company have an ethical corporate management policy approved by its Board of Directors, and by laws and publicly available documents addressing its corporate conduct and ethics policy and measures and commitment regarding implementation of such policy from the Board of Directors and the top management team? 	V		(I) The Company formulated its "Procedures for Ethical Management and Guidelines for Conduct" and "Corporate Governance - Codes of Ethical Conduct" which had been approved by the Company's Board of Directors. In addition, the Company discloses its ethical corporate management policy in its internal regulations, literature, company website, and	No significant difference
 (II) Whether the Company has established a mechanism for evaluating the risk of unethical conduct, regularly analyzes and evaluates the activities in the scope of business with a higher risk of unethical conduct, and on the basis of this, has formulated a plan to prevent unethical conduct, which covers at least the preventive measures for the conduct set out in Paragraph 2 of Article 7 of the "Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies?" 	V		 annual report. (II) The Company has formulated its "Procedures for Ethical Management and Guidelines for Conduct," which included the variety of conduct set forth in Article 7, Paragraph 2 of the Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles. The Company has also assigned a monetary threshold for operating activities entailing higher unethical risks and formulated response procedures. 	
(III) Whether the Company has specified operating procedures, conduct guidelines, and disciplinary and complaint systems for violations in the plan to prevent unethical conduct and implemented the plan as well as regularly reviews and amends it?	V		(III) The Company already specified in its "Employee Manual" and "Procedures for Ethical Management and Guidelines for Conduct" that "fraud conduct in any form is	

			The State of Operation	Deviation From the "Ethical Corporate
Evaluation Items		No	Summary description	Management Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Company" and the Reasons.
II. The implementation of ethical corporate management			banned outright" and "no person may directly or indirectly provide, accept, promise, or demand any improper profit by taking advantage of his/her job duties." The Company assigns clear definitions to each type of conduct, and sets out a disciplinary system and a complaint filing system, so as to raise employees' awareness of ethics and self-discipline and actively prevent unethical conduct; the Company also regularly reviews operating procedures.	
 (I) Does the Company evaluate the ethical records of its counterparties and specify the ethical conduct clauses in the contracts signed with the counterparties? (II) Does the Company have a dedicated unit under the Board of Directors to promote ethical corporate management and report regularly (at least once a year) to the Board of Directors on its ethical management policy, plan to prevent unethical conduct, and the state of monitoring and implementation of such policy and plan? 	VV		č	No significant difference
(III) Does the Company have the policy to prevent conflict of interest, provide appropriate channels for an	V		 (III) The Company specifies in its "Employee Manual" and "Procedures for Ethical Management and Guidelines for Conduct" 	

		ſ	The State of Operation	Deviation From the "Ethical Corporate
Evaluation Items	Yes	No	Summary description	Management Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Company" and the Reasons.
 explanation, and implement it? (IV) Does the Company establish an effective accounting system and internal control system for the implementation of ethical corporate management, and have the internal audit unit draw up relevant audit plans based on the evaluation results of risk of unethical conduct and audit the compliance with the plan to prevent unethical conduct, or entrust a CPA to perform the audit? (V) Does the Company regularly organize internal and external education and training on ethical corporate 	V		 provisions pertaining to recusal from conflict of interest; the provisions provide that employees should report to their immediate supervisor if they encounter any conflict of interest when performing their duties. (IV) The Company has established an effective and complete accounting system and internal control system, and operates accordingly; in addition, regular audits carried out by internal auditors and annual internal control tests carried out by CPAs help identify problems and deficiencies, based on which relevant operation can be corrected. The Audit Office, based on the results of the assessment of the risk of involvement in unethical conduct, devised relevant audit plans, including auditees, audit scope, audit items, audit frequency, etc., and examined accordingly the compliance with the prevention programs. The Audit Office may engage a certified public accountant to carry out the audit, and may engage professionals to assist if necessary. (V) The Company continues to promote the concept of ethical corporate management through 	
management?			internal education and training courses.	
III. The operation of the Company's whistleblower reporting system				

			The State of Operation	Deviation From the "Ethical Corporate
Evaluation Items	Yes	No	Summary description	Management Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Company" and the Reasons.
 (I) Has the Company set up a specific whistleblower reporting and reward system and a convenient reporting channel, and designated appropriate personnel to deal with the reported matters? (II) Has the Company formulated standard operating 	V		 informing of unethical or unseemly conduct, the Company will grant a monetary reward depending on the seriousness of the circumstance concerned. However, Insiders who have made a false report or malicious accusation shall be subject to disciplinary action and be removed from office if the circumstance concerned is material. In addition, the Company internally establishes and publicly announces on its website and the intranet, or provides through an independent external institution, an independent mailbox or hotline, for insiders and outsiders of the Company to submit reports. After the accused is reported, the Company will hold a personnel review meeting, present proofs therein to the accused, and provide ample opportunities for the accused to present his/her case before imposing punishment. (II) Relevant procedures and confidentiality 	No significant
procedures for the investigation of the reported matters, follow-up measures to be taken after the completion of the investigation, and the relevant confidentiality mechanisms?			mechanisms are already set out in the "Procedures for Ethical Management and Guidelines for Conduct."	
(III) Does the Company take measures to protect whistleblowers from being improperly treated due to reporting?	V		(III) Personnel of the Company handling whistle-blowing matters shall represent in writing they will keep the whistleblowers' identity and contents of information	

			The State of Operation	Deviation From the "Ethical Corporate	
Evaluation Items		No	Summary description	Management Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Company" and the Reasons.	
			confidential and the whistleblowing content is not a false report or malicious accusation. The Company also undertakes to protect the whistleblowers from improper treatment due to their whistleblowing.		
 IV. Enhance Information Disclosure (I) Does the Company disclose the content and implementation results of its Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles on its website and the Market Observation Post System? 	V		The Company already disclosed its internal regulations pertaining to ethical corporate management on the Corporate Governance Zone on the Company's website.	No significant difference	
 V. If the Company has established its own ethical corporate management best practice principles in accordance with the "Ethical Corporate Management Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Companies," please state the differences between its own principles and the state of implementation: The "Procedures for Ethical Management and Guidelines for Conduct" was formulated at the Board of Directors meeting dated March 27, 2015 and amended at the Board of Directors meeting dated March 25, 2021, and have been implemented accordingly. Therefore, the implementation did not significantly deviate from these principles 					
did not significantly deviate from these principles. VI. Other important information that is conducive to understanding the implementation of ethical corporate management (e.g., the Company's review or revision of its own ethical corporate management best practice principles): Upholding the philosophy of "Trustworthiness and Teamwork," "Improvement in Quality," "Customer Service," and "Innovation and Growth," the Company's Chairman leads the management team, to jointly promote each category of business. The competencies of the team as a whole bring about prominent operational performance, creating the most optimal profits for shareholders, employees, clients, and suppliers and thereby forging a long-term virtuous relationship. In terms of investor relations: In addition to fulfilling the obligation of information disclosure, the Company announces financial and important information as required; it further discloses complete information on the website of Howteh Technology Co., Ltd. at the disposal of all investors, thereby upholding investors' rights to know. In terms of customer relations: Aside from being capable of providing products tailored to clients' needs, the Company also actively deals with any issues raised by clients and provides after-sales technological services, hoping that closer interaction between both parties can win					

			The State of Operation	Deviation From the "Ethical Corporate		
Evaluation Items	Yes	No	Summary description	Management Best Practice Principles for TWSE/TPEx Listed Company" and the Reasons.		
word-of-mouth for the Company's products and service						
In terms of supplier relations: The Company regularly examines and manages suppliers' qualifications and establishes a supplier database. Aside from carrying out price negotiation procedures in accordance with internal regulations, the Company also continues to track and assess suppliers' supply quality, scheduling, and operational status. In addition, with a track record showing constantly growing sales, the Company flexes its business muscle and makes suppliers more reliant on it. Through collaboration, the Company aims to develop opportunities for new products and new markets. In terms of dividend distribution: The Company will offer shareholders as much profits as possible, subject to the profits position and future capital planning.						
In terms of capital planning: With a sound financial structure of the second s				1		
financial institutions, to obtain higher financing credit limits and better terms that reflect the Company's fine reputation. The Company will continue to promote ethical sustainable management; it has successively arranged for the management team and all employees to take internal and external courses to learn relevant knowledge; by bettering and implementing internal control systems and relevant operating procedures, hoping to achieve ethical corporate management continuity.						

- (VII.) Where the Company has formulated its Corporate Governance Principles and other required regulations, the inquiry method should be specified. See the Company's website at <u>http://www.howteh.com.tw/</u>
- (VIII) Other important information for understanding the operation of corporate governance may be disclosed: In order to establish a good mechanism for processing material inside information and prevent information leakage, the Company has formulated the "Procedures for Processing Material Inside Information to Prevent Insider Trading," whose content of some provisions of the Internal Control System was amended and passed at the Board of Directors meeting dated November 11, 2022.

HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. Statement of internal control system

Date: March 14, 2024

The Company states the following for its 2023 internal control system based on the results of self-evaluation:

- I. The Company knows that establishing, implementing and maintaining an internal control system is the responsibility of the Company's Board of Directors and managers, and the Company has established this system. Its purpose is to provide reasonable assurance of the achievement of objectives such as the effectiveness and efficiency of operations (including profitability, performance, and asset security, etc.), the reliability, timeliness, and transparency of reporting, as well as compliance with relevant rulings, laws and regulations, etc.
- II. Internal control system has its inherent limitations. No matter how perfect the design is, an effective internal control system can only provide a reasonable assurance of the achievement of the above three objectives; moreover, due to changes in the environment and circumstances, the effectiveness of the internal control system may change accordingly. However, the Company's internal control system has a self-monitoring mechanism. Once a defect is identified, the Company will take corrective actions.
- III. The Company determines the effectiveness of the design and implementation of its internal control system in accordance with the criteria of the effectiveness of the internal control system stipulated in the "Regulations Governing Establishment of Internal Control Systems by Public Companies" (hereinafter referred to as the "Regulations"). The criteria of the internal control system adopted in the "Regulations" are based on the process of managerial control and divide the internal control system into five components: 1. control environment, 2. risk evaluation, 3. control operations, 4. Information and communication, and 5. Monitoring operations. Each component consists of a number of items. Please refer to the "Regulations" for these items.
- IV. The Company has adopted the aforementioned criteria of the internal control system to evaluate the effectiveness of the design and implementation of its internal control system.
- V. Based on the evaluation results of the preceding paragraph, the Company believed that the design and implementation of its internal control system were effective as of December 31, 2023 ^(Note 2) (including the supervision and management of subsidiaries), with an understanding of the extent to which the objectives of effectiveness and efficiency of operations were achieved, whether or not the reporting was reliable, timely, transparent and if the compliance with relevant rulings, laws, and regulations is met, and a reasonable assurance of the achievement of these objectives.
- VI. This statement will become the main content of the Company's annual report and prospectus and will be made public. If the above-mentioned disclosures have falsehood or concealment, legal liability under Articles 20, 32, 171 and 174 of the Securities and Exchange Act will be incurred.
- VII. This statement was approved by the Company's Board of Directors on March 14, 2024. Of the 7 directors present, 0 had objections, and the rest all agreed with the content of this statement and hereby declare the same.

HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.

Chairman: Chen, Kuo-Hung	Signature and/or Seal
General Manager: Wu, Li-Shan	Signature and/or Seal

Note 1: If a material deficiency exists in the design and implementation of a public company's internal control system during the year, the company shall add an explanation section after the 4th paragraph of the Statement of Internal Control System, which section shall specify the material deficiency spotted through self-evaluation, the corrective actions taken by the company before the balance sheet date, and the status of improvement.

Note 2: The date represented here is the "end date of a fiscal period."

2. Where a CPA was entrusted to review the internal control system, the review report should be disclosed: None.

- (X) If there has been any legal penalty against the company or its internal personnel, or any disciplinary penalty by the company against its internal personnel for violation of the internal control system, during the most recent fiscal year or during the current fiscal year up to the publication date of the annual report, where the result of such penalty could have a material effect on shareholder equity or securities prices, the annual report shall disclose the penalty, the main shortcomings, and condition of improvement: No such occurrence.
- (XI) Important resolutions of the shareholders' meeting and board meeting during the most recent year and during the current year up to the date of publication of the annual report

1. Material resolutions of a shareholders' meeting and the implementation thereof

Date	Important resolutions
	1. Passed the proposal on the 2022 Financial Statements and Business Report.
	2. Passed the 2022 Earnings Distribution Proposal.
	Execution status: The proposal was carried out according to the resolution of the
	Shareholders' Meeting. The distribution was completed on September 4, 2023.
June 19,	3. Passed the proposal to recapitalize earnings into new shares.
2023	Execution status: The proposal was carried out according to the resolution of the
	Shareholders' Meeting. The distribution was completed on September 4, 2023.
	4. Passed the proposal on lifting the non-compete restriction on Directors.
	Execution status: The proposal was carried out according to the resolution of the
	Shareholders' Meeting.

2. Material Resolutions of the Board of Directors

Date	Important resolutions
March 22, 2023	 The Company passed the proposal on the list of non-audit service to be provided by Ernst & Young and its affiliates in 2023 and 2024. The Company passed the proposal on suitability and independence of attesting CPAs. The Company passed the proposal on appointment of attesting CPAs for 2023 and review of audit fees. The Company passed the proposal on the Company's statement of effectiveness of its internal control system for 2022. The Company passed the proposal on the Company's Business Report and Financial Statements for 2022. The Company passed the proposal to distribute remuneration to employees and directors of 2022. The Company passed the proposal to recapitalize earnings into new shares The Company passed the proposal to recapitalize of the convention of the 2023 General Shareholders' Meeting. The Company passed the proposal to amend some provisions of the Company's "Corporate Governance Best Practice Principles." The Company passed the proposal to areate a position of, and appoint, the Company Chief Governance Officer. The Company passed the proposal to provide endorsements and guarantees to the subsidiary "Githe Electronic Industries Co., Ltd."
May 9,	 The Company passed its consolidated financial statements for Q1 2023. The Company passed the proposal to allow shareholders with 1% or more stake

Date	Important resolutions
2023	to submit proposals at the 2023 General Shareholders' Meeting.
	3. The Company pass the proposal on Lifting the non-compete restriction for directors.
	4. Proposal for matters concerning the 2023 general shareholders' meeting.
	5. Proposal to allow the Company to provide endorsement and guarantee for the
	Company's sub-subsidiary "Howteh Vietnam Co., Ltd."
	6. Amendments to some provisions of the "Procedures for Howteh Group Chop".
	 Proposal to extend the expiration date of the redevelopment contract of old and dangerous building Xubo Building Office in Taipei held by the Company.
	8. Proposal to allow the Company to raise its financial credit limit through
	financial institutions and renew the facilities due.
Index 7	1. The Company passed the proposal to recapitalize earnings of 2022 into new
July 7,	shares, and to request the Board of Directors to authorize the Chairman to set a
2023	record date for ex-rights and ex-dividend of the cash dividends.
	1. The Company passed its 2023 Q2 consolidated financial statements.
	2. The Company passed the proposal to amend the subsidiary's "Internal Control
	System."
	3. The Company passed the "Rules Governing Financial and Business Matters
	Between this Corporation and its Affiliated Enterprises."
August 11,	4. The Company passed the proposal to make a donation to the "Taipei
2023	Rosyclouds Foundation for Education."
	5. The Company passed the proposal to allow the Company's sub-subsidiary
	"Shenzhen Howteh Technology Co., Ltd." to loan funds to the Company's
	sub-subsidiary "Shanghai Howteh International Trading Inc."
	6. Proposal to allow the Company to raise its financial credit limit through
	financial institutions and renew the facilities due.
	1. The Company passed the proposal on the Company's 2024 annual business
	plan.
	2. The Company passed the proposal on the Company's 2024 annual audit plan.
	3. The Company passed its 2023 Q3 consolidated financial statements.
November	4. The Company passed the proposal to allow the Company's sub-subsidiary
10, 2023	"Shanghai Howteh International Trading Inc." to loan funds to the Company's
,	sub-subsidiary "Shenzhen Howteh Technology Co., Ltd."
	5. The Company passed the proposal to amend some provisions of the Company's
	"Rules of Procedure for Shareholders' Meetings."
	6. The Company passed the proposal to distribute year-end bonus to managers of 2023.
	1. The Company passed the proposal on the list of non-audit service to be
	provided by Ernst & Young and its affiliates in 2024.
	2. The Company passed the proposal on suitability and independence of attesting
	CPAs.
	3. The Company passed the proposal to change Certified Public Accountants due
	to the internal rotation of the CPA firm.
Mag-1, 14	4. The Company passed the proposal on appointment of attesting CPAs for 2024
March 14, 2024	and review of audit fees.
2024	5. The Company passed the proposal on the Company's statement of effectiveness
	of its internal control system for 2023.
	6. The Company passed the proposal on the Company's Business Report and
	Financial Statements for 2023.
	7. The Company passed the proposal to distribute remuneration to employees and
	directors of 2023.
	8. The Company passed the 2023 Earnings Distribution Proposal.

Date	Important resolutions					
	9. The Company passed the proposal to amend some provisions of the "Rules of					
	Procedure for Board of Directors Meetings."					
	10. The Company passed the proposal for the election of all directors.					
	11. The Company resolved to accept submission of proposals for the 2024 General Shareholders' Meeting.					
	12. The Company resolved to accept the candidate nomination of director					
	(including independent director) for the 2024 General shareholders' Meeting.					
	13. The Company passed the proposal on Lifting the non-compete restriction on the newly elected Directors.					
	14. The Company passed the proposal on matters relating to the convention of the					
	2024 General Shareholders' Meeting.					
15. The Company passed the proposal to provide endorsements and gua						
	the subsidiary "Giteh Electronic Industries Co., Ltd."					
	16. The Company passed a proposal to allow the Company to raise its financial					
	credit limit through financial institutions and renew the facilities due.					
	1. The Company passed its consolidated financial statements for Q1 2024.					
	2. The Company passed the proposal to amend some provisions of the "Articles of Incorporation".					
	3. The Company passed the nomination and review of director candidates.					
May 9,	4. The Company passed the proposal on matters relating to the convention of the					
2024	2024 General Shareholders' Meeting.					
	5. The Company passed the proposal to provide endorsement and guarantee to the					
	Company's sub-subsidiary "Howteh Vietnam Co., Ltd."					
	6. The Company passed a proposal to allow the Company to raise its financial					
	credit limit through financial institutions and renew the facilities due.					

- (XII) During the most recent year or during the current year up to the date of publication of the annual report, if directors had different opinions on important resolutions approved by the Board of Directors with records or written statements: No such occurrence.
- (XIII) For the most recent year or the current year up to the date of publication of the annual report, a summary of the resignation and dismissal of the Company's chairman, general manager, accounting officer, finance officer, chief governance officer, internal audit officer, and R&D officer: No such occurrence.

V. Information on the professional fees of attesting CPAs

					Unit:	N1\$1,000	_
CPA firm		CPA audit period	Audit fee	Non-audit fee	Total	Remarks	
Ernst & Young	Wang, Hsuan-Hsuan Chang, Chih-Ming	2023	2,450	635	3,085		

(I) Where the audit fee paid in the year of the replacement of CPA firm is less than the audit fee in the year before the change, the amount of audit fees before and after replacement should be disclosed and the reasons: No such occurrence.

- (II) Where the audit fee has decreased by 10% or more from the previous year, the amount, percentage and reason for the decrease in the audit fee should be disclosed: No such occurrence.
- (III)Non-audit fees in 2023 were fees of NT\$200 thousand for taxation attestation, fees of NT\$220 thousand for transfer pricing report, fees of NT\$75 thousand for filing the distribution of stock dividends with the SFB, and fees of NT\$140 thousand for financial statements translation.

VI. Information on replacement of CPAs

- (I) About predecessor CPA: No such occurrence.
- (II) About successor CPA: No such occurrence.
- (III)Predecessor CPA's letter of response to items listed in Article 10, Subparagraph 6, Item 1 and Item 2, Sub-item 3 of these standards: None.
- VII. The company's chairman, general manager or any officers in charge of finance or accounting matters has in the most recent year held a position at the accounting firm of its CPAs or at an affiliated enterprise of such accounting firm: No such occurrence.
- VIII. Any equity transfer or change in equity pledge by a director, managerial officer, or shareholder with 10% stake or more during the most recent year or during the current year up to the date of publication of the annual report

Unit: Share

					Unit: Share	
		20)23	Year-to-date through May 9, 2024		
Title	Name	Increase (decrease) in the number of shares held	Increase (decrease) in the number of shares pledged	Increase (decrease) in the number of shares held	Increase (decrease) in the number of shares pledged	
Chairman/Major shareholder	Chen, Kuo-Hung	606,922	0	253,000	0	
Director	Tsai, Tsai-Tien	50,603	0	0	0	
Director	Liuyi Investment Co., Ltd.	39,716	0	5,000	0	
Director	Representative: Chen, Che-Hung	44,661	0	0	0	
Director	Hung, Ming-Chi	16,554	0	0	0	
Director	Zhu Lin Investment Co., Ltd.	89,433	0	0	0	
	Representative: Chen Chun-Ting	(7,103)	0	(89,000)	0	
Independent director	ector Tseng, Ming-Jen 0 0		0	0	0	
Independent director	Li, Ta-Ching	0	0	0	0	
Independent director	director Cheng, Tien-Tsung 0		0	0	0	
General Manager	Wu, Li-Shan	17,120	0	0	0	
Vice General Manager	Chuang, Kun-Lin	21,693	0	0	0	
Vice General Manager, CFO, and CGO (Note)	Chang, Da-Chien	0	0	0	0	
Senior Manager of the Components Business III Division	Chiu, Chi-Wei	0	0	0	0	

(I) Change of shareholding of directors, managers, and major shareholders:

Note: The Company's Board of Directors meeting dated March 22, 2023 resolved to appoint Mr. Chang, Ta-Chien, Vice General Manager and CFO, to be the Chief Governance Officer (CGO), starting from June 1, 2023.

(II) Where the counterparty to the equity transfer is a related party:

		1 /	1 0	1 0		
Name	Reason of Transfer	Date of transaction	Counerparty	The relationship between the counterparty and the company, directors, supervisors, managerial officers and shareholders with 10% or more equity	Shares	Transaction price
Chen Chun-Ting	Gift	October 19, 2023	Chen, Liang-Wei	Father and son	46,500	N/A
Chen Chun-Ting	Gift	October 19, 2023	Chen, Shang-I	Father and son	46,500	N/A
Chen Chun-Ting	Gift	March 28, 2024	Chen, Liang-Wei	Father and son	89,000	N/A

(III) Where the counterparty to the equity pledge is a related party: No such occurrence.

IX. Information on the top ten shareholders who are a related party, a spouse, or a relative within the second degree of kinship of one another:

April 23, 2024

							1	April 25, 2024
Name	Shareholdings of the Principal		Shareholding of spouse and underage children		Shares held in the name of others		The name of and relationship among the top 10 shareholders if anyone is a related party, a spouse, or a relative within second degree of kinship of another.	
	Shares	Shareholding Percentage	Shares	Shareholding Percentage	Shares	Shareholding Percentage	Title (or Name)	Relationship
Hui Hong Investment Co., Ltd. Person in charge: Chen, Che-Hung	5,634,875	8.65%	0	0	0	0	Chen, Hsin-Ju Chen, Hsin-Yi Chen, Chun-Ting Chen, Kuo-Hung Wang, Hsiang-Ching	Daughter Daughter Son In-laws In-laws
Chen, Kuo-Hung	5,548,984	8.52%	2,595,564	3.99%	0	0	Zhu Lin Investment Co., Ltd Chen, Che-Hung Hui Hong Investment Co., Ltd Chen, Che-Hung Chen, Liang-Hsuan Wang, Hsiang-Ching	In-laws In-laws Son Spouse
Chen, Liang-Hsuan	2,771,013	4.25%	0	0	0	0	Chen, Kuo-Hung Wang, Hsiang-Ching	Father Mother
Wang, Hsiang-Ching	2,595,564	3.99%	5,548,984	8.52%	0	0	Zhu Lin Investment Co., Ltd Chen, Che-Hung Hui Hong Investment Co., Ltd Chen, Che-Hung Chen, Liang-Hsuan	In-laws In-laws Son
Zhu Lin Investment Co., Ltd. Person in charge: Chen, Che-Hung	2,325,266	3.57%	0	0	0	0	Chen, Kuo-Hung Chen, Hsin-Ju Chen, Hsin-Yi Chen, Chun-Ting Chen, Kuo-Hung Wang, Hsiang-Ching	Son Spouse Daughter Daughter Son In-laws In-laws
Chen, Chun-Ting	2,051,325	3.15%	0	0	0	0	Zhu Lin Investment Co., Ltd Chen, Che-Hung Hui Hong Investment Co., Ltd Chen, Che-Hung Chen, Hsin-Ju Chen, Hsin-Yi	Father Father Sister Sister
Chen, Hsin-Ju	2,029,610	3.12%	0	0	0	0	Zhu Lin Investment Co., Ltd Chen, Che-Hung Hui Hong Investment Co., Ltd Chen, Che-Hung Chen, Hsin-Yi Chen, Chun-Ting	Father Father Sister Brother
Chen, Hsin-Yi	2,017,378	3.10%	0	0	0	0	Zhu Lin Investment Co., Ltd Chen, Che-Hung Hui Hong Investment Co., Ltd Chen, Che-Hung Chen, Hsin-Ju Chen, Chun-Ting	Father Father Sister Brother
Tsai, Tsai-Tien	1,315,698	2.02%	0	0	0	0	None	None
Chen, Che-Hung	1,161,206	1.78%	0	0	0	0	Chen, Hsin-Ju Chen, Hsin-Yi Chen, Chun-Ting Chen, Kuo-Hung Wang, Hsiang-Ching	Daughter Daughter Son In-laws In-laws
X. The total number of shares and the consolidated equity stake percentage held in any single investee enterprise by the Company, its directors, managerial officers, or any companies controlled either directly or indirectly by the Company:

					I	May 9, 2024	
	The Company'	's investment	Investment of managers and b		Total inve	estments	
Invested enterprises	(Note		direct or indi		(Not		
	(100	. 2)			(100	62)	
			(Note				
(Note 1)	Number of	Shareholding	Number of	Shareholding	Number of	Shareholding	
(1000 1)	shares/Amount	percentage	shares/Amount	percentage	shares/Amount	percentage	
Giteh Electronic	HKD\$12,000	100.00%	0	0%	HKD\$12,000	100.000/	
Industries Co., Ltd.	thousand	100.00%	0	070	thousand	100.00%	
Howteh International	USD\$1,800	100.00%	0	0%	USD\$1,800	100.00%	
Inc. (Samoa)	thousand	100.0070	0	070	thousand		
ShangHai Howteh International Trading Inc.	USD\$1,650 thousand	100.00%	0	0%	USD\$1,650 thousand	100.00%	
ShenZhen Howteh Technology Co., Ltd.	HKD\$7,000 thousand	100.00%	0	0%	HKD\$7,000 thousand	100.00%	
KunShan Howteh International Trading Inc.	USD\$300 thousand	100.00%	0	0%	USD\$300 thousand	100.00%	
Howteh Vietnam Co., Ltd. Note 1: The Company'	USD\$300 thousand	100.00%		0%	USD\$300 thousand	100.00%	

Note 1: The Company's investments accounted for using equity method.

Note 2: The company is a limited company and therefore does not have shares. Hence, it is expressed in the original investment amount.

Four. Fund Raising Status

May 9, 2024

I. Capital and shares

(I) Source of share capital 1. Capital formation process

		Authoriz	ed capital	Paid-i	n capital	Remarks	<u> </u>) -
Year and Month	Issue price	Shares (in thousand shares)	Amount (in NT\$1,000)	Shares (in thousand shares)	Amount (in NT\$1,000)	Source of share capital (in NT\$1,000)	Use of assets other than cash for the share amount	Others
August 1978	1,000	3	3,000	3	3,000	Incorporation	None	None
June 1979	1,000	5	5,000	5	5,000	Follow-on offering of 2,000	None	None
April 1985	1,000	10	10,000	10	10,000	Follow-on offering of 5,000	None	None
September 1986	1,000	15	15,000	15	15,000	Follow-on offering of 5,000	None	None
August 1988	1,000	32	32,000	32	32,000	Follow-on offering of 17,000	None	None
July 1992	1,000	50	50,000	50	50,000	Recapitalization of earnings of 12,800 Follow-on offering of 5,200	None	None
April 1997	1,000	10,000	100,000	65		Recapitalization of earnings of 15,000	None	None
May 1998	10	10,000	100,000	8,320	83,200	Recapitalization of earnings of 13,000 Follow-on offering of 5,200	None	Note 1
March 1999	10	10,816	108,160	10,816	108,160	Recapitalization of earnings of 24,960	None	Note 2
April 2000	10	17,306	173,056	17,306	173,056	Recapitalization of earnings of 64,896	None	Note 3
December 2000	25	19,900	199,000	19,900	199,000	Follow-on offering of 25,944	None	Note 4
May 2001	10	37,000	370,000	24,380	243,800	Recapitalization of earnings of 39,800 Recapitalization of employee bonus of 5,000	None	Note 5
June 2002	10	37,000	370,000	28,337	283,370	Recapitalization of earnings of 36,570 Recapitalization of employee bonus of 3,000	None	Note 6
July 2003	10	37,000	370,000	34,505	345,050	Recapitalization of earnings of 56,674 Recapitalization of employee bonus of 5,006	None	Note 7
July 2004	10	60,000	600,000	40,481	404,810	Recapitalization of earnings of 51,758 Recapitalization of employee bonus of 8,002	None	Note 8
July 2005	10	60,000	600,000	43,000	430,000	Recapitalization of earnings of 20,240 Recapitalization of employee bonus of 4,950	None	Note 9
July 2006	10	60,000	600,000	44,300	443,000	Recapitalization of earnings of 8,600 Recapitalization of employee bonus of 4,400	None	Note 10
July 2007	10	60,000	600,000	45,260	452,600	Recapitalization of earnings of 4,430 Recapitalization of employee bonus of 5,170	None	Note 11
July 2008	10	60,000	600,000	46,320	463,200	Recapitalization of earnings of 4,526 Recapitalization of employee bonus of 6,074	None	Note 12
July 2009	10	60,000	600,000	48,605.7	486,057	Recapitalization of earnings of 22,857	None	Note 13
July 2010	10	60,000	600,000	50,045	500,457	Recapitalization of earnings of 14,400	None	Note 14
April 2011	10	60,000	600,000	50,013	500,137	Retirement of treasury shares of 320	None	Note 15
July 2018	10	60,000	600,000	52,014	520,142	Recapitalization of earnings of 20,005	None	Note 16
July 2019	10	80,000	800,000	56,000	560,000	Recapitalization of earnings of 39,858	None	Note 17
July 2020	10	80,000	800,000	59,080	590,800	Recapitalization of earnings of 30,800	None	Note 18

		Authorized capital		Paid-in capital		Remarks		
Year and Month	Issue price	Shares (in thousand shares)	Amount (in NT\$1,000)	Shares (in thousand shares)	Amount (in NT\$1,000)	Source of share capital (in NT\$1,000)	Use of assets other than cash for the share amount	Others
July 2022	10	80,000	800,000	62,625	626,248	Recapitalization of earnings of 35,448	None	Note 19
August 2023	10	80,000	800,000	65,130	651,298	Recapitalization of earnings of 25,050	None	Note 20

Note 1: Approved by the Public Works Department of Taipei City Government as indicated in its official letter titled Jian-Yi-Zi No.87310116 and dated July 30, 1998.

Note 6: Approved by the SFI as indicated in its official letter titled Tai-Cai-Zheng (1) No.0910128477 and dated May 24, 2002.

Note 7: Approved by the SFI as indicated in its official letter titled Tai-Cai-Zheng (1) No.0920129476 and dated July 2, 2003.

Note 8: Approved by the FSC as indicated in its official letter titled Jin-Guan-Zheng (1) No.0930131536 and dated July 15, 2004.

Note 9: Approved by the FSC as indicated in its official letter titled Jin-Guan-Zheng (1) No.0940127171 and dated July 6, 2005.

Note 10: Approved by the FSC as indicated in its official letter titled Jin-Guan-Zheng (1) No.0950131313 and dated July 19, 2006.

Note 11: Approved by the FSC as indicated in its official letter titled Jin-Guan-Zheng (1) No.0960035323 and dated July 10, 2007.

Note 12: Approved by the FSC as indicated in its official letter titled Jin-Guan-Zheng (1) No.0970035609 and dated July 15, 2008.

Note 13: Approved by the FSC as indicated in its official letter titled Jin-Guan-Zheng (1) No.0980035025 and dated July 14, 2009.

Note 14: Approved by the FSC as indicated in its official letter titled Jin-Guan-Zheng-Fa-Zi No.0990035722 and dated July 9, 2010.

- Note 15: Approved by the Ministry of Economic Affairs as indicated in its official letter titled Jing-Shou-Shan-Zi No.10001072180 and dated April 2011.
- Note 16: Registered with the FSC and put into effect on July 16, 2018, and approved by the Ministry of Economic Affairs as indicated in its official letter titled Jing-Shou-Shan-Zi No.10701103910 and dated September 3, 2018.

Note 17: Registered with the FSC and put into effect on July 2, 2019, and approved by the Ministry of Economic Affairs as indicated in its official letter titled Jing-Shou-Shan-Zi No.10801103570 and dated August 1, 2019.

Note 18: Registered with the FSC and put into effect on July 8, 2020, and approved by the Ministry of Economic Affairs as indicated in its official letter titled Jing-Shou-Shan-Zi No.10901148760 and August 19, 2020.

Note 19: Registered with the FSC and put into effect on July 28, 2022, and approved by the Ministry of Economic Affairs as indicated in its official letter titled Jing-Shou-Shan-Zi No.11101166280 and dated September 1, 2022.

Note 20: Registered with the FSC and put into effect on July 13, 2023, and approved by the Ministry of Economic Affairs as indicated in its official letter titled Jing-Shou-Shan-Zi No.11230154570 and dated August 22, 2023.

2. Types of issued shares

				May 9, 2024
Type of equity				
	Shares issued and outstanding	Unissued shares	Total	Remarks
Common stock	65,129,792 shares	14,870,208 shares	80,000,000 shares	Shares trade on the OTC market

3. Shelf registration information: None.

(II) Shareholder structure

						april 25, 2024
Shareholder structure Quantity	Government agencies	Financial institutions	Other juristic persons	Individuals	Foreign institutions and foreigners	Total
Number of people	0	1	26	6,455	13	6,495
Number of shares held	0	13,019	11,867,976	52,246,475	1,002,322	65,129,792
Shareholding percentage	0	0.02%	18.22%	80.22%	1.54%	100.00%

April 23, 2024

Note 2: Approved by the Ministry of Economic Affairs as indicated in its official letter titled Jing-(088)-Shang-Zi No.088128893 and dated August 10, 1999.

Note 3: Approved by the Ministry of Economic Affairs as indicated in its official letter titled Jing-(089)-Shang-Zi No.089114046 and dated May 17, 2000.

Note 4: Approved by the Ministry of Economic Affairs as indicated in its official letter titled Jing-(089)-Shang-Zi No.089148893 and dated January 4, 2001.

Note 5: Approved by the Ministry of Economic Affairs as indicated in its official letter titled Jing-(090)-Shang-Zi No.09001121260 and dated May 24, 2001.

(III) Share ownership dispersion 1. Common stock

1. Commo	on stocl	k I			April 23, 2024
Shar	Shareholding tier		Number of shareholders	Number of shares held	Shareholding percentage (%)
1	\sim	999	2,430	430,681	0.66%
1,000	\sim	5,000	3,022	5,883,711	9.03%
5,001	\sim	10,000	487	3,424,622	5.26%
10,001	\sim	15,000	200	2,414,064	3.71%
15,001	\sim	20,000	79	1,376,264	2.11%
20,001	\sim	30,000	98	2,373,610	3.64%
30,001	\sim	40,000	32	1,103,548	1.70%
40,001	\sim	50,000	32	1,403,768	2.16%
50,001	\sim	100,000	47	3,344,431	5.13%
100,001	\sim	200,000	29	3,924,890	6.03%
200,001	\sim	400,000	19	4,892,415	7.51%
400,001	\sim	600,000	4	1,806,489	2.77%
600,001	\sim	800,000	2	1,491,741	2.29%
800,001	\sim	1,000,000	4	3,808,639	5.85%
1,000,001 s	hares an	d more	10	27,450,919	42.15%
Total		6,495	65,129,792	100.00%	

2. Preferred stock: The Company did not issue preferred stock.

(IV)Name of major shareholders:

Shares		April 23, 2024
Name of major shareholder	Number of shares held	Shareholding percentage (%)
Hui Hong Investment Co., Ltd.	5,634,875	8.65%
Chen, Kuo-Hung	5,548,984	8.52%
Chen, Liang-Hsuan	2,771,013	4.25%
Wang, Hsiang-Ching	2,595,564	3.99%
Zhu Lin Investment Co., Ltd.	2,325,266	3.57%
Chen, Chun-Ting	2,051,325	3.15%
Chen, Hsin-Ju	2,029,610	3.12%
Chen, Hsin-Yi	2,017,378	3.10%
Tsai, Tsai-Tien	1,315,698	2.02%
Chen, Che-Hung	1,161,206	1.78%

April 23, 2024

(V) Information on market price, net worth, earnings, and dividends per share for the most recent

two	years
-----	-------

Item		Year	2022	2023	As at the current year up to May 9, 2024. (Note 8)
Maulaat uulaa uuru	H	lighest	31.40	32.70	30.00
Market price per share (Note 1)	Ι	Lowest	24.20	25.05	26.50
share (Note 1)	А	verage	27.50	28.33	28.10
Net worth per share	Before	distribution	23.33	23.75	24.76
(Note 2)	After	distribution	21.63	Undistributed	Undistributed
	Weighted average number of shares		62,624,800	65,129,792	65,129,792
Earnings per share	Earnings per	Before adjustment	3.33	1.55	N/A
	share (Note 3)	After adjustment	3.21	Undistributed	N/A
	Cash	dividends	1.3	1.2	N/A
		Earnings Allotment	0.4	—	N/A
Dividends per share	Stock dividends	Capital surplus distributed as dividends	_	_	N/A
	Cumulative undistributed dividends (Note 4)		_	—	_
T I I I I	Price/earni	ngs ratio (Note 5)	7.97	17.45	N/A
Investment return		end ratio (Note 6)	20.42	22.53	N/A
analysis		end yield (Note 7)	4.90%	4.44%	N/A

* If shares are distributed in connection with a capital increase out of earnings or capital reserve, further disclose information on market prices and cash dividends retroactively adjusted based on the number of shares after distribution.

Note 1: List the highest and lowest market price of common shares in each fiscal year and calculate the average market price by weighing transacted prices against transacted volumes in each respective fiscal year.

Note 2: Calculate the net worth per share based on the number of outstanding shares at year end. Calculate the amount of distribution based on the amount resolved on in the next year's shareholders' meeting.

Note 3: If retrospective adjustments are required because of the issuance of stock dividends, the earnings per share should be disclosed in the amounts before and after the retrospective adjustments.

Note 4: If equity securities are issued with terms that allow undistributed dividends to be accrued and accumulated until the year the Company makes profit, the amount of cumulative undistributed dividends up until the current year should be disclosed separately.

Note 5: Price/earnings ratio = average closing price per share for the year/earnings per share.

Note 6: Price/dividend ratio = average closing price per share for the year/cash dividends per share.

Note 7: Cash dividends yield = cash dividends per share/average closing price per share for the year.

Note 8: Net worth per share and earnings per share are based on audited (auditor-reviewed) data as of the latest quarter before the publication date of the annual report. For all other fields, calculations are based on the data for the current year as of the date of publication of the annual report.

(VI)Dividends policy and implementation status

1. Dividend policy prescribed in the Articles of Association:

If the Company has earnings at the end of any fiscal year, it shall allocate no less than 3% of such earnings as employee remuneration, which may be distributed in shares or cash, subject to the resolution of the Board of Directors. The recipient of such distribution shall include employees of a controlled or affiliated company who meet certain criteria, The Company may also allocate no greater than 3% of the said earnings as directors' remuneration. The employee remuneration proposal and director remuneration proposal shall be submitted and reported to the shareholders' meeting. However, if the Company still has accumulated losses, an amount equal to such losses mentioned in the preceding paragraph shall be reserved in advance, and the remainder may then be distributed as employee remuneration and director remuneration according to the percentage mentioned in the preceding paragraph.

If the Company has profits after the final accounting of any given year, such profits shall be used to make up for prior losses; thereafter, 10% of the remainder shall be allocated as legal reserves, and then special reserves shall be provided or reversed as required by the competent authority. The remainder, if any, shall be added to undistributed earnings of prior years; the sum shall then be taken by the Board of Directors to draft an earnings distribution proposal (the earnings of the given year must not be less than 30%), which shall then be submitted to the Shareholders' Meeting for approval for distribution. In addition, cash dividends must not be less than 20% of total dividends distributed, and may be as high as 100% of total dividends distributed; thereafter, the rest dividends, if any, may then be distributed in shares.

According to the Company Act, legal reserves shall be continuously provided until it reaches the paid-in-capital. Legal reserves may be used to compensate for prior losses. When the Company is not in loss, it may distribute the legal reserve portion that exceeds 25% of the paid-in-capital, in cash or new shares to shareholders in proportion to their original shareholding percentage.

	Unit: NTD
Opening balance	299,608,724
Plus: Net profit after tax for the current year	100,772,130
Plus: Other comprehensive income (remeasurements of defined benefit plan for 2023)	273,469
Less: 10% provided as legal reserves	(10,104,560)
Distributable earnings	390,549,763
Distributions:	
Shareholder dividend - cash (NT\$1.2 per share, and NT\$1,200 per thousand shares)	(78,155,750)
Undistributed earnings at the end of the period	312,394,013

2. Proposed dividend distribution by the shareholders' meeting

3. Expected change in dividend policy in the future: None

(VII) The effect of the proposed stock dividends of shares at the shareholders' meeting on the

	Ite	em\Year	2024 (estimates)	
	NT\$ 651,297,920			
	*	l - opening balance Cash dividend per share	NT\$ 1.2	
Cash dividend and stock dividend		Number of shares distributed to each share through recapitalization of earnings	_	
		Number of shares distributed to each share through recapitalization of capital reserves	_	
Change	Operating profitPercentage of YoY increase (decrease) in operating profitsNet income after taxPercentage of YoY increase (decrease) in net income after taxEarnings per sharePercentage of YoY increase (decrease) in in net 			
	Were the earnings recapitalized to be distributed in cash dividend in full instead	Proforma EPS Proforma average annual return on investment	(Note)	
EPS and P/E ratio	Had the earnings not been recapitalized	Proforma EPS Proforma average annual return on investment		
	Had the earnings not been recapitalized but had been distributed in cash dividend in full	Proforma EPS Proforma average annual return on investment		

Company's operating results and earnings per share

Note: The Company did not disclose financial forecast for either 2023 or 2024.

(VIII) Remuneration to employees and directors

1. Percentage or scope of remuneration paid to employees and directors that are stipulated in the Articles of Association:

If the Company has earnings at the end of any fiscal year, it shall allocate no less than 3% of such earnings as employee remuneration, which may be distributed in shares or cash, subject to the resolution of the Board of Directors. The recipient of such distribution shall include employees of a controlled or affiliated company who meet certain criteria. The Company's Board of Directors may also resolve to allocate no greater than 3% of the said earnings as directors' remuneration. The employee remuneration proposal and director remuneration proposal shall be submitted and reported to the shareholders' meeting. However, if the Company still has accumulated losses, an amount equal to such losses mentioned in the preceding paragraph shall be reserved in advance, and the remainder may then be distributed as employee remuneration and director remuneration to the percentage mentioned in the preceding paragraph.

- 2. The basis for estimating the amount of remuneration to employees and directors, the basis for calculating the number of shares for employee remuneration distributed in stock and the accounting treatment if the actual amount distributed differs from the estimated amount:
 - (1) According to the Company's Articles of Association, the Company shall distribute no less than 3% of annual earnings as employee remuneration and no greater than 3% of

such annual earnings as director remuneration, and shall present such remuneration under salary expenses.

- (2) The basis for calculating the number of shares for employee remuneration distributed in stock and the accounting treatment if the actual amount distributed differs from the estimated amount: If the amount determined by the Board of Directors after the reporting date deviates significantly, such deviation will be adjusted through the profit and loss of the year in which distribution is made.
- 3. Distribution of remuneration approved by the Board of Directors:
 - (1) If there is any discrepancy between that amount of employee remuneration and director remuneration and the estimated figure for the fiscal year these expenses are recognized, the discrepancy, its cause, and the status of treatment shall be disclosed: The Company's earnings distribution proposal for 2023 was passed by the Board of Directors meeting dated March 14, 2024 through a resolution. The remuneration distributed to employees and directors is as follows:

Unit: NTD

Item	Estimated figure in 2023	Amount to be distributed as determined by the Board of Directors	Differentials	Cause of discrepancy	Status of treatment
Employee remuneration (in cash)	4,000,000	4,000,000	0	None	N/A
Remuneration for directors	3,000,000	3,000,000	0		

- (2) The amount of any employee remuneration distributed in stocks and the size of that amount as a percentage of the sum of the after-tax net income stated in the parent company only financial reports or individual financial reports for the current period and total employee remuneration: N/A.
- 4. The actual distribution of employee and director remuneration for the previous fiscal year (with an indication of the number of shares, monetary amount, and stock price, of the shares distributed), and, if there is any discrepancy between the actual distribution and the recognized employee and director remuneration, additionally the discrepancy, cause, and how it is treated:

Director remuneration and employee remuneration for 2022 distributed by the Company in 2023 were NT\$3,000 thousand and NT\$4,000 thousand, respectively, and the difference from the figure recognized in the financial statements is NT\$4,000 thousand, the difference is due to batch distribution.

(IX)Repurchase of the Company's shares: None.

- II. Issuance of corporate bonds, preferred shares, and global deposit certificates: None.
- III. Issuance of employee stock options certificates and restricted shares: None.
- IV. Issuance of new shares in connection with mergers or acquisitions: None.

V. Implementation of fund utilization plan: N/A.

Five. Operational Highlights

I. Business activities

(I) Business scope

1. Main areas of business operations

- (1) Basic Chemical Industrial
- (2) Metal Wire Products Manufacturing
- (3) Other Metal Products Manufacturing
- (4) Pollution Controlling Equipment Manufacturing
- (5) Wired Communication Mechanical Equipment Manufacturing
- (6) Wireless Communication Mechanical Equipment Manufacturing
- (7) Computer and Peripheral Equipment Manufacturing
- (8) General Instrument Manufacturing
- (9) Optical Instruments Manufacturing
- (10) Machinery Installation
- (11) Instrument and Meters Installation Engineering
- (12) Wholesale of Machinery
- (13) Wholesale of Electrical Appliances
- (14) Wholesale of Precision Instruments
- (15) Wholesale of Computers and Clerical Machinery Equipment
- (16) Wholesale of Telecommunication Apparatus
- (17) Wholesale of Ship and Component Parts
- (18) Wholesale of Fire Safety Equipment
- (19) Wholesale of Computer Software
- (20) Wholesale of Electronic Materials
- (21) Retail Sale of Electrical Appliances
- (22) Retail Sale of Computers and Clerical Machinery Equipment
- (23) Retail Sale of Precision Instruments
- (24) Retail Sale of Telecommunication Apparatus
- (25) Retail Sale of Machinery and Tools
- (26) Retail Sale of Ship and Component Parts Thereof
- (27) Retail Sale of Fire Safety Equipment
- (28) Retail Sale of Computer Software
- (29) Retail Sale of Electronic Materials
- (30) International Trade
- (31) Product Designing
- (32) Rental and Leasing
- (33) All business activities that are not prohibited or restricted by law, except those that are subject to special approval.
- 2. Revenue weight

Unit: NT\$1,000

		0111111101,000
Product name	2023	Revenue weight
Connectors, flexible flat cables, and electric audio products	2,566,851	93.58%
Domestic and foreign PCB board and IC substrate and equipment and related materials	176,177	6.42%
Total	2,743,028	100.00%

3. Major lines of products (services):

Product type	Major lines of products (services)					
Electronic components	Sale of connectors, cables, electric audio components, and					
Electronic components	semiconductors in the capacity of an agent					
	Sale of chemicals and consumables required for PCB/flexible PCB					
	process equipment (dry or wet process, horizontal process, punching					
Equipment and motorials	machine, steel plate cleaning machine, board loader and unloader,					
Equipment and materials	machine, steel plate cleaning machine, board loader and unloader, stamping machine, etc.) in the capacity of an agent and distributor					
	Sale of semiconductor manufacturing process and testing equipment and					
	materials in the capacity of an agent and distributor					

- 4. Planned new products (services)
 - (1) Provide as many product lines (services) to existing customers and manage strategic customers on a project-specific basis.
 - (2) Maintain a good agentship with original brands to increase the opportunity for introducing new products and services of electronic giants, to expand business scope.
 - (3) Intensify business development in China and create product momentum and service scope suitable for individual regions.
 - (4) Assist in the improvement of equipment quality, strengthen after-sales inspection and acceptance services, and seek more opportunities to win agentship for equipment.
 - (5) Continue to launch new business groups, and win agentship for new products, to increase the contribution to operating revenue.
- (II) Industry Overview

The Company is a professional agent for electronic components, and process equipment and consumables. The main products of electronic components comprise connectors, semiconductors and wires, and audio products that are actively promoted to be installed in smart devices; this way, in the face of rapid evolution and alternation of product technology, the Company is still able to provide more complete services to customers and the industry; equipment sold in the capacity of an agent include the equipment and materials necessary for the PCB and flexible PCB and the IC substrate industry, semiconductor and optoelectronic industry-related process applications, and testing equipment and materials etc. Below is an overview of the said industries.

1. Current status and development of the industry

As high-frequency computer, communications, and consumer electronics are constantly put on market, the prominent connector specifications will be the latest USB 4.0 transmission standards and Type-C connectors. In addition, this specification technology has also been adopted by Apple, Intel, Qualcomm, Microsoft, Google, and other major brands. USB Type-C and Thunderbolt have been widely used by international brands for their mobile phone products and notebook computer products. Since notebook computers are transitioning toward compactness, they are equipped with even fewer ports. As a result, the demand for docking stations soared. In addition, Type-C and Thunderbolt have been gaining a share of the market for PCs, tablet PCs, and smartphones, and are upgrading to higher specifications. Furthermore, the demand for servers boomed, thanks to the successive establishment of data centers, and to the replacement of devices by enterprises. As network traffic builds up constantly, spurring the demand for higher transmission speed. What's more, AI, 5G, and autonomous cars will continue to drive up the demand for the expansion of data centers.

The launch of net-zero carbon emissions and international policies have pushed up global sales of electric vehicles. According to DIGITIMES Research, global electric vehicle sales are expected to maintain more than 40% this year. With the continuous upgrade of technology for autonomous driving and smart cockpit and the demand for 5G high-speed transmission, the functions attached to cars at the design stage are versatile. The use of a wide range of parts and components has notably increased PCB consumption volume and technology and specifications. Companies are keen to tap into the market for substrates, HDIs, and flexible PCBs; technology will trend towards minimization, high frequency, high intensity, and high power.

(1) The hardware industry of the electronic components industry

A.USB Type-C

In 2019, USB-IF released the USB4 standard, which is built on the USB3.2 Gen 2×2 interface; all USBs of the USB4 standards will only use Type-C, aiming to unify the connection ports across devices. This resolved the confusion between

Type-A, Type-B, and Micro under USB 3.X, as was the case in the past. Type-C ports support reverse insertion, enabling insertion and removal from either side at any time. At present, the standards have evolved into the USB PD 4.0 standard; the minimum standard of USB4 is a half rate of 20Gbps (USB 3.2 Gen 2×2). The maximum transmission rate is capped at 40Gbps; signals from USB, Displayport, and PCI Express are integrated through the "tunnel".

USB4 supports PD protocol, or PD3.0 for the time being; USB4 can be used with devices whose rated power supply voltage between 7.5 W and 100W. An updated version, namely, PD3.1, will be available in the future and, if used with a regular USB4 cable, enable a USB to be compatible with charging power up to 240W, a level ideal for support of even gaming laptops.



Version	Issue time	Name on the market	Bits/sec	Outer box label	Connector and cable markers	Charging sign	Certified connectors
USB 1.0	Jan 1996	Low Speed Full Speed	1.5 Mbps 12 Mbps	USB	∙<→		
USB 1.1	Aug 1998	Full Speed with updated	1.5 Mbps 12 Mbps	USB	•~	•<	
USB 2.0	Apr 2000	High Speed	480 Mbps		•		Type-A Type-B Mini-A Mini-B Micro-A Micro-B Type-C
USB 3.0 USB 3.2 Gen1x1	Nov 12, 2008	Super Speed USB 5Gbps	5 Gbps	SUPERSPEED Interes USB 5 Gbps	SS<.5₅	ss < ₅5	Туре-А Туре-В Місго-В Туре-С
USB 3.1 USB 3.2 Gen2x1	Jul 26, 2013	Super Speed USB 10Gbps	10 Gbps	SUPPRISPEED + TOTAL STREET TO Gloss	SS< ¹⁰ SS<	SS< ¹⁰ I _®	Туре-С
USB 3.2 USB 3.2 Gen2x2	Sep 22, 2017	Super Speed USB 20Gbps	20 Gbps	SUPERSPEED + HILLING USB 20 Gbps +	<i>ss</i> <	SS<₽ ²⁰ I _®	Туре-С
USB4 USB4 Gen2	Sep 3, 2019	USB4™ 20Gbps	20 Gbps		(20↔	(20 ⇐ [Туре-С
USB4 USB4 Gen3	Sep 3, 2019	USB4™ 40Gbps	40 Gbps	USB40TM Gbps	(40↔	(40 ↔	Туре-С

Hand-held devices, today's peripherals	PROFILE 1	5V @ 2A	10W Default start-up profile	
Tablets, netbooks, most peripherals	PROFILE 2	5V @ 2A 12V @ 1.5A	18W	
Thinner notebooks, larger peripherals	PROFILE 3	5V @ 2A 12V @ 3A	36W	Requires new detectable cables for
Larger notebooks, hubs, docks	PROFILE 4	5V @ 2A 12V @ 3A 20V @ 3A	60W Limit for Micro-A/B	>1.5A or >5V
Workstations, hubs, docks	PROFILE 5	5V @ 2A 12V @ 5A 20V @ 5A	100W Limit for Standard A,	

At present, chip manufacturers of USB PD controllers spare no effort to develop safe and protective semiconductor solutions, which support not only PC and smartphone applications but also a wide range of DC-powered devices, including PC peripherals, AC adapters, projectors, household robots, and other consumer electronics products. This trend will effectively facilitate the application of a single USB Type-C cable to perform power supply and data transmission tasks.

B. Thunderbolt

Intel has developed Thunderbolt[™] technology as a connection standard offering power, data, and video signals on a single connection. The interfaces have gradually been applied to devices such as laptops, desktop computers, docking stations, displays, and memory. Thunderbolt has always been popular among consumers because of its robust functionality, which allows for data transfer, power delivery, and audio/video transmission via a single cable connection. In response to market developments, Intel officially released Thunderbolt 5 in September 2023 and demonstrated Thunderbolt 5-compatible laptops and docking stations.

Thunderbolt 5 is designed based on the complete version of the USB4 V2 specification, with a conventional symmetric transmission mode speed of up to 80Gbps. It can also provide an asymmetric transmission mode with speeds up to 120Gbps (transmitting 120Gbps, receiving 40Gbps), which is three times the transmission bandwidth of Thunderbolt 4. The power supply wattage can also reach up to 240W. The powerful functionality of Thunderbolt 5 not only meets the usage scenario needs of general users but also satisfies the ultra-high requirements for high-resolution displays of professional users such as gamers and video producers.



C. Audio MEMS microphones

With the successful development of Google Assistant and Siri and the increased demand for sound reception in various applications, microelectromechanical systems (MEMS) microphones have gradually appeared in everyone's life, from mobile phones and laptops to wireless earphones and even in cars and hearing aids. Taking the current smartphone as an example, audio MEMS microphones, user interface, power management, content awareness and circuit board space are all necessary parts for furthering functional progress.

Over the past few years, the advancement of AI has augmented the proficiency of speech recognition, thus making speech a major human-machine interface. Its application range has broadened from mobile phones to cutting-edge products such as smart speakers, televisions, and cars, thereby driving the market demand for MEMS microphones. The market for microphones with a high signal-to-noise ratio (SNR) is growing rapidly. Intel launched the Project Athena laptop innovation program, which requires laptop microphones to have a higher SNR, and each laptop must have at least two sets of MEMS microphones. Therefore, microphones with higher sound reception quality are a common trend for all devices in the future. Different type of end product requires different microphone array solutions, which have become an important competitive edge for the Company.

(2) Equipment sale industry

Modern IC design is becoming increasingly complex, with higher demands for chip wiring density, transmission rate, and heat dissipation efficiency, leading to IC

substrates that provide better packaging quality for high-end chips (such as CPUs and GPUs) gradually replacing wire racks to connect signals between chips and PCBs, while also protecting circuits and dissipating excess heat.

ABF is one of the materials used to manufacture IC substrates, and because of its excellent material properties, it can achieve better precision and thickness. Consequently, the demand for ABF substrates (IC substrates made with ABF material) has dramatically increased with the growth of the high-speed computing chip market, with related application scenarios including servers, network communications, consumer electronics, etc. Our company represents Canon Machinery Inc's solder ball flattening machines and flip-chip substrate cutting machines used in the solder ball flattening process for PCB flip-chip substrates. The market estimates a shortage of ABF, but the supply-demand gap is expected to narrow to -1% in both 2022 and 2023, mainly due to a 15% decline in PC demand. Approximately 45% of ABF's end applications are currently used for PC/NB processors, 19% for servers, 19% for Switches, 5G base stations, and other network communication equipment, as well as 17% for automotive and consumer electronics. However, as the area and number of layers of ABF substrates used by new server processor chips from Intel, AMD, and NVIDIA continue to increase, the server share is expected to rise to 25% by 2024. With the continued increase in ABF usage for server processors, overall demand growth is expected to be driven.





2. Links between the upstream, midstream, and downstream segments of the industry supply chain

The Company is distributor of electronic components, printed circuit board equipment and materials in the capacity of an agent. Below is the relationship between the upstream, midstream, and downstream of the industry by characteristics of individual products sold on an agency basis:



3. Development trends and competition for the Company's products

The Company is an agent specializing in the production of electronic components (connectors \cdot audio components and wires in principle), and PCB manufacturing equipment, testing instruments and materials. Below is a description of the development trend and competition with respect to our major agency product lines:

- (1) Electronic components connectors and wires
 - A. Connectors
 - Feature: The connector is a type of port, a connection component employed in conjunction with electronic components such as ICs. By using the connector, the signal between the electronic circuit and the electronic device can be effectively transmitted.

Connectors, in terms of electronic signals and power supplies, are components and accessories used for connecting other components together, forming a bridge between all signals. Connectors' quality not only influences the dependability of signal and current transmission, but also determines the operation quality and lifespan of the entire electronic device.

- Applications: Connectors are essential for a wide variety of applications, such as chip and component connection, PCB board-to-board connection, host and I/O connection, external power source and external signal connection. At present, connectors are widely used and commonly seen in the electronic industry, e.g., PC peripherals, telecommunications, digital camera, television, industrial computer, transport, and medical devices, among others.
- Technology: As smartphone and notebook computers become slimmer, their internal connectors must also be designed to be smaller and thinner. This means that Fine Pitch and Low Profile connectors become the best connection option for these devices. A Type C connector is 8.3mm x 2.5mm with 24 pins. However, due to the demanding specifications of fine pitch and low profile, the Pitch-to-Pitch distance is 0.3-0.4mm, which is narrower and thinner than the conventional 0.5mm. Owing to the fact that these connectors must be able to tolerate both high frequency and high temperature, the technical specifications for Type C connectors are

particularly stringent.



Data source: Google

Development trend and competition:

As the market with the most expansive usage, Type-C will principally be used on mobile phones, tablets, and notebook computers in the primary stage; however, its application scope will be expanded in the future. According to the statistics provided by IHS, a professional market research institution, there will be a swift growth in shipments of equipment equipped with Type-C ports from 2017 to 2019. By 2019, the number of devices with USB-C connectors will surpass 2 billion, which is contributed mainly from the PC and mobile devices markets, which are 600 million devices and 1.2 billion devices, respectively.



Source: TI official website; compiled by Haitong Securities Research Institute

B. Cables

Regarding the cables, the latest Thunderbolt model halves the power consumption, can accommodate a maximum of 100W power supply, and is capable of connecting two 4K displays or one 5K display. PCIe 3.0x4-based cables' bandwidth is twice the bandwidth of the earlier generation, reaching 40Gb/s, i.e., about 5. 1GB/s. Support HDMI 2.0 (4K 60Hz) and DisplayPort 1.3 (5K 60Hz).

Nonetheless, there are not many suppliers that offer Thunderbolt, and most of the products that feature it are high-end, expensive products. Moreover, most of the interfaces are crafted for Apple products, meaning they cannot be employed with other electronic devices. This has led to the lower popularity of Thunderbolt compared to USB. Thus, this Thunderbolt version will be compatible with the USB Type-C connector, thereby increasing the acceptance of the Thunderbolt interface.

Since the Type-C connector boaster a fine-pitch, high-bandwidth, high-power,

ultra-thin, and reversible insertion architecture, connector manufacturers are facing challenges as to how to ensure the speed and detection of high-speed data and signals, and the design of connectors and connecting cables. As for high-current, high-capacity, and high-voltage Type C connectors, we believe that their technical sophistication is high, making development difficult and necessitating a lengthy certification process from customers in order to ensure safety. This has significantly raised the technical barrier to product development compared to before. Although the market for Type C connectors is huge, not everyone can get a win out of it, so the knockout competition between the manufacturers is about to start.

(2) PCB and IC substrate

The imbalance of supply and demand during the pandemic in 2021 and 2022 led to global consumption inflation. Post-pandemic, there is pressure to deplete inventory and raise interest rates to curb inflation. Therefore, the global PCB industry faced a significant recession in 2023, with the global PCB output value estimated by the Industrial Technology Research Institute's International Division at NT\$73.9 billion, a decline of 15.6%.

Observing the situation in China, Japan, Taiwan, and Korea, mainland-funded factories, due to their lower proportion of substrates and the counter-trend growth of automotive applications, supported an overall decline of 9%, better than the global average. In contrast, with the highest proportion of substrates concentrated in consumer electronics memory applications, Korea experienced a decline of over 20%. Although substrates hold a considerable proportion in Japan and Taiwan, the product composition is relatively balanced, and with the support of automotive applications, the decline is between China and Korea.

Due to the low base in 2023, the overall electronics industry will feel a higher growth momentum in 2024, and the circuit board industry is also expected to welcome the next growth cycle due to inventory replenishment. Although the overall consumer demand still needs time to recover to a positive cycle, it can still benefit from upgrading some product specifications. The global circuit board output value is estimated to rebound to NT\$78.2 billion in 2024, an increase of 6.3% from 2023. As the overall consumer market's growth momentum gradually approaches the global economic performance, the growth rate of the global circuit board output value will also return to the long-term average level of 4% to 5%.

The worldwide market size of multi-layer PCBs with four or more layers in 2016 was calculated at around US\$21.06 billion, as far as product process is concerned,

making up 38.9% of the PCB market, with flexible PCB leading the charge at 20.1%, HDI board in second place at 14.2% and IC substrates in third at 12.1%.

Due to the speedy advancement of downstream electronic information technology, the demand for high-density, high-multilayer, and high-tech PCB products will become increasingly apparent, and products such as multilayer PCB, HDI boards, and flexible PCB with considerable technical complexity will remain on the rise. It is predicted that between 2016 and 2021, the annual compound growth rate of 6-layer boards, 8-16-layer boards, and 18-layer and higher PCBs will surpass the 10-year average annual growth rate, being 2.4%, 2.6%, and 2.9%, respectively. Additionally, the compound annual growth rates of HDI boards and flexible PCB are 2.8% and 3.0%, respectively.



(3) Audio MEMS microphones

MEMS mics have a compact size, consume a minimal amount of energy, and possess greater protection from external interferences (temperature, vibration, EMF, etc.) than ECM microphones, while being able to tolerate high temperatures up to 260°C in SMT. The essential design of the speaker and the receiver is analogous; both stimulate the diaphragm to emit sound through the impetus of the voice coil and magnet. The speaker is typically located at a distance of multiple centimeters or even meters from the listener, whereas the receiver is usually employed in close proximity to the ear; the speaker power can vary from 0.2W to multiple Watts, whereas the receiver is generally only 0.01W to 0.1W.

The central notion of the MEMS microphone is that it converts sound into a voltage, employing the film assembly to perceive sound pressure and thereby generate a corresponding distortion, which is ultimately read as a voltage by capacitive sensing. The human auditory sensitivity is correlated to Drawing credit: Lin, Wei-Chun frequency response, depicted as a hill-shaped curve, represents the sound perception that the human ear is able to identify.

It is reasonable to assume that software, hardware, and the entirety of the ecosystem should collaborate to uncover various application scenarios as voice input or voice control is a quite day-to-day application.

Voice input or control can be regarded as a human-machine interface, a feature that has become ubiquitous in the smartphone market. Of late, MEMS microphones have been an integral part of such applications. The primary MEMS microphone manufacturers are the following:



(3) Semiconductor Industry

Looking at the global semiconductor trend, since 2023, the overall weak economy

and sluggish end-demand have led to poor buying sentiment in the corporate and consumer markets, affecting everyone from end-system manufacturers to semiconductor supply chain operators with high inventory levels and insufficient pulling power. Looking forward to 2024, as major memory manufacturers reduce production to stabilize prices, it is expected to become the main driving force for growth of the global semiconductor market from 2024 to 2026.

The Market Intelligence & Consulting Institute (MIC) estimates that in 2023, the output value of Taiwan's semiconductor industry will be 3.77 trillion New Taiwan dollars. Looking forward to 2024, the output value is expected to reach 4.29 trillion New Taiwan dollars, an increase of 13.7%. Each sub-industry is expected to have a growth rate of 10 to 20% in 2024. The foundry services, especially advanced manufacturing, will be the primary growth momentum. Although the first quarter of 2024 is expected to face the traditional off-season situation, it has already performed better than the same period this year and returned to growth, coming out of four consecutive quarters of decline compared to the same period of the previous year. For memory, as international memory giants continue to reduce production, short-term memory prices have stabilized, and supply and demand are expected to return to stability. Looking forward to the IC design, packaging, and testing industries, due to their greater association with end-consumer electronic products, it will be more challenging to have a better recovery performance, such as the foundry output value benefiting by advanced processes in the next two quarters.

Chien-Kuang Pan, an industry consultant at MIC, indicated that looking forward to the global and Taiwan semiconductor industry trends, as the recovery and growth of the mainstream product market are unclear, the future semiconductor market growth momentum will rely on the stimulation of emerging applications such as emerging information services, energy conservation and environmental protection, and technology integration. AI, new energy, and smart networking will become the primary growth momentum. Among them, AI servers and electric vehicles have the opportunity to achieve multiple growth in 2027, becoming the main force driving semiconductor growth. In addition, wireless terminal devices are driven by digitalization and intelligent trends, expanding from traditional product domains to vertical market applications.

Looking forward to the third semiconductor market category conditions, MIC states that in 2024, SiC power components will have new growth momentum, mainly from the successive opening of new 8-inch plant capacities, the mass listing of electric vehicles planned by various car manufacturers in 2025, and the demand for renewable energy. Observing GaN power components, the demand for mid-to-low voltage products continues to grow in the information product market. Additionally, high-voltage products are still awaiting development in the automotive charging market. Senior industry analyst Ming-De Chou stated that the net-zero carbon emission targets for 2050 set by various countries and trends such as product electrification driving the growth of emerging application markets like electric transportation are propelling the efficient transformation of energy and industrial manufacturing. Coupled with trends like B5G/6G demand, all these are driving the rapid growth of the third-category semiconductor market.



- (III) Technology and R&D Overview:
 - 1. R&D expense for the most recent year and the current year up to the publication date of this annual report: Since the Company is a product sales agent and trader, the Company did not incur any R&D expenses.
 - 2. Products or technology successfully developed

The Company's primary business is trading electronic components, apparatus, and related goods in the capacity of an agent. Leveraging the expertise of marketing personnel, the Company is in the process of furthering its agentship for new products, aiding in the utilization and sales of end-client merchandise, and thus expanding the scope of its operations. The following is an enumeration of products for which the Company has won the agentship.

Supplier	Product name	Application
JAE		Components for connecting the various electronic signals and power supply, and accessory connecting parts
SUMITOMO ELECTRIC	High Speed Capie	High-speed audio and video signal real-time transmission
KNOWLES	MEMS miniature microphone	Components employed in notebook computer, top-of-the-line cellular phones, headsets, vocal apparatus, hearing aids, intelligent loudspeakers, and wearable technology
AWINIC	Audio IC	IC components necessary for various audio items like mobile phones, wearables, and smart speakers
Canon Machinery Inc.	machine	Used in the process in which solder balls on silicon PCB substrate are flattened Substrate cutting process

(IV) Long- and short-term business development plans

- 1. Short- and Long-term Development Plans
 - (1) Developing new suppliers, new products, new applications, and new services Stay informed of the latest trends in the tech industry whenever necessary; have dedicated personnel in the General Manager Office to solicit the ODM business and agency business from brands.
 - (2) Product application development
 - A. Smart speakers/5G/electric vehicles are the largest growing applications
 - Provide as many (much) smart speakers/5G/electric vehicles products and services to customers.
 - Embrace Thunderbolt & USB Type-C possibilities and actively pursue new customer sources.

- Utilize MEMS related products more extensively and reach out to new customer groups.

B. PCB related equipment development

Seize the opportunity to invest in expanding the flexible PCB factory, IC substrate board factory and bring in corresponding equipment products where appropriate; solicit consumables business, OEM business, and agency business; and foster a close cooperation and interdependence relationship with the equipment clients.

- 2. Long-term business plan
 - (1) Strengthen the strategic alliance partnership with upstream and downstream manufacturers and clients, and jointly carry out business expansion in the Greater China region to achieve the goal of a win-win situation for all parties involved.
 - (2) To cope with the migration of clients and suppliers in this industry, the Company will construct a thorough marketing and service team in the Greater China region based on the current bases in East China and South China to present comprehensive and prompt services.
 - (3) Persevere in winning agentship for new products, and collaborate with clients on the R&D of new products, so as to increase the Company's added value.
 - (4) Continue to develop independent products, and increase operating profit through value-added technical services.

II. Market and sales overview

(I) Market analysis

1. Geographic areas where the main products (services) are provided

The products the Company trades as an agent mainly include the domestic/foreign prestigious brands' equipment required for the manufacturing of audio elements, semiconductors, electronic parts, PCBs, and IC substrates, chemical substances, and optoelectronic semiconductor process testing instruments and consumables. The Company sells mainly to Taiwanese businessmen in China and will continue to develop clients of Chinese companies and Southeast Asia companies.

Unit: NT\$1,000

						IIII. IN I \$1,000	
Year	2	2021	2	2022	2023		
Region	Amount	percentage (%)	Amount	percentage (%)	Amount	percentage (%)	
Taiwan	2,291,983	61.59%	2,302,816	70.99%	2,040,901	74.40%	
China and Southeast Asia	1,429,150	38.41%	941,213	29.01%	702,127	25.60%	
Total	3,721,133	100.00%	3,244,029	100.00%	2,743,028	100.00%	

2. Market shares

The Company's consolidated operating revenue in 2023 amounted to NT\$2.743 billion. Despite a difficult global economic climate, revenue figures have been bolstered by the increased sale of MEMS audio products, IC semiconductors, and Thunderbolt high-speed product lines, a reason the consolidated revenue remained in good shape for 2023. Since the Company is an SME, although it has been able to yield positive results in sales, the volume is relatively modest when compared to global demand for the production of computers, communications and consumer electronics, meaning that there is still ample room for future growth.

3. Future market supply, demand, and growth

(1) In terms of supply of and demand for connectors:

The upsurge of connectors in 2024 is due to the twofold shipments of server power

and high speed cable, the commencement of extensive shipment of automotive-related commodities, 5G, AI, HPC, IOT, and autonomous vehicle applications, and the demand for the establishment of cloud, AI servers and data centers. The growth is extremely robust among large American cloud service providers. Bolstered by the impetus of environmental conservation and carbon neutrality, the accelerated development of new energy vehicles has become the norm, and the demand for associated charging equipment and power supply/battery control will remain in place.

A. Computers and servers:

The laptop market shipment volume for 2023 is expected to reach 163 million units, a year-on-year decrease of 12.2%. For the global laptop shipment volume in 2024, as the market inventory turns healthy and inflationary pressure is expected to stabilize, the global laptop shipment volume is anticipated to bottom out and rebound. However, the global consumer environment is still under pressure, and even though demand is gradually recovering, the market has not observed highly optimistic signals. TrendForce expects a growth rate of about 2 to 5% for 2024, with shipment volumes slightly higher than the pre-pandemic levels.

TrendForce forecasts that while the worldwide server sector will keep on expanding until 2025, the increase in global server shipments will be capped at 3.7% in 2023 as the benefits brought by the pandemic in the past three years dwindle. The projected annual growth rate of whole-server shipments for 2023 is only 3.7%, a decrease from 5.1% in 2022, due to global geopolitical shifts. Going forward, there is expected to be an ongoing demand for smaller scale Data Centers in multiple nations.

B. Renewable energy vehicle and electric vehicle markets:

The electric vehicle market is rapidly developing, with major global car manufacturers quickly expanding their capacities, including Daimler, Toyota, Volkswagen, Ford, General Motors, Hyundai, BMW, and Tesla, all actively launching strategies to transition into the electric vehicle domain. The schedules of various car factories plan to launch 30 to 60 electric vehicles between 2025 and 2035. Tesla, in particular, expects to maintain a target CAGR of +50% for delivery volumes in the medium to long term. Electric vehicles will become the main driving force for the growth of the global car market in the future. They will accelerate the transformation and upgrading of the overall automotive industry. In addition, the infrastructure and components related to electric vehicles will grow as the volume of electric vehicles increases.

With the Tesla Model 3 being a hot seller since 2020, the market expects the global production of electric vehicles to soar sixfold from 2 million units in 2020 to over 15 million units by 2025. The year 2021 marked the beginning of rapid growth for the electric vehicle industry, with a once-in-a-century business opportunity for the massive supply chain behind it!

According to Marklines data, the new energy vehicle market is expected to grow by about 40% in sales over the next five years, exceeding 16 million units in 2025. The global car market share will increase from 3% at the end of 2020 to 1.7%, benefiting the global electric vehicle supply chain.

C. Other consumer electronics products :

Amidst the AI boom, the concept of smart terminals (On-device AI) has also emerged recently. Major manufacturers like Samsung Electronics and Google plan to launch products equipped with "smart terminal" technology. In addition to smartphones and AI notebooks, Bluetooth earphones with smart terminal technology are expected to hit the market, with subsequent developments attracting attention from all sectors.

As smart terminals are gradually applied to end devices, they are also expected to drive growth in the smartphone market. According to Morgan Stanley's forecast, mobile phone shipments are expected to increase by 3.9% and 4.4% in 2024 and 2025, respectively, thanks to smart terminals.

(2) In terms of supply and demand in the audio semiconductor industry:

IMARC Group has estimated that the global MEMS microphone market will climb to US\$3.28 billion in 2027, from US\$1.63 billion in 2021. The compound annual growth rate (CAGR) between 2022 and 2027 is 11.80%. Considering the uncertainty that comes with the COVID-19 pandemic, we are vigilantly surveying the direct and indirect effect of the pandemic on diverse end-user industries. MEMS microphones are extensively employed in Internet of Things (IoT) and virtual reality (VR) instruments, hearing aids, tablets, cell phones, and other consumer electronics such as TVs, smart speakers, and TWS earphones, opening up the opportunities for growth in the MEMS microphone market. The increased popularity of microphones has additionally increased their demand. Handheld devices such as tablets and smartphones require ultrathin, low-power parts; MEMS microphones happen to offer power efficiency, heightened sensitivity, and a high signal-to-noise ratio.

Over the last few years, the Company has been devoted to marketing campaign for solicitation of agentship for products. Thanks to the sound and reliable relationship between the brands and clients, our profits have risen year after year. With the future looking dubious, we will continue to strengthen customer support and services, offer more extensive value-added services, and develop new products and new customers to maintain our ongoing growth momentum.





(3) In terms of supply and demand in the flexible PCB industry:

Last year (2023), the global PCB industry suffered a massive recession, with the global PCB output value estimated by the Industrial Technology Research Institute's International Division at NT\$73.9 billion, a decline of 15.6%. Due to the low base in 2023, the overall electronics industry will feel a higher growth momentum in 2024, and the PCB industry is also expected to welcome the next growth cycle due to inventory replenishment. Although the overall consumer demand still needs time to recover to a positive cycle, it can still benefit from upgrading some product specifications. The global PCB output value is estimated to rebound to NT\$78.2 billion in 2024, an increase of 6.3% from 2023.

The Company holds that HPC, 5G, in-vehicle electronics, and construction of low Earth orbit satellites will boost the growth of the PCB industry. Being the "Mother of electronic products", PCB has a wide range of downstream applications, including communications, mobile phones, computers, automobiles, and other electronics. The emergence of 5G technology has had a beneficial influence on PCB in that it has led to an amplified appetite for terminals and base stations. Furthermore, the increase in the per unit use of PCB in terminals and base stations has caused an upsurge in the overall demand for PCB.

The overall industry development trend indicates that the global PCB industry is

transitioning towards higher density, precision, and reliability, while concurrently reducing costs, enhancing performance, minimizing dimensions, lightening weight and thickness, raising productivity, and lowering environmental impact, in order to align with the development of downstream end-user electronic products. In the near future, High Density Interconnect, Flexible Printed Circuit, Rigid-Flex PCB, and IC substrates will become the primary area of development.

- 4. Competitive niche
 - (1) Remarkable technical competencies

For over 40 years into incorporation, the Company has cultivated numerous proficient marketing personnel who are able to support the brands with the development of new product and technology and swiftly communicate pertinent facts to clients, and thereby constantly developing new business opportunities. This not only secures the perpetual affirmation and trust from brands, but also aids clients in the introduction and evolution of new products, thereby increasing their capability while earning their recognition.

(2) A wide range of product lines under agentship, and application services

The products which the Company sells as an agent include electronic components (e.g., USB4.0 Type C, Thunderbolt Cable, and MEMS Microphone, etc.) PCB process equipment, testing instruments and related consumables for mainstream products that are required to produce mainstream products. Since the demand for end products, e.g., smartphones, tablet PCs, notebooks, wearing devices, and system peripheral industry, electronic communications remains strong every year and keeps the output value high, and they don't feature alternate peak seasons and low seasons, the Company is less prone to the impact of change in general business climate or ups and downs of a single industry.

- 5. Positive and negative factors for future development, and the Company's response to such factors
 - (1) Positive factors
 - A. The potential for expansion in the smart handheld device sector is considerable

As the demand for smart handheld devices is on the rise, new functions and applications are being developed, thus making the integration of related smart product functions a current trend in the information electronics industry. With more and more smart electronics being used, the need for electronic components will keep on rising.

B. Stable supply of raw materials and equipment

For more than four decades into its incorporation, the Company has been able to secure strong, enduring relationships with international raw materials manufacturing giants and equipment suppliers with its professional marketing competency and sales track record, so the supply source has been fairly stable. Such fruitful cooperation with international giants will have a positive effect on the Company's developing new products and securing new agency business.

C. The Company's strategy is excessively focus on innovation and professional services.

The Company attaches importance to human resources use and improvement. By holding various internal education and training courses and on-the-job training, and by actively participating the seminars on industrial trends and technologies, the Company hones employees' professional skills. The Company further encourages staff and managers to better the Company's service quality and operating procedures through talks, meetings, or collaboration with clients on developing new process applications.

- (2) Negative factors
 - A. Global inflation, the Russia-Ukraine war, and aggressive interest rate hikes in various countries

Electronic information products have witnessed a relative saturated in the post

pandemic era. Worse still is that global inflation and the destocking pressure facing brand owners may further drive down such products' price, which could indirectly lower the Company's profitability and increase the risk of overstock, rendering an unfavorable situation.

Response measures:

- a. Grasp the ebbs and flows of the marketplace: The business unit is required to stay informed of market news at all times. When becoming aware of any adverse information, they should promptly react and propose solutions to cushion the market impact.
- b. Proper inventory management: Accurately monitor and alter inventory levels in light of relevant market supply and demand data, and ensure adequate inventory levels are maintained at all times; put in place a good inventory management system to smooth the inbound and outbound of inventory; and regularly review the inventory structure to avoid any obsolete inventory.
- B. Fluctuations in exchange rates and raw materials

The overall inflation rate continues to be elevated, and the U.S. Federal Reserve has increased its interest rate in the face of the Russia-Ukraine conflict. Although raw materials price is not necessarily plummeted across all regions, one common characteristic of the price is volatility, particularly in international oil prices, making TWD likewise volatile. Given that the company's trading currency is the US Dollar, the fluctuation in the exchange rate may make the operating profits less uncertain. In addition, raw material prices have constantly fluctuated. All of these have led to price increases made by upstream and downstream suppliers and by clients alike, posing challenges to the control of operating costs. Response measures:

To attain a natural hedging effect, the Company insists on making purchase and sale using the same currency; it further seeks safe financial hedging instruments, and adjusts its position of TWD and foreign currency holdings, so as to utilize logistics and related costs to the fullest extent.

(II) Usage and manufacturing processes for the company's main products

Major products	Usage
Electronic components	Used as a communication/information/network equipment component/electric vehicles,/ new energy, e.g., connectors, ultra-thin co-axial cable, MEMS microphone, IC semiconductor, etc.
System integration equipment and materials	PCB production equipment and chemical agents as raw materials; semiconductor and optoelectronic process testing equipment and raw materials

1. Major usage of the company's products:

2. Production process: N/A (The Company is not a member of the manufacturing industry).

(III) Supply situation for the company's major raw materials:

The Company sources electronic components and equipment mainly from prestigious suppliers at home and abroad which have been a long time partner, so the source of supply is quite stable.

(IV) A list of any suppliers and customers accounting for 10 percent or more of the company's total procurement or sales amount in either of the 2 most recent fiscal years, the amounts bought from or sold to each, the percentage of total procurement or sales accounted for by each, and an explanation of the reason for increases or decreases in the above figures. (If the contract prohibits disclosure of customers' names or the counterparty, and the party involved is an individual other than a related party, they may be addressed in the code.)

Information on major suppliers for the most recent 2 fiscal years

	Unit: NT\$1,000											
			2022				2023		Year-t	o-date thr	ough March	31, 2024
Item	Name	Amount	As a percentage of net purchases for the year (%)	Relationship with the Issuer	Name	Amount	As a percentage of net purchases for the year (%)	Relationship with the Issuer	Name	Amount	Percentage of net purchases up to the preceding quarter of the current fiscal year (%)	Relationship with the Issuer
1	Company A	330,621	12.10	None	Company A	217,843	9.30	None	Company A	73,653	11.58	None
2	Company B	558,004	20.45	None	Company B	376,053	16.05	None	Company B	127,773	20.09	None
3	Company C	1,309,328	47.92	None	Company C	1,206,965	51.50	None	Company C	319,725	50.28	None
	Others	533,670	19.53		Others	542,635	23.15		Others	114,752	18.05	
	Net purchase	2,732,283	100.00		Net purchase	2,343,496	100.00		Net purchase	635,903	100.00	

Information on major customers for the most recent 2 fiscal years

II . NITEL 000

											01	nit: N1\$1,000
	2022				2023			Year-to-date through March 31, 2024				
Item	Name	Amount	As a percentage of net sales for the year (%)		Name	Amount	As a percentage of net sales for the year (%)		Name	Amount	Percentage of net sales up to the preceding quarter of the current fiscal year (%)	Relationship with the Issuer
1	Company D	393,897	12.14	None	Company D	446,733	16.29	None	Company D	87,864	13.91	None
	Others	2,850,132	87.86		Others	2,296,295	83.71		Others	543,781	86.09	
	Total net sales	3,244,029	100.00		Total net sales	2,743,028	100.00		Total net sales	631,645	100.00	

(V) Production Volume and Value in the Most Recent 2 Fiscal Years:

Not applicable because the Company is not a member of the manufacturing industry, but a professional marketer and distributer in the electronic components industry and automation equipment industry.

(VI) Sales Volume and Value in the Most Recent 2 Fiscal Years:

Since the Company is a professional marketer and distributor in the electronic components industry and automation equipment industry, it has an extensive range of products that vary in quantity, and does not have a unified measuring unit for statistics purposes. Therefore, the Company instead discloses the sales volume and value by product type as follows:

			U	nit: NT\$1,000
Year	20	22	20	23
Major products	Domestic sale	Export	Domestic sale	Export
Electronic components	220,904	2,785,570	149,851	2,417,000
PCB, IC substrate and equipment, and related materials	150,531	87,024	16,973	159,204
Total	371,435	2,872,594	166,824	2,576,204

	Year	2022	2023	Up to May 9, 2024
	Business unit	47	37	48
Number of employees	Management unit	38	45	36
employees	Total	85	82	84
Ave	erage age	41.7	41.3	41.1
Average	e service years	8	8.2	7.8
	PhD	0	0	0
	Master degree	13	11	12
Education degree	College diploma	53	59	60
dispersion rate	Senior high school	19	12	12
	Below senior high school	0	0	0
	Total	85	82	84

III. Number of employees in service in the last two years and up to the publication date of this annual report, their average service years, average age, and education degree dispersion ratio

IV. Disbursements for environmental protection: Any losses suffered by the company in the most recent fiscal year and up to the annual report publication date due to environmental pollution incidents (including any compensation paid and any violations of environmental protection laws or regulations found in environmental inspection, specifying the disposition dates, disposition reference numbers, the articles of law violated, and the content of the dispositions), and disclosing an estimate of possible expenses that could be incurred currently and in the future and measures being or to be taken.

The Company did not suffer any loss due to polluting the environment. The components and equipment sold by the Company as an agent all comply with laws and regulations. In addition, suppliers also present a statement of non-use of hazardous substances and a statement of ROHS directives, and so on; doing so enables the Company to provide clients with products suitable for use in the process in the future, thereby making the Company a green supplier.

- V. Labor-management relationship
 - (I) The Company's employee welfare programs, continuing education, training, retirement systems, and their implementation, as well as labor-management agreements and various employee rights protection measures:
 - 1. The Company adheres to the applicable labor laws and rules of Taiwan, in addition to the internationally acknowledged fundamental labor rights standards, to safeguard the legal rights and interests of employees.
 - 2. Reasonable compensation and benefits
 - (1) In addition to the monthly wages, year-end bonuses are available for active employees, and performance bonuses and gains are distributed based on the Company's quarterly operating performance and individual performance. The method of disbursement is done in line with proper management regulations.
 - (2) As required by the "Employee Welfare Fund Act", the Company has established the Employee Benefits Committee, which shall take charge of employee benefits matters, e.g., provision of Mid-Autumn Festival bonus, Dragon Boat's Day bonus, birthday money gift, preferential treatment at participating enterprises not in the same industry with the Company, group activities such as movie watching, year-end party, employee domestic/overseas travel, etc., so that they can strike a work-life balance.
 - (3) The Company gives employees marriage/childbirth congratulation money, funeral condolence money by its benefits policy.
 - (4) Insurance: The Company purchases labor insurance and health insurance for all employees to entitle them to the various insurance benefits; the Company also

purchases group casualty insurance, group medical insurance, group term life insurance, travel insurance, and employer's liability insurance for all employees and further purchases public liability insurance and fire insurance.

- (5) The Company regularly holds company anniversary event to commend and encourage senior employees.
- (6) Employees are offered a complimentary health checkup one a year.
- 3. Employee training and development
 - (1) To improve employees' competitiveness, the Company organizes orientation training and the various on-the-job trainings for employees. The Company arranges for employees to take internal and external professional training courses, and has the trained personnel to disseminate professional knowledge to internal staff.
 - (2) Through skill-building initiatives, each employee can optimize their performance to the fullest extent. Facilitate personnel in mapping out their professional advancement, and refine the employee career progression program through in-house experience succession and job transfer/rotation.

Item	No. of courses	No. of trainees	Total training hours
1. Orientation for new comers	19	19	57
2. Professional competency training	13	8	98
3. Managerial skills training	3	3	36
4. Liberal training	0	0	0
5. Personal enrichment training	0	0	0
Total	35	30	191

Below is an account of the staff training situation in 2023:

Below is an account of the manager training situation in 2023

Ν	Name	Course name	Total training hours
	hang, -Chien	Continuing Education Course for Accounting Officers of Issuers, Securities Dealers, and TWSE	12 hours

- 4. Retirement system and implementation
 - (1) The Company's retirement scheme is based on the "Labor Standards Act" and "Labor Pension Act". Employees meeting the any of the following criteria may apply for retirement at their discretion:
 - A. Having worked for 15 years and attained the age of 55.
 - B. Having worked for 25 years.
 - C. Having worked for 10 years and attained the age of 60.
 - (2) Pension payment standards:
 - A. Old scheme: The Labor Standards Act shall apply, and employee pension is calculated based on the service years under the old scheme and the average of regular wages for the 6 months prior to retirement.
 - B. New scheme: The Labor Pension Act shall apply, and employers shall contribute an amount equal to 6% of employees' insured salary interval to employees' individual pension account every month.

The Company makes a monthly pension contribution equal to 5% of employees' salary (due to option between the new scheme and old scheme), and deposits it in a dedicated account with the Bank of Taiwan. As of December 31, 2023, the pension fund balance amounted to NT\$20,859 thousand.

The Company conducted an actuarial valuation by the FSC-endorsed International Accounting Standards No.19 "Employee Benefits" on the measurement date, which was December 31, 2023. The fair value in excess of defined benefit obligations is

recognized as pension prepayments on the balance sheet date.

- 5. Employee conduct and ethical principles:
 - (1) The Company has established internal regulations to govern employees conduct; such internal regulations include Employee Manual, Attendance Management Rules, Regulations for Promotion and Job Transfer, Regulations for Business Travel Management, Gender Equality Management Rules, and Corporate Governance -Code of Ethical Conduct, for employees to follow, and feature the following content:
 - A. The discipline, etiquette, and working attitude required of an employee.
 - B. Set up employee evaluation standards as a reference for salary adjustment, bonus distribution, and promotion.
 - C. Reward or punish employees for the profits or loss brought to the Company by their conduct.
 - (2) Have employees sign the "Intellectual Property Rights and Undertaking of Confidentiality", which stipulates that employees be obliged to keep confidential the Company's tangible and intangible operating assets and data and that employee be banned outright from infringing on the Company's interests.
 - (3) The Company discloses its "Corporate Governance Codes of Ethical Conduct", "Procedures for Processing Material Inside Information to Prevent Insider Trading", and "Procedures for Ethical Management and Guidelines for Conduct" on its official website.
- 6. Labor management negotiation
 - (1) The Company's official website has put in place an "employee complaints-filing operation mechanism" and an open communication platform, so as to ensure that employees' opinion/questions can be fairly expressed and employees are fairly, reasonably, and effectively dealt with and valued. The Company also encourages employees to reflect any problems to either their immediate supervisor or a managerial officer of an even higher level; managerial officers at each level will value their opinion and assist in finding a solution.
 - (2) A Group-wide meeting open to all employees is held regularly so that each employee can fully understand the Company's operating status and their rights and interests. The Company also discloses the latest version of the Employee Manual on its internal website; the Employee Manual sets out the Work Rules, employees' rights and obligations, and their benefits, so that they can understand, and the Company can uphold their rights and interests.
 - (3) The Company holds periodic "labor-management gatherings" to communicate important decisions, manage labor-management relations, cultivate labor-management cooperation, and improve labor-management relations.

The Company places a high priority on labor management relations and employee benefits, which has led to a harmonious labor-management relationship and no labor disputes. The Company will strive to maintain a healthy partnership between its personnel and management, abiding by applicable governmental labor laws and regulations.

- 7. Various employee rights protection measures: The Company abides by applicable laws and regulations, e.g., the Labor Standards Act, Act of Gender Equality in Employment, Employee Welfare Fund Act, Labor Pension Act, Labor Insurance Act, Employment Insurance Act, Act for Protecting Worker of Occupational Accidents, Labor Safety and Health Act, and other laws and regulations, to protect employees' rights and interests.
- (II) List any losses suffered by the company in the most recent fiscal year and up to the annual report publication date due to labor disputes (including any violations of the Labor Standards Act found in labor inspection, specifying the disposition dates, disposition reference numbers, the articles of law violated, the substance of the legal violations, and the content of the dispositions), and disclosing an estimate of possible expenses that could be incurred currently and in the future and measures being or to be taken. If a reasonable estimate cannot be made, an explanation of the facts of why it cannot be made shall be

provided: None

Since its inception, the Company has implemented a human-oriented approach and professional division of labor when interacting with personnel, while abiding by all labor-related laws and regulations. Recognizing the symbiotic relationship between labor and management, we endeavor to cultivate harmonious labor-management relations. Firstly, we value employees' opinions and pursue consensus through mutual understanding. Secondly, we reinforce relevant welfare benefits to take care of our staff, so as to jointly stride towards a bright future. Therefore, we were not found in any labor inspection to have violated the Labor Standards Act, nor did we witness any labor dispute, nor yet did we suffer any loss due to labor dispute in the most recent year and the current year up to the publication date of this annual report.

- VI. Cyber security management
 - (I) Describe the information security risk management structure, information security policy, specific management plan, resources invested in the information security management, etc.:
 - 1. Cyber security risk management structure
 - The organization has an individual division devoted to information security management. The chief of the IT Department is obligated for the coordination and advancement of information security management issues, and to create an information security promotion taskforce when necessary. The convener of the information security promotion taskforce shall be General Manager. The chief of the IT Department is responsible for carrying out safety issues and submitting a report every year.
 - 2. Information security policy

To implement information security management, the Company has formulated regulations for electronic data processing cycle and information security management, hoping to achieve the following policy goals

- (1) Raise information security awareness of employees
- (2) Avoid leak of confidential information
- (3) Maintain effective daily operations
- (4) Ensure sustainable management and operations
- 3. Specific management project
 - (1) Personnel safety and management: Hold trainings and awareness sessions on information security for personnel at each level; properly assess the IT personnel in contact of confidential information; and change the access authority when a person leaves his/her job.
 - (2) Data access control: Document and data encryption control and tracking, mail outbound control, security protection software and hardware control.
 - (3) Ensure the continuous operation of the system: Back up systems off-site and put in place emergency prevention measures.
 - (4) Information security awareness session: Regularly hold information security awareness session and perform information security check.
- (II) List any losses suffered by the company in the most recent fiscal year and up to the annual report publication date due to significant cyber security incidents, the possible impacts therefrom, and measures being or to be taken. If a reasonable estimate cannot be made, an explanation of the facts of why it cannot be made shall be provided.

The Company did not subject to any loss or possible influence due to material cyber security safety incident as of the publication date of this annual report.

VII. Important contracts

The contracting parties, major content, restrictive clauses, and the commencement dates and expiration dates of supply/distribution contracts, technical cooperation contracts, engineering/construction contracts, long-term loan contracts, and other contracts that would affect shareholders' equity, where said contracts were either still effective as of the date of publication of the annual report, or expired in the most recent fiscal year:

Type of contract	Party	Contract start date and end date	Main content	Restrictive clauses
Distribution contract	JAE Taiwan	January 1, 2008 ~ automatic renewal	Product sale in the capacity of an agent	None
Distribution contract	Sumitomo Electric Industries, Ltd.	October 1, 2009 ~ automatic renewal	Product sale in the capacity of an agent	None
Distribution contract	Knowles	June 1, 2010 ~ automatic renewal	Product sale in the capacity of an agent	None
Distribution contract	YE-DATA	June 20, 2011 ~ automatic renewal	Product sale in the capacity of an agent	None
Distribution contract	Etron Technology, Inc.	March 11, 2018 ~ automatic renewal	Product sale in the capacity of an agent	None
Distribution contract	AWINIC	January 1, 2024 ~ December 31, 2025	Product sale in the capacity of an agent	None
Distribution contract	CANON MACHINERY INC.	January 1, 2024 ~ December 31, 2025	Product sale in the capacity of an agen	None

Important contracts

Six. Finance Overview

- I. Condensed balance sheet and comprehensive income statement for the most recent 5 years
 - (I) Condensed balance sheet for the most recent 5 years
 - 1. Consolidated information

Unit: NT\$1,000								
	Financial in	formation f	or the most	recent 5 year	ars (audited	Year-to-date		
Year		and certified)						
	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024 Financial Information (Reviewed)		
Current assets		1,988,239	2.550.355	2,472,468	2.004.477	2,039,003		
Property, plant and equipment		, ,	, ,					
Intangible assets		319	743	528	840			
	242,823	222,961	278,069	331,576	404,759	399,383		
	,	,	,	,				
Before distribution	1,420,948	1,203,140		1,434,552	955,618			
After distribution	1,507,748	1,274,036	1,796,664	1,515,964	(Note 1)	(Note 1)		
Non-current liabilities		11,269	23,055	19,981	17,102	14,228		
Before distribution	1,432,414	1,214,409	1,731,099	1,454,533	972,720	935,902		
After distribution	1,519,214	1,285,305	1,819,719	1,535,945	(Note 1)	(Note 1)		
Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent company		1,110,768	1,210,932	1,461,213	1,546,869	1,612,453		
Before distribution	520,142	560,000	590,800	590,800	626,248	651,298		
After distribution	560,000	590,800	590,800	626,248	651,298	(Note 1)		
lus	52,062	52,062	52,062	52,062	52,062	52,062		
Before distribution	423,217	440,793	513,174	635,058	629,642	669,513		
After distribution	336,417	369,897	424,554	553,646	(Note 1)	(Note 1)		
Other equity interests		27,113	54,896	147,845	213,867	239,580		
Treasury stock		0	0	0	0	0		
g interests	0	0	0	0	0	0		
Before distribution	1,091,465	1,110,768	1,210,932	1,461,213	1,546,869	1,612,453		
After distribution	1,004,665	1,039,872	1,122,312	1,379,801	(Note 1)	(Note 1)		
	Year Year Year Year Year Year Year Year	Year20192,165,773and equipment114,875ets408242,8232,523,879BeforedistributionAfterdistribution1,420,948Afterdistributionabilities11,466Beforedistribution1,507,748abilities1,432,414Afterdistribution1,519,214able tof the parent1,091,465Beforedistributionhus520,142Afterdistribution1,091,465Before423,217Afterdistribution336,417vinterests56,186ck0Before1,091,465After1,091,465After1,091,465	Yeara201920202,165,7731,988,239and equipment114,875113,658sts408242,823222,9612,523,8792,325,177Before distribution1,420,9481,203,140After distribution1,507,7481,274,036abilities11,46611,269Before distribution1,432,4141,214,409After distribution1,519,2141,285,305able to f the parent1,091,4651,110,768Before distribution520,142560,000After distribution520,142560,000After distribution560,000590,800Ius52,062Before distribution423,217440,793After distribution336,417369,897 vinterests00Before distribution1,091,4651,110,768	Year and certified 2019 2020 2021 2,165,773 1,988,239 2,550,355 and equipment 114,875 113,658 112,864 tts 408 319 743 242,823 222,961 278,069 2,523,879 2,325,177 2,942,031 Before 1,420,948 1,203,140 1,708,044 After 1,507,748 1,274,036 1,796,664 abilities 11,466 11,269 23,055 Before 1,432,414 1,214,409 1,731,099 After 1,519,214 1,285,305 1,819,719 abilities 1,091,465 1,110,768 1,210,932 Before 520,142 560,000 590,800 After 560,000 590,800 590,800 Ius 52,062 52,062 52,062 Before 423,217 440,793 513,174 After 336,417 369,897 424,554 vinterests	Yearand certified)20192020202120222,165,7731,988,2392,550,3552,472,468and equipment114,875113,658112,864111,174its408319743528242,823222,961278,069331,5762,523,8792,325,1772,942,0312,915,746Before1,420,9481,203,1401,708,0441,434,552After1,507,7481,274,0361,796,6641,515,964abilities11,46611,26923,05519,981Before1,432,4141,214,4091,731,0991,454,533After1,519,2141,285,3051,819,7191,535,945able to1,091,4651,110,7681,210,9321,461,213Before520,142560,000590,800590,800After336,417369,897424,554553,646distribution423,217440,793513,174635,058After336,417369,897424,554553,646distribution1,091,4651,110,7681,210,9321,461,213Before00000Before136,417369,897424,554553,646distribution1,091,4651,110,7681,210,9321,461,213After336,417369,897424,554553,646distribution1,091,4651,110,7681,210,9321,461,213After0000 </td <td>$\begin{array}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$</td>	$\begin{array}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$		

Note 1: The amount to be distributed for 2023 is still pending a resolution by the Shareholders' Meeting.

2. Parent Company Only Information

Unit: NT\$1,000

	Year	Financial info	ormation for the	e most recent 5	years (audited a	nd certified)
Item		2019	2020	2021	2022	2023
Current assets		1,476,126	1,348,725	1,857,041	1,744,235	1,221,529
Property, plant and equipment		104,933	104,220	104,499	103,874	103,461
Intangible assets		408	319	743	528	840
Other assets		721,047	762,689	871,117	1,015,898	1,121,375
Total Assets		2,302,514	2,215,953	2,833,400	2,864,535	2,447,205
Current	Before distribution	1,205,940	1,098,409	1,617,207	1,396,746	889,194
liabilities	After distribution	1,292,740	1,169,305	1,705,827	1,478,158	(註1)
Non-current liabilities		5,109	6,776	5,261	6,576	11,142
Total	Before distribution	1,211,049	1,105,185	1,622,468	1,403,322	900,336
Liabilities	After distribution	1,297,849	1,176,081	1,711,088	1,484,734	(註1)
Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent company		1,091,465	1,110,768	1,210,932	1,461,213	1,546,869
Capital	Before distribution	520,142	560,000	590,800	590,800	626,248
stock	After distribution	560,000	590,800	590,800	626,248	651,298
Capital su	rplus	52,062	52,062	52,062	52,062	52,062
Retained	Before distribution	423,217	440,793	513,174	635,058	629,642
earnings	After distribution	336,417	369,897	424,554	553,646	(註1)
Other equ	ity interests	56,186	27,113	54,896	147,845	213,867
Treasury s	stock	0	0	0	0	0
Non-control	ling interests	0	0	0	0	0
Total equity	Before distribution	1,091,465	1,110,768	1,210,932	1,461,213	1,546,869
Total equily	After distribution	1,004,665	1,039,872	1,122,312	1,379,801	(註1)

Note 1: The amount to be distributed for 2023 is still pending a resolution by the Shareholders' Meeting.

(II) Condensed statement of comprehensive income for the most recent 5 years 1. Consolidated information

1. Consolidated mio						Unit: NT\$1,000	
Year	Financial in	Financial information for the most recent 5 years (audited and certified)					
Item	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024 (Reviewed)	
Operating revenue	3,887,287	3,187,958	3,721,133	3,244,029	2,743,028	631,645	
Operating gross profit	385,897	318,676	379,903	354,003	287,387	58,608	
Operating profits or losses	188,118	131,641	169,573	131,016	99,728	16,344	
Non-operating income and expenses	(9,722)	(5,795)	3,126	127,664	27,731	34,097	
Net profits before tax	178,396	125,846	172,699	258,680	127,459	50,441	
Net profits for the period from continuing operations	142,436	104,162	143,052	208,799	100,772	39,871	
Losses from discontinued operations	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Net profits (losses) for the period	142,436	104,162	143,052	208,799	100,772	39,871	
Other comprehensive income for the period (net after tax)	27,519	(28,859)	28,008	94,654	66,296	25,713	
Total comprehensive income for the period	169,955	75,303	171,060	303,453	167,068	65,584	
Net profits attributable to shareholders of parent company	142,436	104,162	143,052	208,799	100,772	39,871	
Net profits attributable to non-controlling interests	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Total comprehensive income attributable to shareholders of parent company	169,955	75,303	171,060	303,453	167,068	65,584	
Total comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests	0	0	0	0	0	0	
Earnings per share	2.41	1.76	2.28	3.33	1.55	0.61	

Note 1 : The number of outstanding shares has been retroactively adjusted based on the ratio of recapitalization of earnings in 2019 to 2023.

Year	Financial in	formation for th	e most recent 5	years (audited ar	nd certified)
Item	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023
Operating revenue	2,639,847	2,196,031	2,668,881	2,554,446	2,222,054
Operating gross profit	258,458	192,711	227,183	247,750	207,608
Operating profits or losses	127,286	64,600	83,864	85,498	77,634
Non-operating income and expenses	41,418	48,035	72,867	162,894	45,171
Net profits before tax	168,704	112,635	156,731	248,392	122,805
Net profits for the period from continuing operations	142,436	104,162	143,052	208,799	100,772
Losses from discontinued operations	0	0	0	0	0
Net profits (losses) for the period	142,436	104,162	143,052	208,799	100,772
Other comprehensive income for the period (net after tax)	27,519	(28,859)	28,008	94,654	66,296
Total comprehensive income for the period	169,955	75,303	171,060	303,453	167,068
Net profits attributable to shareholders of parent company	142,436	104,162	143,052	208,799	100,772
Net profits attributable to non-controlling interests	0	0	0	0	0
Total comprehensive income attributable to shareholders of parent company	169,955	75,303	171,060	303,453	167,068
Total comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests	0	0	0	0	0
Earnings per share	2.41	1.76	2.28	3.33	1.55

Note 1 : The number of outstanding shares has been retroactively adjusted based on the ratio of recapitalization of earnings in 2019 to 2023.

(III) The name of CPA for the most recent 5 years and the audit opinions
--

Year	CPA firm	Attesting CPAs	Audit opinion
2023	Ernst & Young	Wang, Hsuan-Hsuan; Chang, Chih-Ming	Unqualified opinion
2022	Ernst & Young	Wang, Hsuan-Hsuan; Chang, Chih-Ming	Unqualified opinion
2021	Ernst & Young	Wang, Hsuan-Hsuan; Chang, Chih-Ming	Unqualified opinion
2020	Ernst & Young	Wang, Hsuan-Hsuan; Chang, Chih-Ming	Unqualified opinion
2019	Ernst & Young	Wang, Hsuan-Hsuan; Huang, Yi-Hui	Unqualified opinion

II. Financial analysis for the most recent 5 years

1. Consolidated information

Year		Analysis of financial information for the most recent 5 years (audited and certified)					Year-to-date through
Analysis item		2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	March 31, 2024 (Reviewed)
Capital structure	Debt to assets ratio	56.75	52.23	58.84	49.89	38.61	36.73
Capital structure (%)	Ratio of long-term capital to property, plant, and equipment	950.13	977.29	1,072.91	1,314.35	1,412.50	1.476.46
	Current ratio	152.42	165.25	149.31	172.35	209.76	221.23
Solvency (%)	Quick ratio	127.16	148.43	113.4	138.26	181.78	181.03
	Interests coverage multiplier	1,825.97	1,334.39	1,977.57	1,884.25	1,003.77	1.848.39
	Accounts receivable turnover rate (times)	3.45	3.13	3.25	2.89	2.98	2.96
	Average collection days	106	117	112	126	122	123
	Inventory turnover rate (times)	9.43	13	9.69	6.44	7.83	7.93
Operating performance	Accounts payable turnover rate (times)	7.32	7.72	8.61	7.71	8.81	8.75
	Average sales days	39	28	38	57	47	46
	Property, plant and equipment turnover rate (times)	33.52	27.90	32.85	28.96	24.86	23.10
	Total assets turnover rate (times)	1.48	1.31	1.41	1.11	1.01	1.00
	Return on assets (%)	5.76	4.63	5.71	7.52	4.12	1.66
	Return on equity (%)	13.62	9.46	12.32	15.63	6.70	2.52
Profitability	Net profits before tax to paid-in capital (%)	31.86	21.3	29.23	41.31	19.57	7.74
	Net profit margin (%)	3.66	3.27	3.84	6.44	3.67	6.31
	Earnings per share (NT\$)	2.41	1.76	2.28	3.33	1.55	0.61
	Cash flow ratio (%)	20.78	6.66	(17.62)	39.37	25.63	(0.33)
Cash flow	Cash flow adequacy ratio (%)	27.46	45.41	(6.27)	48.98	124.52	84.37
	Cash reinvestment ratio (%)	19.91	2.17	(30.67)	34.98	10.57	(0.19)
Lavanaga	Operating leverage	1.68	1.86	1.70	1.99	2.14	2.64
Leverage	Financial leverage	1.06	1.08	1.06	1.12	1.16	1.21

Please explain the reasons for the changes in the financial ratios for the last two years. (This section need not be filled in if the change is within 20%)

(1)Decrease in the debt to assets ratio and increase in current ratio/quick ratio: Mainly due to the decrease in short term debt compared the the end of last year.

(2)Decrease in interests coverage multiplier: Due to the decrease in net profits for the period in 2023 compared to the end of last year.

(3)Increase in inventory turnover rate: Although sales decreased by 15% compared with last year, the ending inventory also decreased by 30% compared with the same period last year, resulting in an increase in inventory turnover rate.

(4)Decrease in return on assets/return on equity/ratio of net profit before tax to paid-in capital/profit margin/earnings per share: Mainly due to the decrease in net profit for the current period compared with the same period last year.

(5)Decrease in cash flow ratio: Mainly due to the 57% decrease in cash flow from operating activities and the 33% decrease in current liabilities, resulting in a decrease in cash flow ratio.

(6)Increase in cash flow adequacy ratio: Mainly due to the increase in net cash inflow from operating activities in the recent five years.

(7)Decrease in cash reinvestment ratio: Mainly due to the decrease in net cash inflow from operating activities.

	Yea		of financ nt 5 years			
Analysis item		2019	2020	2021	2022	2023
	Debt to assets ratio	52.6	49.87	57.26	48.99	36.79
Capital structure (%)	Ratio of long-term capital to property, plant, and equipment	1,045.02	1,072.29	1,163.83	1,413.05	1,505.89
	Current ratio	122.4	122.79	114.83	124.88	137.37
Solvency (%)	Quick ratio	101.6	111.08	84.02	96.11	117.39
	Interests coverage multiplier	2,178.92	1,399.58	1,881.24	1,968.03	1,026.06
	Accounts receivable turnover rate (times)	3.22	2.93	3.14	2.97	2.98
	Average collection days	113	125	116	123	123
	Inventory turnover rate (times)	9.63	14.77	9.56	6.57	8.79
Operating performance	Accounts payable turnover rate (times)	6.82	7.48	7.82	7.04	8.24
	Average sales days	38	25	38	56	42
	Property, plant and equipment turnover rate (times)	25.1	21	25.57	24.52	21.43
	Total assets turnover rate (times)	1.1	0.97	1.06	0.90	0.84
	Return on assets (%)	6.19	4.92	5.94	7.70	4.19
	Return on equity (%)	13.62	9.46	12.32	15.63	6.70
Profitability	Net profits before tax to paid-in capital (%)	30.13	19.06	26.53	39.66	18.86
	Net profit margin (%)	5.4	4.74	5.36	8.17	4.54
	Earnings per share (NT\$)	2.41	1.76	2.28	3.33	1.55
	Cash flow ratio (%)	17	(1.11)	(15.75)	28.41	17.94
Cash flow	Cash flow adequacy ratio (%)	23.03	25.45	(24.8)	26.26	74.30
	Cash reinvestment ratio (%)	11.73	(6.18)	(27.02)	23.63	5.08
I	Operating leverage	1.68	2.25	2.01	2.09	1.99
Leverage	Financial leverage	1.07	1.15	1.12	1.18	1.21

2. Parent Company Only Information

Please explain the reasons for the changes in the financial ratios for the last two years. (This section need not be filled in if the change is within 20%)

(1) Decrease in the debt to assets ratio and increase in quick ratio: Mainly due to the decrease in short term debt compared the the end of last year.

(2) Decrease in interests coverage multiplier: Due to the decrease in net profits for the period in 2023 compared to the end of last year.

(3) Increase in inventory turnover rate and decrease in average sales days : Although sales decreased by 13% compared with last year, the ending inventory also decreased by 40% compared with the same period last year, resulting in an increase in inventory turnover rate and a decrease in average sales days.

(4) Decrease in return on assets/return on equity/ratio of net profit before tax to paid-in capital/profit margin/earnings per share: Mainly due to the decrease in net profit for the current period compared with the same period last year.

(5) Decrease in cash flow ratio: Mainly due to the 57% decrease in cash flow from operating activities and the 33% decrease in current liabilities, resulting in a decrease in cash flow ratio.

(6) Increase in cash flow adequacy ratio: Mainly due to the increase in net cash inflow from operating activities in the recent five years.

(7) Decrease in cash reinvestment ratio: Mainly due to the decrease in net cash inflow from operating activities.
1. Capital structure

(1) Debt to assets ratio = total liabilities/total assets

(2) Ratio of long-term capital to property, plant, and equipment = (total equity + non-current liabilities)/net property, plant, and equipment.

2. Solvency

- (1) Current ratio = current assets/current liabilities
- (2) Quick ratio = (current assets inventory prepaid expenses)/current liabilities

(3) Interests coverage multiplier = net profits before tax and interest expense/interest expense for the period

- 3. Operating performance
 - (1) Receivables (including accounts receivable and notes receivable from business operations) turnover rate = net sales/balance of average receivables for various periods (including accounts receivable and notes receivable from business operations).
 - (2) Average collection days = 365/accounts receivable turnover rate
 - (3) Inventory turnover rate = costs of goods sold/average inventory
 - (4) Payables (including accounts payable and notes payable from business operations) turnover rate = costs of goods sold/balance of average payables for the various periods (including accounts payable and notes payable from business operations).
 - (5) Average sales days = 365/inventory turnover rate
 - (6) Property, plant, and equipment turnover rate = net sales/average property, plant, and equipment
 - (7) Total assets turnover rate = net sales/average total assets

4. Profitability

- (1) Return on assets = [net profits after tax + interest expense x (1 tax rate)]/average total assets
- (2) Return on equity = net profits after tax/average total equity
- (3) Net profit margin = net profits after tax/net sales
- (4) Earnings per share = (net profits attributable to shareholders of the parent preferred stock dividend)/weighted average number of shares outstanding

5. Cash flow

- (1) Cash flow ratio = net cash flow from operating activities/current liabilities.
- (2 Cash flow adequacy ratio = sum of net cash flow from operating activities for the most recent 5 years / sum of capital expenditures, inventory additions, and cash dividend for the most recent 5 years.
- (3) Cash reinvestment ratio = (net cash flow from operating activities cash dividend) / (gross property, plant, and equipment + long-term investment + other non-current assets + working capitals).

6. Leverage

- (1) Operating leverage = (net operating revenues variable operating costs and expenses)/operating profits (Note 3).
- (2) Financial leverage = Operating profits/(operating profits interest expense).
- Note 1: Special attention should be paid to the following when measuring earnings per share stated in the previous paragraph with the above calculation formula:
 - 1. Based on the weighted average number of common shares rather than the number of shares outstanding at the end of the year.
 - 2. Where there is cash capital increase or treasury stock transactions, the weighted average number of shares should be used considering the period of circulation.
 - 3. Where there is a capital increase by retained earnings or capital surplus when calculating the annual or semi-annual earnings per share for previous years, retrospective adjustments should be made in proportion to the capital increase, regardless of the issuance period of such capital increase.
 - 4. If the preferred shares are non-convertible and cumulative, their dividends for the current year (whether paid or not) should be deducted from the net profits after tax, or added to the net losses after tax. If the preferred shares are non-cumulative, their dividends should be deducted from net profits after tax if there are net profits after tax; if there are net losses, no adjustment is required.

Note 2: Special attention should be paid to the following when performing cash flow analysis:

- 1. Net cash flow from operating activities represents the net cash inflow from operating activities in the cash flow statement.
- 2. Capital expenditures represent the annual cash outflows from capital investments.
- 3. Increase in inventory is included only if the ending balance is greater than the beginning balance or zero if inventory decreases at the end of the year.
- 4. Cash dividends include cash dividends on common stock and preferred stock.
- 5. Gross property, plant and equipment refers to the total property, plant and equipment without deduction of accumulated depreciation.
- Note 3: Operating costs and operating expenses shall be categorized into fixed amount and variable amount according to their nature. Where estimates or subjective judgments are involved, pay attention to reasonableness and maintain consistency.

III. Audit Committee review report on the financial report for the most recent fiscal year:

HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. Audit Committee Review Report

Whereas,

The Board of Directors submitted the Company's 2023 Business Report and Financial Statements (Including Parent Company Only Financial Statements and Consolidated Financial Statements) and Earnings Distribution Proposal, of which the 2023 Financial Statements were audited by CPA Wang, Hsuan-Hsuan and CPA Chang, Chih-Ming from Ernst & Young, who also furnished an independent auditor's report. The above-mentioned Business Report, Financial Statements, and Earnings Distribution Proposal have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and no discrepancies have been found; therefore, a report was prepared for your review according to the provisions of Article 219 of the Company Act and Article 14-4 of the Securities and Exchange Act.

Yours, HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. 2024 General Shareholders Meeting

Audit Committee Convener: Li, Ta-Ching

March 14, 2024

- IV. Consolidated financial report for the most recent fiscal year audited by the CPAs: Please refer to p.118 to p.208.
- V. Parent company only financial report for the most recent fiscal year audited by the CPAs: Please refer to p.209 to p.292.
- VI. If the Company or its affiliates have experienced financial difficulties in the most recent year or during the current year up to the date of publication of the annual report, their effects on the Company's financial status shall be disclosed: None.

Seven. Review and Analysis of the Financial Position and Financial Performance, and Risks

I. Financial position

				Unit: NT\$1,000
			Differ	ence
Year Item	2023	2022	Amount	%
Current assets	2,004,477	2,472,468	(467,991)	(18.93%)
Investments accounted for using the equity method	_	—	—	_
Property, plant and equipment	109,513	111,174	(1,661)	(1.49%)
Intangible assets	840	528	312	59.09%
Other assets	404,759	331,576	73,183	22.07%
Total assets	2,519,589	2,915,746	(396,157)	(13.59%)
Current liabilities	955,618	1,434,552	(478,934)	(33.39%)
Non-current liabilities	17,102	19,981	(2,879)	(14.41%)
Total liabilities	972,720	1,454,533	(481,813)	(33.12%)
Equity attributable to owners of the parent company	1,546,869	1,461,213	85,656	5.86%
Share capital	651,298	626,248	25,050	4.00%
Capital reserves	52,062	52,062	—	_
Retained earnings	629,642	635,058	(5,416)	(0.85%)
Other equity	213,867	147,845	66,022	44.66%
non-controlling interest	—	—	—	_
Total equity	1,546,869	1,461,213	85,656	5.86%

Financial position analysis and comparison table

(I) Explanation on changes of ratios (this is required if the change from the comparative period is more than 20% and reaches NT\$10 million):

1. Increase in other assets and other equity: Mainly due to the increase in the financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive inome this year compared with the end of last year.

2. Increase in current liabilities and total liabilities: Mainly due to the decrease in the short term debt and contract liabilities-current this year.

(II) Significantly changed accounts and remediation plans in the future:

Remediation plan is not required because the Group did not significantly deviate from its normal performance.

				Unit: N1\$1,000
Year	2023	2022	Amount of increase	Change ratio (%)
			(decrease)	g (···)
Net operating revenue	2,743,028	3,244,029	(501,001)	(15.44%)
Operating costs	2,455,641	2,890,026	(434,385)	(15.03%)
Operating gross profit	287,387	354,003	(66,616)	(18.82%)
Operating expenses	187,659	222,987	(35,328)	(15.84%)
Operating Income	99,728	131,016	(31,288)	(23.88%)
Non-operating income and expenses	27,731	127,664	(99,933)	(78.28%)
Net profits before tax	127,459	258,680	(131,221)	(50.73%)
Income tax expense	26,687	49,881	(23,194)	(46.50%)
Net profit after tax	100,772	208,799	(108,027)	(51.74%)

Financial performance analysis and comparison table

Unit: NT\$1 000

(I) Explanation on changes of ratios (this is required if the change from the comparative period is more than 20% and reaches NT\$10 million):

- 1. Decrease in net operating profit: mainly due to the decrease in operating income, thus the decrease in operating gross profit.
- 2. Decrease in non-operating income and expenses: mainly due to the decrease in gains from foreign currency exchange.
- 3. Decrease in income tax expense: mainly due to the decrease in net profit before tax.
- 4. Decrease in net profit before tax / net profit after tax: Mainly due to the decrease in operating income and non-operating income.
- (II) Expected sales and expectation basis

By factoring in industry trends, customers' sales performance and manufacturers' production and sales availability, the Company has formulated annual sales strategies, from which the Company has further derived annual sales targets.

- (III) Possible impact on the company's financial and business performance and response plan: Benefited from moderate expansion of product lines of its agency business and thanks to effective business promotion, operating revenue and profits in recent year have been stable, improving the Company's operating performance and financial structure to a prominent level. To maintain sales growth momentum, the Company regularly holds sales meetings to examine the business promotion effectiveness; the Company's sales units also get a good grasp of the development of the industry and customers so that the Company can adjust its short-, medium- and long-term sales pace. In doing so, the Company expects to effectively promote its business and achieve a more optimum performance in the future.
- III. Cash flow

Cash	flow	anal	lvsis
0.011	110 11		1010

			0 4011 11	<u>e (1 01101) e 1 e</u>			
						Unit:	NT\$1,000
Cash opening balance (1)	Estimated net cash flows from operating activities (2)	Estimated net cash flows from investing activities (3)	Estimated net cash flows from financing activities (3)	Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (5)	Cash surplus (deficiency) amount (1)+(2)+(3) +(4)+(5)	Cash def remedial 1 Investment plan	
1,024,059	244,965	7,011	(419,373)	(7,681)	848,981	—	—

(I) Analysis of cash flow changes in 2023: The Company's net cash in 2023 decreased from 2022 by NT\$175,078 thousand. The cash flow changes of various operating activities are as follows:

- 1. Net inflows from operating activities in the amount of NT\$244,965 thousand: mainly due to the decrease in accounts receivable and inventories this year compared with last year.
- 2. Net inflows from investing activities in the amount of NT\$7,011 thousand: mainly due to dividends income from equity securities.
- 3. Net outflows from financing activities in the amount of NT\$419,373 thousand: mainly due to the repayment of short-term loans in accordance with this year's capital scheduling plan.

(II) Measures to be taken to cope with a cash deficiency and liquidity analysis: N/A.

(III) Cash liquidity analysis for the coming year

Unit: NT\$1,000

	Estimated	Estimated	Estimated	Effects of	Cash surplus	Remed	ly for
Cash	net cash	net cash		exchange rate		estimate	•
opening		flows from		C	amount $(1) + (2) + (3) +$	short	
balance (1)	operating activities	investing activities	financing activities	cash and cash equivalents	., ., .,	Investment	
(1)	(2)	(3)	(3)	(5)		plan	plan
			. /	(-)		pian	pian
848,981	3,629	11,774	(45,156)	0	819,228	—	_

1. Analysis of annual cash flow changes:

Operating activities: It is projected that the net cash inflow from operating activities will be NT\$3,629 thousand.

Investing activities: It is expected that investing activities will bring in a net cash inflow of NT\$11,774 thousand.

Financing activities: The estimated net cash outflow from financing activities is NT\$45,156 thousand.

- 2. Measures to be taken to cope with a cash deficiency and liquidity analysis: There is no shortage of cash.
- IV. Effect of major capital expenditures on finance and business matters in the most recent year: None.
- V. Investment policy for the most recent year, the main reasons for profit or loss, improvement plan and investment plan for the coming year

	Unit: NT\$1,000										
Description	Carrying amount - ending balance (Note)		Main reasons for profit or loss	Remedial plan	Other						
Giteh Electronic Industries Co., Ltd.	565,762	Expand overseas markets	Gains of NT\$35,891 thousand from investment accounted for using the equity method were recognized in 2023, mainly due to recognition of the profits from the growth of sales of electronic products of Giteh as an agent.	None	None						
Howteh International Inc. (Samoa)	172,740	Expand overseas markets	In 2023, the investment loss of NT\$6,560 thousand was recognized, mainly due to the recognition of investees' losses.	None	None						
KunShan Howteh International Trading Inc.	(7,786)	Inject working capital to expand the mainland China market by leveraging China's policy incentives.	The gains of NT\$275 thousand on investment accounted for using the equity method were recognized in 2023, mainly due to development of new clients.	None	None						

Reinvestment Analysis Table

Note: The above disclosures are investment whose amount exceeds 5% of the paid-in capital as of 2023.

VI. Analysis and assessment of risks:

(I) Risk management organizational structure:

The Company manages the risks incidental to each type of its business by following its internal regulations and assesses the risks inherent to its each type of its operating activities by assigning the risk assessment task to relevant departments. In addition, the management will be briefed on the risks according to the significance of such risks. The audit unit must review the risks entailed in each type of operation to formulate and implement an audit plan. Below are the duties with respect to risk assessment that are assigned to the various relevant departments:

Name of department	Duties
General Manager's	Responsible for formulating business strategy and assessing medium- and
Office	long-term investment benefits, to reduce strategic risks.
	Responsible for grasping customers' intention and needs and continuing to
Business units	develop new customers and new markets, which will facilitate business
	expansion and reduce operating risks.
Finance Division	Responsible for catering to the Company's overall operating needs; effectively implementing the procedures and methods for financial and accounting management; managing the Company's working capital; formulating and modifying the internal control system; and making reliable financial reporting and complying with the relevant laws and regulations to reduce the impact on the financial and business front.
Group Supporting Units	Responsible for network and information security control and protection, preservation and management of the Company's various databases, and normal operation of the ERP system, to reduce information-related risks; and for contract reviews, litigation, and disputes to reduce legal risks.

- (II) The effect upon the company's profits (losses) of interest and exchange rate fluctuations and changes in the inflation rate and response measures to be taken in the future:
 - 1. The impact of changes in interest rate in the most recent year on the company's profit and loss, and future response measures:
 - (1) The company's annual interest expense in 2023 is NT\$14,103 thousand.
 - (2) The Group conducts an interest rate sensitivity analysis mainly for the accounts exposed to interest rate risks at the end of the reporting date, including investment with a floating interest rate, loans with a floating interest rate, and interest rate swap contracts. The Company expects its profits in 2023 and 2022 to decrease by NT\$401 thousand and NT\$805 thousand, respectively, based on the assumption that the interest rate increases by 10 basis points in a given fiscal year in which the Group holds such investments.
 - (3) The Company is able to get a relatively low interest rate due to its good operating performance, sound financial structure and good corporate reputation, and does not expect itself to be significantly impacted by interest rate changes in the future.
 - 2. The impact of changes in interest rate in the most recent year on the company's profit and loss and future response measures:
 - (1) In 2023, the Company recognized net foreign currency exchange gains of NT\$13,694 thousand.
 - (2) The Group conducts an exchange rate risk sensitivity analysis mainly to gain the understanding of the impact of major foreign currency monetary items on the Group's profit or loss were each relevant foreign currency to depreciate/appreciate at the end of the reporting period. The Group mainly faces exchange rate risks from the USD, CNY, and HKD, for which a sensitivity analysis is provided below:
 - If the TWD appreciates by 1% against the USD, the Group's profits in 2023 and 2022 will decrease by NT\$6,220 thousand and NT\$8,230 thousand, respectively.
 - If the TWD appreciates by 1% against the CNY, the Group's profits in 2023 and 2022 will decrease by NT\$2,541 thousand and NT\$2,802 thousand, respectively.

- If the TWD appreciates by 1% against the HKD, the Group's profits in 2023 and 2022 will decrease by NT\$3,916 thousand and NT\$3,348 thousand, respectively.
- (3) A certain portion of the Group's foreign currency receivables and foreign currency payables is denominated in the same currency, creating a natural hedging effect. However, to cope with the excessively volatile exchange rate fluctuation in the market recently, the Company will manage to minimize the differences between its rights of claim and its debt and adjust its foreign currency position in order to minimized foreign exchange rate risks.
- 3. The impact of inflation in the most recent year on the company's profit and loss, and future response measures:

The increase in materials price in 2023 also slightly drove up the quotations given by suppliers for some parts and materials; however, this did not significantly impact the Company's profit or loss.

- (III) The company's policy regarding high-risk investments, highly leveraged investments, loans to other parties, endorsements, guarantees, and derivatives transactions; the main reasons for the profits/losses generated thereby; and response measures to be taken in the future:
 - 1. Engagement in high-risk, highly-leveraged investments The Company focuses on its core business, and has not been engaged in in high-risk, highly-leveraged investment.
 - 2. Engagement in loaning of funds to others and providing endorsement or guarantee In the most recent year and in the current year as of the date of publication of the annual report, loaning of funds and provision of endorsement and guarantee took place only between the Company and subsidiaries in which the Company holds 100% stake, and among subsidiaries, in accordance with the policy and measures formulated by reference to the Company's" Procedures for Extending Loans to Others" and "Procedures for Endorsements and Guarantees". Relevant operation is carried out cautiously by taking into account risk conditions and relevant regulations.
 - 3. Engagement in derivatives trading The Company's derivatives trading policy mainly aims to hedge risks. In the most recent year and in the current year as of the publication date of the annual report, the Company did not engage in any derivatives trading.
- (IV) Estimated R&D plans and R&D expenses for the future Since the Company is a product sales agent and trader, the Company did not incur any R&D expenses in both 2023 and 2022 and still has no plan to develop an R&D budget for 2024.
- (V) Effect on the company's financial operations of important policies adopted and changes in the legal environment at home and abroad, and measures to be taken in response. The Company keeps abreast of the regulatory framework that might impact its operations, and revises its internal systems and regulations accordingly. Starting from 2013, the Company fully adopted the IFRS for preparation of financial statements. Since the amendments to IFRS will be successively released, the Company will be vigilant and set to cooperate by forming response measures.
- (VI) The impact of technological changes (including information security risks) and industrial changes on the company's financial and business performance and response measures: Technological development indeed opens up tremendous business opportunities for the Company. The Company has staffed the President's Office with dedicated personnel responsible for grasping the industrial development trends by utilizing the industrial information obtained at the meetings held by the industry or online, and the information based on the sales persons' mastery of the market trend, thereby formulating the Company's development strategy and recommending and planning the launch of new products and boosting operating performance in the future. Moreover, with the development of technology, the Company is faced with increasing information security risks. In an effort to improve the overall information security protection, we perform information security control by strengthening intrusion detection protection, completing off-site backup and information access

control mechanism while providing periodic information security education to reduce information security risks.

- (VII) Effect of changes in corporate image on corporate crisis management and measures to be taken in response:
 - 1. The Company has been incorporated for more than 40 years. During its engagement in the electronic and information industry, HOWTEH has been practicing its core values of "Trustworthiness and teamwork", "Improvement in quality" and "Customer Service", striving to offer the best service to its high-tech client base. In the past, by integrating the supply and demand throughout the downstream, midstream and upstream, HOWTEH gave a brilliant performance as a leading distributor, which also made huge contribution to clients, winning not only recognition but also trust and support from clients. Therefore, the Company has never been subject to any negative coverage in the industry, which is what we are proud of.
 - 2. To cope with the revolution that comes with rapid industrial development, HOWTEH, aside from upholding the three set of core values as mentioned above, is actively promoting its business philosophy of "Innovation and Growth." By leveraging the various types of innovative technology logistics and constantly introducing new products, the Company gives full play to its powers of integration, thereby providing clients with comprehensive total solutions; this will not only ease clients' worries about "business flow, information flow, and money flow" but also bring considerable business opportunities to the Company, potentially boosting the operating profits.

(VIII)Expected benefits and possible risks associated with any merger and acquisitions: None.

(IX)Expected benefits and possible risks associated with any plant expansion: None.

(X) Risks associated with any consolidation of sales or purchasing operations: None.

- (XI)Effect upon and risk to the company in the event a major quantity of shares belonging to shareholders holding greater than a 10 percent stake in the company has been transferred or has otherwise changed hands: None.
- (XII)Effect upon and risk to company associated with any change in governance personnel or top management: None.

(XIII)Litigious and non-litigious matters: None.

(XIV)Other important risks, and mitigation measures being or to be taken.: None

VII. Other important matters: None.

Eight. Special Items

I. Information on affiliates

(I) Organizational chart of affiliates



(II) Basic information on affiliates

Foreign c	urrency unit:	in	1 000	foreign	currency	dollars
I Ofergine	unitency unit.	m	1,000	Torongin	currency	uonais

Company	Date of		l orongi	1 currency unit: in 1,000 foreign currency dollars
Company name	incorporation	Address	Paid-in capital	Main business activities or products
Giteh Electronic Industries Co., Ltd.	6.23.1993	Room 19-30, 19th Floor, Enterprise Center, No.11, On Lai Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong	(@3.929)	Trading of electronic parts.
HOWTEH International Inc.(Samoa)	12.6.2002	Vistra Corporate Services Centre, Ground Floor NPF Building, Beach Road, Apia Samoa.		Investment in ShangHai Howteh International Trading Inc., and intermediary trade
ShangHai Howteh International Trading Inc.	12.31.2002	Room 903, Building 2, Jitian International Plaza, No. 999, Bailu South Road, Kunshan Development Zone, Jiangsu Province		International trade, intermediary trade, trade among enterprises in the bonded area, trade as an agent in the bonded area, trade with non-bonded area enterprises through enterprises with import and export rights as an agent, simple commercial processing in the bonded area, and business consulting services in the bonded area.
ShenZhen Howteh Technology Co., Ltd.	10.24.2005	Room 1101, Block A, Union Square, No. 5022, Binhe Avenue, Fushan Community, Futian Street, Futian District, Shenzhen		Wholesale, sale on a commission basis, import and export of chemical products, rubber / plastic / metal products, electronic components, testing instruments, general parts, machinery and equipment, electronic devices and related accessories, and electrical equipment and spare parts thereof, and supporting businesses. Electronic product information consultation, economic information consultation, enterprise management consultation.
KunShan Howteh International Trading Inc.	4.29.2014	Room 903, Building 2, Jitian International Plaza, No. 999, Bailu South Road, Kunshan Development Zone, Jiangsu Province		International trade, intermediary trade, trade among enterprises in the bonded area, trade as an agent in the bonded area, trade with non-bonded area enterprises through enterprises with import and export rights as an agent, simple commercial processing in the bonded area, and business consulting services in the bonded area.
Howteh Vietnam Co., Ltd.	07.01.2020	Room 12B20, C2 building, Vinhomes D'Capitale, 119 Tran Duy Hung Street, Trung Hoa Ward, Cau Giay District, Hanoi City, Vietnam	(@30.705)	Trading of electronic parts.

- (III) Information on the same shareholder of associates presumed to have a relationship of control or subordination: none.
- (IV) Description of business relationship
 - 1. The industries covered by the affiliates as a whole including the following:
 - (1) Import and export, sale in the capacity of an agent, and trading of passive electronic components, active electronic components, electronic devices and mechanical equipment.
 - (2) Equipment and system integration and maintenance services.
 - (3) Process chemicals and raw materials.
 - (4) Investment industry
 - (5) Intermediary trade.

2. Division of labor among affiliates whose business is associated with one another Howteh Technology Co., Ltd. is engaged in proportion and sale of electronic components, PCB and optoelectronic equipment, and maintenance in Hong Kong, China, and Southeast Asian countries through its five affiliates in Hong, Eastern and Southern China and Southeast Asia, namely, Giteh Electronic Industries Co., Ltd., ShangHai Howteh International Trading Inc., ShenZhen Howteh Technology Co., Ltd., KunShan Howteh International Trading Inc. and Howteh Vietnam Co., Ltd. In addition to business sales, those affiliates also intensively exchange information on product technology, information security, financial tools, risk assessment and insurance.

(V) Information on directors, supervisors, and presidents of affiliates

		Foreign currency unit: ir	n 1,000 foreign c	currency dollars		
			Share	Shares held		
Company name	Title	Name or representative	Capital contribution	Shareholding percentage		
Giteh Electronic Industries Co.,	Stockholder	Howteh Technology Co., Ltd.	HKD12,000	100.00%		
Ltd.	Director	Wu, Li-Shan	0	0.00%		
Howteh International Inc. (Samoa)	Director	Howteh Technology Co., Ltd. Representative: Wu, Li-Shan	USD1,800	100.00%		
ShangHai Howteh International Trading Inc.	Director	Howteh International Inc. (Samoa) Representative: Wu, Li-Shan	USD1,650	100.00%		
ShenZhen Howteh Technology Co., Ltd.	Director	Giteh Electronic Industries Co., Ltd. Representative: Yang, Kai-Ju	HKD7,000	100.00%		
KunShan Howteh International Trading Inc.	Director	Howteh Technology Co., Ltd. Representative: Wu, Li-Shan	USD300	100.00%		
Howteh Vietnam Co., Ltd.	Director	Howteh International Inc. (Samoa) Representative: Wu, Li-Shan	USD300	100.00%		

(VI) Operating status of each affiliate

Unit: NT\$1,000										
							Profit or	Earnings		
Company name	Registere	Total	Total	Net worth	Operating		loss	per share		
	d capital	assets	liabilities	i tet wortin	revenue	(loss) profit	(after tax)	(NT\$)		
								(after taxes)		
Giteh Electronic	47,148	674,131	107,364	566,767	612,708	33,948	36,390	—		
Industries Co.,										
Ltd.										
Howteh	55,269	172,771	0	172,771	0	(49)	(6,585)			
International Inc.	55,209	1/2,//1	0	1/2,//1	0	(49)	(0,383)			
(Samoa)										
(Sumou)										
ShangHai Howteh	50,663	184,783	21,935	162,848	196,145	(7,352)	(5,171)			
International	,		· · · ·	<i>,</i>	· ·	()				
Trading Inc.										
ShenZhen Howteh	27,503	121,331	41,325	80,006	149,573	(2,853)	(2,182)			
Technology Co.,	27,505	121,331	H1,525	80,000	17,575	(2,055)	(2,102)			
Ltd.										
2										
KunShan Howteh	9,212	1,812	9,598	(7,786)	9,173	236	275			
International	9,212	1,012	9,598	(7,780)	9,175	230	215			
Trading Inc.										
Trading nie.										
TT (1 T7)	0.010	4.075	22.4	4 5 4 1	1.0.00	(1,2)	(1.200)			
Howteh Vietnam	9,212	4,875	334	4,541	4,069	(1,363)	(1,300)	—		
Co., Ltd.										

(VII) Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises

Since the consolidated entities are the same as those in the Consolidated Financial Statements of Howteh Technology Co., Ltd. for 2023, we do not separately prepare another set of Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises. Please refer to the Consolidated Financial Statements of Howteh Technology Co., Ltd. for 2023.

(VIII) Affiliation Report: not applicable.

- II. Private placement of marketable securities in the most recent year and the current year up till the publication date of this annual report: none.
- III. Holding or disposal of the Company's shares by its subsidiaries in the most recent year and the current year up to the publication date of this annual report: none.
- IV. Other matters that require additional explanation: none.
- Nine. Whether any of the situations listed in Subparagraph 2, Paragraph 3, Article 36 of the Securities and Exchange Act, which might materially affect shareholders' equity or the price of the company's securities, have occurred during the most recent fiscal year or during the current fiscal year up to the date of publication of the annual report: none.

MANAGEMENT REPRESENTATION LETTER

The entities that are required to be included in the combined financial statements of HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. as of December 31, 2023 and for the year then ended under the Criteria Governing the Preparation of Affiliation Reports, Consolidated Business Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises are the same as those included in the consolidated financial statements prepared in conformity with the International Financial Reporting Standard No. 10, "Consolidated Financial Statements." In addition, the information required to be disclosed in the combined financial statements is included in the consolidated financial statements. Consequently, HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. and Subsidiaries do not prepare a separate set of combined financial statements.

Very truly yours,

HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.

By

Chen, Kuo-Hung

Chairman

March 14, 2024

Independent Auditors' Report Translated from Chinese

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. (the "Company") and its subsidiaries (the "Group") as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including the summary of significant accounting policies (together "the consolidated financial statements").

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and its consolidated financial performance and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, in accordance with the requirements of the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC Interpretations that came into effect as endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission endorsed and became effective by Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of the Republic of China (the "Norm"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Norm. Based on our audits, we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of 2023 consolidated financial statements. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

1. <u>Revenue recognition</u>

The Group's recognized a net operating income of NT\$2,743,028 thousand in the year of 2023. Due to the diversity of the Group's products, the sales of domestic and foreign markets, and the different trading conditions, we believe that it is important to decide the performance obligation and the timing of the fulfillment of which. Thus, we conclude that revenue recognition is a key audit matter.

Our audit procedure include, but not limited to, assessing the appropriateness of accounting policies for revenue recognition, understanding and testing the design and implementation of internal controls related to the sales cycle; selecting samples to perform transaction detail tests, inspecting the transaction records and checking the important terms in the order or contract, identifying the performance obligation of the order or contract and confirming the time point of satisfaction; performing cut-off tests for a period of time around the end of the year, including obtaining the customer's original order or contract, inspecting the trading conditions and checking the relevant vouchers to verify the correctness of the transaction recognition point and confirming that the performance obligation has been satisfied; performing analytical procedures such as analysis of gross margin fluctuation and sales changes of the top 10 customers, and inspecting the significant sales returns and discounts if any subsequent to the balance sheet date to confirm the reasonableness of the timing of revenue recognition.

We have also evaluated the appropriateness of the related disclosure in notes 4 and 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

2. <u>Inventory valuation of inventories</u>

As of December 31, 2023, the Group's net inventories amounted to NT\$257,597 thousand, which accounted for approximately 11% of the total consolidated assets. Considering that products technology and market changes has significant impact on inventory turnover and selling prices, that the management's assessment of the net realization value of inventory is important to the financial statements. Thus, we conclude that inventory valuation is a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures include, but not limited to, performing analytical procedures such as days of inventory turnover to assess the reasonableness of inventory valuation accounting policies (including provisions for slow-moving and obsolete inventory and net realizable value of inventory); selecting inventory samples from different inventory aging buckets, verifying transaction vouchers and comparing transaction records to confirm the accuracy of inventory aging; selecting samples with large amounts and considering the recent market prices to assess the reasonableness of the net realizable value of the inventory adopted by management.

We have also evaluated the appropriateness of the related disclosure in notes 4, 5 and 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the requirements of the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and international Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards, Interpretations developed by the International Financial Reporting Standards International Committee or the former Standing Interpretations Committee as endorsed and became effective by Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the ability to continue as a going concern of the Group, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- 2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control of the Company and its subsidiaries.
- 3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
- 4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability to continue as a going concern of the Company and its subsidiaries. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company and its subsidiaries to cease to continue as a going concern.
- 5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the accompanying notes, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
- 6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of 2023 consolidated financial statements and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other

We have audited and expressed an unqualified opinion on the parent company only financial statements of the Company for the years 2022 and 2023.

Hsuan-Hsuan Wang

Chih-Ming Chang

Ernst & Young, Taiwan

March 14, 2024

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are intended only to present the financial position, results of operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such consolidated financial statements are those generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China.

Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial statements and report of independent auditors are not intended for use by those who are not informed about the accounting principles or Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, and their applications in practice. As the financial statements are the responsibility of the management, Ernst & Young cannot accept any liability for the use of, or reliance on, the English translation or for any errors or misunderstandings that may derive from the translation.

HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022 (Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

			December 31,	2023	December 31.	, 2022
CODE	ASSETS	NOTES	AMOUNT	%	AMOUNT	%
	CURRENT ASSETS					
1100	Cash and cash equivalents	4,6,12	\$848,981	34	\$1,024,059	35
1150	Notes receivable, net	4,5,6,12	414	-	2,663	-
1170	Accounts receivable, net	4,5,6,7,12	882,852	35	954,120	33
1200	Other receivables	5,12	46	-	125	-
1220	Current tax assets	4,5,6	4,837	-	2,378	-
130x	Current inventories	4,5,6	257,597	11	369,742	13
1410	Prepayments	6	9,750	-	119,381	4
11xx	Total current assets		2,004,477	80	2,472,468	85
	NONCURRENT ASSETS					
1517	Non-current financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income	4,6,12	298,908	12	227,186	8
1600	Property, plant and equipment	4,6,8	109,513	4	111,174	4
1755	Right-of-use assets	4,6	19,708	1	20,503	1
1760	Investment property, net	4,5,6,12	8,548	-	8,660	-
1780	Intangible assets	4,6	840	-	528	-
1840	Deferred income tax assets	4,5,6	13,535	1	13,540	-
1920	Guarantee deposits paid	9,12	55,220	2	53,612	2
1990	Other non-current assets, others	4,5,6	8,840	-	8,075	-
15xx	Total noncurrent assets		515,112	20	443,278	15
1xxx	TOTAL ASSETS		\$2,519,589	100	\$2,915,746	100

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.)

HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022 (Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

			December 31,	2023	December 31	, 2022
CODE	LIABILITIES AND EQUITY	NOTES	AMOUNT	%	AMOUNT	%
	CURRENT LIABILITIES					
2100	Current borrowings	4,6,8,9,12	\$590,000	24	\$903,000	31
2130	Current contract liabilities	4,6	1,901	-	108,189	4
2170	Accounts payable	12	265,253	11	292,506	10
2200	Other payables	7,12	85,739	3	79,593	3
2230	Current tax liabilities	4,5,6	758	-	41,529	1
2280	Current lease liabilities	4,6,12	10,879	-	8,523	-
2399	Other current liabilities, others		1,088	-	1,212	-
21xx	Total current liabilities		955,618	38	1,434,552	49
	NONCURRENT LIABILITIES					
2570	Deferred tax liabilities	4,5,6	3,409	-	3,267	-
2580	Non-current lease liabilities	4,6,12	10,154	1	13,169	1
2645	Guarantee deposits received	12	3,309	-	3,314	-
2670	Other non-current liabilities, others		230		231	
25xx	Total non-current liabilities		17,102	1	19,981	1
2xxx	TOTAL LIABILITIES		972,720	39	1,454,533	50
31xx	EQUITY					
3100	Share capital	6				
3110	Common stock		651,298	26	626,248	21
3200	Capital surplus	6	52,062	2	52,062	2
3300	Retained earnings	6				
3310	Legal reserve		225,647	9	204,597	7
3320	Special reserve		3,340	-	3,340	-
3350	Unappropriated retained earnings		400,655	16	427,121	15
3400	Other equity interest	4,6	213,867	8	147,845	5
3xxx	TOTAL EQUITY		1,546,869	61	1,461,213	50
	TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY		\$2,519,589	100	\$2,915,746	100

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of the parent company only financial statements.)

HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022 (Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings Per Share)

			2023	2022		
CODE	ITEMS	NOTES	AMOUNT	%	AMOUNT	%
4000	Operating revenue	4,6,7	\$2,743,028	100	\$3,244,029	100
5000	Operating costs	6,7	(2,455,641)	(90)	(2,890,026)	(89)
5900	Gross profit		287,387	10	354,003	11
6000	Operating expenses					
6100	Selling expenses		(118,518)	(4)	(126,043)	(4)
6200	Administrative expenses		(74,946)	(3)	(83,272)	(3)
6450	Reversal of credit loss (expected credit loss)		5,805		(13,672)	
	Total operating expenses	4,5,6,7	(187,659)	(7)	(222,987)	(7)
6900	Operating income		99,728	3	131,016	4
7000	Non-operating income and expenses					
7100	Interest income	6	10,820	-	4,732	-
7010	Other income	4,5,6	17,943	1	22,603	1
7020	Other gains and losses	6,12	13,071	-	114,827	4
7050	Finance costs	4,6	(14,103)	-	(14,498)	-
	Total non-operating income and expense		27,731	1	127,664	5
7900	Income before income tax		127,459	4	258,680	9
7950	Income tax expense	4,5,6	(26,687)	(1)	(49,881)	(2)
8200	Net income		100,772	3	208,799	7
8300	Other comprehensive income (loss)	4,6				
8310	Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss	1,0				
8311	Remeasurements of defined benefit plans		342	_	2,131	-
8316	Unrealize gain (loss) on equity instrument at fair value		•		_,	
0010	through other comprehensive income		71,722	3	46,846	1
8349	Income tax expense related to items that will			-	,	
	not be reclassified subsequently		(68)	-	(426)	-
8360	Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss					
8381	Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations		(5,700)	-	46,103	1
8300	Total other comprehensive income, net of tax		66,296	3	94,654	2
8500	Total comprehensive income		\$167,068	6	\$303,453	9
8600	Net income attributable to:					
8610	Net income, attributable to owners of parent		\$100,772	4	\$208,799	6
8620	Comprehensive income, attributable to non-controlling interests		-	-	-	-
	comprenensive meanine, autoautore to non controlling interests		\$100,772	4	\$208,799	6
8700	Comprehensive income attributable to:					
8710	Comprehensive income, attributable to owners of parent		\$167,068	6	\$303,453	9
8720	Comprehensive income, attributable to non-controlling interests		-	-		
			\$167,068	6	\$303,453	9
9750	Basic earnings per share (in NTD)	6	\$1.55		\$3.21	
9850	Diluted earnings per share (in NTD)	6	\$1.54		\$3.19	

(The accompanying notes are	an integra	l part of the	consolidated	financial statements	.)

HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

				R	etained Earning	'S	Other Com equ	-	
		Common	Capital	Legal	Special	Unappropriated Retained	Exchange differences arising on translation	Unrealized gains/losses on financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive	
	Items	Stock	Surplus	Reserve	Reserve	Earnings	of foreign operations	income	Total equity
Code		3100	3200	3310	3320	3350	3410	3420	3XXX
A1	Balance, January 1, 2022	\$590,800	\$52,062	\$190,269	\$3,340	\$319,565	\$(53,437)	\$108,333	\$1,210,932
	Appropriation of 2021 earnings:								
B1	Legal reserve	-	-	14,328	-	(14,328)	-	-	-
B5	Cash dividends	-	-	-	-	(53,172)	-	-	(53,172)
B9	Stock dividends	35,448	-	-	-	(35,448)	-	-	-
D1	Net income for the year	-	-	-	-	208,799	-	-	208,799
D3	Other comprehensive income for the year	-	-	-	-	1,705	46,103	46,846	94,654
D5	Total comprehensive income for the year	-	-	-	-	210,504	46,103	46,846	303,453
Z1	Balance, December 31, 2022	\$626,248	\$52,062	\$204,597	\$3,340	\$427,121	\$(7,334)	\$155,179	\$1,461,213
A1	Balance, January 1, 2023	\$626,248	\$52,062	\$204,597	\$3,340	\$427,121	\$(7,334)	\$155,179	\$1,461,213
	Appropriation of 2022 earnings:								
B1	Legal reserve	-	-	21,050	-	(21,050)	-	-	-
B5	Cash dividends	-	-	-	-	(81,412)	-	-	(81,412)
B9	Stock dividends	25,050	-	-	-	(25,050)	-	-	-
D1	Net income for the year	-	-	-	-	100,772	-	-	100,772
D3	Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year	-	-	-	-	274	(5,700)	71,722	66,296
D5	Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year	-	-	-		101,046	(5,700)	71,722	167,068
Z1	Balance, December 31, 2023	\$651,298	\$52,062	\$225,647	\$3,340	\$400,655	\$(13,034)	\$226,901	\$1,546,869

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.)

HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022 (Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Code		2023	2022	Code		2023	2022
AAAA	CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:			BBBB	CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:		
A10000	Income before income tax	\$127,459	\$258,680	B02700	Acquisition of property, plant and equipment	(776)	(655)
A20000	Adjustments to reconcile net loss before tax to net			B03700	Refundable deposits	(1,608)	(4,793)
A20010	Profit or loss not effecting cash flows:			B04500	Acquisition of intangible assets	(555)	-
A20100	Depreciation expense	13,439	12,618	B07600	Dividends received	9,950	7,462
A20200	Amortization expense	243	215	BBBB	Net cash generated from investing activities	7,011	2,014
A20300	Expected credit loss (reversal of credit loss)	(5,805)	13,672				
A20900	Interest expense	14,103	14,498	CCCC	Cash flows from financing activities:		
A21200	Interest income	(10,820)	(4,732)	C00100	Increase in short-term loan	3,142,000	4,752,000
A21300	Dividend income	(9,950)	(7,462)	C00200	Decrease in short-term loan	(3,455,000)	(4,879,000)
A29900	Profit from lease modification	(18)	-	C00500	Increase in short-term notes and bills payable	50,000	100,000
A30000	Changes in operating assets and liabilities:			C00600	Decrease in short-term notes and bills payable	(50,000)	(130,000)
A31130	Decrease (increase) in notes receivable	2,249	10,344	C04020	Payment of the principal portion of lease liabilities	(11,839)	(10,738)
A31150	Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable	79,170	305,767	C04300	Increase in other non-current liabilities	(1)	67
A31180	Decrease (increase) in other receivables	(344)	4,706	C04500	Cash dividends paid	(81,412)	(53,172)
A31200	Decrease (increase) in inventories	112,145	157,743	C05600	Interest paid	(13,121)	(13,354)
A31230	Decrease (increase) in prepayments	109,631	(33,504)	CCCC	Net cash used in by financing activities	(419,373)	(234,197)
A32125	Inicrease (dcreasee) in contract liabilities	(106,288)	11,353				
A32150	Inicrease (dcreasee) in accounts payable	-	(20)	DDDD	Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents	(7,681)	46,171
A32150	Inicrease (dcreasee) in other payables	(27,253)	(164,940)	EEEE	Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents	(175,078)	378,820
A32180	Inicrease (dcreasee) in other current liabilities	6,146	814	E00100	Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period	1,024,059	645,239
A32230	Inicrease (dcreasee) other current liabilities	(124)	(474)	E00200	Cash and cash equivalents at end of period	\$848,981	\$1,024,059
A33000	Cash generated from operations	303,983	579,278				
A33100	Interest received	10,820	4,732				
A33500	Income tax paid	(69,838)	(19,178)				
AAAA	Net cash generated from operating activities	244,965	564,832				

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.)

HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FAINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 (Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars Unless Specified Otherwise)

1. History and organization

Howtech Technology Co., Ltd. (referred to "the Company") which was formally known as Howtech Enterprise Co., Ltd, has applied to change its name to Howtech Technology Co., Ltd. In December 28, 2000, and was incorporated in September 23, 1978. The Company is engaged mainly in trading and agency business in passive electronic components, active electronic components, integrated circuit carrier board equipment, chemicals and raw materials, semiconductors and optical equipment. The Company's common shares were publicly listed on the Taipei Exchange (TPEX) on March 25, 2004. The Company's registered office and the main business location is at 6F, No. 25, Section 1, Dunhua South Road, Taipei City, Republic of China (R.O.C.).

2. The authorization of financial statements

The consolidated financial statements of Howtech Technology Co., Ltd. and subsidiaries (referred to "the Group") were authorized for issuance by the Board of Directors on March 14, 2024.

3. Application of New Standards, Amendments and Interpretations

(1) Changes in accounting policies resulting from applying for the first-time certain standards and amendments

The Group applied for the first time International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards, and Interpretations issued, revised or amended which are recognized by Financial Supervisory Commission ("FSC") and become effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. The adoption of these new standards and amendments had no material impact on the Group.

(2) Standards or interpretations issued, revised or amended, by International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") which are endorsed by FSC, but not yet adopted by the Group as at the end of the reporting period are listed below.

		Effective Date
	New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations	issued by IASB
a	Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current	January 1, 2024
	- Amendments to IAS 1	
b	Leases Liability in a Sale and Leaseback - Amendments to IFRS	January 1, 2024
	16	
c	Non-current Liabilities with Covenants - Amendments to IAS 1	January 1, 2024

	New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations	issued by IASB			
d	Supplier Finance Arrangements - Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS	January 1, 2024			

(a) Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current - Amendments to IAS 1

These are the amendments to paragraphs 69-76 of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial statements and the amended paragraphs related to the classification of liabilities as current or non-current.

(b) Leases Liability in a Sale and Leaseback - Amendments to IFRS 16

The amendments add seller-lessees additional requirements for the sale and leaseback transactions in IFRS 16, thereby supporting the consistent application of the standard.

(c) Non-current Liabilities with Covenants - Amendments to IAS 1

The amendments improved the information companies provide about long-term debt with covenants. The amendments specify that covenants to be complied within twelve month after the reporting period do not affect the classification of debts as current or non-current at the end of the reporting period.

(d) Supplier Finance Arrangements - Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7

The amendments introduced additional information of supplier finance arrangements and added disclosure requirements for such arrangements.

The abovementioned standards and interpretations were issued by IASB and endorsed by FSC so that they are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2024. The Group assesses all standards and interpretations have no material impact on the Group.

(3) Standards or interpretations issued, revised or amended, by IASB which are not endorsed by FSC, and not yet adopted by the Group as at the end of the reporting period are listed below.

		Effective Date
	New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations	issued by IASB
a	Sale or Contribution of Assets between An Investor and Its Associate or Joint Venture - Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28	
b	IFRS 17 "Insurance Contracts"	January 1, 2023

	Effective Date
New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations	issued by IASB
c Lack of Exchangeability - Amendments to IAS 21	January 1, 2025

(a) IFRS 10 "Consolidated Financial Statements" and IAS 28 "Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures" — Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Ventures

The amendments address the inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, in dealing with the loss of control of a subsidiary that is contributed to an associate or a joint venture. IAS 28 restricts gains and losses arising from contributions of non-monetary assets to an associate or a joint venture to the extent of the interest attributable to the other equity holders in the associate or joint ventures. IFRS 10 requires full profit or loss recognition on the loss of control of the subsidiary. IAS 28 was amended so that the gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that constitute a business as defined in IFRS 3 between an investor and its associate or joint venture is recognized in full.

IFRS 10 was also amended so that the gains or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of a subsidiary that does not constitute a business as defined in IFRS 3 between an investor and its associate or joint venture is recognized only to the extent of the unrelated investors' interests in the associate or joint venture.

(b) IFRS 17 "Insurance Contracts"

IFRS 17 provides a comprehensive model for insurance contracts, covering all relevant accounting aspects (including recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure requirements). The core of IFRS 17 is the General (building block) Model, under this model, on initial recognition, an entity shall measure a group of insurance contracts at the total of the fulfilment cash flows and the contractual service margin. The carrying amount of a group of insurance contracts at the end of each reporting period shall be the sum of the liability for remaining coverage and the liability for incurred claims.

Other than the General Model, the standard also provides a specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the Variable Fee Approach) and a simplified approach (Premium Allocation Approach) mainly for short-duration contracts.

IFRS 17 was issued in May 2017 and it was amended in 2020 and 2022. The amendments include deferral of the date of initial application of IFRS 17 by two years to annual beginning on or after January 1, 2023 (from the original effective date of

January 1, 2022); provide additional transition reliefs; simplify some requirements to reduce the costs of applying IFRS 17 and revise some requirements to make the results easier to explain. IFRS 17 replaces an interim Standard – IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts – from annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023.

(c) Lack of Exchangeability - Amendments to IAS 21

These amendments specify whether a currency is exchangeable into another currency and, when it is not, to determining the exchange rate to use and the disclosures to provide. The amendments apply for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2025.

The abovementioned standards and interpretations issued by IASB have not yet endorsed by FSC at the date when the Group's financial statements were authorized for issue, the local effective dates are to be determined by FSC. The Group assesses all standards and interpretations have no material impact on the Group.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(1) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 were prepared in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers ("the Regulations") and International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards, and Interpretations developed by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee or the former Standing Interpretations Committee as endorsed by the FSC.

(2) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial instruments that have been measured at fair value. The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars ("NT\$") unless otherwise specified.

(3) Basis of consolidation

Preparation principle of consolidated financial statements

Control is achieved when the Company is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power

over the investee. Specifically, the Company controls an investee if and only if the Company has:

- (A) Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee)
- (B) Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
- (C) The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

- (A) The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
- (B) Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
- (C) The Company's voting rights and potential voting rights

The Company re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the acquisition date, being the date on which the Company obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent company, using uniform accounting policies. All intra-group balances, income and expenses, unrealized gains and losses and dividends resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a change of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

Total comprehensive income of the subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the parent and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

If the Company loses control of a subsidiary, it:

- (A) Derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary;
- (B) Derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest;
- (C) Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received;
- (D) Recognizes the fair value of any investment retained;
- (E) Recognizes any surplus or deficit in profit or loss; and
- (F) Reclassifies the parent's share of components previously recognized in other

comprehensive income to profit or loss.

The consolidated entities are listed as follows:

Percentage of Ownership

			(%) , As of I	December 31,
Investor	Subsidiary	Main business	2023	2022
The Company	GITEH Electronic	Buy and Sale	100%	100%
	Industries Co.,Ltd.			
The Company	HOWTEH	Buy and Sale	100%	100%
	INTERNATIONAL INC.	and Investment		
The Company	KunShan HOWTEH	Buy and Sale	100%	100%
	International Trading Inc.			
GITEH Electronic	ShenZhen HOWTEH	Buy and Sale	100%	100%
Industries Co.,Ltd.	Technology Co., Ltd.			
HOWTEH	ShangHai HOWTECH	Buy and Sale	100%	100%
INTERNATIONAL INC.	International Trading Inc.			
HOWTEH	HOWTEH Vietnam Co.,	Buy and Sale	100%	100%
INTERNATIONAL INC.	Ltd.			

(4) Foreign currency transactions

The Group's consolidated financial statements are presented in New Taiwan Dollar, which is the parent company's functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group's entities at their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. At the reporting date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the prevailing functional currency closing rate of exchange. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are retranslated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined; and non-monetary items measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates of the initial transactions.

All exchange differences arising from the settlement or translation of monetary items are taken to profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for the following:

- (A) Exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings for an acquisition of a qualifying asset to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs are included in the borrowing costs that are eligible for capitalization.
- (B) Foreign currency items within the scope of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments are accounted for based on the accounting policy for financial instruments.
- (C) Exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of a reporting entity's net investment in a foreign operation is recognized initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal of the net investment.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognized in other comprehensive income, any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognized in other comprehensive income. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognized in profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.

(5) Translation of financial statements in foreign currency

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into New Taiwan dollars at the closing rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date and their income and expenses are translated at an average rate for the period. The exchange differences arising on the translation are recognized in other comprehensive income under exchange differences on translation of foreign operations. On disposal of the foreign operation, cumulative amount of the exchange differences recognized in other comprehensive income under separate component of equity is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when recognizing the disposal gain/loss.

On the partial disposal of a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation that does not result in a loss of control, the proportionate share of the cumulative amount of the exchange differences recognized in other comprehensive income is re-attributed to the NCIs in that foreign operation, instead of recognized in profit or loss. In partial disposal of an associate or jointly controlled entity that includes a foreign operation that does not result in a loss of significant influence or joint control, only the proportionate share of the cumulative amount of the exchange differences recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill generated due to acquisition of foreign operation by the group and fair value adjustments made towards the carrying value of foreign operations' assets and liabilities, are regarded as the assets and liabilities which belongs to the foreign operation and is reported in its own functional currency.

(6) Current and non-current distinction

An asset is classified as current when:

- (A) The Group expects to realize the asset, or intends to sell or consume it, in its normal operating cycle.
- (B) The Group holds the asset primarily for the purpose of trading.
- (C) The Group expects to realize the asset within twelve months after the reporting period.
- (D) The asset is cash or cash equivalent, unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:

- (A) The Group expects to settle the liability in its normal operating cycle.
- (B) The Group holds the liability primarily for the purpose of trading.
- (C) The liability is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period.
- (D) The Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
- (7) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value (including fixed-term deposits that have maturities equal to or less than three months from the date of acquisition).

(8) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Group determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. In accordance with IFRS 9 and the Regulations, financial assets of the Group are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, financial assets measured at amortized cost and notes, accounts and

other receivables. All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable costs. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the income statement.

(A) Financial assets: Recognition and Measurement

Purchase or sale of financial assets is recognized using trade date accounting.

The Group classified financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of both:

- (a) The Group's business model for managing the financial assets and
- (b) The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met and presented as note receivables, trade receivables financial assets measured at amortized cost and other receivables etc., on balance sheet as at the reporting date:

- (a) The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and
- (b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost (the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between the initial amount and the maturity amount and adjusted for any loss allowance) and is not part of a hedging relationship. A gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss when the financial asset is derecognized, through the amortization process or in order to recognise the impairment gains or losses. Interest revenue is calculated by using the effective interest method. This is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for:

- (a) Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets. For those financial assets, the Group applies the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the financial asset from initial recognition.
- (b) Financial assets that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets but subsequently have become credit-impaired financial assets. For those financial assets, the Group applies the effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the financial asset in subsequent reporting periods.

Financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the following conditions are met:

- (a) The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and
- (b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

Recognition of gain or loss on a financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are described as below:

- (a) A gain or loss on a financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income recognized in other comprehensive income, except for impairment gains or losses and foreign exchange gains and losses, until the financial asset is derecognized or reclassified.
- (b) When the financial asset is derecognized the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.
- (c) Interest revenue is calculated by using the effective interest method. This is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for:
 - (I) Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets. For those financial assets, the Group applies the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the financial asset from initial recognition.
 - (II) Financial assets that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets but subsequently have become credit-impaired financial assets. For those

financial assets, the Group applies the effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the financial asset in subsequent reporting periods.

Besides, for certain equity instrument within the scope of IFRS 9 that is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in a business combination to which IFRS 3 applies, the Group made an irrevocable election to present the changes of the fair value in other comprehensive income at initial recognition. Amounts presented in other comprehensive income are not be subsequently transferred to profit or loss (when disposal of such equity instrument, its cumulated amount included in other components of equity is transferred directly to the retained earnings) and these investments should be presented as financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income on balance sheet. Dividends on such investment are recognized in profit or loss unless the dividends clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of investment.

(B) Impairment of financial assets

The Group is recognized a loss allowance for expected credit losses on debt instrument investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income and financial asset measured at amortized cost. The loss allowance on debt instrument investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income is recognized in other comprehensive income and not reduce the carrying amount in the statement of financial position

The Group measures expected credit losses of a financial instrument in a way that reflects:

- (a) An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes;
- (b) The time value of money; and
- (c) reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

The loss allowance is measures as follow:

- A. At an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses: the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition or the financial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. In addition, the Group measures the loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses in the previous reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date that condition is no longer met.
- B. At an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses: the credit risk on a

financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition or financial asset that is purchased or originated credit-impaired financial asset.

- C. For trade receivables or contract assets arising from transactions within the scope of IFRS 15, the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.
- D. For lease receivables arising from transactions within the scope of IFRS 16, the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

At each reporting date, the Group needs to assess whether the credit risk on a financial asset has been increased significantly since initial recognition by comparing the risk of a default occurring at the reporting date and the risk of default occurring at initial recognition. Please refer to Note 12 for further details on credit risk

(C) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognized when:

- (a) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired
- (b) The Group has transferred the asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset have been transferre
- (c) The Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the consideration received or receivable including any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income, is recognized in profit or loss.

(D) Financial liabilities and equity

Classification between liabilities or equity

The Group classifies the instrument issued as a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the definitions of a financial liability, and an equity instrument

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. The transaction costs of an equity transaction are accounted for as a deduction from equity (net of any related income tax benefit) to the extent they are incremental costs directly attributable to the equity transaction that otherwise would have been avoided.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities within the scope of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or financial liabilities measured at amortized cost upon initial recognition.

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost include interest bearing loans and borrowings that are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate method after initial recognition. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the effective interest rate method amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor), such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in profit or loss.

(E) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

(9) Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- (A) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- (B) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

(10) Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value item by item.

Costs incurred in bringing each inventory to its present location and conditions are

accounted for as follows:

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Rendering of services is accounted in accordance with IFRS 15 and not within the scope of inventories.

(11)Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located and borrowing costs for construction in progress if the recognition criteria are met. Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced in intervals, the Group recognized such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciation, respectively. The carrying amount of those parts that are replaced is derecognized in accordance with the derecognition provisions of IAS 16 "Property, plant and equipment". When a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated economic lives of the following assets:

Buildings	60 years
Machinery and equipment	5 years
Office equipment	$3\sim 5$ years
Rigth-of-use asset	$2\sim 4$ years
Other equipment	3 years

An item of property, plant and equipment or any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognizion of the asset is recognized in profit or loss.

The asset's residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

(12)Investment property

The Group's owned investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying amount includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met and excludes the costs of day-to-day servicing of an investment property. Subsequent to initial recognition, other than those that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale (or are included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale) in accordance with IFRS 5 *Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations*, investment properties are measured using the cost model in accordance with the requirements of IAS 16 *Property, plant and equipment* for that model. If investment properties are held by a lessee as right-of-use assets and is not held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5, investment properties are measured in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 16.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated economic lives of the following assets:

Buildings 60 years

Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed of or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

The Group transfers properties to or from investment properties according to the actual use of the properties.

The Group transfers to or from investment properties when there is a change in use for these assets. Properties are transferred to or from investment properties when the properties meet, or cease to meet, the definition of investment property and there is evidence of the change in use.

(13)Leases

The Group assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a

lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time, the Group assesses whether, throughout the period of use, has both of the following:

- (A) The right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset; and
- (B) The right to direct the use of the identified asset.

For a contract that is, or contains, a lease, the Group accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from non-lease components of the contract. For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate standalone price of the non-lease components. The relative stand-alone price of lease and nonlease components shall be determined on the basis of the price the lessor, or a similar supplier, would charge the Group for that component, or a similar component, separately. If an observable stand-alone price is not readily available, the Group estimates the stand-alone price, maximising the use of observable information.

Group as a lessee

Except for leases that meet and elect short-term leases or leases of low-value assets, the Group recognizes right-of-use asset and lease liability for all leases which the Group is the lessee of those lease contracts.

At the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments are discounted using the implicit interest rate in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate. At the commencement date, the lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following payments for the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid at the commencement date:

- (A) fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;
- (B) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the

index or rate as at the commencement date

- (C) amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees
- (D) the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and
- (E) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability on an amortised cost basis, which increases the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability by using an effective interest method; and reduces the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

At the commencement date, the Group measures the right-of-use asset at cost. The cost of the right-of-use asset comprises:

- (A) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;
- (B) any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives received;
- (C) any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and
- (D) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

For subsequent measurement of the right-of-use asset, the Group measures the right-of-use asset at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. That is, the Group measures the right-of-use applying a cost model.

If the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Group by the end of the lease term or if the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group will exercise a purchase option, the Group depreciates the right-of-use asset from the commencement date to the end of the useful life of the underlying asset. Otherwise, the Group depreciates the right-of-use asset from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-ofuse asset or the end of the lease term.

The Group applies IAS 36 "Impairment of Assets" to determine whether the right-of-use asset is impaired and to account for any impairment loss identified.

Except for those leases that the Group accounted for as short-term leases or leases of low-value assets, the Group presents right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in the balance sheet and separately presents lease-related interest expense and depreciation charge in the statements comprehensive income.

For short-term leases or leases of low-value assets, the Group elects to recognize the lease payments associated with those leases as an expense on either a straight-line basis over the lease term or another systematic basis.

Group as a lessor

At inception of a contract, the Group classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset. At the commencement date, the Group recognizes assets held under a finance lease in its balance sheet and present them as a receivable at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease.

For a contract that contains lease components and non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract applying IFRS 15.

The Group recognizes lease payments from operating leases as rental income on either a straight-line basis or another systematic basis. Variable lease payments for operating leases that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as rental income when incurred.

(14)Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is its fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangible assets, not meeting the recognition criteria, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in profit or loss for the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each financial year. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Computer software

The cost of computer software is amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life (5 years).

A summary of the policies applied to the Group's intangible assets is as follows:

	Computer software		
Useful lives	Finite		
Amortization method used	Amortized on a straight- line basis over the estimated useful life		
Internally generated or acquired	Acquired		

(15)Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset in the scope of IAS 36 Impairment of Assets may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cashgenerating unit's ("CGU") fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset's or cashgenerating unit's recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been an increase in the estimated service potential of an asset which in turn increases the recoverable amount. However, the reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.

An impairment loss of continuing operations or a reversal of such impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss.

(16)Revenue recognition

The Group's revenue arising from contracts with customers mainly includes sale of goods. The accounting policies for the Group's types of revenue are explained as follow:

Sale of goods

The Group sells of its products. Sales are recognized when control of the goods is transferred to the customer and the goods are delivered to the customers. The main product of the Group is electronic components and equipments and revenue is recognized based on the consideration stated in the contract or the order.

The Group provides its customer with a warranty with the purchase of the products. The warranty provides assurance that the product will operate as expected by the customers. And the warranty is accounted in accordance with IAS 37.

The credit period of the Group's sale of goods is from 30 to 120 days. For most of the contracts, when the Group transfers the goods to customers and has a right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional, these contracts are recognized as trade receivables. The Group usually collects the payments shortly after transfer of goods to customers; therefore,

there is no significant financing component to the contract. For some of the contracts, the Group has received part of the consideration before transferring the goods to customers. Therefore, the Group has to undertake the obligation of transferring the goods afterwards, these contracts should be presented as contract liabilities.

(17)Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective assets. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

(18)Post-employment benefits

All regular employees of the Company are entitled to pension plans that are managed by an independently administered pension fund committee. Fund assets are deposited under the committee's name in the specific bank account and hence, not associated with the Company and its domestic subsidiaries. Therefore, fund assets are not included in the Group's consolidated financial statements. Pension benefits for employees of the overseas subsidiaries and the branches are provided in accordance with the respective local regulations.

For the defined contribution plan, the Company and its domestic subsidiaries will make a monthly contribution of no less than 6% of the monthly wages of the employees subject to the plan. The Company recognizes expenses for the defined contribution plan in the period in which the contribution becomes due. Overseas subsidiaries and branches make contribution to the plan based on the requirements of local regulations and the contribution is expensed as incurred.

Post-employment benefit plan that is classified as a defined benefit plan uses the Projected Unit Credit Method to measure its obligations and costs based on actuarial assumptions. Re-measurements, comprising of the effect of the actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest) and the return on plan assets, excluding net interest, are recognized as other comprehensive income with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings in the period in which they occur. Past service costs are recognized in profit or loss on the earlier of:

- (a) the date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
- (b) the date that the Group recognizes restructuring-related costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset, both as determined at the start of the annual reporting period, taking account of any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contribution and benefit payment.

(19)Income taxes

Income tax expense (income) is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss for the period in respect of current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Current income tax relating to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity is recognized in other comprehensive income or equity and not in profit or loss.

The income tax for undistributed earnings is recognized as income tax expense in the subsequent year when the distribution proposal is approved by the Shareholders' meeting.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

- (A) Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
- (B) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,

and associates and interests in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

- (A) Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; or
- (B) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will be reversed in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized according

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current income tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Amendments to IAS 12 "International Tax Reform - Pillar Two Model Rules" introduce a temporary exception to the requirements in IAS 12 by stipulating that the Company should

neither recognize nor disclose information about deferred tax assets and liabilities related to Pillar Two income taxes.

5. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

(1) Judgement

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements:

(a) Investment properties

Certain properties of the Group comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is owner-occupied. If these portions could be sold separately, the Group accounts for the portions separately as investment properties and property, plant and equipment.

(b) Operating lease commitment-Group as the lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

(2) Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below. (a) Accounts receivables - estimation of impairment loss

The Group estimates the impairment loss of accounts receivables at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. The credit loss is the present value of the difference between the contractual cash flows that are due under the contract (carrying amount) and the cash flows that expects to receive (evaluate forward looking information). However, as the impact from the discounting of short-term receivables is not material, the credit loss is measured by the undiscounted cash flows. Where the actual future cash flows are lower than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. Please refer to Note 6 for more details.

(b) Inventory valuation

As inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realization value, the Group must use judgment and estimation to determine the net realization value of inventory at the balance sheet date. Due to rapid technological change, the Group evaluates the amount of inventory at the balance sheet date due to normal wear and tear, obsolescence or no market value and writes the cost of inventory to net realized value. This inventory evaluation is mainly based on the estimated product demand for a specific period in the future and is subject to material changes.

(c) Pension benefits

The cost of post-employment benefit and the present value of the pension obligation under defined benefit pension plans are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions. These include the determination of the discount rate and changes of the future salary etc. The detailed illustrations of assumptions used to determine the cost of post-employment benefit and the present value of the pension obligation under defined benefit pension plans, are further explained in Note 6.

(d) Income tax

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of international business relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements, differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The Group establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible consequences of audits by the tax authorities of the respective counties in which it operates. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective Group company's domicile.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all carryforward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available or there are sufficient taxable temporary differences against which the unused tax losses, unused tax credits or deductible temporary differences can be utilized. The amount of deferred tax assets determined to be recognized is based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits and taxable temporary differences together with future tax planning strategies.

6. Contents of significant accounts

(1) Cash and cash equivalents

	December 31,	December 31,
	2023	2022
Cash on hand	\$330	\$472
Checking account deposits	36,804	35,979
Demand deposits	669,739	932,611
Time deposits	142,108	54,997
Total	\$848,981	\$1,024,059

(2) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

	December 31, 2023	December 31, 2022
Equity instrument investments measured at fair value		
through other comprehensive income – noncurrent:		
Listed companies' stocks	\$298,908	\$227,186

The financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income were not pledged.

The Group's dividend income related to equity instrument investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income for the periods ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 are as follow:

	For the year ended December 31	
	2023	2022
Dividend income related to investments held at the end of the reporting period		
	\$9,950	\$7,462
Notes receivables		
	December 31, 2023	December 31, 2022
Notes receivables arising from operating activities	\$414	\$2,663
Less: loss allowance	-	-
Total	\$414	\$2,663
Total	\$414	\$2,663

Notes receivables were not pledged.

The Group follows the requirement of IFRS 9 to assess the impairment. Please refer to Note 6(14) for more details on loss allowance and Note 12 for details on credit risk.

(4) Accounts receivable

(3)

	December 31,	December 31,
	2023	2022
Accounts Receivables	\$900,726	\$979,896
Less: loss allowance	(17,874)	(25,776)
Total	\$882,852	\$954,120

Accounts receivables were not pledged.

Accounts receivable are generally on 30 to 120 days terms. The total carrying amount as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 were NT\$900,726 thousand and NT\$979,896 thousand, respectively. Please refer to Note 6(14) for more details on loss allowance of accounts receivables for the periods ended December 31, 2023 and 2022. Please refer to Note 12 for more details on credit risk management.

(5) Inventories

(A) Net of inventories include:

	December 31,	December 31,
	2023	2022
Merchandise	\$257,597	\$369,742

(B) Operating costs details recognized by the Group: :

	For the ye	For the year ended	
	Decemb	December 31	
	2023	2022	
Cost of inventory sold	\$2,467,269	\$2,867,703	
(Gain) loss on inventory valuation	(13,272)	17,393	
Other	1,644	4,930	
Total	\$2,455,641	\$2,890,026	

- (C) The insurance amounts for the inventories were NT\$280,332 thousand and NT\$387,569 thousand as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.
- (D) No inventories were pledged.

(6) Prepament

	December 31,	December 31,
	2023	2022
Payment in advance	\$1,720	\$113,205
Other	8,030	6,176
Total	\$119,381	\$119,381

(7) Property, plant and equipment

	December 31,	December 31,
	2023	2022
Owner occupied property, plant and equipment	\$109,513	\$111,174

				Transportat		
			Office	ion	Other	
	Land	Buildings	equipment	equipment	Eqipment	Total
Cost:						
As at January 1, 2023	\$89,203	\$41,372	\$3,355	\$1,945	\$94	\$135,969
Additions	-	-	776	-	-	776
Disposals	-	-	(339)	-	-	(339)
Exchange differences	-	(352)	(47)	(36)	-	(435)
As at December 31, 2023	\$89,203	\$41,020	\$3,745	\$1,909	\$94	\$135,971
As at January 1, 2022	\$89,203	\$41,094	\$3,219	\$1,917	\$-	\$135,433
Additions	-	-	561	-	94	655
Disposals	-	-	(473)	-	-	(473)
Exchange differences	-	278	48	28	-	354
As at December 31, 2022	\$89,203	\$41,372	\$3,355	\$1,945	\$94	\$135,969
Depreciation and						
impairment :						
As at January 1, 2023	\$-	\$21,008	\$1,925	\$1,852	\$10	\$24,795
Depreciation	-	1,219	970	92	32	2,313
Disposals	-	-	(339)	-	-	(339)
Exchange differences	-	(236)	(40)	(35)	-	(311)
As at December 31, 2023	\$-	\$21,991	\$2,516	\$1,909	\$42	\$26,458
As at January 1, 2022	\$-	\$19,613	\$1,307	\$1,649	\$-	\$22,569
Depreciation	-	1,221	1,067	177	10	2,475
Disposals	-	-	(473)	-	-	(473)
Exchange differences	-	174	24	26	-	224
As at December 31, 2022	\$-	\$21,008	\$1,925	\$1,852	\$10	\$24,795
Net carrying amount as at:						
December 31, 2023	\$89,203	\$19,029	\$1,229	\$-	\$52	\$109,513
December 31, 2022	\$89,203	\$20,364	\$1,430	\$93	\$84	\$111,174
=						

The major components of the Group is the main building which is depreciated over 60 years, Please refer to Note 8 for more details on property, plant and equipment under pledge.

(8) Investment property

The Group's investment properties include owned investment properties. The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its owned investment properties with terms of between 7 and 8 years. These leases include a clause to enable upward revision of the rental charge on an annual basis according to prevailing market conditions.

	Land	Buildings	Total
Cost:			
As at January 1, 2023	\$6,816	\$4,249	\$11,065
Additions from subsequent expenditure	-	-	-
As at December 31, 2023	\$6,816	\$4,249	\$11,065
As at January 1, 2022	\$6,816	\$4,249	\$11,065
Additions from subsequent expenditure	-	-	-
As at December 31, 2022	\$6,816	\$4,249	\$11,065
Depreciation and impairment :			
As at January 1, 2023	\$-	\$2,405	\$2,405
Depreciation	-	112	112
As at December 31, 2023	\$-	\$2,517	\$2,517
As at January 1, 2022	\$-	\$2,293	\$2,293
Depreciation	-	112	112
As at December 31, 2022	\$-	\$2,405	\$2,405
Net carrying amount as at :			
December 31, 2023	\$6,816	\$1,732	\$8,548
December 31, 2022	\$6,816	\$1,844	\$8,660
		For the yea	ar ended
		Decemb	er 31
		2023	2022

	2023	2022
Rental income from investment property	\$1,996	\$1,996
Less: Direct operating expenses from investment property		
generating rental income	(149)	(148)
Total	\$1,847	\$1,848

On March 28, 2019 the Board of Directors resloves that in order to enhance working capital, it intends to sell the investment properties in Yucheng section of Nangang, and is currently in search of a buyer. The Group will comply with the regulations governing the acquisition and disposal of assets and authorizes the Chairman to follow-up on the related matters.

No investment property was pledged.

Investment properties held by the Group are not measured at fair value but for which the fair value is disclosed. The fair value measurements of the investment properties are categorized within Level 3.

Investment properties held by the Group are mainly located at Zhongshan area and Nangang area in Taipei city. The fair value of investment properties was NT\$151,445 thousand upon the valuation performed by an independent appraiser in the first quarter of 2013. The valuation methods used are Comparative approach and Income capilization rate approach and Coparative approach and Land development analysis approach. By considering the nature of the subject property, condition of use, development scope and the credibility of the baseline data, the price per sqare feet is estimated using the wieghted amount calculated by one of the two methods listed per below:

- (a) 60% Comparative approach + 40% Income capilization rate approach
- (b) 40% Comparative approach + 60% Land development analysis approach.

Calcualtions used within the valuation methods:

- (A) The main evaluation parameter used for the comparative approach is calculated by investegating and estimating the cases nearby the subject property.
- (B) The main parameter of the income capitalization rate approach is to calculate the price per square feet based on the annual lease amount according to the market survey, and then calculate the price per square feet based on the income capitalization rate of 1.85%.
- (C) As for the land development analysis approach, it is to evaluate the reasonable acquisition price of the development land.

Considering that the capitalization rate of income from the domestic real estate market in the most recent year is comparable to the valuation date metioned above, the Group therefore refers to the valuation results and the above-mentioned recent real estate market as the fair value of the investment real estate on the cut-off date of each financial report.

The Group conducted the estimation of of the investment property on December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively. The estimation results were obtained by using the actual transaction price of each year and the market transaction price of similar properties in the vicinity of the relevant assets (including the Real Price Enquiry Service Network of Real Estate Transactions of the Ministry of the Interior and the Real Price Inquiry Service Website of Housing Arbitration Industry). The estimation was equivalent to the valuation results metioned above.

(9) Intangible assets

	Cost of Computer Software
Cost:	
As at January 1, 2023	\$1,078
Additions	555
Disposals	
As at December 31, 2023	\$1,633
As at January 1, 2022	\$1,078
Additions	-
Disposals	-
As at December 31, 2022	\$1,078
Amortization and impairment :	
As at January 1, 2023	\$550
Amortization	243
Disposals	
As at December 31, 2023	\$793
As at January 1, 2022	\$335
Amortization	215
Disposals	-
As at December 31, 2022	\$550
Net carrying amount as at :	
As at December 31, 2023	\$840
As at December 31, 2022	\$528

Amortization expense of intangible assets under the statement of comprehensive income:

	For the year ended	
	December 31	
	2023 2022	
Selling expense	\$134	\$118
Administrative expense	109	97
Total	\$243	\$215

(10) Short-term borrowings

	For the year ended		
	December 31		
	2023 2022		
Unsecured bank loans	\$446,000	\$759,000	
Secured bank loans	144,000	144,000	
Total	\$590,000	\$903,000	

The Group's annual interest rates for unsecured bank loans are 1.800%~1.982% and 1.51%~1.975%, as at December 31, 2023, and December 31, 2022, respectively.

The Group's annual interest rate for secured bank loans are 1.710% and 1.655%, as at December 31, 2023, and December 31, 2022, respectively.

The Group's unused short-term lines of credits amount to NT\$1,111,410 thousand, and NT\$828,420 thousand, as at December 31, 2023, and December 31, 2022, respectively.

Part of property, plant and equipment provides guarantee for secured bank loans. Please refer to Note 8 for more details of pledge situations.

(11)Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plan

The labor pension regulations of the Group were established according to the Enforcement rules of the labor pension act and is recognized as defined contribution plan. The monthly contribution rate of the labor pension borne by the Company shall not be less than 6% of the

employee's monthly salary. By following the labor pension regulations which was established in accordance with the Enforcement rules of the labor pension act, the Company has allocated 6% of the employee's salary to the individual pension account of the Labour Insurance Board monthly.

Expenses under the defined contribution plan for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 were NT\$4,271 thousand and NT\$4,208 thousand, respectively.

Defined benefits plan

The defined benefit plan of the Group's Employee Retirement Plan is regulated according to the Labor Standards Act. 2. Retirement benefits are based on such factors as the employee's length of service and final pensionable salary. In accordance with the Act, 2 bases are given for each full year on the first 15 years of service and 1 base is given for each full year after 15 years of service. The total bases given shall not exceed 45. Under the retirement plan, the Company contributes monthly an amount equal to 2% of gross salary to the pension reserve fund, which is deposited into a designated depository account with the Bank of Taiwan. At the end of each year, if the balance in the designated labor pension reserve funds is inadequate to cover the benefit estimated to be paid in the following year, the Company should make up the difference in 1 appropriation before the end of March in the following year.

Safeguard and Utilization of the Labor Retirement Fund is regulated by the Ministry of Labor. Investment of the fund is made by outsourcing and self-management. A long-term investment strategy is adopted with both initiative and passive approach. Considering market risk, creditability and liquidity etc., the Ministry of labor has set limit for fund risk and risk management plan so that the target rate of return can be reached without excess exposure to risk. Because the Company is not authorized to manage the Fund, it cannot disclose the classification of the fair value of the plan asset according to IAS 19. As of December 31, 2022, the amount of contribution expected to be made in the following accounting year was NT\$60 thousand.

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company's definite benefit plans are expected to expire in the year ended 2032.

Pension costs recognized in profit or loss for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022:

	For the year ended December 31	
	2023 2022	
Current period service costs	\$-	\$210
Net Interest of Net defined benefit	(66)	(21)
Settlements from the plan	(66)	189
Unadjusted amount on account	126	(129)
Total pension costs recognized in profit or loss	\$60	\$60

Reconcilation of present value of defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets are as follows:

	December 31,	December 31,	January 1,
	2023	2022	2023
Present value of defined benefit obligation	\$15,664	\$15,726	\$16,118
Fair value of plan assets	(20,859)	(20,453)	(18,843)
Funding circumstance	(5,195)	(4,727)	(2,725)
Unadjusted amount on account	797	671	800
Other non-current assets, other - Net			
defined benefit liability (asset) on the			
consolidated balance sheets	\$(4,398)	\$(4,056)	\$(1,925)

Reconciliation of liability (asset) of the defined benefit plan is as follows:

	Defined benefit obligation	Fair value of plan assets	Benefit liability (asset)
As at January 1, 2022	\$16,118	\$(18,843)	\$(2,725)
Current period service costs	210	-	210
Interest expense (income)	121	(142)	(21)
Subtotal	16,449	(18,985)	(2,536)
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset):			
Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in demographic assumptions	-	-	-
Actuarial gains and losses arising from			
changes in financial assumptions	(609)	(1,408)	(2,017)
Experience adjustments	(114)		(114)
Subtotal	15,726	(20,453)	(4,667)

	Defined benefit obligation	Fair value of plan assets	Benefit liability (asset)
Contributions by employer	-	(60)	(60)
As at December 31, 2022	15,726	(20,393)	(4,793)
Current period service costs	-	-	-
Interest expense (income)	220	(286)	(66)
Subtotal	15,946	(20,739)	(4,793)
Remeasurements of the net defined			
benefit liability (asset):			
Actuarial gains and losses arising from			
changes in demographic assumptions	-	-	-
Actuarial gains and losses arising from			
changes in financial assumptions	90	(60)	30
Experience adjustments	(372)	-	(372)
Subtotal	15,664	(20,799)	(5,135)
Contributions by employer	-	(60)	(60)
As at December 31, 2023	\$15,664	\$(20,859)	\$(5,195)

The following main actuarial assumptions are used to determine the present value of the defined benefit obligation:

	December 31,	December 31,
	2023	2022
Discount rate	1.300%	1.400%
Expected salary growth rate	1.375%	1.375%

A sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 is, as shown below:

	For the year ended December 31				
	2023		20	22	
	Increase of	Decrease of	Increase of	Decrease of	
	defined	defined	defined	defined	
	benefit	benefit	benefit	benefit	
	obligation	obligation	obligation	obligation	
Discount rate increase by 0.25%	\$-	\$230	\$-	\$240	
Discount rate decrease by 0.25%	236	-	247	-	
Expected salary increase by 0.25%	232	-	242	-	
Expected salary decrease by 0.25%	-	227	-	236	

The sensitivity analyses above are based on a change in a significant assumption (for example: change in discount rate or future salary), keeping all other assumptions constant. The sensitivity analyses may not be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analyses compared to the previous period.

(12) Equities

(A) Common stock

The Company's authorized and issued capital were NT\$800,000 thousand, and NT\$590,800 thousand, as at December 31, 2021, respectively, each at a par value of NT\$10. The Company has issued 59,080 thousands of common shares as at December 31, 2021, each share has one voting right and a right to receive dividends.

On June 24, 2022, the meeting of shareholders resolved to issue new shares by distributing the stock dividends for 3,545 thousand shares, at a par of NT\$10 per share, with an amount of 35,448 thousand. This regards was approved and effective on July 28, 2022 by the Financial Supervision Commission Securities and Futures Bureau. The relevant statutory registration procedures have been completed and the reference date was August 21, 2022.

The Company's authorized and issued capital were NT\$800,000 thousand, and NT\$626,248 thousand, as of December 31, 2022, respectively, each at a par value of NT\$10. The Company has issued 62,625 thousands of common shares as of December 31, 2022, each share has one voting right and a right to receive dividends.

On June 19, 2023, the meeting of shareholders resolved to issue new shares by distributing the stock dividends for 2,505 thousand shares, at a par of NT\$10 per share, with an amount of 25,050 thousand. This regards was approved and effective on July 13, 2023 by the Financial Supervision Commission Securities and Futures Bureau. The relevant statutory registration procedures have been completed and the reference date was August 7, 2023.

The Company's authorized and issued capital were NT\$800,000 thousand, and NT\$651,298 thousand, as of December 31, 2023, respectively, each at a par value of NT\$10. The Company has issued 65,130 thousands of common shares as of December

31, 2023, each share has one voting right and a right to receive dividends.

(B) Capital surplus

	December 31,	December 31,
	2023	2022
Additional paid-in capital	\$45,647	\$45,647
Gain on disposal of assets	834	834
Employee stock option	5,581	5,581
Total	\$52,062	\$52,062

According to the Company Act, the capital surplus shall not be used except for offsetting the deficit of the company. When a company has no accumulated deficit, it may distribute the capital surplus related to the income derived from the issuance of new shares at a premium or income from endowments received by the company. The distribution could be made in cash or in the form of dividend shares to its shareholders in proportion to the number of shares being held by each of them.

(C) Retained earnings and dividend policies

According to the Company's Articles of Incorporation, current year's earnings, if any, shall be distributed in the following order:

- a. Payment of all taxes and dues;
- b. Offset prior years' operation losses;
- c. Set aside 10% of the remaining amount after deducting items (a) and (b) as legal reserve;
- d. Set aside or reverse special reserve in accordance with law and regulations; and
- e. The distribution of the remaining portion, if any, will be recommended by the Board of Directors (contribution of at least 30% should be made for the Unappropriated retained earnings portions) and resolved in the shareholders' meeting. For cash dividends issued, the amount should be at least 20% but not above 100% of the shareholders' bonus, after deducting the cash divdend the remaining amount should be issued as stock divdends.

According to the Company Act, the Company needs to set aside amount to legal reserve unless where such legal reserve amounts to the total paid-in capital. The legal reserve can be used to offset the deficit of the Company. When the Company has no acculuated deficit, it may distribute the portion of legal serve which exceeds

25% of the paid-in capital by issuing new shares or by cash in proportion to the number of shares being held by each of the shareholders.

According to existing regulations, when the Company distributing distributable earnings, it shall set aside to special reserve, from the profit/loss of the current period and the undistributed earnings from the previous period, an amount equal to "other net deductions from shareholders' equity for the current fiscal year, provided that if the company has already set aside special reserve in the first-time adoption of the IFRS, it shall set aside supplemental special reserve based on the difference between the amount already set aside and other net deductions from shareholders' equity. For any subsequent reversal of other net deductions from shareholders' equity, the amount reversed may be distributed from the special reserve.

On March 31, 2022, the FSC issued Order No. Financial-Supervisory-Securities-Corporate-1090150022, which sets out the following provisions for compliance:

On a public company's first-time adoption of the IFRS, for any unrealized revaluation gains and cumulative translation adjustments (gains) recorded to shareholders' equity that the company elects to transfer to retained earnings by application of the exemption under IFRS 1, the company shall set aside special reserve. For any subsequent use, disposal or reclassification of related assets, the special reserve in the amount equal to the reversal may be released for earnings distribution. The amount for Special reserve appropriated as of 31 December 2023 and 2022 are both NT\$3,340 thousand.

Details of the 2023 and 2022 earnings distribution and dividends per share as approved and resolved by the board of directors' meeting and shareholders' meeting on March 14, 2024 and June 19, 2023, respectively, are as follows:

	Appropriation of earnings		Dividend per share (NT\$	
	2023	2022	2023	2022
Legal reserve	\$10,104	\$21,050		
Common stock -cash dividend	78,156	81,412	\$1.2	\$1.3
Common stock-stock dividend	-	25,050	-	0.4
Total	\$88,260	\$127,512		

Please refer to Note 6(16) for details on employees' compensation and remuneration to directors and supervisors.

(13) Operating revenue

	For the year ended		
	December 31		
	2023 2022		
Revenue from contracts with customers			
Sale of goods	\$2,738,299	\$3,238,348	
Revenue arising from rendering of services	4,729	5,681	
Total	\$2,743,028 \$3,244,029		

Analysis of revenue from contracts with customers during the 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

(A) Disaggregation of revenue For 2023

		Republic of China and	
		Southeast	
	Taiwan Dept	Asia Dept	Group Total
Sale of goods	\$2,036,172	\$702,127	\$2,738,299
Rendering of services	4,729	-	4,729
Total	\$2,040,901	\$702,127	\$2,743,028
Timing of revenue recognition: At a point in time	\$2,040,901	\$702,127	\$2,743,028

For 2022

		Republic of	
	Taiwan Dept	China	Group Total
Sale of goods	\$2,297,135	\$941,213	\$3,238,348
Rendering of services	5,681	-	5,681
Total	\$2,302,816	\$941,213	\$3,244,029
Timing of revenue recognition : At a point in time	\$2,302,816	\$941,213	\$3,244,029

(B) Contract balances

Contract liabilities - current

	December 31,	December 31,	January 1,
	2023	2022	2022
Sales of goods	\$1,901	\$108,189	\$96,836

The significant changes in the Group's balances of contract liabilities for 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

	For the year ended	
	December 31	
	2023	2022
The opening balance transferred to revenue	\$(108,151)	\$(95,748)
Increase in receipts in advance during the period	1,863	107,101
(excluding the amount incurred and transferred to		
revenue during the period)		

(14) Expected credit loss (reversal of credit loss)

	For the year ended	
	December 31	
	2023 2022	
Operating expenses –(reversal of credit loss) expected credit loss		
Accounts receivable	\$(5,805)	\$13,672

Please refer to Note 12 for more details on credit risk.

The Group measures the grouping of accounts receivable loss allowance by using lifetime expected credit losse, details of period ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follow:

	, ,		Overdue			
	<=90 days	91-120 days	121-150 days	151-180 days	>=181 days	Total
Notes receivable	\$414	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$414
Accounts receivable	600,010	185,441	101,932	6,379	6,964	900,726
Carrying amount	\$600,424	\$185,441	\$101,932	\$6,379	\$6,964	\$901,140
Loss rate	0%	0~2%	0~7%	0~27%	0~100%	
Lifetime expected						
credit losses	-	(3,462)	(6,387)	(1,153)	(6,872)	(17,874)
Total	\$600,424	\$181,979	\$95,545	\$5,226	\$92	\$883,266

As at December 31, 2023

As at December 31, 2022

	Overdue					
	<=90 days	91-120 days	121-150 days	151-180 days	>=181 days	Total
Notes receivable	\$2,303	\$-	\$360	\$-	\$-	\$2,663
Accounts receivable	649,605	197,232	109,370	9,230	14,459	979,896
Carrying amount	\$651,908	\$197,232	\$109,730	\$9,230	\$14,459	\$982,559
Loss rate	0~1%	0~2%	0~7%	0~27%	0~100%	
Lifetime expected						
credit losses	(47)	(3,429)	(5,958)	(2,272)	(14,069)	(25,776)
Total	\$651,861	\$193,803	\$103,772	\$6,958	\$390	\$956,783

The movement in the provision for impairment of notes receivable and accounts receivable during the periods ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

receivable	receivable	Total
\$-	\$25,776	\$25,776
-	(5,805)	(5,805)
-	(2015)	(2,015)
-	(82)	(82)
\$-	\$17,874	\$17,874
\$-	\$11,983	\$11,983
-	13,672	13,672
-	121	121
\$-	\$25,776	\$25,776
	receivable \$- - - - - - - - - - - -	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$

(15)Leases

(A) Group as a lessee

The Group leases various properties, including properties such as land and buildings and transportation equipment. The lease terms range from 2 to 4 years.

The Group's leases effect on the financial position, financial performance and cash flows are as follow:

A. Amounts recognized in the balance sheet

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amount of right-of-use assets

	December 31,	December 31,
	2023	2022
Buildings	\$15,980	\$20,503
Transportation equipment	3,728	-
	\$19,708	\$20,503

During the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group's additions to right-of-use assets amounting to NT\$11,381 thousand and NT\$2,037 thousand, respectively.

(b) Lease liabilities

	December 31,	December 31,
	2023	2022
Lease liabilities	\$21,033	\$21,692
Current	\$10,879	\$8,523
Non-current	\$10,154	\$13,169

Please refer to Note 6(17)(D) for the interest on lease liabilities recognized during 2023 and 2022 and refer to Note 12 (5) Liquidity Risk Management for the maturity analysis for lease liabilities.

B. Amounts recognized in the statement of profit or loss

Depreciation charge for right-of-use assets

	For the year	For the year ended	
	Decemb	er 31	
	2023 2022		
Buildings	\$9,967	\$10,031	
Transportation equipment	1,047	-	
	\$11,014	\$10,031	

C. Income and costs relating to leasing activities

	For the year ended		
	December 31		
	2023	2022	
The expenses relating to short-term leases	\$7,600	\$7,629	
Gain on lease modification	(18)	-	
Total	\$7,582	\$7,629	

D. Cash outflow relating to leasing activities

During the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group's total cash outflows for leases amounting to NT\$19,439 thousand and NT\$18,367 thousand, respectively.

- E. Other information relating to leasing activities
 - (a) Variable lease payments

Some of the Group's printer rental agreements contain variable payment terms that are linked to certain percentages of the usage amount generated from the leased printer, which is very common in the industry of the Group.

As such variable lease payments do not meet the definition of lease payments, those payments are not included in the measurement of the assets and liabilities.

(b) Extension and termination options

Some of the Group's property rental agreement contain extension and termination options. In determining the lease terms, the non-cancellable period for which the Group has the right to use an underlying asset, together with both periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Group is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. These options are used to maximize operational flexibility in terms of managing contracts. The majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable only by the Group. After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term upon the occurrence of a significant event or a significant change in circumstances that is within the control of the lessee and affects whether the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an option not previously included in its determination of the lease term, or not to exercise an option previously included in its determination of the lease term.

(B) Group as lessor

Please refer to Note 6(8) for details on the Group's owned investment properties. Leases of owned investment properties are classified as operating leases as they do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of underlying assets.

	For the year ended December 31		
	2023	2022	
Lease income for operating leases			
Income realting to fixed lease payments and			
variable lease payments that depend on an index			
or a rate	\$1,996	\$1,996	

For operating leases entered by the Group, the undiscounted lease payments to be received and a total of the amounts for the remaining years as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follow:

	December 31,	December 31,
	2023	2022
Not later than one year	\$1,996	\$1,996
Later than one year but not later than two years	1,996	1,996
Later than two years but not later than three years	998	1,996
Later than three years but not later than four years	-	1,163
Later than four years but not later than five years		
Total	\$4,990	\$7,151

Capability	For the years ended December 31							
	2023			2022				
			Non-operat				Non-operat	
			ing loss				ing loss	
Nature	Operating	Operating	and		Operating	Operating	and	
	costs	expenses	expenses	Total	costs	expenses	expenses	Total
Employee benefits expense								
Salaries	\$-	\$91,335	\$-	\$91,335	\$-	\$108,551	\$-	\$108,551
Labor and health insurance	-	6,647	-	6,647	-	6,855	-	6,855
Pension	-	4,331	-	4,331	-	4,268	-	4,268
Other employee benefits expense	-	6,660	-	6,660	-	6,659	-	6,659
Depreciation	-	13,439	-	13,439	-	12,618	-	12,618
Amortization	-	243	-	243	-	215	-	215

(16) The employee benefits, depreciation and amortization expenses are summarized as follows:

According to the Articles of Incorporation, the Company shall allocate no less than 3% of profit as employees' compensation and no more than 3% of profit as directors' compensation for each profitable fiscal year. However, the company's accumulated losses shall have been offsetted. The Company may, by a resolution adopted by a majority vote at a meeting of Board of Directors attended by two-thirds of the total number of directors, distribute the aforementioned employees compensation in the form of shares or in cash; and in addition thereto a report of such distribution is submitted to the shareholders' meeting. Information on the Board of Directors' resolution regarding the employees' compensation and remuneration to directors and supervisors can be obtained from the "Market Observation Post System" on the website of the TWSE.

Based on the profit of the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company recognized the amounts of the employees' compensation and remuneration to directors and supervisors for the year ended December 31, 2023 amounted to NT\$4,000 thousand and NT\$3,000 thousand, respectively. If the Board of Directors resolved to distribute employees' compensation in the form of stocks, the number of stocks distributed was calculated based on the closing price one day earlier than the date of resolution. Differences between the estimated amount and the actual distribution of the employee compensation and remuneration to directors and supervisors are recognized in profit or loss of the subsequent year.

On March 14, 2024 the Board of Directors resolved to issue the Companys' distribution of employees' compensation and remuneration to directors and supervisors of 2023 at the amount of NT\$4,000 thousand and NT\$3,000 thousand, respectively.

On March 22, 2023 the Board of Directors resolved to issue the Companys' distribution of employees' compensation and remuneration to directors and supervisors of 2022 at the amount of NT\$8,000 thousand and NT\$3,000 thousand, respectively. No material differences exist between the estimated amount and the actual distribution of the employee compensation and remuneration to directors and supervisors for the year ended December 31, 2022.

(17)Non-operating income and expenses

Total

	For the year ended December 31		
	2023	2022	
Interest income			
Financial assets measured at amortized cost	\$10,820	\$4,732	
(B) Other income			
	For the year ended		
	December 31		
	2023	2022	
Compensation income	\$1,634	\$10,397	
Dividend income	9,950	7,462	
Rental income	2,006	2,006	
Other income – Government subsidy	791	841	
Other income	3,562	1,897	

\$17,943

\$22,603

⁽A) Interest income
(C) Other gains and losses

	For the year ended		
	December 31		
	2023 202		
Foreign exchange gains, net	\$13,694	115,326	
Lease modification	(18)	-	
Other losses- Other	(641)	(499)	
Total	\$13,071	\$114,827	

(D) Finance costs

,	For the yea Decemb	
	2023	2022
Interests on borrowings from bank	\$(13,121)	\$(13,276)
Interests on notes receivable discounted	-	(78)
Interests on lease liabilities	(982)	(1,144)
Total	\$(14,103)	\$(14,498)

(18)Components of other comprehensive income

Period ended December 31, 2023

Terrou ended December 51, 2025				-	
				Income tax	
				relating to	
		Reclassification	Other	components of	Other
		adjustments	comprehensive	other	comprehensive
	Arising during	during the	income, before	comprehensive	income, net of
	the period	period	tax	income	tax
Not to be reclassified to profit or loss in					
subsequent periods :					
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans	\$342	\$-	\$342	\$(68)	\$274
Unrealized gains (losses) from equity instruments					
investments measured at fair value through					
other comprehensive income	71,722	-	71,722	-	71,722
To be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent					
periods:					
Exchange differences resulting from translating					
the financial statements of a foreign operation	(5,700)	-	(5,700)	-	(5,700)
Total	\$66,364	\$-	\$66,364	\$(68)	\$66,296

Period ended December 31, 2022

				Income tax	
				relating to	
		Reclassification	Other	components of	Other
		adjustments	comprehensive	other	comprehensive
	Arising during	during the	income, before	comprehensive	income, net of
	the period	period	tax	income	tax
Not to be reclassified to profit or loss in					
subsequent periods :					
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans	\$2,131	\$-	\$2,131	\$(426)	\$1,705
Unrealized gains (losses) from equity instruments					
investments measured at fair value through					
other comprehensive income	46,846	-	46,846	-	46,846
To be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent					
periods:					
Exchange differences resulting from translating					
the financial statements of a foreign operation	46,103		46,103		46,103
Total	\$95,080	\$-	\$95,080	\$(426)	\$94,654

(21)Income tax

The major components of income tax expense (income) for the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

Income tax expense (income) recognized in profit or loss

	For the year ended		
	Decemb	per 31	
	2023	2022	
Current income tax expense (income):			
Current income tax charge	\$56,371	\$56,371	
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of prior	1,328	(2,330)	
periods			
Deferred tax expense (income):			
Deferred tax expense (income) relating to origination			
and reversal of temporary differences	79	(4,160)	
Total	\$26,687	\$49,881	

Income tax relating to components of other comprehensive income

	For the year ended		
	Decemb	ber 31	
	2023	2022	
Deferred tax expense (income):			
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans	\$68	\$426	
Income tax relating to components of other comprehensive			
income	\$68	\$426	

Reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by applicable tax rates is as follows:

	For the year ended December 31	
-	2023	2022
Accounting profit (loss) before tax from continuing operations	\$127,459	\$258,680
Tax at the domestic rates applicable to profits in the country		
concerned	\$29,215	\$59,966
Tax effect of revenues exempt from taxation	(8,006)	(9,772)
Corporate income surtax on undistributed retained earnings	5,150	2,017
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of prior periods	1,328	(2,330)
Total	\$26,687	\$49,881
Deferred tax assets (liabilities) relate to the following:		

Deferred tax assets (liabilities) relate to the following: For the year ended December 31, 2023

			Recognized in			
	Beginning		other	Charged		Ending
	balance as at	Recognized in	comprehensive	directly to		balance as at
	Jan 1, 2023	profit or loss	income	equity	Other	Dec 31, 2023
Temporary differences						
Deferred tax assets						
Depreciation difference for tax purpose	\$14	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$14
Unrealized loss on inventory	9,239	(2,990)	-	-	-	6,249
Unrealized gains(losses) between	113	94	-	-	-	207
associated companies						
Excess amount of pension expenses	18	-	-	-	-	18
Net unrealized exchange loss	1,790	3,864	-	-	-	5,654
Excess amount of allowance for accounts	2,336	(973)	-	-	-	1,393
receivable						
Deferred tax liabilities						
Non-current liability – Defined benefit	(1,395)	-	(68)	-	-	(1,463)
Net unrealized exchange gain	(1,872)	(74)		-	-	(1,946)
Deferred tax income/ (expense)		\$(79)	\$(68)	\$-	\$-	
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities)	\$10,273					\$10,126
Reflected in balance sheet as follows:						
Deferred tax assets	\$13,540					\$13,535
Deferred tax liabilities	\$(3,267)					\$(3,409)

For the year ended December 31, 2022

			Recognized in			
	Beginning		other	Charged		Ending
	balance as at	Recognized in	comprehensiv	directly to		balance as at
	Jan 1, 2022	profit or loss	e income	equity	Other	Dec 31, 2022
Temporary differences :						
Deferred tax assets						
Depreciation difference for tax purpose	\$14	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$14
Provisions for employee benefits	451	(451)	-	-	-	-
Unrealized loss on inventory	5,796	3,443	-	-	-	9,239
Unrealized gains(losses) between	85	-	-	-	-	113
associated companies						
Excess amount of pension expenses	18	-	-	-	-	18
Net unrealized exchange loss	1,562	-	-	-	-	1,790
Excess amount of allowance for accounts	-	2,366	-	-	-	2,336
receivable						
Deferred tax liabilities						
Non-current liability – Defined benefit	(969)	-	(426)	-	-	(1,395)
Net unrealized exchange gain	(418)	(1,454)		-	-	(1,872)
Deferred tax income/ (expense)		\$4,160	\$(426)	\$-	\$-	
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities)	\$6,539					\$10,273
Reflected in balance sheet as follows:						
Deferred tax assets	\$7,926					\$13,540
Deferred tax liabilities	\$(1,387)					\$(3,267)

Unrecognized deferred tax assets

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, deferred tax assets which not been recognized were both amounting to NT\$0.

Unrecognized deferred tax liabilities relating to the investment in subsidiaries

The Group did not recognize any deferred tax liability for taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of the Group's overseas subsidiaries, as the Group has determined that undistributed profits of its subsidiaries will not be distributed in the foreseeable future, therefore the group did not recognize any deferred tax liability for taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of the Group's overseas subsidiaries, and the deferred tax profit generated by the exchange differences on translation of foreign financial statements which is generated by the subsidiaries also will should not be recognized. As at December 31, 2023, deferred tax liabilities which have not been recognized, aggregate to NT\$125,521 thousand.

The assessment of income tax returns

The Company's income tax returns through 2021 have been assessed and approved by the

Tax Authority.

(22) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent entity by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent entity (after adjusting for interest on the convertible preference shares) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

	For the year ended December 31	
		2022
	2023	(Traced back)
(A) Basic earnings per share		
Profit attributable to the parent company (in thousand		
NT\$)	\$100,772	\$208,799
Weighted average number of ordinary shares		
outstanding for basic earnings per share (in		
thousands)	65,130	65,130
Basic earnings per share (NT\$)	\$1.55	\$3.21
(B) Diluted earnings per share		
Profit attributable to the parent company (in thousand		
NT\$)	\$100,772	\$208,799
Profit attributable to the parent company after dilution		
(in thousand NT\$)	\$100,772	\$208,799
Weighted average number of ordinary shares		
outstanding for basic earnings per share (in	65,130	65,130
thousands)		
Effect of dilution:		
Employee compensation – stock (in thousands)	232	360

Weighted average number of ordinary shares		
outstanding after dilution (in thousands)	65,362	65,490
Diluted earnings per share (NT\$)	\$1.54	\$3.19

There have been no other transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between the reporting date and the date of completion of the financial statements.

7. <u>Related party transactions</u>

Information of the related parties that had transactions with the Group during the financial reporting period is as follows:

Name and eelationship of the related parties

Name of the related parties	Nature of relationship of the related parties
Tailyn Technologies, Inc.	Substantive related party
Taipei Rosyclouds Foundation For Education	Other related party

Significant related party transactions

(1) Key management personnel compensation

	For the year ended		
	December 31		
	2023	2022	
Short-term employee benefits	\$20,962	\$22,593	
Post-employment benefits	206	205	
Total	\$21,168	\$22,798	

(2) Sales revenue

	For the year	For the year ended		
	Decemb	December 31		
	2023	2022		
Substantive related party				
Tailyn Technologies, Inc.	\$295	\$417		

The sales price to the above related parties was determined through mutual agreement based on the market conditions. The collection periods for sales to related parties and to third parties were all month-end 30~120 days. The outstanding balances as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 were unsecured, non-interest bearing and to be settled in cash. The receivables from the related parties were not guaranteed.

December 31, 2023	December 31, 2022
\$123	\$90
December 31,	December 31,
2023	2022
\$13	\$12
For the year end	ed December 31
2023	2022
\$363	\$363
	2023 \$123 December 31, 2023 \$13 For the year end 2023

The rental prices and collection terms to the above related parties are not much different from third parties. The mutual agreement of rental prices is determined by local market conditions, and is based on the location, floors and scopes of the lease.

(6) Donation

	For the year ended	For the year ended December 31		
	2023	2022		
Other related party				
Taipei Rosyclouds Foundation For Education	\$300	\$-		

8. Assets pledged as collateral

The following table lists assets of the Group pledged as collateral:

	Carrying amount		
	December	December	
Items	31, 2023	31, 2022	Secured liabilities
Property, plant and equipment - land	\$89,074	\$89,074	Short-term bank loan
Property, plant and equipment - buildings	13,141	13,500	Short-term bank loan
Total	\$102,215	\$102,574	

9. Significant contingencies and unrecognized contract commitments

(1) Unused credit lines of L/C letters issued by the Group as of December 31, 2023:

	Open Foreign Curren	
	Amount (Dollar	
Bank	Currenct	thousands)
Mega International Commercial Bank	JPY	\$187,520

(2) The guarantee notes issued by the Group as of December 31, 2023:

Client	Nature	Amount
FLEXIUM INTERCONNECT INC	Performance guarantee	\$14,465

- (3) The Company has signed an agency contract with Company S to sell Company S's products, and the Company shall pay the agency deposit to Company S as a performance guarantee according to the contract. As of December 31, 2023, the Company has provided US\$1.5 million as a performance bond, which amounted to approximately NT\$46,058 thousand and is accounted under Refundable deposits paid.
- (4) Endorsement

For the year ended 2023

The Company's endorsement towards GITEH Electronic Industries Co., Ltd and HOWTEH Vietnam Co., Ltd. :

	The highest balance	The company's	
	of endorsement per	ending balance	
	period	of endorsement	Guarntee purpose
CTBC Bank CO., Ltd.	USD 3,000K	\$92,115	Credit line of loans
Sumitomo Group	USD 300K	9,212	Business dealings
		\$101,327	

For the year ended 2022

The Company's endorsement towards- GITEH Electronic Industries Co., Ltd :

	The highest balance	The company's	
	of endorsement per	ending balance	
	period	of endorsement	Guarantee purpose
CTBC Bank CO., Ltd	USD 3,000 thousand	\$92,130	Credit line of loans
Sumitomo Group	USD 300 thousand	9,213	Business dealings
		\$101,343	

10. Significant disaster loss

None.

11 Significant subsequent events

None.

12. Other

(1) Categories of financial instruments <u>Financial assets</u>

	December 31, 2023	December 31, 2022
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive		
income	\$298,908	\$227,186
Financial assets measured at amortized cost (Note)	1,787,184	2,034,107
Total	\$2,086,092	\$2,261,293
Financial liabilities		
	December 31,	December 31,
	2023	2022
Financial liabilities at amortized cost:		
Short-term borrowings	\$590,000	\$903,000
Notes payable and accounts payable	265,253	292,506
Other payables	85,739	79,593
Lease liabilities(including noncurrent)	21,033	21,692
Guarantee deposits	3,309	3,314
Total	\$965,334	\$1,300,105

Note: Including cash and cash equivalents (cash on hand not included), notes receivable, accounts receivable, other receivables and refundable deposits.

(2) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's principal financial risk management objective is to manage the market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk related to its operating activates. The Group identifies measures and manages the aforementioned risks based on the Group's policy and risk appetite.

The Group has established appropriate policies, procedures and internal controls for financial risk management. Before entering into significant transactions, due approval process by the Board of Directors must be carried out based on related protocols and internal control procedures. The Group complies with its financial risk management policies at all times.

(3) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of the changes in market prices. Market prices comprise currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk (such as equity risk).

In practice, it is rarely the case that a single risk variable will change independently from other risk variable, there is usually interdependencies between risk variables. However, the sensitivity analysis disclosed below does not take into account the interdependencies between risk variables.

Foreign currency risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Group's operating activities (when revenue or expense are denominated in a different currency from the Group's functional currency) and the Group's net investments in foreign subsidiaries.

The Group has certain foreign currency receivables to be denominated in the same foreign currency with certain foreign currency payables, therefore natural hedge is received. The Group also uses forward contracts to hedge the foreign currency risk on certain items denominated in foreign currencies. Hedge accounting is not applied as they did not qualify

for hedge accounting criteria. Furthermore, as net investments in foreign subsidiaries are for strategic purposes, they are not hedged by the Group.

The foreign currency sensitivity analysis of the possible change in foreign exchange rates on the Group's profit is performed on significant monetary items denominated in foreign currencies as at the end of the reporting period. The Group's foreign currency risk is mainly related to the volatility in the exchange rates for foreign currency A and foreign currency B. The information of the sensitivity analysis is as follows:

- When NTD strengthens against USD by 1%, the profit for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 would decrease by NT\$6,220 thousand and NT\$8,230 thousand, respectively.
- (2) When NTD strengthens against CNY by 1%, the profit for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 would decrease by NT\$2,541 thousand and NT\$2,802 thousand, respectively, the equity would decrease by NT\$1,551 thousand and NT\$1,629 thousand, respectively.
- (3) When NTD strengthens against HKD by 1%, the profit for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 would decrease by NT\$3,916 thousand and NT\$3,348 thousand, respectively, the equity would decrease by NT\$5,668 thousand and NT\$5,330 thousand, respectively.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group's debt instrument investments at variable interest rates, bank borrowings with fixed interest rates and variable interest rates.

The Group manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable loans and borrowings and entering into interest rate swaps. Hedge accounting does not apply to these swaps as they do not qualify for it.

The interest rate sensitivity analysis is performed on items exposed to interest rate risk as at the end of the reporting period, including investments and borrowings with variable interest rates and interest rate swaps. At the reporting date, a change of 10 basis points of interest rate in a reporting period could cause the profit for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 to decrease by NT\$401 thousand and NT\$805 thousand, respectively.

Equity price risk

The fair value of the Group's listed and unlisted equity securities are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of the investment securities. The Group's listed and unlisted equity securities are classified under financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. The Group manages the equity price risk through diversification and placing limits on individual and total equity instruments. Reports on the equity portfolio are submitted to the Group's senior management on a regular basis. The Group's Board of Directors reviews and approves all equity investment decisions.

As of December 31,2023 and 2022, a change of 5% in the price of the listed companies stocks classified as equity instruments investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income could have an impact of NT\$14,945 thousand and NT\$11,359 thousand on the equity attributable to the Group for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Please refer to Note 12(8) for sensitivity analysis information of other equity instruments or derivatives that are linked to such equity instruments whose fair value measurement is categorized under Level 3.

(4) Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from operating activities (primarily for account and notes receivables) and from its financing activities, including bank deposits and other financial instruments.

Credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Group's established policy, procedures and control relating to credit risk management. Credit limits are established for all counter parties based on their financial position, rating from credit rating agencies, historical experience, prevailing economic condition and the Group's internal rating criteria etc. Certain counter parties' credit risk will also be managed by taking credit enhancing procedures, such as requesting for prepayment or insurance.

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the credit concentration risk of accounts receivable is insignificant.

Credit risk from balances with banks, fixed income securities and other financial instruments is managed by the Group's treasury in accordance with the Group's policy. The Group only transacts with counterparties approved by the internal control procedures, which are banks and financial institutions, companies and government entities with good credit rating. Consequently, there is no significant credit risk for these counter parties. The Group uses IFRS 9 to evaluate the expected credit losses, receivables are measured as allowance losses over the life of expected credit losses, the remainder are not investments in debt instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss, and their original purchase is based on the assumption of low credit risk, and whether credit risk has increased significantly since the original recognition at each balance sheet date to determine the method of measuring the allowance loss and its loss rate. The debt instrument mentioned above that aren't measured at fair value through profit and loss are cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash on hand), and their carrying amount as of December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 were NT\$903,872 thousand and NT\$1,077,199 thousand, respectively, and the loss rates were both 0%. In addition, the Group also writes off financial assets when it evaluates that it cannot reasonably be expected to recover financial assets (e.g. significant financial difficulties of the issuer or debtor, or bankruptcy).

(5) Liquidity risk management

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of cash and cash equivalents, highly liquid equity investments, bank borrowings, convertible bonds and finance leases. The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities based on the contractual undiscounted payments and contractual maturity. The payment amount includes the contractual interest. The undiscounted payment relating to borrowings with variable interest rates is extrapolated based on the estimated interest rate yield curve as of the end of the reporting period.

	Less than				
	1 year	2 to 3 years	4 to 5 years	>5 years	Total
As at December 31, 2023					
Short-term borrowings					
(estimated interests to be					
paid included)	\$590,604	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$590,604
Lease liabilities					
(Non-current included)	11,470	10,340	-	-	21,810
Payables	265,253	-	-	-	265,253
Other payables	85,739	-	-	-	85,739
Guarantee deposits	3,309	-	-	-	3,309

Non-derivative financial liabilities

	Less than				
	1 year	2 to 3 years	4 to 5 years	>5 years	Total
As at December 31, 2022					
Short-term borrowings					
(estimated interests to be					
paid included)	\$903,754	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$903,754
Lease liabilities					
(Non-current included)	9,380	13,766	-	-	23,146
Payables	292,506	-	-	-	292,506
Other payables	79,593	-	-	-	79,593
Guarantee deposits	3,314	-	-	-	3,314

(6) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Reconciliation of liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2023:

				Total liabilities
	Short-term	Guarantee	Leases	from financing
	borrowings	deposits	liabilities	activities
As at Jan 1, 2023	\$903,000	\$3,314	\$21,692	\$928,006
Cash flows	(313,000)	-	(11,127)	(324,127)
Non-cash changes	-	(5)	10,468	10,463
As at Dec 31, 2023	\$590,000	\$3,309	\$21,033	\$614,342

Reconciliation of liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2023:

		Short-term			Total liabilities
	Short-term	notes and bills	Guarantee	Leases	from financing
	borrowings	payable	deposits	liabilities	activities
As at Jan 1, 2022	\$1,030,000	\$30,000	\$3,312	\$27,181	\$1,090,493
Cash flows	(127,000)	(30,000)	-	(10,738)	(167,738)
Non-cash changes	-	-	2	5,249	5,251
As at Dec 31, 2022	\$903,000	\$-	\$3,314	\$21,692	\$928,006

- (7) Fair values of financial instruments
 - (A) The methods and assumptions applied in determining the fair value of financial instruments:

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The following methods and assumptions were used by the Group to measure or disclose the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities:

- A. The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, accounts payable and other current liabilities approximate their fair value due to their short maturities.
- B. For financial assets and liabilities traded in an active market with standard terms and conditions, their fair value is determined based on market quotation price (including listed equity securities, beneficiary certificates, bonds and futures etc.) at the reporting date.
- C. Fair value of equity instruments without market quotations (including private placement of listed equity securities, unquoted public company and private company equity securities) are estimated using the market method valuation techniques based on parameters such as prices based on market transactions of equity instruments of identical or comparable entities and other relevant information (for example, inputs such as discount for lack of marketability, P/E ratio of similar entities and Price-Book ratio of similar entities).
- D. The fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities is determined on the basis of discounted cash flow analysis, and their interest rates and discount rates are mainly based on information related to similar instruments, yield curves applicable over the life of the period, etc.
- (B) Fair value of financial instruments measured at amortized cost

The Group's carrying value of financial instruments measured at amortized cost approaches to the fair value of financial instruments measured at amortized cost approaches.

(C) Fair value measurement hierarchy for financial instruments Please refer to Note 12(8) for fair value measurement hierarchy for financial instruments of the Group.

- (8) Fair value measurement hierarchy
 - (A) Fair value measurement hierarchy

All asset and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole. Level 1, 2 and 3 inputs are described as follows:

- Level 1 Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date
- Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly
- Level 3 Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization at the end of each reporting period.

(B) Fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's assets and liabilities

The Group does not have assets that are measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis. Fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis is as follows:

As at December 31, 2023

115 at December 51, 2025	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
Financial assets:				
Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income				
Equity instruments designated at	\$298,908	\$-	\$-	\$298,908
fair value through other comprehensive income				
As at December 31, 2022	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
Financial assets:				
Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income				
Equity instruments designated at	\$227,186	\$-	\$-	\$227,186
fair value through other comprehensive income				
±				

Transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period

During the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements.

Fair value measurements in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy for movements

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, there were no financial assets that are measured at fair value within Level 3. Therefore the valuation process used for fair value measurements categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy isn't needed. Valuation process used for fair value measurements categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, there were no financial assets that are measured at fair value within Level 3. Therefore the valuation process used for fair value measurements categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy isn't needed.

(C) Fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group's assets and liabilities not measured at fair value but for which the fair value is disclosed

As at December 31, 2023:				
	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
Investment properties (please refer to Note 6)	\$-	\$-	\$151,445	\$151,445
As at December 31, 2022:				
	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
Investment properties (please refer to Note 6)	\$-	\$-	\$151,445	\$151,445

(9) Significant financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies

The significant financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies were as follow:

Financial assetsForeign currenciesForeign exchange rateNTDFinancial assets $Monetary items:$ $S26,376$ 30.705 $$809,860$ USD $$26,376$ 30.705 $$809,860$ CNY $60,517$ 4.327 $261,856$ HKD $115,834$ 3.929 $455,113$ Financial liabilities $Monetary items:$ $S7,381$ 30.705 $$187,853$ USD $$7,381$ 30.705 $$187,853$ CNY $2,880$ 4.327 $7,800$ HKD $9,539$ 3.929 $63,556$ December $31,2022$ Foreign currenciesexchange rateNTDFinancial assets $Monetary items:$ $S34,181$ 30.710 $$1,049,709$ Monetary items: $S34,181$ 30.710 $$1,049,709$ CNY $66,444$ 4.408 $292,884$ HKD $94,559$ 3.938 $372,374$ Financial liabilities $Monetary items:$ $S1,049,709$		Am	ounts expressed in thou December 31, 2023	ısand
Financial assets Sec. 376 30.705 \$809,860 CNY 60,517 4.327 261,856 HKD 115,834 3.929 455,113 Financial liabilities Monetary items: 115,834 3.929 455,113 Financial liabilities Monetary items: 115,834 3.929 455,113 Financial liabilities Monetary items: 115,834 3.929 455,113 USD \$7,381 30.705 \$187,853 CNY 2,880 4.327 7,800 HKD 9,539 3.929 63,556 0			Foreign	
Monetary items: S26,376 30.705 \$809,860 CNY 60,517 4.327 261,856 HKD 115,834 3.929 455,113 Financial liabilities Monetary items: S7,381 30.705 \$187,853 USD \$7,381 30.705 \$187,853 CNY 2,880 4.327 7,800 HKD 9,539 3.929 63,556 CNY 2,880 4.327 7,800 HKD 9,539 3.929 63,556 CNY 2,880 4.327 7,800 HKD 9,539 3.929 63,556 CNY 1,2022 Foreign currencies exchange rate NTD Financial assets Monetary items: USD \$34,181 30.710 \$1,049,709 USD \$34,181 30.710 \$1,049,709 \$1,049,709 \$1,049,709 \$1,049,709 \$1,049,709 \$1,049,709 \$1,049,709 \$1,049,709 \$1,049,709 \$1,049,709 \$1,049,709 \$1,049,709 \$1,049,709 \$1,049,559		currencies	exchange rate	NID
USD \$26,376 30.705 \$809,860 CNY 60,517 4.327 261,850 HKD 115,834 3.929 455,113 Financial liabilities Monetary items: VSD \$7,381 30.705 \$187,853 USD \$7,381 30.705 \$187,853 CNY 2,880 4.327 7,800 HKD 9,539 3.929 63,556 CNY 2,880 4.327 7,800 HKD 9,539 3.929 63,556 CNY 63,556 CNY CNY CNY 64,444 4.408 292,884 NTD S1,049,709 CNY 66,444 4.408 292,884 HKD 94,559 3.938 372,374 Financial liabilities Monetary items: S1,049,709 3.938 372,374				
CNY 60,517 4.327 261,856 HKD 115,834 3.929 455,113 Financial liabilities	-			
HKD 115,834 3.929 455,113 Financial liabilities Monetary items: 1000 \$7,381 30.705 \$187,853 USD \$7,381 30.705 \$187,853 \$187,853 CNY 2,880 4.327 7,800 HKD 9,539 3.929 63,556 December 31, 2022 Foreign Foreign currencies exchange rate NTD Financial assets Monetary items: \$34,181 30.710 \$1,049,709 CNY 66,444 4.408 292,884 HKD 94,559 3.938 372,374 Financial liabilities Monetary items: 115,834 30,710 \$1,049,709 CNY 66,444 4.408 292,884 372,374 Financial liabilities 94,559 3.938 372,374				
$\begin{tabular}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$	CNY	60,517	4.327	261,856
Monetary items: \$7,381 30.705 \$187,853 CNY 2,880 4.327 7,800 HKD 9,539 3.929 63,556 December 31, 2022 Foreign Currencies exchange rate NTD Financial assets Monetary items: USD \$34,181 30.710 \$1,049,709 CNY 66,444 4.408 292,884 HKD 94,559 3.938 372,374 Financial liabilities Monetary items: 94,559 3.938 372,374	HKD	115,834	3.929	455,113
USD \$7,381 30.705 \$187,853 CNY 2,880 4.327 7,800 HKD 9,539 3.929 63,556 December 31, 2022 Foreign Foreign currencies exchange rate NTD Financial assets Monetary items: USD \$34,181 30.710 \$1,049,709 CNY 66,444 4.408 292,884 HKD 94,559 3.938 372,374 Financial liabilities Monetary items: 100,000 100,000	Financial liabilities			
CNY 2,880 4.327 7,800 HKD 9,539 3.929 63,556 December 31, 2022 Foreign Foreign currencies exchange rate NTD Financial assets NTD \$34,181 30.710 \$1,049,709 CNY 66,444 4.408 292,884 HKD 94,559 3.938 372,374 Financial liabilities Monetary items: 1 1	Monetary items:			
HKD 9,539 3.929 63,550 December 31, 2022 Foreign Foreign currencies Exchange rate NTD Financial assets Monetary items: USD \$34,181 30.710 \$1,049,709 CNY 66,444 4.408 292,884 HKD 94,559 3.938 372,374 Financial liabilities Monetary items: 1000000000000000000000000000000000000	USD	\$7,381	30.705	\$187,853
December 31, 2022Foreign currenciesForeign exchange rateNTDFinancial assetsImage: State of the state	CNY	2,880	4.327	7,800
Foreign currenciesForeign exchange rateNTDFinancial assetsMonetary items:1000000000000000000000000000000000000	HKD	9,539	3.929	63,556
currenciesexchange rateNTDFinancial assetsMonetary items:534,18130.710\$1,049,709USD\$34,18130.710\$1,049,709CNY66,4444.408292,884HKD94,5593.938372,374Financial liabilitiesMonetary items:1000000000000000000000000000000000000			December 31, 2022	
Financial assets Monetary items: USD \$34,181 CNY 66,444 HKD 94,559 Financial liabilities Monetary items:		Foreign	Foreign	
Monetary items: USD \$34,181 30.710 \$1,049,709 CNY 66,444 4.408 292,884 HKD 94,559 3.938 372,374 Financial liabilities Monetary items: 1		currencies	exchange rate	NTD
USD \$34,181 30.710 \$1,049,709 CNY 66,444 4.408 292,884 HKD 94,559 3.938 372,374	Financial assets			
CNY66,4444.408292,884HKD94,5593.938372,374Financial liabilitiesMonetary items:	Monetary items:			
HKD94,5593.938372,374Financial liabilitiesMonetary items:	USD	\$34,181	30.710	\$1,049,709
Financial liabilities Monetary items:	CNY	66,444	4.408	292,884
Monetary items:	HKD	94,559	3.938	372,374
-	Financial liabilities			
-	Monetary items:			
USD \$7,381 30.710 \$226.685	USD	\$7,381	30.710	\$226,685
				12,696
				37,564

Since there were variaties of functional currencies within each entities of the Group, the Group is unable to disclose foreign exchange gain or loss information of monetary financial assets and liabilities in each foreign currency. The Group's net foreign currency exchange gain for the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 were NT\$13,694 thousand and NT\$115,326 thousand, respectively.

(10) Capital management

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholders' value. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

13. Other disclosure

- (1) Information at significant transactions
 - (A) Financing provided to others: None.
 - (B) Endorsement/Guarantees provided to others: Please refer to Attachment 2.
 - (C) Securities on held at the end of the period : Please refer to Attachment 3.
 - (D) Individual securities acquired or disposed of with accumulated amount exceeding the lower of NT\$300 million or 20 percent of the capital stock: None.
 - (E) Acquisition of individual property with amount exceeding NT\$300 million or 20 percent of the capital stcok: None.
 - (F) Disposition of property for amount exceeding NT\$300 million or 20 percent of the capital stock: None.
 - (G) Related parties transactions for purchases and sales amount exceeding NT\$100 million or 20 percent of the capital stock: Please refer to attachment 4.
 - (H) Receivables from related parties with amount exceeding NT\$100 million or20 percent of the capital stock: None.
 - (I) Derivatives transactions: None.
 - (J) Others: The business relationships and important transactions between the parent company and the subsidiaries, and amongsubsidiaries, along with their respective amounts are detailed in Attachment 5.
- (2) Information on investees
 - (A) Information about the investee company that direct or indirect has significant influence or control over the investee company: Please refer to Attachment 6 and 7.
 - (B) Information of significant transaction within the investee company of which that has significant influence or control over the investee company, directly or indirectly :

A. Financing provided to others: Please refer to Attachment 1.

- B. Endorsement/Guarantees provided to others: None.
- C. Securities held at the end of the period: None
- D. Individual securities acquired or disposed of with accumulated amount exceeding the lower of NT\$300 million or 20 percent of the capital stock: None.
- E. Acquisition of individual property with amount exceeding NT\$300 million or 20 percent of the capital stock: None.
- F. Disposal of individual property with amount exceeding NT\$300 million or 20 percent of the capital stock: None.
- G. Related party transaction for purchases and sales amounts exceeding the lower of NT\$100 million or 20 percent of the capital stock: Please refer to Attachment 4.
- H. Receivables from related parties with amount exceeding NT\$100 million or 20 percent of capital stock: None.
- I. Derivatives transactions: None.
- (3) Investment in Mainland China
 - (A) Investee company name, main businesses and products, total amount of capital, investment method, accumulated inflow and outflow of investments from Taiwan, percentage of ownership, investment profit and loss, carry amount of investment at the end of the period, cumulated inward remittance of earnings and limits on investment in Mainland China: Please refer to Attachment 7.
 - (B) Directly or indirectly significant transactions with investee in Mainland China through third regions:
 - A. The amount and percentage of goods sold and the closing balance and percentage of the related receivables for the year ended 2023 :
 - (a) The sales amount between the Company and ShangHai HOWTEH International Trading Inc. was NT\$39,254 thousand, which accounts for 1.77% of the net sales of the Company's parent company only financial statements.
 - (b) The accounts receivable between the Company and ShangHai HOWTEH International Trading Inc. was NT\$3,559 thousand, which accounts for 0.50% of the accounts receivable of the Company's parent company only financial statements.
 - (c) The sales amount between the Company and ShenZhen HOWTEH Technology Co., Ltd. was NT\$33,999 thousand, which accounts for 1.53% of the net sales of

the Company's parent company only financial statements.

- (d) The accounts receivable between the Company and ShenZhen HOWTEH Technology Co., Ltd. was NT\$7,611 thousand, which accounts for 1.06 % of the accounts receivable of the Company's parent company only financial statements.
- B. The amount and percentage of goods purchased and the closing balance and percentage of the related payables for the year ended 2023 : None.
- C. Property transactions and the amount of profit and loss arising from the transactions: : None.
- D. The closing balance and purpose of the guarntee of payment instrument by endorsement or collateral provided : None.
- E. The highest balance, closing balance, interest rate range and total interest of the period for the capital and finance : Please refer to attachment 1.
- F. Other transactions that have a significant impact on the profit or loss or financial position of the current period, such as the provision or receipt of services etc. : None.
- (4) Information of major shareholders

Information on shareholders holding 5% or more of the Company's equity: Please refer to attachment 8.

14 Operating segment information

For management purposes, the Group is organized into business units based on their products and services and has two reportable operating segments as follows:

- (1) Taiwan Segment : The segment is mainly responsible for the agency sales of electronic components and process equipments in Taiwan.
- (2) China and South East Asia segment : The segment is mainly responsible for the distribution of electronic components in Eastern and Southern China (including Hongkong) and Vietnam.

The aforementioned Chinese and Southeast Asia segment are the aggregation of the operating

departments of the subsidiary in Eastern and Southern China and Vietnam. Since the Eastern and Southern China operating departments both focus on providing agency sales of the same electronic components and have similar economic characteristics, they have been considerated into into a single operating department along with the Vietnam operateing department.

Management monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss before tax. There was no material difference between the accounting policies of the operating segment and those described in Note 4. However, income taxes are managed at a group level and are not allocated to operating segments.

Transfer prices between operating segments is based on regular transactions similar to those with external third parties.

. ..

			Adjustment	
	China and		and	
Taiwan	Southeast		elimination	
Segment	Asia segment	Subtotal	(Note)	Consolidated
\$2,040,901	\$702,127	\$2,743,028	\$-	\$2,743,028
181,153	269,541	450,694	(450,694)	-
\$2,222,054	\$971,668	\$3,193,722	\$(450,694)	\$2,743,028
\$116,220	\$41,318	\$157,538	\$(30,079)	\$127,459
	Segment \$2,040,901 181,153 \$2,222,054	TaiwanSoutheastSegmentAsia segment\$2,040,901\$702,127181,153269,541\$2,222,054\$971,668	TaiwanSoutheastSegmentAsia segmentSubtotal\$2,040,901\$702,127\$2,743,028181,153269,541450,694\$2,222,054\$971,668\$3,193,722	TaiwanSoutheasteliminationSegmentAsia segmentSubtotal(Note)\$2,040,901\$702,127\$2,743,028\$-181,153269,541450,694(450,694)\$2,222,054\$971,668\$3,193,722\$(450,694)

Year ended December 31, 2023

Year ended December 31, 2022

				Adjustment	
		China and		and	
	Taiwan	Southeast		elimination	
	Segment	Asia segment	Subtotal	(Note)	Consolidated
External customer	\$2,302,816	\$941,213	\$3,244,029	\$-	\$3,244,029
Inter-segmet	251,630	282,158	533,788	(533,788)	-
Total revenue	\$2,554,446	\$1,223,371	\$3,777,817	\$ (533,788)	\$3,244,029
Segment profit	\$247,161	\$52,917	\$300,078	\$(41,398)	\$258,680

Note: Inter-segment revenue is excluded at the time of consolidation, and reflected under "Reconciliation and Elimination", and all other reconciliations and removals are disclosed separately in furthur details.

The following table presents segment assets of the Group's operating segments as December 31, 2023 and 2022:

Assets of the Group's operating segments						
		China and		Adjustment		
	Taiwan	Southeast		and		
	Segment	Asia segment	Subtotal	elimination	Consolidated	
December 31, 2023	\$2,619,977	\$735,091	\$3,355,068	\$(835,478)	\$2,519,590	
December 31, 2022	\$3,047,155	\$702,459	\$3,749,614	\$(833,868)	\$2,915,746	

Assets of the Group's operating segments

Liabilities of the Group's operating segments

		China and		Adjustment	
	Taiwan	Southeast		and	
	Segment	Asia	Subtotal	elimination	Consolidated
December 31, 2023	\$900,337	\$176,250	\$1,076,587	\$(103,866)	\$972,721
December 31, 2022	\$1,403,322	\$177,846	\$1,581,168	\$(126,635)	\$1,454,533

Other reconciliations of reportable segments

	For the year ended		
	Decemb	er 31	
	2023	2022	
Total profit or loss for reportable segments	\$157,538	\$300,078	
Elimination of inter-segment profit	(30,079)	(41,398)	
Income before income tax from continuing operations	\$127,459	\$258,680	

(3) Geographic information

(A) External customer

	For the year ended		
	December 31		
	2023 2022		
Taiwan	\$2,040,901	\$2,302,816	
China	802,127	941,213	
Total	\$2,743,028	\$3,244,029	

Revenue classified based on the contries where the customers located at.

(B) Non-current assets

	December 31,	December 31,
	2023	2022
Taiwan	\$494,960	\$413,067
China	20,153	30,211
Total	\$515,113	\$443,278

(4) Major customers

Individual customers accounting for at least 10% of operating revenues for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 were as follows:

	Sales	amount
	For the year ended	For the year ended
Customer name	December 31, 2023	December 31, 2022
Customer A	\$446,733	\$393,897
Customer A	\$446,733	\$393,897

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

No. (Note	Financier	Counter-party	Item (Note 2)	Related- party	Maximum Balance (Note 3)	Ending Balance (Note 8)	Amount Actually Drawn	Interest Rate Range	Financing Provided (Note 4)	Transaction Amount (Note 5)	Financing Reasons (Note 6)	Allowance for Bad Debt	Colla Name	1	Financial Limit for Each Counter-party	Limit on Financier's Total Financing
1	ShangHai HOWTEH International Trading Inc.	KunShan HOWTEH International Trading Inc.	Other receivables	Yes	\$30,705 USD1,000	\$30,705 USD1,000	\$7,129	0.00%	1	\$2,105	Business dealings	\$-	-	-	\$65,139 (Note 10)	\$97,709 (Note 10)
1	ShangHai HOWTEH International Trading Inc.	ShenZhen HOWTEH Technology Co., Ltd.	Other receivables	Yes	17,308 RMB4,000	17,308 RMB4,000	-	4.35%	2	-	Short-term financing	-	-	-	65,139 (Note 10)	97,709 (Note 10)
2	ShenZhen HOWTEH Technology Co., Ltd.	ShangHai HOWTEH International Trading Inc.	Other receivables	Yes	17,308 RMB4,000	17,308 RMB4,000	-	4.35%	2	-	Short-term financing	-	-	-	32,003 (Note 11)	48,004 (Note 11)

Note 1: The description of the number column is as follows:

(1) Issuer fill in 0.

(2) Investee companies are numbered sequentially, beginning with the Arabic numeral 1.

Note 2: Accounts of receivables related enterprise payments, receivables related party payments, shareholder transactions, advance payments, temporary payments... and other subjects, if they are in the nature of capital loans, must be filled in this form.

Note 3: The highest balance of funds lent to others in the current year.

Note 4: The nature of the loan should be filled in as a business transaction or a need for short-term financing.

(1) Business transaction fill in 1.

(2) Short-term financing fill in 2.

Note 5: If the nature of the loan is a business transaction, the business transaction amount should be filled in, which refers to the business transaction amount of the company and the loan target who lent the funds in the latest year.

Note 6: If the nature of the capital loan is necessary for short-term financing funds, the reason for the necessary loan and the purpose of the funds to be borrowed should be specified, such as: repayment of loans, purchase of equipment, business turnover, etc.

Note 7: The maximum loan limit set by the Company shall not exceed 40% of the net value of the Company, and the maximum loan limit shall not exceed 20% of the net value of the Company for a single object.

Note 8: The amounts of funds to be loaned to others which have been approved by the Board of Directors of a public company in accordance with Article 14, Item 1 of the "Regulations Governing Loaning of Funds and Making of Endorsements/ Guarantees by Public Companies" should be included in its published balance of loans to others at the end of the reporting period to reveal the risk of loaning the public company bears, even though they have not yet been appropriated. However, this balance should exclude the loans repaid when repayments are done subsequently to reflect the risk adjustment. Tn addition, if the Board of Directors of a public company has authorized the Chairman to loan funds in instalments or in revolving within certain lines and within one year in accordance with Article 14, Item 2 of the "Regulations Governing Loaning of Funds and Making of Endorsements/ Guarantees by Public Company has authorized the Chairman to loan funds in instalments or in revolving within certain lines and within one year in accordance with Article 14, Item 2 of the "Regulations Governing Loaning of Funds and Making of Endorsements/ Guarantees by Public Company is oto others at the end of the reporting period should also include these lines of loaning approved by the Board of Directors, and these lines of loaning should not be excluded from this balance even though the loans are repaid subsequently, for taking into consideration that they could be loaned again thereafter.

Note 9: Counter-party:

According to Article 15 of the Company Law, the company's funds shall not be lent to shareholders or any other person except in the following circumstances:

(1) Intercompany business dealers.

(2) There is a need for short-term financing between companies. The amount of financing shall not exceed 40% of the net value of enterprise.

For the purposes of the preceding paragraph, short-term term refers to one year. However, if the company's business cycle is longer than one year, the business cycle shall prevail.

(3) The financing amount referred to in the preceding paragraph is the cumulative balance of the Company's short-term financing funds.

(4) The Company directly and indirectly holds 100% of the voting shares of foreign companies engaged in capital loans, which are not subject to the restrictions of the preceding paragraph.

Note 10: The total limit of capital loans set by ShangHai HOWTEH International Trading Inc. shall not exceed 60% of the net value of the company, and the maximum loan limit for a single object shall not exceed 40% of the net value of the company.

Note 11: The total limit of capital loan and total set by ShenZhen HOWTEH Technology Co., Ltd. shall not exceed 60% of the net value of the company, and the maximum loan limit for a single object shall not exceed 40% of the net value of the company.

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

	Collaterals/Guar antee Provider	Counter-part		Limits on Each Counter-party's	Maximum balance	Ending	Actual Amount		Ratio of Accumulated		Provision of	Provision of Endorsements by	Provision of Endorsements to the
No.			Relationship	G 11 . 1/G	e accumulated up to the end of this month	Balance	Drawn Down	Amount of Properties Guaranteed	Amount of Collateral to Net Asset Value of the Latest Financial	Guarance Amounts	Endorsements by Parent Company to Subsidiary	Subsidiary to Parent	Company in Mainland China
(Note 1)		Name	(Note 2)	(Note 3)	(Note 4 \ 8)	(Note 5 \ 8)	(Note 6)		Statement (%)	(Note 3)	(Note 6)	(Note 7)	(Note 7)
0	HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.	GITEH Electronic Industries Co., Ltd.	4	\$386,717	\$92,115 USD 3,000	\$92,115 USD 3,000	\$-	\$-	5.95%	\$773,435	Y	-	-
0	HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.	HOWTEH Vietnam Co., Ltd.	4	386,717	9,212 USD 300	9,212 USD 300	-	-	0.60%	773,435	Y	-	-

Note 1: The description of the number column is as follows:

(1) Issuer fill in 0.

(2) Investee companies are numbered sequentially, beginning with the Arabic numeral 1.

Note 2: There are the following seven types of relationships between the endorsement guarantor and the endorsed guarantee object, and the types can be indicated:

(1) There are business dealings between companies.

(2) Companies in which the company directly and indirectly holds more than 50% of the voting shares.

(3) A company in which more than 50% of the voting rights are directly or indirectly held in the company.

(4) A company in which the company directly and indirectly holds more than 90% of the voting shares.

(5) A company that is mutually insured by inter-industry or co-sponsors in accordance with the provisions of the contract.

(6) A company that is endorsed and guaranteed by all contributing shareholders in accordance with their shareholding ratio due to a co-investment relationship.

(7) The performance guarantee of the pre-sale house sales contract is jointly and severally guaranteed in accordance with the Consumer Protection Law.

Note 3: Endorsement guarantee method: The total amount of endorsement guarantee shall not exceed 50% of the company's net value, and the amount of endorsement guarantee for a single enterprise shall not exceed 25% of the company's net value.

Note 4: The maximum amount accumulated up to this month is the highest guaranteed balance of endorsement for the current year.

Note 5: By the end of the year, the company shall bear the endorsement or guarantee liability when the amount of the endorsement guarantee deed or instrument signed by the company to the bank is approved; Other relevant cases with endorsement guarantee should be included in the balance of endorsement guarantee.

Note 6: The actual amount of expenditure is the amount of expenditure under the guaranteed amount of the parent company.

Note 7: Those who are endorsement guarantors of the parent company of the listed stock exchange to the subsidiary, endorsement guarantors of the subsidiaries to the parent company of the listed stock exchange to the mainlain to the mainlain of the subsidiary endorsement guarantors of the subsidiaries to the parent company of the listed stock exchange to the mainlain of the subsidiary endorsement guarantors of the subsidiaries to the parent company of the listed stock exchange to the mainlain of the subsidiary endorsement guarantors of the subsidiaries to the parent company of the listed stock exchange to the mainlain of the subsidiary endorsement guarantors of the subsidiaries to the parent company of the listed stock exchange to the mainlain of the subsidiary endorsement guarantors of the subsidiaries to the parent company of the listed stock exchange to the mainlain of the subsidiary endorsement guarantors of the subsidiaries to the parent company of the listed stock exchange to the mainlain of the subsidiary endorsement guarantors of the subsidiaries to the parent company of the listed stock exchange to the mainlain of the subsidiary endorsement guarantors of the subsidiaries to the parent company of the listed stock exchange to the mainlain of the subsidiary endorsement guarantors of the subsidiaries to the parent company of the listed stock exchange to the mainlain of the subsidiary endorsement guarantors of the subsidiary endorsement guaranto

Note 8 The exchange rate is based on the ending exchange rate.

Attached Table 3: Marketable securities held (excluding investment subsidiaries, affiliated enterprises and joint venture control part)

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

		Relationship with the Holding		Shares	Carrying	Percentage of		Notes(Note 4)
Holding Company	Securities Type and Name(Note 1)	Company(Note 2)	Financial Statement Accoun	(1,000)	Value(Note 3)	Ownership(%)	Fair Value	notes(note 4)
HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.	Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive							
	Tailyn Technologies, Inc.	The Chairman of the company is a director of the Tailyn company	Investments in equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income - noncurrent	8,291,475	\$298,908	11.05%	\$298,908	No collateral is provided
	Feedpool Technology Co.,Ltd.	-	//	566,030		2.52%		//
			Total		\$298,908		\$298,908	

Note 1: For the purposes of this table, marketable securities refer to stocks, bonds, beneficiary certificates and securities derived from the above items that fall within the scope of IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments".

Note 2: If the issuer of securities is not a related person, this column is exempted.

Note 3: For fair value measured, please fill in the book balance after adjustment of fair value evaluation and deduction of accumulated impairment in the carrying amount field; For those not measured at fair value, please fill in the carrying amount of the original acquisition cost or amortized cost less the accumulated impairment book balance.

Note 4: The use of marketable securities is restricted because of the provision of guarantees, pledge loans, or other agreements. The number of shares to be guaranteed or pledged, the amount and restricted use should be indicated in the remarks column.

Attached Table 4: Purchase and sale of goods from or to related parties reaching NT\$ 100 million or more than 20% of the paid-in capital or more

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) transaction terms compared to general Notes/accounts receivable transactions and Transaction (payable) reasons Percentage of Percentage total of total Unit Relationship notes/accounts purchases price receivable(pay with the Purchases(sales) Credit term Counter-party (sales) able)(%) Purchaser/seller counter-party (Note 1) Credit term (Note 2) (Note 2) Balance Notes Amount HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY **GITEH Electronic Industries** \$(107,900) Subsidiary \$-2.84 Sales (4.86)60days \$20,399 CO., LTD. Co., Ltd. HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY **GITEH Electronic Industries** Subsidiary 107,990 60days (20,399) Purchases 19.24 (23.81)_ Co., Ltd. CO., LTD.

Note 1: Written off at the time of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

Note 2: Comparable to general companies.

Note 3: The ratio of total notes receivable (payable) and accounts receivable (payable) to the individual financial statements of the importing (selling) company.

Attached Table 5:Business relationships and important transactions between parent and subsidiary companies

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

			Relationship with		Ti	ransactions	Thousands of New Turwan Donais
No.			the counter-		Amount (Note	Trading	Ratio to total consolidated
(Note 1)	Purchaser/seller	Counter-party	party(Note 2)	Account	4)	conditions	revenue or total assets (Note 3)
0	HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.	ShangHai HOWTEH International Trading Inc.	1	Sales revenue	\$39,254	120days	1.43%
0	//	//	1	Accounts receivable	3,559	//	0.14%
0	//	//	1	Purchase	179	月結60天	0.01%
0	//	GITEH Electronic Industries Co., Ltd.	1	Sales revenue	107,900	60days	3.93%
0	//	//	1	Accounts receivable	20,399	//	0.81%
0	//	//	1	Purchase	99,599	//	3.63%
0	//	//	1	Accounts payable	23,434	//	0.93%
0	//	ShenZhen HOWTEH Technology Co., Ltd.	1	Sales revenue	33,999	//	1.24%
0	//	//	1	Accounts receivable	7,611	//	0.30%
1	GITEH Electronic Industries Co., Ltd.	ShangHai HOWTEH International Trading Inc.	3	Sales revenue	52,591	120days	1.92%
1	//	//	3	Accounts receivable	6,914	//	0.27%
1	//	//	3	Purchase	4,881	60days	0.18%
1	//	//	3	Accounts payable	1,749	//	0.07%
1	//	ShenZhen HOWTEH Technology Co., Ltd.	1	Sales revenue	48,584	//	1.77%
1	//	//	1	Accounts receivable	14,725	//	0.58%
1	//	//	1	Other payables	1,696	10days	0.07%
1	//	//	1	Operating expenses	5,291	//	0.19%
1	//	HOWTEH Vietnam Co., Ltd.	3	Sales revenue	12	60days	0.00%
2	ShenZhen HOWTEH Technology Co., Ltd.	ShangHai HOWTEH International Trading Inc.	3	Sales revenue	1,488	120days	0.05%
2	//	//	3	Accounts receivable	126	//	0.01%
2	//	//	3	Purchase	48,831	60days	1.78%
2	//	//	3	Accounts payable	15,001	//	0.60%
	//	KunShan HOWTEH International Trading Inc.	3	Accounts payable	12	120days	0.00%
3	ShangHai HOWTEH International Trading Inc.	KunShan HOWTEH International Trading Inc.	3	Sales revenue	2,105	120days	0.08%
3	//	//	3	Accounts receivable	8,678	//	0.34%
3	//	//	3	Operating expenses	6,981	25days	0.25%

Note 1: The description of the number column is as follows:

(1) Issuer fill in 0.

(2) Investee companies are numbered sequentially, beginning with the Arabic numeral 1.

Note 2: There are three types of transaction relationships

(1) Parent company to subsidiary.

(2) Subsidiary to parent company.

(3) Subsidiary to subsidiary.

Note 3: The transaction amount is calculated using total revenue or total asset ratio. In the case of balance sheet accounts, the ratio of the closing amount to the total assets is used;

In the case of income statement accounts, the ratio of cumulative amounts in the period to total revenue is used.

Note 4: The important transactions in this table shall be listed by the company in accordance with the materiality principle.

Note 5: Eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.

Attached Table 6: Information on the name and location of the invested company (excluding invested companies in Mainland China

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

	Investee Company			Initial investment amount Held by the company		Current gain	Investment gain				
Investor Company	(Note $1 \cdot 2$)	Location	Main Business activities	Ending of this period	Ending of last year	Number of shares	Rate%	Carrying amount	(loss)(Note 2(2))	(loss))(Note 2(3))	Note
HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.	GITEH Electronic Industries Co., Ltd.	Hong Kong	trading of electronic parts	HKD 12,000	HKD 12,000	-	100.00%	\$565,762	\$36,390	\$35,891	
HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.	HOWTEH International Inc.	Samoa	Investment in Shanghai and entrepot trade	USD 1,800	USD 1,800	-	100.00%	172,740	(6,585)	(6,560)	
HOWTEH International Inc.	HOWTEH Vietnam Co., Ltd.	Vietnam	trading of electronic parts	USD 300	USD 300	-	100.00%	4,541	(1,300)	(1,300)	

Note 1: If a public offering company has a foreign holding company and uses consolidated statements as its main financial statements in accordance with local laws and regulations, the disclosure of information about the foreign invested company may

only disclose the relevant information of the holding company.

Note 2: Except for the circumstances described in Note 1, fill in according to the following provisions:

(1) "Investee Company ", "Location", "Main Business activities", "Initial investment amount" and "Ending of this period", the reinvestment situation of the (public offering) company and the reinvestment situation of each investee

company directly or indirectly controlled should be filled in order, and the relationship between each investee company and the public offering company should be indicated in the remarks column (if it is a subsidiary or grandchild).

(2) "Current gain (loss)", the current profit or loss amount of each investee company should be filled in.

(3) "Investment gain (loss)", only the profit and loss amount of each subsidiary of the public offering company recognized for direct transfer investment and each investee company evaluated by the equity method must be filled in, and the remaining information is exempted.

When filling in the "nvestment gain (loss)", it should be confirmed that the current profit and loss amount of each subsidiary already includes the investment profit or loss that should be recognized according to the regulations for its reinvestment.

Note 3: Eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.

										(In]	Thousands of New '	Taiwan Dollars)
			Investment method	Accumulated amount of remittance from Taiwan at the beginning of	investmer	unt of nt remitted red during ent period	Accumulate d amount of remittance from Taiwan at the end of	Current profit (loss) of the invested	Shareholding ratio of the company's investment (direct or	Investment income (loss) recognized in the current period	Book value of investment at the end of the	Investment income remitted back to Taiwan as of the current
Investee in Mainland China	Main business activities	Paid-in capital	(Note 1)	current year	Remitted	Recovered	current year	company	indirect)	(Note 2)	period	period
ShangHai HOWTEH International Trading Inc.	International trade, entrepot trade, inter- enterprise trade and trade agency in the bonded zone, enterprise agency with import and export operation rights and non-bonded zone enterprises engaged in trade business, commercial simple processing in the bonded	\$50,663 (USD 1,650)	(2) HOWTEH International Inc.	\$42,987 (USD 1,400)	\$-	\$-	\$42,987 (USD 1,400)	\$(5,196)	100%	\$(5,171) (Note 2 \(2) \2)	\$162,816 (Note 2 \(2) \2)	None
ShenZhen HOWTEH Technology Co., Ltd.	Chemical products, rubber, plastics, metal products, electronic components, testing instruments, general parts, mechanical equipment, electronic equipment and related accessories, communication equipment and related accessories, electrical and electrical equipment and their spare parts wholesale,	27,503 (HKD 7,000)	(2) GITEH Electronic Industries Co., Ltd.	-	-	-	-	(2,178)	100%	(2,182) (Note 2 \cdot (2) \cdot 2)	,	None
KunShan HOWTEH International Trading Inc.	equipment and then space parts wholesate, commission agency, import and export and related supporting business. Electronic product information consulting, economic information consulting, enterprise management consulting. International trade, entrepot trade, trade and trade agency between enterprises in the bonded zone, enterprise agency with import and export operation rights and non-bonded zone enterprises engaged in trade business, commercial simple processing in the bonded zone, business consulting services in the bonded zone, etc.	9,212 (USD 300)	(1) HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.	9,212 (USD 300)	-	-	9,212 (USD 300)	275	100%	275 (Note 2 \cdot (2) \cdot 2)	(7,786) (Note 2 \cdot (2) \cdot 2)	

А	Accumulative amount of investment remitted from Taiwan to the mainland at the end of this period	Investment amount approved by the Investment Commission of the Ministry of Economic Affairs	Ceiling on investments in Mainland China imposed by the Investment Commission of MOEA		
	\$52,199 (USD1,700)	\$93,664 (USD 1,950) (HKD 8,600)	\$928,121		

Note 1: Investment methods are divided into the following three types:

(1) Direct investment in mainland China.

(2) Reinvesting in the mainland through a third region company (please specify the investment company in the third region).

(3) Other methods.

Note 2: In investment income (loss) recognized in the current period column:

(1) If there is no investment profit or loss in the preparation of the company, it should be indicated.

(2) There are three bases for recognition of investment gains and losses, which should be indicated.

1. The amount recognized was based on the financial statements that were audited by a cooperative relationship with the Republic of China CPA firm.

2. The amount recognized was based on the financial statements that were audited by parent company's CPA firm.

3.Other •

4. The difference between current profit (loss) of the investee and investment income (loss) recognized were unrealized downstream, upstream and sidestream transactions with the subsidiaries during the period.

Note 3: The figures in this table should be presented in New Taiwan Dollars at the following exchange rates:

 Ending exchange rati
 Average Exchange Rate :

 USD=30.705
 USD=30.7075

 HKD=3.929
 HKD=3.9335

 RMB=4.327
 RMB=4.3675

Note 4: Eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.

(Unit: one share)

	Holding shares									
major shareholders	Number of common shares	Number of special shares	Total number of shares held	Shareholding ratio						
Hui Hong Investment Co., Ltd.	5,624,875	_	5,624,875	8.63%						
Chen, Kuo-Hung	5,295,984	_	5,295,984	8.13%						

Note 1: This table is based on the last business day at the end of each quarter, and the total number of ordinary shares and special shares held by shareholders of the company that have completed the non-physical registration delivery (including treasury shares) reaches more than 5%. The number of shares recorded in the company's financial reports and the number of shares actually completed without physical registration may differ depending on the basis of the preparation and calculation.

- Note 2: If the above information belongs to the shareholders who deliver the shares to the trust, they will be revealed in the separate accounts of the settlor who opened a special trust account by the trustee. For insider equity declarations filed by shareholders holding more than 10% of the shares in accordance with the Securities Exchange Act, including shareholding plus shares delivered to the trust and having the right to decide on the use of trust property, please refer to the Public Observation Information Station for the reporting materials.
- Note 3 : The principle of preparation of this table is to calculate the distribution of credit transaction balances from the register of securities owners (excluding securities lending) that the shareholders' temporary meeting has stopped transferring.
- Note 4: Shareholding ratio (%) = total number of shares held by the shareholder / total number of shares that have been delivered without physical registration.
- Note 5 : The total number of shares (including treasury shares) that have been delivered without physical registration is 65,129,792 shares = 65,129,792 (common shares) + 0 (special shares).

Independent Auditors' Report Translated from Chinese

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying parent company only balance sheets of HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. (the "Company") as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and the related parent company only statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, and notes to the parent company only financial statements, including the summary of significant accounting policies (together "the parent company only financial statements").

In our opinion, the parent company only financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, and its financial performance and cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, in conformity with the requirements of the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Parent Company Only Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of the Republic of China (the "Norm"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Norm. Based on our audits, we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of 2023 parent company only financial statements. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the parent company only financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

1. <u>Revenue recognition</u>

The Company recognized a net operating revenue of NT\$2,222,504 thousand in the year of 2023. Due to the diversity of the Company's products, the sales of domestic and foreign markets, and the different trading conditions, we believe that it is important to decide the performance obligation and the timing of the fulfillment of which. Thus, we conclude that revenue recognition is a key audit matter.

Our audit procedure include but not limited to, assessing the appropriateness of accounting policies for revenue recognition, understanding and testing the design and implementation of internal controls related to the sales cycle; selecting samples to perform transaction detail tests, inspecting the transaction records and check the important terms in the order or contract, identifying the performance obligation of the order or contract and confirming the time point of satisfaction; performance cut-off tests for a period of time around the end of the year, including obtaining the customer's original order or contract, inspecting the transaction point and confirming that the performance obligation has been satisfied; performing analytical procedures such as analysis of gross margin fluctuation and sales changes of the top 10 customers, and inspecting the significant sales returns and discounts if any subsequent to the balance sheet date to confirm the reasonableness of the timing of revenue recognition.

We have also evaluates the appropriateness of the related disclosure in notes 4 and 6 to the parent company only financial statements.

2. Valuation of inventories

As of December 31, 2023, the Company's net inventories amounted to NT\$172,563 thousand, which accounted for approximately 7% of the total assets, Considering that products technology and market changes has significant impact on inventory turnover and selling prices, that the management's assessment of the net realizable value of inventory is important to the financial statements. Thus, we conclude that inventory valuation is a key audit matter.

Our audit procedures include, but not limited to, performing analytical procedures such as days of inventory turnover to assess the reasonableness of inventory valuation accounting policies (including provisions for slow-moving and obsolete inventory and net realizable value of inventory); selecting inventory samples from different inventory aging buckets, verifying transaction vouchers and comparing transaction records to confirm the accuracy of inventory aging; selecting samples with large amounts and considering the recent market prices to assess the reasonableness of the net realizable value of the inventory adopted by management.

We have also evaluates the appropriateness of the related disclosure in notes 4, 5 and 6 to the parent company only financial statements.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Parent Company Only Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the parent company only financial statements in accordance with the requirements of the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of parent company only financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the parent company only financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the ability to continue as a going concern of the Company, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Company.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Parent Company Only Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the parent company only financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these parent company only financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the parent company only financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- 2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control of the Company.
- 3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
- 4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability to continue as a going concern of the Company. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the parent company only financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
- 5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the parent company only financial statements, including the accompanying notes, and whether the parent company only financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
- 6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Company to express an opinion on the parent company only financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of 2023 parent company only financial statements and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Hsuan-Hsuan Wang

Chih-Ming Chang

Ernst & Young, Taiwan

March 14, 2024

Notice to Readers

The accompanying parent company only financial statements are intended only to present the financial position, results of operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such parent company only financial statements are those generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China.

Accordingly, the accompanying parent company only financial statements and report of independent auditors are not intended for use by those who are not informed about the accounting principles or Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, and their applications in practice. As the financial statements are the responsibility of the management, Ernst & Young cannot accept any liability for the use of, or reliance on, the English translation or for any errors or misunderstandings that may derive from the translation.

HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. PARENT COMPANY ONLY BALANCE SHEETS DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022 (Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

			December 31,	2023	December 31	, 2022
CODE	ASSETS	NOTES	AMOUNT	%	AMOUNT	%
	CURRENT ASSETS					
1100	Cash and cash equivalents	4,6,12	\$323,799	13	\$568,450	20
1150	Notes receivable, net	4,5,6,12	414	-	1,372	-
1170	Accounts receivable, net	4,5,6,12	685,609	28	740,318	26
1180	Accounts receivable due from related parties, net	4,5,6,7,12	31,692	2	32,313	1
1200	Other receivables	5,12	5	-	25	-
1220	Current tax assets	4,5,6	2,317	-	-	-
130x	Current inventories	4,5,6	172,563	7	285,636	10
1410	Prepayments	6	5,130	-	116,121	4
11xx	Total current assets		1,221,529	50	1,744,235	61
	NON-CURRENT ASSETS					
1517	Non-current financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income	4,6,12	298,908	12	227,186	8
1550	Investment accounted for using equity method	4,6,12	730,716	30	706,810	25
1600	Property, plant and equipment	4,6,8	103,461	5	103,874	4
1755	Right-of-use assets	4,6	8,289	-	558	-
1760	Investment property, net	4,5,6,12	8,548	-	8,660	-
1780	Intangible assets	4,6	840	-	528	-
1840	Deferred tax assets	4,5,6	13,521	1	13,526	-
1920	Guarantee deposits paid	9,12	52,553	2	50,660	2
1990	Other non-current assets, others	4,5,6	8,840		8,498	
15xx	Total non-current assets		1,225,676	50	1,120,300	39
1xxx	TOTAL ASSETS		\$2,447,205	100	\$2,864,535	100

HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. PARENT COMPANY ONLY BALANCE SHEETS DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022 (Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

			December 31,	2023	December 31,	, 2022
CODE	LIABILITIES AND EQUITY	NOTES	AMOUNT	%	AMOUNT	%
	CURRENT LIABILITIES					
2100	Current borrowings	4,6,8,9,12	\$590,000	24	\$903,000	32
2130	Current contract liabilities	4,6	175	-	106,880	4
2170	Accounts payable	12	192,762	8	242,225	8
2180	Accounts payable to related parties	7,12	23,434	1	30,611	1
2200	Other payables	7,12	76,240	3	71,028	3
2230	Current tax liabilities	4,5,6	725	-	40,996	1
2280	Current lease liabilities	4,6,12	3,922	-	565	-
2399	Other current liabilities, others		1,936	-	1,441	-
21xx	Total current liabilities		889,194	36	1,396,746	49
	NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES					
2570	Deferred tax liabilities	4,5,6	3,409	-	3,267	-
2580	Non-current lease liabilities	4,6,12	4,424	-	-	-
2645	Guarantee deposits received	12	3,309	-	3,309	
25xx	Total non-current liabilities		11,142	-	6,576	
2xxx	TOTAL LIABILITIES		900,336	36	1,403,322	49
31xx	EQUITY					
3100	Share capital	6				
3110	Common stock		651,298	28	626,248	22
3200	Capital surplus	6	52,062	2	52,062	2
3300	Retained earnings	6				
3310	Legal reserve		225,647	9	204,597	7
3320	Special reserve		3,340	-	3,340	-
3350	Unappropriated retained earnings		400,655	16	427,121	15
3400	Other equity interest	4,6	213,867	9	147,845	5
3xxx	TOTAL EQUITY		1,546,869	64	1,461,213	51
	TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY		\$2,447,205	100	\$2,864,535	100

HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022 (Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings Per Share)

			2023		2022	
CODE	ITEMS	NOTES	AMOUNT	%	AMOUNT	%
4000	Operating revenue	4,6,7	\$2,222,054	100	\$2,554,446	100
5000	Operating costs	6,7	(2,014,446)	(91)	(2,306,696)	(90)
5900	Gross profit		207,608	9	247,750	10
6000	Operating expenses					
6100	Selling expenses		(79,187)	(3)	(83,704)	(3)
6200	Administrative expenses		(56,270)	(2)	(67,194)	(3)
6450	Reversal of credit loss (expected credit loss)		5,483	-	(11,354)	-
	Total operating expenses	4,5,6,7	(129,974)	(5)	(162,252)	(6)
6900	Operating income		77,634	4	85,498	4
7000	Non-operating income and expenses					
7100	Interest income	6	6,658	-	2,806	-
7010	Other income	4,5,6	14,499	1	18,693	1
7020	Other gains and losses	6,12	7,669	-	113,430	4
7050	Finance costs	4,6	(13,261)	-	(13,297)	(1)
7070	Share of profit or loss of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures	4,6				
	accounted for using the equity method		29,606	1	41,262	2
	Total non-operating income and expense		45,171	2	162,894	6
7900	Income before income tax		122,805	6	248,392	10
7950	Income tax expense	4,5,6	(22,033)	(1)	(39,593)	(2)
8200	Net income		100,772	5	208,799	8
8300	Other comprehensive income (loss)	4,6				
8310	Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss	,				
8311	Remeasurements of defined benefit plans		342	-	2,131	-
8316	Unrealize gain (loss) on equity instrument at fair value		T (T (T)			
	through other comprehensive income		71,722	3	46,846	2
8349	Income tax expense related to items that will		((9))		(120)	
	not be reclassified subsequently		(68)	-	(426)	-
8360	Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss					
8381	Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations		(5,700)	-	46,103	2
	Total other comprehensive income, net of income tax		66,296	3	94,654	4
8500	Total comprehensive income		\$167,068	8	\$303,453	12
9750	Basic earnings per share (in NTD)	6	\$1.55		\$3.21	
9750 9850	Diluted earnings per share (in NTD)	6	\$1.54		\$3.19	
2000	Diruce carmings per share (in NTD)	U			φ3.19	

HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

				Retained Earnings		Other Com equ	•		
								Unrealized gains/losses on financial assets at	
						TT	Easterne differences	fair value through other	
		Common	Capital	Legal	Special	Unappropriated Retained	Exchange differences arising on translation	comprehensive	
	Items	Stock	Surplus	Reserve	Reserve	Earnings	of foreign operations	income	Total equity
Code		3100	3200	3310	3320	3350	3410	3420	3XXX
A1	Balance, January 1, 2022	\$590,800	\$52,062	\$190,269	\$3,340	\$319,565	\$(53,437)	\$108,333	\$1,210,932
	Appropriation of 2021 earnings:								
B1	Legal reserve	-	-	14,328	-	(14,328)	-	-	-
B5	Cash dividends	-	-	-	-	(53,172)	-	-	(53,172)
B9	Stock dividends	35,448	-	-	-	(35,448)	-	-	-
D1	Net income for the year	-	-	-	-	208,799	-	-	208,799
D3	Other comprehensive income for the year	-	-	-	-	1,705	46,103	46,846	94,654
D5	Total comprehensive income for the year	-	-	-	-	210,504	46,103	46,846	303,453
Z1	Balance, December 31, 2022	\$626,248	\$52,062	\$204,597	\$3,340	\$427,121	\$(7,334)	\$155,179	\$1,461,213
A1	Balance, January 1, 2023	\$626,248	\$52,062	\$204,597	\$3,340	\$427,121	\$(7,334)	\$155,179	\$1,461,213
	Appropriation of 2022 earnings:								
B1	Legal reserve	-	-	21,050	-	(21,050)	-	-	-
B5	Cash dividends	-	-	-	-	(81,412)	-	-	(81,412)
B9	Stock dividends	25,050	-	-	-	(25,050)	-	-	-
D1	Net income for the year	-	-	-	-	100,772	-	-	100,772
D3	Other comprehensive income (loss) for the year	-	-	-	-	274	(5,700)	71,722	66,296
D5	Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year	-	-	-	-	101,046	(5,700)	71,722	167,068
Z1	Balance, December 31, 2023	\$651,298	\$52,062	\$225,647	\$3,340	\$400,655	\$(13,034)	\$226,901	\$1,546,869

HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD. PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND 2022 (Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Code		2023	2022	Code		2023	2022
AAAA	CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:			BBBB	CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:		
A10000	Income before income tax	\$122,805	\$248,392	B02700	Acquisition of property, plant and equipment	(677)	(439)
A20000	Adjustments to reconcile net loss before tax to net			B03700	Refundable deposits	(1,893)	(4,545)
A20010	Profit or loss not effecting cash flows:			B04500	Acquisition of intangible assets	(555)	-
A20100	Depreciation expense	4,578	3,443	B07600	Dividends received	9,950	7,462
A20200	Amortization expense	243	215	BBBB	Net cash generated from investing activities	6,825	2,478
A20300	Expected credit loss (reversal of credit loss)	(5,483)	11,354				
A20900	Interest expense	13,261	13,297	CCCC	CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:		
A21200	Interest income	(6,658)	(2,806)	C00100	Increase in short-term loan	3,142,000	4,752,000
A21300	Dividend income	(9,950)	(7,462)	C00200	Decrease in short-term loan	(3,455,000)	(4,879,000)
A22400	Share of loss/profit of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures	(29,606)	(41,262)	C00500	Increase in short-term notes and bills payable	50,000	100,000
	accounted for using equity method			C00600	Decrease in short-term notes and bills payable	(50,000)	(130,000)
A30000	Changes in operating assets and liabilities:			C04020	Payment of the principal portion of lease liabilities	(3,466)	(2,306)
A31130	Decrease (increase) in notes receivable	958	(1,071)	C04500	Cash dividends paid	(81,412)	(53,172)
A31150	Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable	60,192	171,084	C05600	Interest paid	(13,121)	(13,276)
A31160	Decrease (increase) in accounts receivables from related parties	621	(8,066)	CCCC	Net cash used in by financing activities	(410,999)	(225,754)
A31180	Decrease (increase) in other receivables	20	4,383				
A31200	Decrease (increase) in inventories	113,073	130,459	DDDD	Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents	-	
A31230	Decrease (increase) in prepayments	110,991	(33,874)	EEEE	Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents	(244,651)	173,546
A32125	Inicrease (dcreasee) in contract liabilities	(106,705)	12,849	E00100	Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period	568,450	394,904
A32150	Inicrease (dcreasee) in accounts payable	(49,463)	(92,706)	E00200	Cash and cash equivalents at end of period	\$323,799	\$568,450
A32160	Inicrease (dcreasee) in accounts payable to related parties	(7,177)	(16,945)				
A32180	Inicrease (dcreasee) in other payables	5,212	8,011				
A32230	Inicrease (dcreasee) in other current liabilities	495	(237)				
A33000	Cash from operating activities	217,407	399,058				
A33100	Interest received	6,658	2,806				
A33500	Income tax paid	(64,542)	(5,042)				
AAAA	Net cash generated from operating activities	159,523	396,822				

HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD NOTES TO PARENT COMPANY ONLY FAINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the Years Ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 (Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Specified Otherwise)

1. History and organization

Howteh Technology Co., Ltd. (referred to "the Company") which was formally known as Howteh Enterprise Co., Ltd, has applied to change its name to Howteh Technology Co., Ltd. In December 28, 2000, and was incorporated in September 23, 1978. The Company is engaged mainly in trading and agency business in passive electronic components, active electronic components, integrated circuit carrier board equipment, chemicals and raw materials, semiconductors and optical equipment. The Company's common shares were publicly listed on the Taipei Exchange (TPEX) on March 25, 2004. The Company's registered office and the main business location is at 6F, No. 25, Section 1, Dunhua South Road, Taipei City, Republic of China (R.O.C.).

2. The authorization of financial statements

The parent company only financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Board of Directors on March 14, 2024.

3. Application of New Standards, Amendments and Interpretations

(1) Changes in accounting policies resulting from applying for the first-time certain standards and amendments

The Company applied for the first time International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards, and Interpretations issued, revised or amended which are recognized by Financial Supervisory Commission ("FSC") and become effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. The adoption of these new standards and amendments had no material impact on the Company.

(2) Standards or interpretations issued, revised or amended, by International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") which are endorsed by FSC, but not yet adopted by the Company as at the end of the reporting period are listed below.

		Effective Date
	New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations	issued by IASB
а	Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current	January 1, 2024
	- Amendments to IAS 1	
b	Leases Liability in a Sale and Leaseback - Amendments to IFRS	January 1, 2024
	16	
с	Non-current Liabilities with Covenants - Amendments to IAS 1	January 1, 2024
d	Supplier Finance Arrangements - Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS	January 1, 2024

(a) Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current - Amendments to IAS 1

These are the amendments to paragraphs 69-76 of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial statements and the amended paragraphs related to the classification of liabilities as current or non-current.

(b) Leases Liability in a Sale and Leaseback - Amendments to IFRS 16

The amendments add seller-lessees additional requirements for the sale and leaseback transactions in IFRS 16, thereby supporting the consistent application of the standard.

(c) Non-current Liabilities with Covenants - Amendments to IAS 1

The amendments improved the information companies provide about long-term debt with covenants. The amendments specify that covenants to be complied within twelve month after the reporting period do not affect the classification of debts as current or non-current at the end of the reporting period.

(d) Supplier Finance Arrangements - Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7

The amendments introduced additional information of supplier finance arrangements and added disclosure requirements for such arrangements.

The abovementioned standards and interpretations were issued by IASB and endorsed by FSC so that they are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2024. The Company assesses all standards and interpretations have no material impact on the Company.

(3) Standards or interpretations issued, revised or amended, by IASB which are not endorsed by FSC, and not yet adopted by the Company as at the end of the reporting period are listed below.

		Effective Date
	New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations	issued by IASB
а	Sale or Contribution of Assets between An Investor and Its	To be determined
	Associate or Joint Venture - Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28	by IASB
b	IFRS 17 "Insurance Contracts"	January 1, 2023
c	Lack of Exchangeability - Amendments to IAS 21	January 1, 2025

(a) IFRS 10 "Consolidated Financial Statements" and IAS 28 "Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures" — Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Ventures

The amendments address the inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, in dealing with the loss of control of a subsidiary that is contributed to an associate or a joint venture. IAS 28 restricts gains and losses arising from contributions of non-monetary assets to an associate or a joint venture to the extent of the interest attributable to the other equity holders in the associate or joint ventures. IFRS 10 requires full profit or loss recognition on the loss of control of the subsidiary. IAS 28 was amended so that the gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that constitute a business as defined in IFRS 3 between an investor and its associate or joint venture is recognized in full.

IFRS 10 was also amended so that the gains or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of a subsidiary that does not constitute a business as defined in IFRS 3 between an investor and its associate or joint venture is recognized only to the extent of the unrelated investors' interests in the associate or joint venture.

(b) IFRS 17 "Insurance Contracts"

IFRS 17 provides a comprehensive model for insurance contracts, covering all relevant accounting aspects (including recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure requirements). The core of IFRS 17 is the General (building block) Model, under this model, on initial recognition, an entity shall measure a company of insurance contracts at the total of the fulfilment cash flows and the contractual service margin. The carrying amount of a company of insurance contracts at the end of each reporting period shall be the sum of the liability for remaining coverage and the liability for incurred claims.

Other than the General Model, the standard also provides a specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features (the Variable Fee Approach) and a simplified approach (Premium Allocation Approach) mainly for short-duration contracts.

IFRS 17 was issued in May 2017 and it was amended in 2020 and 2022. The amendments include deferral of the date of initial application of IFRS 17 by two years to annual beginning on or after January 1, 2023 (from the original effective date of January 1, 2022); provide additional transition reliefs; simplify some requirements to reduce the costs of applying IFRS 17 and revise some requirements to make the results easier to explain. IFRS 17 replaces an interim Standard – IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts – from annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023.

(c) Lack of Exchangeability - Amendments to IAS 21

These amendments specify whether a currency is exchangeable into another currency and, when it is not, to determining the exchange rate to use and the disclosures to provide. The amendments apply for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2025.

The abovementioned standards and interpretations issued by IASB have not yet endorsed by FSC at the date when the Group's financial statements were authorized for issue, the local effective dates are to be determined by FSC. The Group assesses all standards and interpretations have no material impact on the Group.

4. Summary of significant account policies

(1) Statement of compliance

The parent company only financial statements of the Company for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 were prepared in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers ("the Regulations").

(2) Basis of preparation

The parent company only financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for financial instruments that have been measured at fair value. The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars ("NT\$") unless otherwise specified.

(3) Foreign currency transactions

The Company's parent company only financial statements are presented in New Taiwan Dollar, which is the parent company's functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at respective functional currency rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. At the reporting date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the prevailing functional currency closing rate of exchange. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are retranslated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined; and non-monetary items measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates of the initial transactions.

All exchange differences arising from the settlement or translation of monetary items are taken to profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for the following:

- (A) Exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings for an acquisition of a qualifying asset to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs are included in the borrowing costs that are eligible for capitalization.
- (B) Foreign currency items within the scope of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments are accounted for based on the accounting policy for financial instruments.
- (C) Exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of a reporting entity's net investment in a foreign operation is recognized initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal of the net investment.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognized in other comprehensive income, any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognized in other comprehensive income. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognized in profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.

(4) Translation of financial statements in foreign currency

Each entity in the Company determines its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency.

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into New Taiwan dollars at the closing rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date and their income and expenses are translated at an average rate for the period. The exchange differences arising on the translation are recognized in other comprehensive income under exchange differences on translation of foreign operations. On disposal of the foreign operation, cumulative amount of the exchange differences recognized in other comprehensive income under separate component of equity is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when recognizing the disposal gain/loss.

On the partial disposal of a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation that does not result in a loss of control, the proportionate share of the cumulative amount of the exchange differences recognized in other comprehensive income is re-attributed to the NCIs in that foreign operation, instead of recognized in profit or loss. In partial disposal of an associate or jointly controlled entity that includes a foreign operation that does not result in a loss of significant influence or joint control, only the proportionate share of the cumulative amount of the exchange differences recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill generated due to acquisition of foreign operation by the company and fair value adjustments made towards the carrying value of foreign operations' assets and liabilities, are

regarded as the assets and liabilities which belongs to the foreign operation and is reported in its own functional currency.

(5) Current and non-current distinction

An asset is classified as current when:

- (A) The Company expects to realize the asset, or intends to sell or consume it, in its normal operating cycle.
- (B) The Company holds the asset primarily for the purpose of trading.
- (C) The Company expects to realize the asset within twelve months after the reporting period.
- (D) The asset is cash or cash equivalent, unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:

- (A) The Company expects to settle the liability in its normal operating cycle.
- (B) The Company holds the liability primarily for the purpose of trading.
- (C) The liability is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period.
- (D) The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification. All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
- (6) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value (including fixed-term deposits that have maturities equal to or less than one year from the date of acquisition).

(7) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Company determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. In accordance with IFRS 9 and the Regulations, financial assets of the Company are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income, financial assets measured at amortized cost and notes, accounts and other receivables. All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus,

in the case of investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable costs. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the income statement.

(A) Financial assets: Recognition and Measurement

Purchase or sale of financial assets is recognized using trade date accounting.

The Company classified financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of both:

- (a) The Company's business model for managing the financial assets and
- (b) The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met and presented as note receivables, trade receivables financial assets measured at amortized cost and other receivables etc., on balance sheet as at the reporting date:

- (a) The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and
- (b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost (the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between the initial amount and the maturity amount and adjusted for any loss allowance) and is not part of a hedging relationship. A gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss when the financial asset is derecognized, through the amortization process or in order to recognize the impairment gains or losses.

Interest revenue is calculated by using the effective interest method. This is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for:

- (a) Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets. For those financial assets, the Company applies the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the financial asset from initial recognition.
- (b) Financial assets that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets but subsequently have become credit-impaired financial assets. For those financial

assets, the Company applies the effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the financial asset in subsequent reporting periods.

Financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the following conditions are met:

- (a) The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and
- (b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

Recognition of gain or loss on a financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are described as below:

- (a) A gain or loss on a financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive income recognized in other comprehensive income, except for impairment gains or losses and foreign exchange gains and losses, until the financial asset is derecognized or reclassified.
- (b) When the financial asset is derecognized the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.
- (c) Interest revenue is calculated by using the effective interest method. This is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for:
 - (I) Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets. For those financial assets, the Company applies the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the financial asset from initial recognition.
 - (II) Financial assets that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets but subsequently have become credit-impaired financial assets. For those financial assets, the Company applies the effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the financial asset in subsequent reporting periods.

Besides, for certain equity instrument within the scope of IFRS 9 that is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in a business combination to which IFRS 3 applies, the Company made an irrevocable election to present the changes of the fair value in other comprehensive income at initial recognition. Amounts presented in other comprehensive income are not be subsequently transferred to profit or loss (when disposal of such equity instrument, its cumulated amount included in other components of equity is transferred directly to the retained earnings) and these investments should be presented as financial assets measured at fair

value through other comprehensive income on balance sheet. Dividends on such investment are recognized in profit or loss unless the dividends clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of investment.

(B) Impairment of financial assets

The Company is recognized a loss allowance for expected credit losses on debt instrument investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income and financial asset measured at amortized cost. The loss allowance on debt instrument investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income is recognized in other comprehensive income and not reduce the carrying amount in the statement of financial position.

The Company measures expected credit losses of a financial instrument in a way that reflects:

- (a) An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes;
- (b) The time value of money; and
- (c) Reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

The loss allowance is measures as follow:

- (a) At an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses: the credit risk on a financial asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition or the financial asset is determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. In addition, the Company measures the loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses in the previous reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date that condition is no longer met.
- (b) At an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses: the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition or financial asset that is purchased or originated credit-impaired financial asset.
- (c) For trade receivables or contract assets arising from transactions within the scope of IFRS 15, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.
- (d) For lease receivables arising from transactions within the scope of IFRS 16, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.
- At each reporting date, the Company needs to assess whether the credit risk on a

financial asset has been increased significantly since initial recognition by comparing the risk of a default occurring at the reporting date and the risk of default occurring at initial recognition. Please refer to Note 12 for further details on credit risk.

(C) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognized when:

- (a) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired
- (b) The Company has transferred the asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset have been transferred
- (c) The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the consideration received or receivable including any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income, is recognized in profit or loss.

(D) Financial liabilities and equity

Classification between liabilities or equity

The Company classifies the instrument issued as a financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the definitions of a financial liability, and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. The transaction costs of an equity transaction are accounted for as a deduction from equity (net of any related income tax benefit) to the extent they are incremental costs directly attributable to the equity transaction that otherwise would have been avoided.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities within the scope of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or financial liabilities measured at amortized cost upon initial recognition.

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost include interest bearing loans and borrowings that are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate method after initial recognition. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the effective interest rate method amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified (whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor), such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in profit or loss.

(E) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

(8) Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- (A) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- (B) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants

in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

(9) Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value item by item.

Costs incurred in bringing each inventory to its present location and conditions are accounted for as follows:

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Rendering of services is accounted in accordance with IFRS 15 and not within the scope of inventories.

(10) Investments accounted for under the equity method / subsidiaries and associates

The Company accounted for its investments in subsidiaries using equity method and made necessary adjustments in accordance with Article 21 of the Regulations. Such adjustments were made after the Company considered the different accounting treatments to account for its investments in subsidiaries in the consolidated financial statements under IFRS 10 "Consolidated Financial Statements" and the different IFRSs adopted from different reporting entity's perspectives, and the Company recorded such adjustments by crediting or debiting to investments accounted for under the equity method, share of profit or loss of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures and share of other comprehensive income of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

The Company's investment in its associate is accounted for using the equity method other than those that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale. An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence. Joint venture means that the Company has a right to the net assets of the joint agreement (with joint controllers).

Under the equity method, the investment in the associate or investment in a joint venture is carried in the balance sheet at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition change in the Company's share of net assets of the associate or joint venture. After the interest in the associate or joint venture is reduced to zero, additional losses are provided for, and a liability is recognized, only to the extent that the Company has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture. Unrealized gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Company and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the Company's related interest in the associate or joint venture.

When changes in the net assets of an associate or a joint venture occur and not those that are recognized in profit or loss or other comprehensive income and do not affects the Company's percentage of ownership interests in the associate or joint venture, the Company recognizes such changes in equity based on its percentage of ownership interests. The resulting capital surplus recognized will be reclassified to profit or loss at the time of disposing the associate or joint venture on a pro rata basis.

When the associate or joint venture issues new stock, and the Company's interest in an associate or a joint venture is reduced or increased as the Company fails to acquire shares newly issued in the associate or joint venture proportionately to its original ownership interest, the increase or decrease in the interest in the associate or joint venture is recognized in Additional Paid in Capital and Investment accounted for using the equity method. When the interest in the associate or joint venture is reduced, the cumulative amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss or other appropriate items. The aforementioned capital surplus recognized is reclassified to profit or loss on a pro rata basis when the Company disposes the associate or joint venture.

The financial statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the Company. Where necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Company.

The Company determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in the associate or an investment in a joint venture is impaired in accordance with IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. If this is the case the Company calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate or joint venture and its carrying value and recognizes the amount in the 'share of profit or loss of an associate' in the statement of comprehensive income in accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets. In determining the value in use of the investment, the Company estimates:

- (A) Its share of the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated by the associate or joint venture, including the cash flows from the operations of the associate and the proceeds on the ultimate disposal of the investment; or
- (B) The present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to arise from dividends to be received from the investment and from its ultimate disposal.

Because goodwill that forms part of the carrying amount of an investment in an associate or an investment in a joint venture is not separately recognized, it is not tested for impairment separately by applying the requirements for impairment testing goodwill in IAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint venture, the Company measures and recognizes any retaining investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence and the fair value of the retaining investment and proceeds from disposal is recognized in profit or loss.

(11)Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located and borrowing costs for construction in progress if the recognition criteria are met. Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced in intervals, the Company recognized such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciation, respectively. The carrying amount of those parts that are replaced is derecognized in accordance with the derecognition provisions of IAS 16 "Property, plant and equipment". When a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated economic lives of the following assets:

Buildings	60 years
Office equipment	3 years
Right-of-use asset	$2\sim3$ years
Other equipment	3 years

An item of property, plant and equipment or any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognizion of the asset is recognized in profit or loss.

The asset's residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

(12) Investment property

The Company's owned investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying amount includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment property at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met and excludes the costs of day-to-day servicing of an investment property. Subsequent to initial recognition, other than those that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale (or are included in a disposal Company that is classified as held for sale) in accordance with IFRS 5 *Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations*, investment properties are measured using the cost model in accordance with the requirements of IAS 16 *Property, plant and equipment* for that model. If investment properties are held by a lessee as right-of-use assets and is not held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5, investment properties are measured in accordance with the requirements of IAS 16.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated economic lives of the following assets:

Buildings 60 years

Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed of or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from its disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

The Company transfers properties to or from investment properties according to the actual use of the properties.

The Company transfers to or from investment properties when there is a change in use for these assets. Properties are transferred to or from investment properties when the properties meet, or cease to meet, the definition of investment property and there is evidence of the change in use.

(13) Leases

The Company assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time, the Company assesses whether, throughout the period of use, has both of the following:

- (A) The right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset; and
- (B) The right to direct the use of the identified asset.

For a contract that is, or contains, a lease, the Company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease separately from non-lease components of the contract. For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more additional lease or non-lease components, the Company allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate standalone price of the non-lease components. The relative stand-alone price of lease and non-lease components shall be determined on the basis of the price the lessor, or a similar supplier, would charge the Company for that component, or a similar component, separately. If an observable stand-alone price is not readily available, the Company estimates the stand-alone price, maximizing the use of observable information.

Company as a lessee

Except for leases that meet and elect short-term leases or leases of low-value assets, the Company recognizes right-of-use asset and lease liability for all leases which the Company is the lessee of those lease contracts.

At the commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments are discounted using the implicit interest rate in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate. At the commencement date, the lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following payments for the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid at the commencement date:

- (A) Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable;
- (B) Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date
- (C) Amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees
- (D) The exercise price of a purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and
- (E) Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability on an amortised cost basis, which increases the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability by using an effective interest method; and reduces the carrying amount to reflect the lease

payments made.

At the commencement date, the Company measures the right-of-use asset at cost. The cost of the right-of-use asset comprises:

- (A) The amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;
- (B) Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives received;
- (C) Any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and
- (D) An estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying asset, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

For subsequent measurement of the right-of-use asset, the Company measures the right-ofuse asset at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. That is, the Company measures the right-of-use applying a cost model.

If the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Company by the end of the lease term or if the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company will exercise a purchase option, the Company depreciates the right-of-use asset from the commencement date to the end of the useful life of the underlying asset. Otherwise, the Company depreciates the right-of-use asset from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the underlying asset.

The Company applies IAS 36 "Impairment of Assets" to determine whether the right-of-use asset is impaired and to account for any impairment loss identified.

Except for those leases that the Company accounted for as short-term leases or leases of low-value assets, the Company presents right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in the balance sheet and separately presents lease-related interest expense and depreciation charge in the statements comprehensive income.

For short-term leases or leases of low-value assets, the Company elects to recognize the lease payments associated with those leases as an expense on either a straight-line basis over the lease term or another systematic basis.

Company as a lessor

At inception of a contract, the Company classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset. At the commencement date, the Company recognizes assets held under a finance lease in its balance sheet and present them as a receivable at an

amount equal to the net investment in the lease.

For a contract that contains lease components and non-lease components, the Company allocates the consideration in the contract applying IFRS 15.

The Company recognizes lease payments from operating leases as rental income on either a straight-line basis or another systematic basis. Variable lease payments for operating leases that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as rental income when incurred.

(14)Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is its fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangible assets, not meeting the recognition criteria, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in profit or loss for the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each financial year. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Computer software

The cost of computer software is amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life (5 years).

A summary of the policies applied to the Company's intangible assets is as follows:

	Computer software
Useful lives	Finite
Amortization method used	Amortized on a straight- line basis over the estimated useful life
Internally generated or Acquired	Acquired

(15)Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset in the scope of IAS 36 Impairment of Assets may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's ("CGU") fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset's or cashgenerating unit's recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been an increase in the estimated service potential of an asset which in turn increases the recoverable amount. However, the reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.

An impairment loss of continuing operations or a reversal of such impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss.

(16)Revenue recognition

The Company's revenue arising from contracts with customers mainly includes sale of goods. The accounting policies for the Company's types of revenue are explained as follow:

Sale of goods

The Company sells of its products. Sales are recognized when control of the goods is transferred to the customer and the goods are delivered to the customers. The main product of the Company is electronic components and equipments and revenue is recognized based on the consideration stated in the contract or the order.

The Company provides its customer with a warranty with the purchase of the products. The warranty provides assurance that the product will operate as expected by the customers. And the warranty is accounted in accordance with IAS 37.

The credit period of the Company's sale of goods is from 30 to 120 days. For most of the contracts, when the Company transfers the goods to customers and has a right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional, these contracts are recognized as trade receivables. The Company usually collects the payments shortly after transfer of goods to customers; therefore, there is no significant financing component to the contract. For some of the contracts, the Company has received part of the consideration before transferring the goods to customers. Therefore, the Company has to undertake the obligation of transferring the goods afterwards, these contracts should be presented as contract liabilities.

(17)Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective assets. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

(18)Post-employment benefits

All regular employees of the Company and its domestic subsidiaries are entitled to pension plans that are managed by an independently administered pension fund committee. Fund assets are deposited under the committee's name in the specific bank account and hence, not associated with the Company and its domestic subsidiaries. Therefore, fund assets are not included in the Company's consolidated financial statements. Pension benefits for employees of the overseas subsidiaries and the branches are provided in accordance with the respective local regulations.

For the defined contribution plan, the Company and its domestic subsidiaries will make a monthly contribution of no less than 6% of the monthly wages of the employees subject to the plan. The Company recognizes expenses for the defined contribution plan in the period in which the contribution becomes due. Overseas subsidiaries and branches make contribution to the plan based on the requirements of local regulations and the contribution

is expensed as incurred.

Post-employment benefit plan that is classified as a defined benefit plan uses the Projected Unit Credit Method to measure its obligations and costs based on actuarial assumptions. Remeasurements, comprising of the effect of the actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding net interest) and the return on plan assets, excluding net interest, are recognized as other comprehensive income with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings in the period in which they occur. Past service costs are recognized in profit or loss on the earlier of:

- (A) the date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
- (B) the date that the Company recognizes restructuring-related costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset, both as determined at the start of the annual reporting period, taking account of any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contribution and benefit payment.

(19)Income taxes

Income tax expense (income) is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit or loss for the period in respect of current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Current income tax relating to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity is recognized in other comprehensive income or equity and not in profit or loss.

The income tax for undistributed earnings is recognized as income tax expense in the subsequent year when the distribution proposal is approved by the Shareholders' meeting.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:

(A) Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of

the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

(B) In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, and associates and interests in joint ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

- (A) Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; or
- (B) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will be reversed in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized according.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current income tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Amendments to IAS 12 "International Tax Reform - Pillar Two Model Rules" introduce a temporary exception to the requirements in IAS 12 by stipulating that the Company should neither recognize nor disclose information about deferred tax assets and liabilities related to Pillar Two income taxes.

5. Significant accounting Judgments estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

(1) Judgement

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements:

(A) Investment properties

Certain properties of the Company comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is owner-occupied. If these portions could be sold separately, the Company accounts for the portions separately as investment properties and property, plant and equipment.

(B) Operating lease commitment – Company as the lessor

The Company has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio. The Company has determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

(2) Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

(A) Accounts receivables - estimation of impairment loss

The Company estimates the impairment loss of accounts receivables at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. The credit loss is the present value of the difference between the contractual cash flows that are due under the contract (carrying amount) and the cash flows that expects to receive (evaluate forward looking information). However, as the impact from the discounting of short-term receivables is not material, the credit loss is measured by the undiscounted cash flows. Where the actual future cash flows are lower than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. Please refer to Note 6 for more details.

(B) Inventory valuation

As inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realization value, the Company must use judgment and estimation to determine the net realization value of inventory at the balance sheet date. Due to rapid technological change, the Company evaluates the amount of inventory at the balance sheet date due to normal wear and tear, obsolescence or no market value and writes the cost of inventory to net realized value. This inventory evaluation is mainly based on the estimated product demand for a specific period in the future and is subject to material changes.

(C) Pension benefits

The cost of post-employment benefit and the present value of the pension obligation under defined benefit pension plans are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions. These include the determination of the discount rate and changes of the future salary etc. The detailed illustrations of assumptions used to determine the cost of post-employment benefit and the present value of the pension obligation under defined benefit pension plans, are further explained in Note 6.

(D) Income tax

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of international business relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements, differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible consequences of audits by the tax authorities of the respective counties in which it operates. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective Company company's domicile.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all carryforward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available or there are sufficient taxable temporary differences against which the unused tax losses, unused tax credits or deductible temporary differences can be utilized. The amount of deferred tax assets determined to be recognized is based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits and taxable temporary differences together with future tax planning strategies.

6. Contents of significant accounts

(1) Cash and cash equivalents

	December 31,	December 31,
	2023	2022
Cash on hand and petty cash	\$110	\$255
Demand deposits	323,689	568,195
Total	\$323,799	\$568,450

(2) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

	December 31,	December 31,
	2023	2022
Equity instrument investments measured at fair value		
through other comprehensive income – non-current:		
Listed companies' stocks	\$298,908	\$227,186

The financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income were not pledged.

The Company's dividend income related to equity instrument investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income for the periods ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 are as follow:

	For the year ended December 31		
	2023	2022	
Dividend income related to investments held at the end of the reporting period			
	\$9,950	\$7,462	
(3) Notes receivables	December 31, 2023	December 31, 2022	
Notes receivables arising from operating activities	\$414	\$1,372	
Less: loss allowance	-		
Total	\$414	\$1,372	
Notes receivables were not pledged.			

The Company follows the requirement of IFRS 9 to assess the impairment. Please refer to Note 6(15) for more details on loss allowance and Note 12 for details on credit risk.

(4) Accounts receivable-related parties

	December 31,	December 31,
	2023	2022
Accounts Receivables	\$699,895	\$760,087
Less: loss allowance	(14,286)	(19,769)
Net of allowances	685,609	740,318
Accounts Receivables-related parties	31,692	32,313
Less: loss allowance		
Net of allowances	31,692	32,313
Total	\$717,301	\$772,631

Accounts receivables were not pledged.

Accounts receivable are generally on 30 to120 days terms. The total carrying amount as of 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 were NT\$731,587 thousand and NT\$792,400 thousand, respectively. Please refer to Note 6(15) for more details on loss allowance of Accounts receivables for the periods ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. Please refer to Note 12 for more details on credit risk management.

(5) Inventories

(A) Net of inventories include:

	December 31,	December 31,
	2023	2022
Merchandise	\$172,563	\$285,636

(B) Operating costs details recognized by the Company: :

	For the year ended		
	December 31		
	2023	2022	
Cost of inventory sold	\$2,026,307	\$2,284,451	
(Gain) loss on inventory valuation	(13,504)	17,315	
Others	1,644	4,930	
Total	\$2,014,447	\$2,306,696	

For the year ended December 31, 2023, disposal of excess inventory resulted in gains from price recovery of inventory.

(C) The insurance amounts for the inventories were NT\$49,149 thousand and NT\$59,382 thousand as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

(D) No inventories were pledged.

(6) Prepayment

	December 31,	December 31,
	2023	2022
Payment in advance	\$1,666	\$112,299
Other	3,464	3,822
Total	\$5,130	\$116,121

(7) Investments accounted for under the equity

	December 31, 2023		December 31, 2022	
		Percentage of		Percentage of
		Ownership		Ownership
Investee companies	Amount	(%)	Amount	(%)
Investments in subsidiaries:				
GITEH Electronic Industries Co.,Ltd.	\$565,762	100%	\$532,456	100%
HOWTEH INTERNATIONAL INC.	172,740	100%	182,563	100%
KunShan HOWTEH International Trading Inc.	(7,786)	100%	(8,209)	100%
Total	\$730,716	:	\$706,810	

Investments in subsidiaries were present in the parent-company-only financial statements under the caption of investments accounted for under equity method or credit for investment accounted for the equity method. Valuation adjustment is made if deemed necessary

The Company's investments accounted for under the equity method were not pledged.

(8) Property, plant and equipment

,,, , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	F			-	December 31,
			2023		2022
Owner occupied property, plant and equipment			\$103,461	\$103,874	
			Office	Transportation	d Other
	Land	Buildings	equipment	equipment	Equipment
Cost :					
As at January 1, 2023	\$89,203	\$22,220	\$2,047	\$94	\$113,564
Additions	-	-	677	-	677
Disposals	-		(287)		(287)
As at December 1, 2023	\$89,203	\$22,220	\$2,437	\$94	\$113,954
As at January 1, 2022	\$89,203	\$22,220	\$2,175	\$-	\$113,598
Additions	-	-	345	94	439
Disposals	-		(473)		(473)
As at December 1, 2022	\$89,203	\$22,220	\$2,047	\$94	\$113,564
Depreciation and					
impairment :					
As at January 1, 2023	\$-	\$8,585	\$1,095	\$10	\$9,690
Depreciation	-	365	693	32	1,090
Disposals	-		(287)	-	(287)
As at December 1, 2023	\$-	\$8,950	\$1,095	\$42	\$10,493
As at January 1, 2022	\$-	\$8,220	\$879	\$-	\$9,099
Depreciation	-	365	689	10	1,064
Disposals	_		(473)		(473)
As at December 1, 2022	\$-	\$8,585	\$1,095	\$10	\$9,690
Net carrying amount as at:					
December 31, 2023	\$89,203	\$13,270	\$936	\$52	\$103,461
December 31, 2022	\$89,203	\$13,635	\$952	\$84	\$103,874

The major components of the Company is the main building which is depreciated over 60 years.

Please refer to Note 8 for more details on property, plant and equipment under pledge.

(9) Investment property

The Company's investment properties include owned investment properties. The Company has entered into commercial property leases on its owned investment properties with terms of between 7 and 8 years. These leases include a clause to enable upward revision of the rental charge on an annual basis according to prevailing market conditions.

	Land	Buildings	Total
Cost :			
As at January 1, 2023	\$6,816	\$4,249	\$11,065
Additions from subsequent expenditure	-		-
As at December 31, 2023	\$6,816	\$4,249	\$11,065
As at January 1, 2022	\$6,816	\$4,249	\$11,065
Additions from subsequent expenditure	-	-	-
As at December 31, 2022	\$6,816	\$4,249	\$11,065
Depreciation and impairment :			
As at January 1, 2023	\$-	\$2,405	\$2,405
Depreciation	_	112	112
As at December 31, 2023	\$-	\$2,517	\$2,517
As at January 1, 2022	\$-	\$2,293	\$2,293
Depreciation	-	112	112
As at December 31, 2022	\$-	\$2,405	\$2,405
Net carrying amount as at :			
December 31, 2023	\$6,816	\$1,732	\$8,548
December 31, 2022	\$6,816	\$1,844	\$8,660
		For the year ended	
	December 31		31
		2023	2022
Rental income from investment property		\$1,996	\$1,996
Less: Direct operating expenses from investment			
property generating rental income		(149)	(150)
Total		\$1,847	\$1,846

On March 28, 2019 the Board of Directors resolves that in order to enhance working capital, it intends to sell the investment properties in Yucheng section of Nangang, and is currently in search of a buyer. The Company will comply with the regulations governing the acquisition and disposal of assets and authorizes the Chairman to follow-up on the related matters.

No investment property was pledged.

Investment properties held by the Company are not measured at fair value but for which the fair value is disclosed. The fair value measurements of the investment properties are categorized within Level 3.

Investment properties held by the Company are mainly located at Zhongshan area and Nangang area in Taipei city. The fair value of investment properties was NT\$151,445 thousand upon the valuation performed by an independent appraiser in the first quarter of 2013. The valuation methods used are Comparative approach and Income capitalization rate approach and Comparative approach and Land development analysis approach. By considering the nature of the subject property, condition of use, development scope and the credibility of the baseline data, the price per square feet is estimated using the weighted amount calculated by one of the two methods listed per below:

- (A) 60% Comparative approach + 40% Income capitalization rate approach
- (B) 40% Comparative approach + 60% Land development analysis approach.

Calculations used within the valuation methods:

- (A) The main evaluation parameter used for the comparative approach is calculated by investigating and estimating the cases nearby the subject property.
- (B) The main parameter of the income capitalization rate approach is to calculate the price per square feet based on the annual lease amount according to the market survey, and then calculate the price per square feet based on the income capitalization rate of 1.85%.
- (C) As for the land development analysis approach, it is to evaluate the reasonable acquisition price of the development land.

Considering that the capitalization rate of income from the domestic real estate market in the most recent year is comparable to the valuation date mentioned above, the Company therefore refers to the valuation results and the above-mentioned recent real estate market as the fair value of the investment real estate on the cut-off date of each financial report.

The Company conducted the estimation of of the investment property on December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, respectively. The estimation results were obtained by using the actual transaction price of each year and the market transaction price of similar
properties in the vicinity of the relevant assets (including the Real Price Enquiry Service Network of Real Estate Transactions of the Ministry of the Interior and the Real Price Inquiry Service Website of Housing Arbitration Industry). The estimation was equivalent to the valuation results mentioned above.

(10) Intangible assets

	Cost of
	Computer
	Software
Cost:	
As at January 1, 2023	\$1,078
Additions	555
Disposals	
As at December 31, 2023	\$1,633
As at January 1, 2022	\$1,078
Additions	-
Disposals	
As at December 31, 2022	\$1,078
Amortization and impairment :	
As at January 1, 2023	\$550
Amortization	243
Disposals	
As at December 31, 2023	\$793
As at January 1, 2022	\$335
Amortization	215
Disposals	
As at December 31, 2022	\$550
Net carrying amount as at :	
As at December 31, 2023	\$840
As at December 31, 2022	\$528

Amortization expense of intangible assets under the statement of comprehensive income:

	For the year ended December 31		
	2023	2022	
Selling expense	\$134	\$118	
Administrative expense	109	97	
Total	\$243	\$215	

(11) Short-term borrowings

	For the year ended		
	December 31		
	2023	2022	
Unsecured bank loans	\$446,000	\$759,000	
Secured bank loans	144,000	144,000	
Total	\$590,000	\$903,000	

The Company's annual interest rates for unsecured bank loans are 1.800%~1.982% and 1.51%~1.975%, as at December 31, 2023, and December 31, 2022, respectively.

The Company's annual interest rate for secured bank loans are 1.710% and 1.655%, as at December 31, 2023, and December 31, 2022, respectively.

The Company's unused short-term lines of credits amount to NT\$1,111,410 thousand, and NT\$828,420 thousand, as at December 31, 2023, and December 31, 2022, respectively.

Part of property, plant and equipment provides guarantee for secured bank loans. Please refer to Note 8 for more details of pledge situations.

(12)Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plan

The labor pension regulations of the Company were established according to the Enforcement rules of the labor pension act and is recognized as defined contribution plan. The monthly contribution rate of the labor pension borne by the Company shall not be less than 6% of the employee's monthly salary. By following the labor pension regulations which was established in accordance with the Enforcement rules of the labor pension act, the Company has allocated 6% of the employee's salary to the individual pension account of the Labor Insurance Board monthly.

Expenses under the defined contribution plan for the years ended December 31, 2023 and

2022 were NT\$2,627 thousand and NT\$2,665 thousand, respectively.

Defined benefits plan

The defined benefit plan of the Company's Employee Retirement Plan is regulated according to the Labor Standards Act. 2. Retirement benefits are based on such factors as the employee's length of service and final pensionable salary. In accordance with the Act, 2 bases are given for each full year on the first 15 years of service and 1 base is given for each full year after 15 years of service. The total bases given shall not exceed 45. Under the retirement plan, the Company contributes monthly an amount equal to 2% of gross salary to the pension reserve fund, which is deposited into a designated depository account with the Bank of Taiwan. At the end of each year, if the balance in the designated labor pension reserve funds is inadequate to cover the benefit estimated to be paid in the following year, the Company should make up the difference in 1 appropriation before the end of March in the following year.

Safeguard and Utilization of the Labor Retirement Fund is regulated by the Ministry of Labor. Investment of the fund is made by outsourcing and self-management. A long-term investment strategy is adopted with both initiative and passive approach. Considering market risk, creditability and liquidity etc., the Ministry of labor has set limit for fund risk and risk management plan so that the target rate of return can be reached without excess exposure to risk. Because the Company is not authorized to manage the Fund, it cannot disclose the classification of the fair value of the plan asset according to IAS 19. As of December 31, 2022, the amount of contribution expected to be made in the following accounting year was NT\$60 thousand.

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company's definite benefit plans are expected to expire in the year ended 2032.

Pension costs recognized in profit or loss for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022:

	For the year ended December 31	
	2023 2022	
Current period service costs	\$-	\$210
Net Interest of Net defined benefit	(66)	(21)
Settlements from the plan	(66) 18	
Unadjusted amount on account	126	(129)
Total pension costs recognized in profit or loss	\$60	\$60

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets are as follows:

	December 31,	December 31,	January 1,
	2023	2022	2023
Present value of defined benefit obligation	\$15,664	\$15,726	\$16,118
Fair value of plan assets	(20,859)	(20,453)	(18,843)
Funding circumstance	(5,195)	(4,727)	(2,725)
Unadjusted amount on account	797	671	800
Other non-current assets, other - Net			
defined benefit liability (asset) on the			
consolidated balance sheets	\$(4,398)	\$(4,056)	\$(1,925)

Reconciliation of liability (asset) of the defined benefit plan is as follows:

	Defined		
	benefit	Fair value of	Benefit
	obligation	plan assets	liability (asset)
As at January 1, 2022	\$16,118	\$(18,843)	\$(2,725)
Current period service costs	210	-	210
Interest expense (income)	121	(142)	(21)
Subtotal	16,449	(18,985)	(2,536)
Remeasurements of the net defined			
benefit liability (asset):			
Actuarial gains and losses arising from			
changes in demographic assumptions	-	-	-
Actuarial gains and losses arising from			
changes in financial assumptions	(609)	(1,408)	(2,017)
Experience adjustments	(114)		(114)
Subtotal	15,726	(20,453)	(4,667)
Contributions by employer	-	(60)	(60)
As at December 31, 2022	15,726	(20,393)	(4,793)
Current period service costs	-	-	-
Interest expense (income)	220	(286)	(66)
Subtotal	15,946	(20,739)	(4,793)
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset):			
Actuarial gains and losses arising from			
changes in demographic assumptions	-	-	-
Actuarial gains and losses arising from			
changes in financial assumptions	90	(60)	30
Experience adjustments	(372)		(372)
Subtotal	15,664	(20,799)	(5,135)
Contributions by employer	-	(60)	(60)
As at December 31, 2023	\$15,664	\$(20,859)	\$(5,195)

The following main actuarial assumptions are used to determine the present value of the defined benefit obligation:

	December 31,	December 31,
	2023	2022
Discount rate	1.300%	1.400%
Expected salary growth rate	1.375%	1.375%

A sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 is, as shown below:

	For the year ended December 31			
	2023		2023 202	
	Increase of Decrease of		Increase of	Decrease of
	defined	defined	defined	defined
	benefit	benefit	benefit	benefit
	obligation	obligation	obligation	obligation
Discount rate increase by 0.25%	\$-	\$230	\$-	\$240
Discount rate decrease by 0.25%	236	-	247	-
Expected salary increase by 0.25%	232	-	242	-
Expected salary decrease by 0.25%	-	227	-	236

The sensitivity analyses above are based on a change in a significant assumption (for example: change in discount rate or future salary), keeping all other assumptions constant. The sensitivity analyses may not be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analyses compared to the previous period.

(13)Equities

(A) Common stock

The Company's authorized and issued capital were NT\$800,000 thousand, and NT\$590,800 thousand, as at December 31, 2021, respectively, each at a par value of NT\$10. The Company has issued 59,080 thousands of common shares as at December 31, 2021, each share has one voting right and a right to receive dividends.

On June 24, 2022, the meeting of shareholders resolved to issue new shares by distributing the stock dividends for 3,545 thousand shares, at a par of NT\$10 per share, with an amount of 35,448 thousand. This regards was approved and effective on July 28, 2022 by the Financial Supervision Commission Securities and Futures Bureau. The relevant statutory registration procedures have been completed and the reference date was August 21, 2022.

The Company's authorized and issued capital were NT\$800,000 thousand, and NT\$626,248 thousand, as of December 31, 2022, respectively, each at a par value of NT\$10. The Company has issued 62,625 thousands of common shares as of December 31, 2022, each share has one voting right and a right to receive dividends.

On June 19, 2023, the meeting of shareholders resolved to issue new shares by distributing the stock dividends for 2,505 thousand shares, at a par of NT\$10 per share, with an amount of 25,050 thousand. This regards was approved and effective on July 13, 2023 by the Financial Supervision Commission Securities and Futures Bureau. The relevant statutory registration procedures have been completed and the reference date was August 7, 2023.

The Company's authorized and issued capital were NT\$800,000 thousand, and NT\$651,298 thousand, as of December 31, 2023, respectively, each at a par value of NT\$10. The Company has issued 65,130 thousands of common shares as of December 31, 2023, each share has one voting right and a right to receive dividends.

(B) Capital surplus

	December 31,	December 31,
	2023	2022
Additional paid-in capital	\$45,647	\$45,647
Gain on disposal of assets	834	834
Employee stock option	5,581	5,581
Total	\$52,062	\$52,062

According to the Company Act, the capital surplus shall not be used except for offsetting the deficit of the company. When a company has no accumulated deficit, it may distribute the capital surplus related to the income derived from the issuance of new shares at a premium or income from endowments received by the company. The distribution could be made in cash or in the form of dividend shares to its shareholders in proportion to the number of shares being held by each of them.

(C) Retained earnings and dividend policies

According to the Company's Articles of Incorporation, current year's earnings, if any, shall be distributed in the following order:

- (a) Payment of all taxes and dues;
- (b) Offset prior years' operation losses;
- (c) Set aside 10% of the remaining amount after deducting items (a) and (b) as legal reserve;
- (d) Set aside or reverse special reserve in accordance with law and regulations; and
- (e) The distribution of the remaining portion, if any, will be recommended by the Board of Directors (contribution of at least 30% should be made for the Unappropriated retained earnings portions) and resolved in the shareholders' meeting. For cash dividends issued, the amount should be at least 20% but not above 100% of the shareholders' bonus, after deducting the cash dividends the remaining amount should be issued as stock dividends.

According to the Company Act, the Company needs to set aside amount to legal reserve unless where such legal reserve amounts to the total paid-in capital. The legal reserve can be used to offset the deficit of the Company. When the Company has no accumulated deficit, it may distribute the portion of legal serve which exceeds 25% of the paid-in capital by issuing new shares or by cash in proportion to the number of shares being held by each of the shareholders.

According to existing regulations, when the Company distributing distributable earnings, it shall set aside to special reserve, from the profit/loss of the current period and the undistributed earnings from the previous period, an amount equal to "other net deductions from shareholders' equity for the current fiscal year, provided that if the company has already set aside special reserve in the first-time adoption of the IFRS, it shall set aside supplemental special reserve based on the difference between the amount already set aside and other net deductions from shareholders' equity. For any subsequent reversal of other net deductions from shareholders' equity, the amount reversed may be distributed from the special reserve.

On March 31, 2021, the FSC issued Order No. Financial-Supervisory-Securities-Corporate-1090150022, which sets out the following provisions for compliance:

On a public company's first-time adoption of the IFRS, for any unrealized revaluation gains and cumulative translation adjustments (gains) recorded to shareholders' equity that the company elects to transfer to retained earnings by application of the exemption under IFRS 1, the company shall set aside special reserve. For any subsequent use, disposal or reclassification of related assets, the special reserve in the amount equal to the reversal may be released for earnings distribution. The amount for Special reserve appropriated as of 31 December 2023 and 2022 are both NT\$3,340 thousand.

Details of the 2023 and 2022 earnings distribution and dividends per share as approved and resolved by the board of directors' meeting and shareholders' meeting on March 14, 2024 and June 19, 2023, respectively, are as follows:

	Appropriation of earnings		Dividend per	share (NT\$)
	2023	2022	2023	2022
Legal reserve	\$10,104	\$21,050		
Common stock -cash dividend	78,156	81,412	\$1.2	\$1.3
Common stock-stock dividend	-	25,050	-	0.4
Total	\$88,260	\$127,512		

Please refer to Note 6(17) for details on employees' compensation and remuneration to directors and supervisors.

(14)Operating revenue

	For the year ended		
	December 31		
	2023 2022		
Revenue from contracts with customers			
Sale of goods	\$2,217,325	\$2,548,765	
Revenue arising from rendering of services	4,729	5,681	
Total	\$2,222,504	\$2,554,446	

Analysis of revenue from contracts with customers during the 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

(A) Disaggregation of revenue

		Taiwan Dept.		
		2023	2022	
Sale of goods		\$2,217,325	\$2,548,765	
Rendering of services		4,729	5,681	
Total		\$2,222,504	\$2,554,446	
Timing of revenue recognition: At a point in time		\$2,222,504	\$2,554,446	
 (B) Contract balances Contract liabilities – current 				
	December 31, 2023	December 31, 2022	January 1, 2022	
Sales of goods	\$175	\$106,880	\$94,031	

The significant changes in the Company's balances of contract liabilities for 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

For the year ended December 31		
\$(106,880)	\$(94,031)	
175	106,880	
	December 2023 \$(106,880)	

revenue during the period)

(15) Expected credit losses (reversal of credit loss)

	For the year ended December 31		
	2023	2022	
Operating expenses – (reversal of credit loss) expected credit losses			
Accounts receivable	\$(5,483)	\$11,354	

Please refer to Note 12 for more details on credit risk.

The Company measures the Companying of accounts receivable loss allowance by using lifetime expected credit losses, details of period ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follow:

As at December 31, 2023

-						
_	<=90 days	91-120 days	121-150 days	151-180 days	>=181 days	Total
Notes receivable	\$414	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$414
Accounts receivable	467,814	162,741	92,490	4,718	3,824	731,587
Carrying amount	\$468,228	\$162,741	\$92,490	\$4,718	\$3,824	\$732,001
Loss rate	0%	0~2%	0~7%	0~27%	0~100%	
Lifetime expected						
credit losses	-	(3,235)	(6,198)	(1,121)	(3,732)	(14,286)
Total	\$468,228	\$159,506	\$86,292	\$3,597	\$92	\$717,715

As at December 31, 2022

	<=90 days	91-120 days	121-150 days	151-180 days	>=181 days	Total
Notes receivable	\$1,372	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$1,372
Accounts receivable	519,570	168,233	90,496	3,516	10,585	792,400
Carrying amount	\$520,942	\$168,233	\$90,496	\$3,516	\$10,585	\$793,772
Loss rate	0~1%	0~2%	0~7%	0~27%	0~100%	
Lifetime expected						
credit losses		(3,140)	(5,560)	(651)	(10,418)	(19,769)
Total	\$520,942	\$165,093	\$84,936	\$2,865	\$167	\$774,003

The movement in the provision for impairment of notes receivable and accounts receivable during the periods ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

	Accounts		
	Notes receivable	receivable	Total
Bal. as at January 1, 2023	\$-	\$19,769	\$19,769
Addition/(reversal) for the current period		(5,483)	(5,483)
Bal. as at December 31, 2023	\$-	\$14,286	\$14,286
Bal. as at January 1, 2022	\$-	\$8,415	\$8,415
Addition/(reversal) for the current period		11,354	11,354
Bal. as at December 31, 2022	<u> </u>	\$19,769	\$19,769

(16)Leases

(A) Company as a lessee

The Company leases various properties, including properties such as land and buildings and transportation equipment. The lease terms range from 2 to 3 years.

The Company's leases effect on the financial position, financial performance and cash flows are as follow:

(a) Amounts recognized in the balance sheet

(I) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amount of right-of-use assets

	December 31,	December 31,
	2023	2022
Buildings	\$4,561	\$558
Transportation equipment	3,728	
	\$8,289	\$558

During the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company's additions to right-of-use assets amounting to NT\$11,107 thousand and NT\$0 thousand, respectively.

(II) Lease liabilities

	December 31,	December 31,
	2023	2022
Lease liabilities	\$8,346	\$565
Current	\$3,922	\$565
Non-current	\$4,424	\$-

Please refer to Note 18(4)(D) for the interest on lease liabilities recognized during 2023 and 2022 and refer to Note 12 (5) Liquidity Risk Management for the maturity analysis for lease liabilities.

(b) Amounts recognized in the statement of profit or loss

Depreciation charge for right-of-use assets

	For the yea	r ended	
	December 31 2023 2022		
Buildings	\$2,329	\$2,267	
Transportation equipment	1,047	-	
	\$3,376	\$2,267	

(c) Income and costs relating to leasing activities

	For the year ended		
	December 31		
	2023 2022		
The expenses relating to short-term leases	\$2,753	\$2,666	

(d) Cash outflow relating to leasing activities

During the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company's total cash outflows for leases amounting to NT\$6,220 thousand and NT\$4,972 thousand, respectively.

- (e) Other information relating to leasing activities
 - (I) Variable lease payments

Some of the Company's printer rental agreements contain variable payment terms that are linked to certain percentages of the usage amount generated from the leased printer, which is very common in the industry of the Company.

As such variable lease payments do not meet the definition of lease payments, those payments are not included in the measurement of the assets and liabilities.

(II) Extension and termination options

Some of the Company's property rental agreement contain extension and termination options. In determining the lease terms, the non-cancellable period for which the Company has the right to use an underlying asset, together with both periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. These options are used to maximize operational flexibility in terms of managing contracts. The majority of extension and termination options held are exercisable only by the Company.

After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term upon the occurrence of a significant event or a significant change in circumstances that is within the control of the lessee and affects whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option not previously included in its determination of the lease term, or not to exercise an option previously included in its determination of the lease term.

(B) Company as lessor

Please refer to Note 6(9) for details on the Company's owned investment properties. Leases of owned investment properties are classified as operating leases as they do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of underlying assets.

	For the year ended		
	December 31		
	2023 2022		
Lease income for operating leases			
Income relating to fixed lease payments and variable			
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate	\$1,996	\$1,996	

For operating leases entered by the Company, the undiscounted lease payments to be received and a total of the amounts for the remaining years as at December 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follow:

December 31,	December 31,
2023	2022
\$1,996	\$1,996
1,996	1,996
998	1,996
-	1,163
-	
\$4,990	\$7,151
	\$1,996 1,996 998 -

(17) The employee benefits, depreciation and amortization expenses are summarized as follows:

Capability		For the years ended December 31						
		20)23			2022		
			Non-operating				Non-operating	
	Operating	Operating	loss and		Operating	Operating	loss and	
Nature	costs	expenses	expenses	Total	costs	expenses	expenses	Total
Employee benefits expense								
Salaries	\$-	\$68,946	\$-	\$68,946	\$-	\$86,103	\$-	\$86,103
Labor and health insurance	-	5,762	-	5,762	-	6,058	-	6,058
Pension	-	2,687	-	2,687	-	2,725	-	2,725
Remuneration to directors	-	10,195	-	10,195	-	9,536	-	9,536
Other employee benefits								
expense	-	4,613	-	4,613	-	4,864	-	4,864
Depreciation	-	4,578	-	4,578	-	3,443	-	3,443
Amortization	-	243	-	243	-	215	-	215

As at December 31, 2023 and 2022, the number of employees of the Company was 70 and 72 respectively. Among the Company's directors, there were 5 and 5, respectively, who were not the employees, as of December 31, 2023 and 2022. The average annual employee welfare expenses were NT\$1,489 thousand and NT\$1,172 thousand respectively. The average annual salary expenses of employees were NT\$985 thousand and NT\$1,285 thousand respectively. Employee salary and expense adjustments changed by (23%).

The policy on remuneration of directors, supervisors and managers of the Company is submitted to the Remuneration Committee for consideration in accordance with the provisions of the "Regulations for the Establishment and Exercise of Powers of the Remuneration Committee of Companies Listed on Stocks or Traded at the Business Premises of Securities Dealers". The manager's remuneration policy is mainly determined by reference to personal experience, performance, contribution to the company, future potential and business performance of the company; The remuneration policy for employees, directors and supervisors is for the year in which the company has a surplus and is handled in accordance with the articles of association. Employee remuneration includes principal salary, various allowances, job additions, overtime pay and various bonuses. The salary shall be based on his academic experience, professional skills and the value of the position held, and shall be assessed taking into account the salary level of the same industry; The bonus is based on the company's annual operating surplus and the achievement of the goals set by departments and individuals. In 2022, the supervisors' remuneration was NT\$1,075 thousand, and the Company set up an audit committee on July 22, 2022. There was no supervisors' remuneration in the 2023.

According to the Articles of Incorporation, the Company shall allocate no less than 3% of profit as employees' compensation and no more than 3% of profit as directors' compensation for each profitable fiscal year. However, the company's accumulated losses shall have been offsetted. The Company may, by a resolution adopted by a majority vote at a meeting of Board of Directors attended by two-thirds of the total number of directors, distribute the aforementioned employees compensation in the form of shares or in cash; and in addition thereto a report of such distribution is submitted to the shareholders' meeting. Information on the Board of Directors' resolution regarding the employees' compensation and remuneration to directors and supervisors can be obtained from the "Market Observation Post System" on the website of the TWSE.

Based on the profit of the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company recognized the amounts of the employees' compensation and remuneration to directors and supervisors for the year ended December 31, 2023 amounted to NT\$4,000 thousand and NT\$3,000 thousand, respectively. If the Board of Directors resolved to distribute employees' compensation in the form of stocks, the number of stocks distributed was calculated based on the closing price one day earlier than the date of resolution. Differences between the

estimated amount and the actual distribution of the employee compensation and remuneration to directors and supervisors are recognized in profit or loss of the subsequent year.

On March 14, 2024 the Board of Directors resolved to issue the Company's distribution of employees' compensation and remuneration to directors and supervisors of 2023 at the amount of NT\$4,000 thousand and NT\$3,000 thousand, respectively.

On March 22, 2023 the Board of Directors resolved to issue the Company's distribution of employees' compensation and remuneration to directors and supervisors of 2022 at the amount of NT\$8,000 thousand and NT\$3,000 thousand, respectively. No material differences exist between the estimated amount and the actual distribution of the employee compensation and remuneration to directors and supervisors for the year ended December 31, 2022.

(18)Non-operating income and expenses

(A) Interest income

	For the year ended		
	December 31		
	2023	2022	
Interest income			
Financial assets measured at amortized cost	\$6,658	\$2,806	

(B) Other income

For the year ended December 31		
\$2,006	\$2,006	
9,950	7,462	
117	8,190	
2,426	1,035	
\$14,499	\$18,693	
	Decembo 2023 \$2,006 9,950 117 2,426	

(C) Other gains and losses

	For the year	· ended	
	Decembe	er 31	
	2023	2022	
Foreign exchange gains, net	\$7,676	\$113,485	
Other losses- Other	(7)	(55)	
Total	\$7,669	\$113,430	

(D) Finance costs

	For the year	For the year ended		
	Decembe	er 31		
	2023	2022		
Interests on borrowings from bank	\$(13,121)	\$(13,276)		
Interests on lease liabilities	(140)	(21)		
Total	\$(13,261)	\$(13,297)		

(19)Components of other comprehensive income

Period ended December 31, 2023

				Income tax	
				relating to	
		Reclassification	Other	components of	Other
		adjustments	comprehensive	other	comprehensive
	Arising during	during the	income, before	comprehensive	income, net of
	the period	period	tax	income	tax
Not to be reclassified to profit or loss in					
subsequent periods :					
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans	\$342	\$-	\$342	\$(68)	\$274
Unrealized gains (losses) from equity instruments					
investments measured at fair value through					
other comprehensive income	71,722	-	71,722	-	71,722
To be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent					
periods:					
Exchange differences resulting from translating					
the financial statements of a foreign operation	(5,700)		(5,700)		(5,700)
Total	\$66,364	\$-	\$66,364	\$(68)	\$66,296

Period ended December 31, 2022

				Income tax	
				relating to	
		Reclassification	Other	components of	Other
		adjustments	comprehensive	other	comprehensive
	Arising during	during the	income, before	comprehensive	income, net of
	the period	period	tax	income	tax
Not to be reclassified to profit or loss in					
subsequent periods :					
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans	\$2,131	\$-	\$2,131	\$(426)	\$1,705
Unrealized gains (losses) from equity instruments					
investments measured at fair value through					
other comprehensive income	46,846	-	46,846	-	46,846
To be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent					
periods:					
Exchange differences resulting from translating					
the financial statements of a foreign operation	46,103		46,103		46,103
Total	\$95,080	\$-	\$95,080	\$(426)	\$94,654

(20)Income tax

The major components of income tax expense (income) for the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows:

Income tax expense (income) recognized in profit or loss

For the year ended		
Decembe	er 31	
2023	2022	
\$20,626	\$46,083	
1,328	(2,330)	
79	(4,160)	
\$22,033	\$39,593	
	Decemb 2023 \$20,626 1,328 79	

Income tax relating to components of other comprehensive income

	For the year ended December 31		
	2023 202		
Deferred tax expense (income):			
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans	\$68	\$426	
Income tax relating to components of other			
comprehensive income	\$68	\$426	

Reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by applicable tax rates is as follows:

_	For the year ended December 31		
	2023	2022	
Accounting profit (loss) before tax from continuing			
operations	\$122,805	\$248,392	
Tax at the domestic rates applicable to profits in the country concerned	\$24,561	\$49,678	
Tax effect of revenues exempt from taxation	(8,006)	(9,772)	
Corporate income surtax on undistributed retained earnings	5,150	2,017	
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of prior periods	1,328	(2,330)	
Total	\$22,033	\$39,593	

Deferred tax assets (liabilities) relate to the following: For the year ended December 31, 2023

-					
		Recognized in			
Beginning		other	Charged		Ending
balance as at	Recognized in	comprehensive	directly to		balance as at
Jan 1, 2023	profit or loss	income	equity	Other	Dec 31. 2023
\$9,239	(\$2,990)	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$6,249
113	94	-	-	-	207
18	-	-	-	-	18
1,790	3,864	-	-	-	5,654
2,366	(973)	-	-	-	1,393
(1,395)	-	(68)	-	-	(1,463)
(1,872)	(74)	-	-	-	(1,946)
	\$(79)	\$(68)	\$-	\$-	
\$10,259					\$10,112
	balance as at Jan 1, 2023 \$9,239 113 18 1,790 2,366 (1,395) (1,872)	balance as at Jan 1, 2023 Recognized in profit or loss \$9,239 (\$2,990) 113 94 18 - 1,790 3,864 2,366 (973) (1,395) - (1,872) (74) \$(79)	Beginning other balance as at Recognized in comprehensive Jan 1, 2023 profit or loss income \$9,239 (\$2,990) \$- 113 94 - 18 - - 1,790 3,864 - 2,366 (973) - (1,395) - (68) (1,872) (74) - \$(79) \$(68) -	Beginning other Charged balance as at Recognized in comprehensive directly to Jan 1, 2023 profit or loss income equity \$9,239 (\$2,990) \$- \$- 113 94 - - 18 - - - 1,790 3,864 - - 2,366 (973) - - (1,395) - (68) - (1,872) (74) - - \$(79) \$(68) \$- -	Beginning other Charged balance as at Recognized in comprehensive directly to Jan 1, 2023 profit or loss income equity Other \$9,239 (\$2,990) \$- \$- \$- 113 94 - - - 18 - - - - 1,790 3,864 - - - 2,366 (973) - - - (1,395) - (68) - - (1,872) (74) - - - \$(79) \$(68) \$- \$- \$-

			Recognized in			
	Beginning		other	Charged		Ending
	balance as at	Recognized in	comprehensive	directly to		balance as at
	Jan 1, 2023	profit or loss	income	equity	Other	Dec 31. 2023
Reflected in balance sheet as follows:		-				
Deferred tax assets	\$13,526	-				\$13,521
Deferred tax liabilities	\$(3,267)	-				\$(3,409)

For the year ended December 31, 2022

5	,					
			Recognized in			
	Beginning	Recognized	other	Charged		Ending
	balance as at	in profit or	comprehensive	directly to		balance as at
	Jan 1, 2022	loss	income	equity	Other	Dec 31. 2022
Temporary differences :						
Deferred tax assets						
Provisions for employee benefits	\$451	\$(451)	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$-
Unrealized loss on inventory	5,796	3,443	-	-	-	9,239
Unrealized gains(losses) between	85	28	-	-	-	113
associated companies						
Excess amount of pension expenses	18	-	-	-	-	18
Net unrealized exchange loss	1,562	228	-	-	-	1,790
Excess amount of allowance for	-	2,366	-	-	-	2,366
accounts receivable						
Deferred tax liabilities						
Non-current liability – Defined benefit	(969)	-	(426)	-	-	(1,395)
Net unrealized exchange gain	(418)	(1,454)		-	-	(1,872)
Deferred tax income/(expense)		\$4,169	\$(426)	\$-	\$-	
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities)	\$6,525					\$10,259
Reflected in balance sheet as follows:						
Deferred tax assets	\$7,912					\$13,526
Deferred tax liabilities	\$(1,387)					\$(3,267)

Unrecognized deferred tax assets

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, deferred tax assets which not been recognized were both amounting to NT\$0.

Unrecognized deferred tax liabilities relating to the investment in subsidiaries

The Company did not recognize any deferred tax liability for taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of the Company's overseas subsidiaries, as the Company has determined that undistributed profits of its subsidiaries will not be distributed in the foreseeable future, therefore the Company did not recognize any deferred tax liability for taxes that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of the Company's overseas subsidiaries, and the deferred tax profit generated by the exchange differences on translation of foreign financial statements which is generated by the subsidiaries also will should not be recognized. As at December 31, 2023, deferred tax liabilities which have not been recognized, aggregate to NT\$125,521 thousand.

The assessment of income tax returns

The Company's income tax returns through 2021 have been assessed and approved by the Tax Authority.

(21) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company (after adjusting for interest on the convertible preference shares) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

	For the year ended December 31	
	2023	2022 (Traced back)
(A) Basic earnings per share		
Profit attributable to the parent company (in thousand NT\$)	\$100,772	\$208,799
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for		
basic earnings per share (in thousands)	65,130	65,130
Basic earnings per share (NT\$)	\$1.55	\$3.21
 (B) Diluted earnings per share Profit attributable to the parent company (in thousand NT\$) Profit attributable to the parent company after dilution (in thousand NT\$) 	\$100,772 \$100,772	\$208,799 \$208,799
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for basic earnings per share (in thousands) Effect of dilution:	65,130	65,130
Employee compensation-stock (in thousands)	232	360
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding after dilution (in thousands)	65,362	65,490
Diluted earnings per share (NT\$)	\$1.54	\$3.19

There have been no other transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between the reporting date and the date of completion of the financial statements.

7. Related party transactions

Information of the related parties that had transactions with the Company during the financial reporting period is as follows:

Name and relationship of the related parties

Name of the related parties	Nature of relationship of the related parties
GITEH Electronic Industries Co., Ltd.	Subsidiary
ShangHai HOWTEH International Trading Inc.	Second-tier subsidiary
ShenZhen HOWTEH Technology Co., Ltd.	Second-tier subsidiary
Tailyn Technologies, Inc.	Substantive related party
Taipei Rosyclouds Foundation For Education	Other related party

(1) Sales revenue

	For the year ended December 31	
	2023	2022
Subsidiary		
GITEH Electronic Industries Co., Ltd.	\$107,900	\$163,663
Second-tier subsidiary		
ShangHai HOWTEH International Trading Inc.	39,254	42,822
ShenZhen HOWTEH Technology Co., Ltd.	33,999	45,145
Total	73,253	87,967
Substantive related party		
Tailyn Technologies, Inc.	295	417
Total	\$181,448	\$252,047

The sales price to the above related parties was determined through mutual agreement based on the market conditions. The collection periods for sales to related parties and to third parties were all month-end 30~120 days. The outstanding balances as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 were unsecured, non-interest bearing and to be settled in cash. The receivables from the related parties were not guaranteed.

(2) Purchase

	For the year ended	
	December 31	
	2023	2022
Subsidiary		
GITEH Electronic Industries Co., Ltd.	\$116,293	\$116,293
Second-tier subsidiary		
ShangHai HOWTEH International Trading Inc.	179	-
Total	\$99,778	\$116,293

The transaction price of the company's purchase of goods by the above related persons is similar to that of general manufacturers, and the payment terms of general manufacturers are month-end 25~90 days. The company's payment terms for GITEH Electronic Industries Co., Ltd. and ShangHai HOWTEH International Trading Inc. are month-end 60 days.

(3) Accounts receivable from related parties

	December 31, 2023	December 31, 2022
Subsidiary		
GITEH Electronic Industries Co., Ltd.	\$20,399	\$21,575
Second-tier subsidiary		
ShangHai HOWTEH International Trading Inc.	3,559	4,783
ShenZhen HOWTEH Technology Co., Ltd.	7,611	5,865
Substantive related party		
Tailyn Technologies, Inc.	123	90
Total	\$31,692	\$32,313
(4) Accounts payable to related parties		
	December 31,	December 31,
	2023	2022
Subsidiary		
GITEH Electronic Industries Co., Ltd.	\$23,434	\$30,611
(5) Other payables		
	December 31, 2023	December 31, 2022
Substantive related party		
Tailyn Technologies, Inc.	\$13	\$12
(6) Lease - related parties		
Lease payments		
	For the year ended December 31	
	2023	2022
Other related party		
Tailyn Technologies, Inc.	\$363	\$363

The rental prices and collection terms to the above related parties are not much different from third parties. The mutual agreement of rental prices is determined by local market conditions, and is based on the location, floors and scopes of the lease.

(7) Donation

	For the year ended December 31	
	2023	2022
Substantive related party		
Taipei Rosyclouds Foundation For Education	\$300	\$-

(8) Endorsement guarantee

For the year ended 2023

The Company's endorsement towards GITEH Electronic Industries Co., Ltd and HOWTEH Vietnam Co., Ltd. :

		The company's	
	The highest balance of	ending balance of	
	endorsement per period	endorsement	Guarantee purpose
CTBC Bank CO., Ltd.	USD 3,000 thousand	\$92,114	Credit line of loans
Sumitomo Group	USD 300 thousand	9,212	Business dealings
		\$101,327	

For the year ended 2022

The Company's endorsement towards GITEH Electronic Industries Co., Ltd :

	The highest balance of endorsement per period	The company's ending balance of endorsement	Guarantee purpose
CTBC Bank CO., Ltd.	USD 3,000 thousand	\$92,130	Credit line of loans
Sumitomo Group	USD 300 thousand	9,213	Business dealings
		\$101,343	

(9) Key management personnel compensation

	For the yea	For the year ended	
	Decembe	December 31	
	2023	2022	
Short-term employee benefits	\$20,962	\$22,593	
Post-employment benefits	206	205	
Total	\$21,168	\$22,798	

For details on the remuneration of the above key management, please refer to the contents of the annual report of the Shareholders' Meeting.

8. Assets pledged as collateral

The following table lists assets of the Company pledged as collateral:

	Carrying amount		
	December 31,	December 31,	
Items	2023	2022	Secured liabilities
Property, plant and equipment - land	\$89,074	\$89,074	Short-term bank loan
Property, plant and equipment - buildings	13,500	13,500	Short-term bank loan
Total	\$102,574	\$102,574	

9. Significant contingencies and unrecognized contract commitments

(1) Unused credit lines of L/C letters issued by the Company as of December 31, 2023:

Bank	Currency	Open Foreign Currency Amount (Dollars in thousands)
Mega International Commercial Bank	JPY	\$187,520

(2) The guarantee notes issued by the Company as of December 31, 2023:ClientNatureFLEXIUM INTERCONNECT INCPerformance guarantee\$14,465

- (3) The Company has signed an agency contract with Company S to sell Company S's products, and the Company shall pay the agency deposit to Company S as a performance guarantee according to the contract. As of December 31, 2023, the Company has provided US\$1.5 million as a performance bond, which amounted to approximately NT\$46,058 thousand and is accounted under Refundable deposits paid.
- (4) For the year ended December 31, 2023, the details of the amount of endorsement guarantee provided by GITEH Electronic Industries Co., Ltd and HOWTEH Vietnam Co., Ltd., please refer to Notes 7(8).
- 10. <u>Significant disaster loss</u> None.
- 11. <u>Significant subsequent events</u> None.
- 12. <u>Other</u>(1) Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets

	December 31,	December 31,
	2023	2022
Financial assets at fair value through other	\$298,908	\$227,186
comprehensive income		
Financial assets measured at amortized cost (Note)	1,093,962	1,392,883
Total	\$1,392,870	\$1,620,069
Financial liabilities		
	December 31,	December 31,
	2023	2022
Financial liabilities at amortized cost:		
Short-term loan	\$590,000	\$903,000
Accounts payable(including related parties)	216,196	272,836
Other payables	76,240	71,028
Guarantee deposits	3,309	3,309
Lease liabilities(including noncurrent)	8,346	565
Total	\$894,091	\$1,250,738

Note: Including cash and cash equivalents (cash on hand not included), notes receivable, accounts receivable, other receivables and refundable deposits.

(2) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company principal financial risk management objective is to manage the market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk related to its operating activates. The Company identifies measures and manages the aforementioned risks based on the Company's policy and risk appetite.

The Company has established appropriate policies, procedures and internal controls for financial risk management. Before entering into significant transactions, due approval process by the Board of Directors must be carried out based on related protocols and internal control procedures. The Company complies with its financial risk management policies at all times.

(3) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will

fluctuate because of the changes in market prices. Market prices comprise currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk (such as equity risk).

In practice, it is rarely the case that a single risk variable will change independently from other risk variable, there is usually interdependencies between risk variables. However, the sensitivity analysis disclosed below does not take into account the interdependencies between risk variables.

Foreign currency risk

The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's operating activities (when revenue or expense are denominated in a different currency from the Company's functional currency) and the Company's net investments in foreign subsidiaries.

The Company has certain foreign currency receivables to be denominated in the same foreign currency with certain foreign currency payables, therefore natural hedge is received. The Company also uses forward contracts to hedge the foreign currency risk on certain items denominated in foreign currencies. Hedge accounting is not applied as they did not qualify for hedge accounting criteria. Furthermore, as net investments in foreign subsidiaries are for strategic purposes, they are not hedged by the Company.

The foreign currency sensitivity analysis of the possible change in foreign exchange rates on the Company's profit is performed on significant monetary items denominated in foreign currencies as at the end of the reporting period. The Company's foreign currency risk is mainly related to the volatility in the exchange rates for foreign currency. The information of the sensitivity analysis is as follows:

When NTD strengthens against USD by 1%, the profit for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 would decrease by NT\$6,301 thousand and NT\$8,242 thousand, respectively.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company's debt instrument investments at variable interest rates, bank borrowings with fixed interest rates and variable interest rates.

The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable loans and borrowings and entering into interest rate swaps. Hedge accounting does not apply to these swaps as they do not qualify for it.

The interest rate sensitivity analysis is performed on items exposed to interest rate risk as at the end of the reporting period, including investments and borrowings with variable interest rates and interest rate swaps. At the reporting date, a change of 10 basis points of interest rate in a reporting period could cause the profit for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 to decrease by NT\$544 thousand and NT\$859 thousand, respectively.

Equity price risk

The fair value of the Company's listed and unlisted equity securities are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future values of the investment securities. The Company's listed and unlisted equity securities are classified under financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. The Company manages the equity price risk through diversification and placing limits on individual and total equity instruments. Reports on the equity portfolio are submitted to the Company's senior management on a regular basis. The Company's Board of Directors reviews and approves all equity investment decisions.

As of December 31,2023 and 2022, a change of 5% in the price of the listed companies stocks classified as equity instruments investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income could have an impact of NT\$14,495 thousand and NT\$11,359 thousand on the equity attributable to the Company for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Please refer to Note 12(8) for sensitivity analysis information of other equity instruments or derivatives that are linked to such equity instruments whose fair value measurement is categorized under Level 3.

(4) Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from operating activities (primarily for account and notes receivables) and from its financing activities, including bank deposits and other financial instruments.

Credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company's established policy,

procedures and control relating to credit risk management. Credit limits are established for all counter parties based on their financial position, rating from credit rating agencies, historical experience, prevailing economic condition and the Company's internal rating criteria etc. Certain counter parties' credit risk will also be managed by taking credit enhancing procedures, such as requesting for prepayment or insurance.

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the credit concentration risk of accounts receivable is insignificant.

Credit risk from balances with banks, fixed income securities and other financial instruments is managed by the Company's treasury in accordance with the Company's policy. The Company only transacts with counterparties approved by the internal control procedures, which are banks and financial institutions, companies and government entities with good credit rating. Consequently, there is no significant credit risk for these counter parties.

The Company uses IFRS 9 to evaluate the expected credit losses, receivables are measured as allowance losses over the life of expected credit losses, the remainder are not investments in debt instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss, and their original purchase is based on the assumption of low credit risk, and whether credit risk has increased significantly since the original recognition at each balance sheet date to determine the method of measuring the allowance loss and its loss rate. The debt instrument mentioned above that aren't measured at fair value through profit and loss are cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash on hand), and their carrying amount as of December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022 were NT\$376,242 thousand and NT\$618,855 thousand, respectively, and the loss rates were both 0%.

In addition, the Company also writes off financial assets when it evaluates that it cannot reasonably be expected to recover financial assets (e.g. significant financial difficulties of the issuer or debtor, or bankruptcy).

(5) Liquidity risk management

The Company's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of cash and cash equivalents, highly liquid equity investments, bank borrowings, convertible bonds and finance leases. The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on the contractual undiscounted payments and contractual maturity. The payment amount includes the contractual interest. The undiscounted payment relating to borrowings with variable interest rates is extrapolated based on the estimated interest rate yield curve as of the end of the reporting period.

Non-derivative financial liabilities

	Less than					
	1 year	2 to 3 years	4 to 5 years	>5 years	Total	
As at December 31, 2023						
Short-term loans						
(estimated interests to						
be paid included)	\$590,604	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$590,604	
Lease liabilities	4.049	3,928	548		0 5 7 5	
(Non-current included)	4,049	5,928	548	-	8,525	
Payables	216,196	-	-	-	216,196	
Other payables	76,240	-	-	-	76,240	
Guarantee deposits	3,309	-	-	-	3,309	

	Less than					
	1 year	2 to 3 years	4 to 5 years	>5 years	Total	
As at December 31, 2022						
Short-term loans						
(estimated interests to						
be paid included)	\$903,754	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$903,754	
Lease liabilities	565				565	
(Non-current included)	505	-	-	-	303	
Payables	272,836	-	-	-	272,836	
Other payables	71,028	-	-	-	71,028	
Guarantee deposits	3,309	-	-	-	3,309	

(6) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Reconciliation of liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2023:

				Total liabilities
	Short-term	Guarantee	Leases	from financing
	loans	deposits	liabilities	activities
As at Jan 1, 2023	\$903,000	\$3,309	\$565	\$906,874
Cash flows	(313,000)	-	(3,466)	(316,466)
Non-cash changes			11,247	11,247
As at Dec 31, 2023	\$590,000	\$3,309	\$8,346	\$601,655

		Short-term			Total liabilities	
	Short-term notes and		Guarantee	Leases	from financing	
	loans	loans bills payable deposits		liabilities	activities	
As at Jan 1, 2022	\$1,030,000	\$30,000	\$3,309	\$2,850	\$1,066,159	
Cash flows	(127,000)	(30,000) -		(2,306)	(159,306)	
Non-cash changes	-		-	21	21	
As at Dec 31, 2022	\$903,000	\$-	\$3,309	\$565	\$906,874	

Reconciliation of liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2023:

- (7) Fair values of financial instruments
 - (A) The methods and assumptions applied in determining the fair value of financial instruments:

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The following methods and assumptions were used by the Company to measure or disclose the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities:

- (a) The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, receivables and payables approximate their fair value due to their short maturities.
- (b) For financial assets and liabilities traded in an active market with standard terms and conditions, their fair value is determined based on market quotation price (including listed equity securities, beneficiary certificates, bonds and futures etc.) at the reporting date.
- (c) Fair value of equity instruments without market quotations (including private placement of listed equity securities, unquoted public company and private company equity securities) are estimated using the market method valuation techniques based on parameters such as prices based on market transactions of equity instruments of identical or comparable entities and other relevant information (for example, inputs such as discount for lack of marketability, P/E ratio of similar entities and Price-Book ratio of similar entities).
- (d) The fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities is determined on the basis of discounted cash flow analysis, and their interest rates and discount rates are mainly based on information related to similar instruments, yield curves

applicable over the life of the period, etc.

(B) Fair value of financial instruments measured at amortized cost

The Company's carrying value of financial instruments measured at amortized cost approaches to the fair value of financial instruments measured at amortized cost approaches.

(C) Fair value measurement hierarchy for financial instruments

Please refer to Note 12(8) for fair value measurement hierarchy for financial instruments of the Company.

- (8) Fair value measurement hierarchy
 - (A) Fair value measurement hierarchy

All asset and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole. Level 1, 2 and 3 inputs are described as follows:

- Level 1 Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date
- Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly
- Level 3 Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization at the end of each reporting period.

(B) Fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's assets and liabilities

The Company does not have assets that are measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis. Fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis is as follows:

As at December 31, 2023

	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
Financial assets: Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income Equity instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income	\$298,908	\$-	\$-	\$298,908
As at December 31, 2022				
	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
Financial assets:				
Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income Equity instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income	\$227,186	\$-	\$-	\$227,186

Transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period

During the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair value measurements.

Fair value measurements in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy for movements

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, there were no financial assets that are measured at fair value within Level 3. Therefore the valuation process used for fair value measurements categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy isn't needed.

Valuation process used for fair value measurements categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, there were no financial assets that are measured at fair value within Level 3. Therefore the valuation process used for fair value measurements categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy isn't needed.

(C) Fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's assets and liabilities not measured at fair value but for which the fair value is disclosed

As at December 31, 2023:

	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
Investment properties (please refer to Note 6)	\$-	\$-	\$151,445	\$151,445

As at December 31, 2022:

	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3	Total
Investment properties	\$-	\$-	\$151,445	\$151,445
(please refer to Note 6)				

(9) Significant financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies

The significant financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies were as follow:

TD
841,429
155,062
566,767
211,298
TD
081,464
162,932
532,962
257,297

Since there were varieties of functional currencies within each entities of the Company, the Company is unable to disclose foreign exchange gain or loss information of monetary financial assets and liabilities in each foreign currency. The Company's net foreign currency exchange gain (loss) for the year ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 were NT\$113,484 thousand and NT\$(15,398) thousand, respectively.

(10)Capital management

The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholders' value. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

13. Other disclosure

- (1) Information at significant transactions
 - (A) Financing provided to others: Please refer to Attachment 1.
 - (B) Endorsement/Guarantees provided to others: Please refer to Attachment 2.
 - (C) Securities on held at the end of the period : Please refer to Attachment 3.
 - (D) Individual securities acquired or disposed of with accumulated amount exceeding the lower of NT\$300 million or 20 percent of the capital stock: None.
 - (E) Acquisition of individual property with amount exceeding NT\$300 million or 20 percent of the capital stock: None.
 - (F) Disposition of property for amount exceeding NT\$300 million or 20 percent of the capital stock: None.
 - (G) Related parties transactions for purchases and sales amount exceeding NT\$100 million or 20 percent of the capital stock: Please refer to attachment 4.
 - (H) Receivables from related parties with amount exceeding NT\$100 million or 20 percent of the capital stock: None.
 - (I) Derivatives transactions: None.
 - (J) Others: The business relationships and important transactions between the parent company and the subsidiaries, and among subsidiaries, along with their respective amounts are detailed in Attachment 5.
- (2) Information on investees
 - (A) Information about the investee company that direct or indirect has significant influence or control over the investee company: Please refer to Attachment 6 and 7.
 - (B) Information of significant transaction within the investee company of which that has significant influence or control over the investee company, directly or indirectly :
 - (a) Financing provided to others: Please refer to Attachment 1.
 - (b) Endorsement/Guarantees provided to others: None.

- (c) Securities held at the end of the period: None
- (d) Individual securities acquired or disposed of with accumulated amount exceeding the lower of NT\$300 million or 20 percent of the capital stock: None.
- (e) Acquisition of individual property with amount exceeding NT\$300 million or 20 percent of the capital stock: None.
- (f) Disposal of individual property with amount exceeding NT\$300 million or 20 percent of the capital stock: None.
- (g) Related party transaction for purchases and sales amounts exceeding the lower of NT\$100 million or 20 percent of the capital stock: Please refer to Attachment 4.
- (h) Receivables from related parties with amount exceeding NT\$100 million or 20 percent of capital stock: None.
- (i) Derivatives transactions: None.
- (3) Investment in Mainland China
 - (A) Investee company name, main businesses and products, total amount of capital, investment method, accumulated inflow and outflow of investments from Taiwan, percentage of ownership, investment profit and loss, carry amount of investment at the end of the period, cumulated inward remittance of earnings and limits on investment in Mainland China: Please refer to Attachment 7.
 - (B) Directly or indirectly significant transactions with investee in Mainland China through third regions:
 - (a) The amount and percentage of goods sold and the closing balance and percentage of the related receivables for the year ended 2023 :
 - (I) The sales amount between the Company and ShangHai HOWTEH International Trading Inc. was NT\$39,254 thousand, which accounts for 1.77% of the net sales of the Company's parent company only financial statements.
 - (II) The accounts receivable between the Company and ShangHai HOWTEH International Trading Inc. was NT\$3,559 thousand, which accounts for 0.50% of the accounts receivable of the Company's parent company only financial statements.
 - (III) The sales amount between the Company and ShenZhen HOWTEH Technology Co., Ltd. was NT\$33,999 thousand, which accounts for 1.53% of the net sales of the Company's parent company only financial statements.

- (IV)The accounts receivable between the Company and ShenZhen HOWTEH Technology Co., Ltd. was NT\$7,611 thousand, which accounts for 1.06% of the accounts receivable of the Company's parent company only financial statements.
- (b) The amount and percentage of goods purchased and the closing balance and percentage of the related payables for the year ended 2023 : None.
- (c) Property transactions and the amount of profit and loss arising from the transactions: : None.
- (d) The closing balance and purpose of the guarantee of payment instrument by endorsement or collateral provided : None.
- (e) The highest balance, closing balance, interest rate range and total interest of the period for the capital and finance : Please refer to attachment 1.
- (f) Other transactions that have a significant impact on the profit or loss or financial position of the current period, such as the provision or receipt of services etc. : None.
- (4) Information of major shareholders

Information on shareholders holding 5% or more of the Company's equity: Please refer to attachment 8.

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

No. (Note	Financier	Counter-party	Item (Note 2)	Related- party	Maximum Balance (Note 3)	Ending Balance (Note 8)	Amount Actually Drawn	Interest Rate Range	Financing Provided (Note 4)	Transaction Amount (Note 5)	Financing Reasons (Note 6)	Allowance for Bad Debt	Colla Name	1	Financial Limit for Each Counter-party	Limit on Financier's Total Financing
1	ShangHai HOWTEH International Trading Inc.	KunShan HOWTEH International Trading Inc.	Other receivables	Yes	\$30,705 USD1,000	\$30,705 USD1,000	\$7,129	0.00%	1	\$2,105	Business dealings	\$-	-	-	\$65,139 (Note 10)	\$97,709 (Note 10)
1	ShangHai HOWTEH International Trading Inc.	ShenZhen HOWTEH Technology Co., Ltd.	Other receivables	Yes	17,308 RMB4,000	17,308 RMB4,000	-	4.35%	2	-	Short-term financing	-	-	-	65,139 (Note 10)	97,709 (Note 10)
2	ShenZhen HOWTEH Technology Co., Ltd.	ShangHai HOWTEH International Trading Inc.	Other receivables	Yes	17,308 RMB4,000	17,308 RMB4,000	-	4.35%	2	-	Short-term financing	-	-	-	32,003 (Note 11)	48,004 (Note 11)

Note 1: The description of the number column is as follows:

(1) Issuer fill in 0.

(2) Investee companies are numbered sequentially, beginning with the Arabic numeral 1.

Note 2: Accounts of receivables related enterprise payments, receivables related party payments, shareholder transactions, advance payments, temporary payments... and other subjects, if they are in the nature of capital loans, must be filled in this form.

Note 3: The highest balance of funds lent to others in the current year.

Note 4: The nature of the loan should be filled in as a business transaction or a need for short-term financing.

(1) Business transaction fill in 1.

(2) Short-term financing fill in 2.

Note 5: If the nature of the loan is a business transaction, the business transaction amount should be filled in, which refers to the business transaction amount of the company and the loan target who lent the funds in the latest year.

Note 6: If the nature of the capital loan is necessary for short-term financing funds, the reason for the necessary loan and the purpose of the funds to be borrowed should be specified, such as: repayment of loans, purchase of equipment, business turnover, etc.

Note 7: The maximum loan limit set by the Company shall not exceed 40% of the net value of the Company, and the maximum loan limit shall not exceed 20% of the net value of the Company for a single object.

Note 8: The amounts of funds to be loaned to others which have been approved by the Board of Directors of a public company in accordance with Article 14, Item 1 of the "Regulations Governing Loaning of Funds and Making of Endorsements/ Guarantces by Public Companies" should be included in its published balance of loans to others at the end of the reporting period to reveal the risk of loaning the public company bears, even though they have not yet been appropriated. However, this balance should exclude the loans repaid when repayments are done subsequently to reflect the risk adjustment. Tn addition, if the Board of Directors of a public company has authorized the Chairman to loan funds in instalments or in revolving within certain lines and within one year in accordance with Article 14, Item 2 of the "Regulations Governing Loaning of Funds and Making of Endorsements/ Guarantces by Public Company has authorized the Chairman to loan funds in instalments or in revolving within certain lines and within one year in accordance with Article 14, Item 2 of the "Regulations Governing Loaning of Funds and Making of Endorsements/ Guarantces by Public Company has authorized the Chairman to loan funds in instalments or in revolving within certain lines and within one year in accordance with Article 14, Item 2 of the "Regulations Governing Loaning of Funds and Making of Endorsements/ Guarantces by Public Company has authorized the loans to others at the end of the reporting period should also include these lines of loaning approved by the Board of Directors, and these lines of loaning should not be excluded from this balance even though the loans are repaid subsequently, for taking into consideration that they could be loaned again thereafter.

Note 9: Counter-party:

According to Article 15 of the Company Law, the company's funds shall not be lent to shareholders or any other person except in the following circumstances:

(1) Intercompany business dealers.

(2) There is a need for short-term financing between companies. The amount of financing shall not exceed 40% of the net value of enterprise.

For the purposes of the preceding paragraph, short-term term refers to one year. However, if the company's business cycle is longer than one year, the business cycle shall prevail.

(3) The financing amount referred to in the preceding paragraph is the cumulative balance of the Company's short-term financing funds.

(4) The Company directly and indirectly holds 100% of the voting shares of foreign companies engaged in capital loans, which are not subject to the restrictions of the preceding paragraph.

Note 10: The total limit of capital loans set by ShangHai HOWTEH International Trading Inc. shall not exceed 60% of the net value of the company, and the maximum loan limit for a single object shall not exceed 40% of the net value of the company.

Note 11: The total limit of capital loan and total set by ShenZhen HOWTEH Technology Co., Ltd. shall not exceed 60% of the net value of the company, and the maximum loan limit for a single object shall not exceed 40% of the net value of the company.

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

		Counter-part		Limits on Each Counter-party's Maximum balance		Ending	Actual Amount		Ratio of Accumulated		Provision of	Provision of Endorsements by	Provision of Endorsements to the
No.	Collaterals/Guar antee Provider		Relationship	Collateral/Guarantee Amounts	accumulated up to the end of this month	Balance	Drawn Down	Amount of Properties Guaranteed	Amount of Collateral to Net Asset Value of the Latest Financial	Guarantee Amounts	Endorsements by Parent Company to Subsidiary	Subsidiary to Parent	Company in Mainland China
(Note 1)		Name	(Note 2)	(Note 3)	(Note 4 \ 8)	(Note 5 \ 8)	(Note 6)		Statement (%)	(Note 3)	(Note 6)	(Note 7)	(Note 7)
0	HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.	GITEH Electronic Industries Co., Ltd.	4	\$386,717	\$92,115 USD 3,000	\$92,115 USD 3,000	\$-	\$-	5.95%	\$773,435	Y	-	-
0	HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.	HOWTEH Vietnam Co., Ltd.	4	386,717	9,212 USD 300	9,212 USD 300	-	-	0.60%	773,435	Y	-	-

Note 1: The description of the number column is as follows:

(1) Issuer fill in 0.

(2) Investee companies are numbered sequentially, beginning with the Arabic numeral 1.

Note 2: There are the following seven types of relationships between the endorsement guarantor and the endorsed guarantee object, and the types can be indicated:

(1) There are business dealings between companies.

(2) Companies in which the company directly and indirectly holds more than 50% of the voting shares.

(3) A company in which more than 50% of the voting rights are directly or indirectly held in the company.

(4) A company in which the company directly and indirectly holds more than 90% of the voting shares.

(5) A company that is mutually insured by inter-industry or co-sponsors in accordance with the provisions of the contract.

(6) A company that is endorsed and guaranteed by all contributing shareholders in accordance with their shareholding ratio due to a co-investment relationship.

(7) The performance guarantee of the pre-sale house sales contract is jointly and severally guaranteed in accordance with the Consumer Protection Law.

Note 3: Endorsement guarantee method: The total amount of endorsement guarantee shall not exceed 50% of the company's net value, and the amount of endorsement guarantee for a single enterprise shall not exceed 25% of the company's net value.

Note 4: The maximum amount accumulated up to this month is the highest guaranteed balance of endorsement for the current year.

Note 5: By the end of the year, the company shall bear the endorsement or guarantee liability when the amount of the endorsement guarantee deed or instrument signed by the company to the bank is approved; Other relevant cases with endorsement guarantee should be included in the balance of endorsement guarantee.

Note 6: The actual amount of expenditure is the amount of expenditure under the guaranteed amount of the parent company.

Note 7: Those who are endorsement guarantors of the parent company of the listed stock exchange to the subsidiary, endorsement guarantors of the subsidiaries to the parent company of the listed stock exchange to the mainlain to the mainlain of the subsidiary endorsement guarantors of the subsidiaries to the parent company of the listed stock exchange to the mainlain of the subsidiary endorsement guarantors of the subsidiaries to the parent company of the listed stock exchange to the mainlain of the subsidiary endorsement guarantors of the subsidiaries to the parent company of the listed stock exchange to the mainlain of the subsidiary endorsement guarantors of the subsidiaries to the parent company of the listed stock exchange to the mainlain of the subsidiary endorsement guarantors of the subsidiaries to the parent company of the listed stock exchange to the mainlain of the subsidiary endorsement guarantors of the subsidiaries to the parent company of the listed stock exchange to the mainlain of the subsidiary endorsement guarantors of the subsidiaries to the parent company of the listed stock exchange to the mainlain of the subsidiary endorsement guarantors of the subsidiaries to the parent company of the listed stock exchange to the mainlain of the subsidiary endorsement guarantors of the subsidiaries to the parent company of the listed stock exchange to the mainlain of the subsidiary endorsement guarantors of the subsidiary endorsement guaranto

Note 8 The exchange rate is based on the ending exchange rate.

Attached Table 3: Marketable securities held (excluding investment subsidiaries, affiliated enterprises and joint venture control part)

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

				As of December 31, 2022				
		Relationship with the Holding		Shares	Carrying	Percentage of		Notes(Note 4)
Holding Company	Securities Type and Name(Note 1)	Company(Note 2)	Financial Statement Accoun	(1,000)	Value(Note 3)	Ownership(%)	Fair Value	Inotes(Inote 4)
HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.	Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive							
	Tailyn Technologies, Inc.	The Chairman of the company is a director of the Tailyn company	Investments in equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income - noncurrent	8,291,475	\$298,908	11.05%	\$298,908	No collateral is provided
	Feedpool Technology Co.,Ltd.	-	//	566,030		2.52%		//
			Total		\$298,908		\$298,908	

Note 1: For the purposes of this table, marketable securities refer to stocks, bonds, beneficiary certificates and securities derived from the above items that fall within the scope of IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments".

Note 2: If the issuer of securities is not a related person, this column is exempted.

Note 3: For fair value measured, please fill in the book balance after adjustment of fair value evaluation and deduction of accumulated impairment in the carrying amount field; For those not measured at fair value, please fill in the carrying amount of the original acquisition cost or amortized cost less the accumulated impairment book balance.

Note 4: The use of marketable securities is restricted because of the provision of guarantees, pledge loans, or other agreements. The number of shares to be guaranteed or pledged, the amount and restricted use should be indicated in the remarks column.

Attached Table 4: Purchase and sale of goods from or to related parties reaching NT\$ 100 million or more than 20% of the paid-in capital or more

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) transaction terms compared to general Notes/accounts receivable transactions and Transaction (payable) reasons Percentage of Percentage total of total Unit Relationship notes/accounts purchases price receivable(pay with the Purchases(sales) Credit term Counter-party (sales) able)(%) Purchaser/seller counter-party (Note 1) Credit term (Note 2) (Note 2) Balance Notes Amount HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY **GITEH Electronic Industries** \$(107,900) Subsidiary \$-2.84 Sales (4.86)60days \$20,399 CO., LTD. Co., Ltd. HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY **GITEH Electronic Industries** Subsidiary 107,990 60days (20,399) Purchases 19.24 (23.81)_ Co., Ltd. CO., LTD.

Note 1: Written off at the time of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

Note 2: Comparable to general companies.

Note 3: The ratio of total notes receivable (payable) and accounts receivable (payable) to the individual financial statements of the importing (selling) company.

Attached Table 5:Business relationships and important transactions between parent and subsidiary companies

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

			Relationship with		Ti	ransactions	Thousands of New Turwan Donais
No.			the counter-		Amount (Note	Trading	Ratio to total consolidated
(Note 1)	Purchaser/seller	Counter-party	party(Note 2)	Account	4)	conditions	revenue or total assets (Note 3)
0	HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.	ShangHai HOWTEH International Trading Inc.	1	Sales revenue	\$39,254	120days	1.43%
0	//	//	1	Accounts receivable	3,559	//	0.14%
0	//	//	1	Purchase	179	月結60天	0.01%
0	//	GITEH Electronic Industries Co., Ltd.	1	Sales revenue	107,900	60days	3.93%
0	//	//	1	Accounts receivable	20,399	//	0.81%
0	//	//	1	Purchase	99,599	//	3.63%
0	//	//	1	Accounts payable	23,434	//	0.93%
0	//	ShenZhen HOWTEH Technology Co., Ltd.	1	Sales revenue	33,999	//	1.24%
0	//	//	1	Accounts receivable	7,611	//	0.30%
1	GITEH Electronic Industries Co., Ltd.	ShangHai HOWTEH International Trading Inc.	3	Sales revenue	52,591	120days	1.92%
1	//	//	3	Accounts receivable	6,914	//	0.27%
1	//	//	3	Purchase	4,881	60days	0.18%
1	//	//	3	Accounts payable	1,749	//	0.07%
1	//	ShenZhen HOWTEH Technology Co., Ltd.	1	Sales revenue	48,584	//	1.77%
1	//	//	1	Accounts receivable	14,725	//	0.58%
1	//	//	1	Other payables	1,696	10days	0.07%
1	//	//	1	Operating expenses	5,291	//	0.19%
1	//	HOWTEH Vietnam Co., Ltd.	3	Sales revenue	12	60days	0.00%
2	ShenZhen HOWTEH Technology Co., Ltd.	ShangHai HOWTEH International Trading Inc.	3	Sales revenue	1,488	120days	0.05%
2	//	//	3	Accounts receivable	126	//	0.01%
2	//	//	3	Purchase	48,831	60days	1.78%
2	//	//	3	Accounts payable	15,001	//	0.60%
	//	KunShan HOWTEH International Trading Inc.	3	Accounts payable	12	120days	0.00%
3	ShangHai HOWTEH International Trading Inc.	KunShan HOWTEH International Trading Inc.	3	Sales revenue	2,105	120days	0.08%
3	//	//	3	Accounts receivable	8,678	//	0.34%
3	//	//	3	Operating expenses	6,981	25days	0.25%

Note 1: The description of the number column is as follows:

(1) Issuer fill in 0.

(2) Investee companies are numbered sequentially, beginning with the Arabic numeral 1.

Note 2: There are three types of transaction relationships

(1) Parent company to subsidiary.

(2) Subsidiary to parent company.

(3) Subsidiary to subsidiary.

Note 3: The transaction amount is calculated using total revenue or total asset ratio. In the case of balance sheet accounts, the ratio of the closing amount to the total assets is used;

In the case of income statement accounts, the ratio of cumulative amounts in the period to total revenue is used.

Note 4: The important transactions in this table shall be listed by the company in accordance with the materiality principle.

Note 5: Eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.

Attached Table 6: Information on the name and location of the invested company (excluding invested companies in Mainland China

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

	Investee Company			Initial investment amount		Held by the company			Current gain	Investment gain	
Investor Company	(Note $1 \cdot 2$)	Location	Main Business activities	Ending of this period	Ending of last year	Number of shares	Rate%	Carrying amount	(loss)(Note 2(2))	(loss))(Note 2(3))	Note
HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.	GITEH Electronic Industries Co., Ltd.	Hong Kong	trading of electronic parts	HKD 12,000	HKD 12,000	-	100.00%	\$565,762	\$36,390	\$35,891	
HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.	HOWTEH International Inc.	Samoa	Investment in Shanghai and entrepot trade	USD 1,800	USD 1,800	-	100.00%	172,740	(6,585)	(6,560)	
HOWTEH International Inc.	HOWTEH Vietnam Co., Ltd.	Vietnam	trading of electronic parts	USD 300	USD 300	-	100.00%	4,541	(1,300)	(1,300)	

Note 1: If a public offering company has a foreign holding company and uses consolidated statements as its main financial statements in accordance with local laws and regulations, the disclosure of information about the foreign invested company may

only disclose the relevant information of the holding company.

Note 2: Except for the circumstances described in Note 1, fill in according to the following provisions:

(1) "Investee Company ", "Location", "Main Business activities", "Initial investment amount" and "Ending of this period", the reinvestment situation of the (public offering) company and the reinvestment situation of each investee

company directly or indirectly controlled should be filled in order, and the relationship between each investee company and the public offering company should be indicated in the remarks column (if it is a subsidiary or grandchild).

(2) "Current gain (loss)", the current profit or loss amount of each investee company should be filled in.

(3) "Investment gain (loss)", only the profit and loss amount of each subsidiary of the public offering company recognized for direct transfer investment and each investee company evaluated by the equity method must be filled in, and the remaining information is exempted.

When filling in the "nvestment gain (loss)", it should be confirmed that the current profit and loss amount of each subsidiary already includes the investment profit or loss that should be recognized according to the regulations for its reinvestment.

Note 3: Eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.

										(In 7	Thousands of New '	Taiwan Dollars)
			Investment method	Accumulated amount of remittance from Taiwan at the beginning of	investmen	unt of nt remitted red during ent period	Accumulate d amount of remittance from Taiwan at the end of	Current profit (loss) of the invested	Shareholding ratio of the company's investment (direct or	Investment income (loss) recognized in the current period	Book value of investment at the end of the	Investment income remitted back to Taiwan as of the current
Investee in Mainland China	Main business activities	Paid-in capital	(Note 1)	current year	Remitted	Recovered	current year	company	indirect)	(Note 2)	period	period
ShangHai HOWTEH International Trading Inc.	International trade, entrepot trade, inter- enterprise trade and trade agency in the bonded zone, enterprise agency with import and export operation rights and non-bonded zone enterprises engaged in trade business, commercial simple processing in the bonded	\$50,663 (USD 1,650)	(2) HOWTEH International Inc.	\$42,987 (USD 1,400)	\$-	\$-	\$42,987 (USD 1,400)	\$(5,196)	100%	\$(5,171) (Note 2 \(2) \2)	\$162,816 (Note 2 \(2) \2)	None
ShenZhen HOWTEH Technology Co., Ltd.	Chemical products, rubber, plastics, metal products, electronic components, testing instruments, general parts, mechanical equipment, electronic equipment and related accessories, communication equipment and related accessories, electrical and electrical equipment and their spare parts wholesale,	27,503 (HKD 7,000)	(2) GITEH Electronic Industries Co., Ltd.	-	-	-	-	(2,178)	100%	(2,182) (Note 2 \cdot (2) \cdot 2)	,	None
KunShan HOWTEH International Trading Inc.	 commission agency, import and export and related supporting business. Electronic product information consulting, economic information consulting, enterprise management consulting. International trade, entrepot trade, trade and trade agency between enterprises in the bonded zone, enterprise agency with import and export operation rights and non-bonded zone enterprises engaged in trade business, commercial simple processing in the bonded zone, business consulting services in the bonded zone, etc. 	9,212 (USD 300)	(1) HOWTEH TECHNOLOGY CO., LTD.	9,212 (USD 300)	-	-	9,212 (USD 300)	275	100%	275 (Note 2 \cdot (2) \cdot 2)	(7,786) (Note 2 \cdot (2) \cdot 2)	

Accumulative amount of investment remitted from Taiwan to the mainland at the end of this period	Investment amount approved by the Investment Commission of the Ministry of Economic Affairs	Ceiling on investments in Mainland China imposed by the Investment Commission of MOEA
\$52,199 (USD1,700)	\$93,664 (USD 1,950) (HKD 8,600)	\$928,121

Note 1: Investment methods are divided into the following three types:

(1) Direct investment in mainland China.

(2) Reinvesting in the mainland through a third region company (please specify the investment company in the third region).

(3) Other methods.

Note 2: In investment income (loss) recognized in the current period column:

(1) If there is no investment profit or loss in the preparation of the company, it should be indicated.

(2) There are three bases for recognition of investment gains and losses, which should be indicated.

1. The amount recognized was based on the financial statements that were audited by a cooperative relationship with the Republic of China CPA firm.

2. The amount recognized was based on the financial statements that were audited by parent company's CPA firm.

3.Other °

4. The difference between current profit (loss) of the investee and investment income (loss) recognized were unrealized downstream, upstream and sidestream transactions with the subsidiaries during the period.

Note 3: The figures in this table should be presented in New Taiwan Dollars at the following exchange rates:

 Ending exchange rati
 Average Exchange Rate :

 USD=30.705
 USD=30.7075

 HKD=3.929
 HKD=3.9335

 RMB=4.327
 RMB=4.3675

Note 4: Eliminated in the consolidated financial statements.

(Unit: one share)

major shareholders	Number of common shares	Number of special shares	Total number of shares held	Shareholding ratio
Hui Hong Investment Co., Ltd.	5,624,875	-	5,624,875	8.63%
Chen, Kuo-Hung	5,295,984	_	5,295,984	8.13%

Note 1: This table is based on the last business day at the end of each quarter, and the total number of ordinary shares and special shares held by shareholders of the company that have completed the non-physical registration delivery (including treasury shares) reaches more than 5%. The number of shares recorded in the company's financial reports and the number of shares actually completed without physical registration may differ depending on the basis of the preparation and calculation.

- Note 2: If the above information belongs to the shareholders who deliver the shares to the trust, they will be revealed in the separate accounts of the settlor who opened a special trust account by the trustee. For insider equity declarations filed by shareholders holding more than 10% of the shares in accordance with the Securities Exchange Act, including shareholding plus shares delivered to the trust and having the right to decide on the use of trust property, please refer to the Public Observation Information Station for the reporting materials.
- Note 3 : The principle of preparation of this table is to calculate the distribution of credit transaction balances from the register of securities owners (excluding securities lending) that the shareholders' temporary meeting has stopped transferring.
- Note 4: Shareholding ratio (%) = total number of shares held by the shareholder / total number of shares that have been delivered without physical registration.
- Note 5 : The total number of shares (including treasury shares) that have been delivered without physical registration is 65,129,792 shares = 65,129,792 (common shares) + 0 (special shares).